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2020 HIGHLIGHTS

Well positioned for
sustainable growth

Elementis is a global specialty
chemicals company. We deliver
Enhanced Performance Through
Applied Innovation; our products
make our customers’ formulations
look, feel and perform at their best.

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on many
businesses arcund the world. In response we have focused on
the safety of our workforce, maintaining a reliable supply to our
customers, and optimising our financial performance through
a clear self-help agenda focused on preactive cost and

cash management.

STRATEGIC HIGHLIGHTS

While the dermand environment was challenging in 2020,

the implementation of our Innovation, Growth and Efficiency
strategy has continued at pace. The launch of 12 new products,
generation of $30m of new business opportunities and delivery
of $15m {$10m temporary) of cost savings demonstrates the
Group has arobust foundation from which to grow and deliver
on our medium term financial objectives.

REVENUE ADJUSTED ADJUSTED OPERATING PROQFIT/HLOSS} NET DEBT?
OPERATING OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE
PROFIT? MARGIN' TAX
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020
$751m $82m 10.9% $(28.2)Jm $(68.8)m $408m
2019:$874m 2019:$123m 2019:14.1% 2016 $101m 2019:561m 2019:$454m
2018:$822m 20118:$133m 2018.16.1% 2018:385m 2018: $65m 2018:$498m
DILUTED EARNINGS ADJUSTED ORDINARY TOTAL LCST TIME ENVIRONMENTAL
PER SHARE DILUTED DIVIDEND RECORDABLE ACCIDENTS {LTA) INCIDENTS
EARNINGS PER PER SHARE? INCIDENT RATE
SHARE? {TRIR)
2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020
(11.3)c 6.5¢ Oc 0.68 2 0
2019 7.9¢ 2019:12.4¢ 2019:8,55¢ 2019:0.48 20191 2019: 0
2018 9.5¢ 2018:16.9¢c 2018:8.40¢ 2018:0.22 2018: 0 2018 0O

1 After adjustingitems—see Note 5

2 Rebased for the effects of the Rights Issue in 2018
3 Please seethe Alternative Performance Measures section on page 183

Cautionary statement

The Annual Report and Accounts for the financial year ended 31 December 2020, as contained in this document {Annual Report’}, contains information
which viewers or readers might consiger to be forward looking statements relating to or in respect of the financial condition, results, operations or
businesses of Elementis plc. Any such statements involve risk and uncertainty because they relate to future events and circumstances. There are many
factors that could cause actuai results or developments to differ materially from those expressed orimplied by any such forward looking statements.

Nothing in this Annual Report should be construed as a profit forecast.
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OUR BUSINESS AT A GLANCE

Working with our
customers and
their industries to
solve product
performance and
sustainability
challenges

WHO WE ARE
Elementis is a specialty
chemicals company with over
1,300 employees and operating
at 23 manufacturing sites
across the globe.

Foundedin 1844, we are fisted
on the London Stock Exchange
and are a constituent of the
FTSE 250.

SALES

Personal Care-21%
Coatings—39%
Talc—-18%

WHAT WE DO

We create, make and sell
specialty chemicals that deliver
real benefits o arange of diverse
products including cosmetics,
coatings, long life plastics

and many more. In all areas

of our business our focusis

on creating innovative ingredients
that deliver performance
improvements and enhanced
sustainability credentials.

Chramium~-19%
Energy-3%

PERSONAL CARE

OVERVIEW

HOW WE DO IT
Combining cur access to
unique natural materials

with our leading rheclogy

and technological expertise,
we deliver Enhanced
Performance Through Applied
Innovation to all cur customers
around the world in a timely and
sustainable manner.

COATINGS
OVERVIEW

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT

Personal Care-33%
Coatings—45%

Talc~16%

Calculations adjusted for intersegmental sales,
corporate costs and the Energy business

Chromium—6%

We are a leading global supplier of
rheology modifiers, based on naturat and
synthetic ingredients, and antiperspirant
actives to personal care manufacturers.
Qur products help make skin creams
smooth and antiperspirants work.

$161m

Sales

$34m

Adjusted operating profit

Read more on page 51
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We supnly our rheology modifiers angd
additives to industrial and decorative
coatings manufacturers, Qur products
help make industrial coatings last longer
and decorative coatings apply evenly
andwith enhanced stain resistance,

$296m

Sales

$47m

Adjusted operating profit

Read mgre on page 52



WHERE WE OPERATE

AMERICAS
Total number of sites:

12

7 Personal Care, Coatings and Energy
5 Chromium

TALC

OVERVIEW

We are the second largest global
supplier of talc based additives to
industriat end markets including long
life plastics, coatings and technical
ceramics. Talc additives help make long
life plastics lighter and stronger, and
deliver enhanced anti-corrosion
characteristics to coatings.

$133m

Sales

$17m

Adjusted operating profit

Read more onpage 53

EUROPE
Total number of sites:

4 Personal Care, Coatings and Energy
4 Talc

CHROMIUM

OVERVIEW

We supply arange of chromium
chemicals that are used across a broad
range of industrial applications to make
products more durable. We are the only
producerin North America and have a
unique delivery system that generates
significant customer safety benefits.

$147m

Sales

$6m

Adiusted operating profit

Read more on page 54
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Manufacturing sites

Personal Care, Coatings &Energy

Chromium

Tale

ASIA
Total number of sites:

3 Personal Care, Coatings and Energy

ENERGY

OVERVIEW

We supply clay and synthetic based
rheology maodifiers for oil and gas drilling,
and stimulation activities. These products
are formulated to lubricate the drill bit,
control formation pressure and remove
cuttings in drilling fluids.

$24m

Sales

$(6m)

Adjusted operating profit

Read more on page 55

1H0dIN D1934VHLS

JONYNY3IAQD I I¥H0d4H0D

SINIWILYLS TWIONVYNIS

NOLYWHO4NI 43010HIEVYHS



ELEMENTIS IN EVERYDAY LIFE

The world of
Elementis

BATHROOM

HAIR CONDITIONER FANCOR® natural oils help condition and repair
damaged har

2. SUNSCREEN BENTONE GEL*® and BENTONE HYDROCLAY™ help improve
sunscreen apphcatien and boost SPF

3. ANTIPERSPIRANT High performance ANTIPERSPIRANT ACTIVES help keep
you frasher forlonger

4. NAIL POLISH BENTCONE® organoclays make nail pehish apply smoothly
and evenly

5. ANTACIDS Elementis ANTACID ACTIVES help ease the discomitort of
siomach ndigestion

6. FABRIC SOFTENER RHEQCLEAN® rheclogy modifiars make towels softer
for longer

7. CERAMICS BENTONE® hectorite clay provides excellent flow of ceramics
to create mirror-like gloss and smocthness

KITCHEN

04

KITCHEN FLOOR BENTONE® thickeners create a smooth concrete levelling
surtace for tiles, carpets or parquet

WALL PAINT RHEQLATE® thickeners ensure premium paints apply evenly,
smoothly and with complete cover

TILES BENAQUA® spray dried hectorite clay prevents sagging of wall tiles
KITCHEN CABINET RHEQLATE® thickeners create a unifarm and high quality
finish on kitchen cabinets

WALL PAINT FINNTALC ensures that your atchen wall pant s washable and
stans can e wiped oft

PAPER CUP FINNTALC replaces plastic as a barrier coating. making paper cups
environmentally friendly and biodegradable

QLIVE QIL MICROTALC improves the yield and clarity of extra virgin olive oil
KITCHEN PAPER FINNTALC prevents formatior of sticky mouritiesin

paper making

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2020 { ELEMENTIS PLC

Combining our access to unique
natural resources with our market
leading innovation expertise,

we create performance driven
additives that can be found in many
products used in everyday life.

8, TILES THIXATROL® helps bind large tles 1o a surface faster andforlonger

9. TILEADHESIVES FINNTALC improves water resistance and lowers shrnkage
of tile adhesives

10. MIRROR FINNTALC inthe coating of yvour mirror protects the silver for longer

11. TOILET PAPER FINNTALC prevents formation of sticky impurities in
paper making

12. TQILET SEAT Our PLUSTALC increases the durability of your tollet seat

13. SHOWERHEAD CHROMIC ACID provides metallic shine, corrosion and
wear resistance

14. TOWEL RACK CHROMIC ACID provides metallic shine, Corrosion nd
wear resistance

15. GREEN TILES CHROME OXIDE prowvides vivid calour pigmentation for green,
brown and black tiles

9. KITCHENFURNITURE FINNTALC in the edge protection of your kitchen furniture
supports durability

10. WASHING MACHINE TALC ensures that your washmg machine parts can

resist damage

REFRIGERATOR SODIUM DICHROMATE helps refrigerant coils

withstand corrosion

. STEEL KETTLE CHROME SULPHATE makes your kettle shine, provides corrosion

resistance and gases cleaning procedures

13. SINK TAP CHROMIC ACID provides metaliic shine, enhanced corrasion and
wear resistance

14. DETERGENT SODIUM SULPHATE is used for enhancing performance of
clothing detergents

15. NATURAL GAS FOR COOKING BENTONE® hectorits aliows for more efficient
discovery and extraction of natural gas

.
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KEY
PERSONAL CARE COATINGS TALC CHROMIUM ENERGY
Colour cosmetics Industrial finishes Automotive Finishes Qil
Skin care Architectural Household uses Leather Gas
Haircare Construction Electronics
Antiperspirants Food & Pharma
Bath & Soap Paper
BEDROOM
1. FACE MASK BENTONE HYDROCLAY™ keeps your skin tealthy, silky ard smocth 8. MOBILEPHONE SUPREAD® wetting agents help protective coatings chng to
2. LIPSTICK BENTONE GEL® makes hpsticks pop with colour dficult to coat plastics
3. SKIN CREAM BENTONE® LUXE delivers moisture to your daily skin care routine 9. VITAMINS MICROTALC keeps your nutritional supplements dry and prevents
4. FAGIAL MAKEUP BENTONE HYDROCLAY™ suspends colours eventy tablets from sticking
throughout makeup 10. WALL PAINT FINNTALC adjusts gioss, binding and calour of decorative coalings
5. LEATHERSEAT RHEOLATE® thickeners provide the required flow to apply flexible 11. SMART SPEAKER FINNTALC increases the strength of your smart speaker frame
and transparent leather coatings 12. CHROME HANDLES CHROMIC ACID provides metallic shine, enhanced
6. WALL PAINT DAPRO?® defoamers remave trapped air and ensure a smooth corrosion and wear resistance
paint film 13. LEATHER HEADBOARD CHROME SULPHATE preserves and strengthens leather,
7. MAGAZINES BENTONE® provides excellent flow in publication nks for high gloss making it sefter forlonger
pictures and sharp letter printing 14. CHROME LAMP CHROMIC ACID provides metallic shine, enhanced corrosion
andwear resistarce
LIVING ROOM
1. MAGAZINES BENTONE® provides excellent flow in publicationinks for the 7. TELEPHONE FINNTALC strengthens plastic parts so vour telephone can
high gloss pictures and sharp letter printing be made lighter
2. LEATHERCUSHIONS DAPRO®slip apents provide excellent scratch resistance 8. CHEWING GUM TALC heips make chewing gum soft
3. WALLPAINT RHEQLATE®thickeners ensure gramium paimts apply evenly, 9, FLATSCREEN FINNTALC ensures the dimensienal statality of your large TV frame
smoothly and with complete cover 10. WINE BOTTLE CHROME OXIDE provides a vivid green colour and prevents
4. CABINET RHEOLATE® thickeners ensure excellent paint coverage ard product spoilage from UV rays
durability for furniture catinets 11, LEATHER SOFA CHROME SULPHATE preserves and stergthens lnather,
§. FLOORING FINNTALC improves the prntability o° your laminate flooring making it softer for longer
S0yOL canenjay more designs 12. WINDOW SODIUM SULPHATE is used as a fining agent ta remove smallar
6. CLOCKFRAME PLUSTALC increases the strengtn and durabllity of yaur bubbles frommolten glass

clock frame
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

A high quality business, well
positioned for the future

Dear Shareholders

This year has posed unprecedented
challenges for all of us. The COVID-19
pandemic has brought personal
hardship and suffering to many of
our communities, colleagues and
customers. Paul Waterman, his
Leadership Team and everyone at
Elementis has risen to the task — their
rapid and decisive actions have helped
the Company to navigate safely
through these turbulent times.

06 ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2020 | ELEMENTIS PLC

Our greatest concern has been the safety and welfare of our
employees and lam immensely grateful for the efforts of every
single one of them. Through their hard work we have maintained
effective operations inour supply chain, manufacturing, innovation
and customer support, such that every customer has continued
to receive the products they need. This has been achieved with
unprecedented levels of digitally enabled remote working and
enhanced safe working practices. | have been impressed by the
resilience of the organisation; it is a testament 1o the quality of our
people and the work that has been done over recent years in
transforming the business.

Looking to the future, we have a clearer path towards returning

to a more normal envirenment with the vaccine roll cut, although
uncertainties remain inciuding the impact on the way we five and
work. Our strong values have supported us well and we all look
forward to re-establishing personal contact and relationships with
colleagues and customers.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

In 2020, our financial performance was matearially impacted by
COVID-19, with weaker demand across all our businesses, although
encouragingly. we have seen quarter-on-quarter recovery fromthe
lows of Q2. While Personal Care has been affected by restrictions
limiting social interaction and travel, our more industrial focused
businesses were impacted by weak demand in areas such as
industrial coatings, manufacturing and long life plastics.

In response, we have focused on the things that we can control
through active cost and cash management, while continuing to
Innavate for our customers, As a result, we have delivered a
resilient level of performance and cash flow in 2020, while
cantinuing to invest in growth projects and improvements to

our supply chain. Itis expected that further benefits from these
improvements will be evident in 2021 and beyond, and that they
will be reinforced by our structurat growth oppaortunities as we
emerge from COVIB-18. Despite the ecenomic challenges in our
end markets, it has been particularly pleasing to see cur Ceatings
business respond so effectively to the management changes
implemented over recent years with an encouraging increase

in operating profit margins.

OUR STRATEGY

QOver the last few years, we have made significant progress
repositioning Elementis as a premium performance additives
business with advantaged positions in growing markets such as
Personal Care, Coatings and Talc. The delivery of the benefits of
recent acquisitions has been held back by business specific
challenges and the impact of COVID-18. Howaver, we have a clear
strategic framework and set of priorities in place to improve returns
and create shareholder value.

In November 2019, we outlined Innovation, Growth and Efficiency as
the pillars of our new strategic agenda. They remain our core drivers.
In 2020 we captured new business representing $30m of revenue,
launched 12 new products and delivered $15m of cost savings.
These successes demanstrate our strategy in action,

Elementis is fit for the future and well positicned to deliver
sustainable long term growth through our distinctive and
competitively advantaged assets and technologies. Our strategic
priorities and medium term Group performance objectives remain
unchanged albeit delayed by the impact of the pandemic.



‘A resilient performance in
challenging circumstances.”
ANDREW DUFF

BALANCE SHEET

During the year the Group tock several steps to provide additional
financial headroom and preserve cash. including the suspension of
the dividend, thus contributing to a significant reduction in net debt
from $454m to $468m. The management team also accelerated
cost reduction and working capital improvement programmes while
continuing te drive new business opportunities. These measures
contributed to a resilient performance in the most challenging of
circumstances and give confidence in the outlook for the business.
The Board recognises the importance of dividends to shareholders
and will lock 16 reinstate payments once material progress is made
onreducing financial leverage.

Looking forward, our capital allocation priorities are clear: investment
to drive organic growth, further debt reduction and, when
appropriate, the resumption of dividends to our shareholders.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Commitment to our purpose of developing products which help
cur customers respond to their biggest challenges was never more
important than in 2020. Building our product portfolio to address
sustainable megatrends such as natural personal care ingredients,
vehicle light weighting, recyclable food packaging, and water based
industrial coatings, contributed to aresilient performance in 2020.
They also provide the platform for our strategy of Innovation,
Growth and Efficiency.

It 2020 the Board, in conjunction with our executives and our
employees, developed a set of new sustainabhility objectives for the
next decade, through to 2030, Our ambition is to deliver material
reductions in areas including greenhouse gas emissions (GHG),
energy. waste and water usage. These are laid out in more detail cn
page 32. We are excited about these ambitious targets because
improving our sustainability is the right thing to do and it is fully
aligned with the delivery of superior performance for stakeholders
through innovation and the increasing use of natural ingredients.

Our culture, values and a diverse management team and workfarce
are all key 10 achieving our goals. Our values — Safety, Solutions,
Ambition, Respect, and Team — have been critical in maintaining
resilient and safe operations throughout the pandemic and also

in sustaining a shared commitment while working remotely over
aprolonged period of time. 1 would like to thank every one of our
team members for their efforts on the Company's behalf and
appreciate that many employees have had to manage challenging
circumstances at home as well,

GOVERNANCE AND BOARD

At this time of change and volatility, compounded by the COVID-19
pandemic, where we need to maintain financial strength, your Board
has continued to prioritise good governance and dynamic risk
management, Thig focus ensures that we ask the right guestions

of Paul and hig team, supporting themin driving results for the short
and medium term.

Board succession planning is something in which we have invested
time 1o ensure that we have the depth of leadership capability to
support strategic delivery. We have a good breadth of experience
which brings richness to our discussions. During the last

12 months | am pleased to have welcomed John O'Higgins as
Senior Independent Director and Christine Soden as a Non-
Executive Director, further strengthening the experience and
diversity of the Board as well as strengthening succession options
within the Board.

Brief biographies of John and Christine can be found on pages 66
and 67, and you can read maore about our corporate governance
activities on pages 70 to 78.1am pleased tc be able to say that we
have achieved gender diversity of 38% in our Board and 27% in our
Executive Leadership team and direct reparts. We are building a
pipeline of diverse executive talent to ensure that we have strong
succession plans for all of our executives,

It has been a privilege to serve as Chair of Elermentis during its
transformation over recent years. Paul has assembled a strong
management team over this time and it has been a pieasure to
support them and their colleagues as they met the challenges
presented by the pandemic. There is good momentum in the
business and deleveraging and strategic progress wilt continue to
be key priorities. | believe that this is therefore the right time to step
down and allow a new Chair to lead the Board and the Company
into this important next phase, building onits high quality assets
and market positions, The Nomination Committee has initiated a
process to identify a successor which will be announced in

due course.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Board greatly values the views of sharehclders, customers
and our other stakeholders, and makes it a pricrity to meet as many
of our employees as we can. While COVID-19 has limited our ability
to visit Elementis’ global sites, virtual contact has to some extent
filed the gap. This engagement is a valuable way of assessing the
success of strategy delivery and getting a real feel for the culture
of the organisation.

I've also met many of our sharehclders this year, Discussions have
focused on our strategic progress and financial strength, but also
on the prospects for the business inthe context of the unsolicited
takeover offer received towards the end of the year. The Board
appreciates the support of shareholders and accepts the
expectations for performance that come with that support.

The Board will gontinue to remain highly engaged with our
shareholders as we strive to deliver sustained value creation.

You can read more on our engagement programme on pages 74
to 75.

OUR PEOQOPLE

In such a challenging environment, our collaborative team of
people and the culture they embody has been key to the resilience
of our business. The way that cur employees around the world have
risen to the challenge of maintaining supply and support to our
customers despite the huge difficulties faced has made me
immensely proud. On behalf of the Board, | would like to thankthem
again for their professionalism, dedication and understanding
during this most challenging year.

LOOKING AHEAD

Elementis’ strong businesses, market leading positions and
clear strategic priorities provide a solid foundation for recovery
as we transition from the COVID-19 pandemic towards a ‘new
nermal’. Cur business continues to act with discipling, and we
are confident that the growth oppertunities for Elementis are
very attractive. Your Board and Leadership Team will ensure that
Elernentis continues to focus on long term value ¢reation forall
our stakeholders.

ANDREW DUFF
CHAIRMAN
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CEO'S REVIEW

Resilience in a challenging

environment

1 am proud of the way our pecple
responded to keep the business
aperating largely uninterrupted
throughout the COVID-19 crisis
and  would fike to thank afll our
employees for their dedication
and efforts during the year."

PAUL WATERMAN

08 ANNUAL REPCRT AND ACCOUNTS 2020 | ELEMENTIS PLC

The world is in a very different place
compared with 12 months ago; COVID-19
has brought significant chailenges to
individuals and all businesses. In early 2020,
we started to see the virus spread through
China, The actions we putin place there, to
look after our people, manage our operations
and reliably supply our customers, stood

us in geod stead as the virus then spread
around the world during the rest of the year.

Our priority was, and remaing, the health and safety of our people,
and we have reacted to ensure these are protected. | am proud of the
way our people responded to keep the business operating largely
uninterrupted throughout the crisis and I would like to thank all our
employees for their dedication and efforts during the year.

The Group has demoenstratedits resilience in the most challenging
of situations and that gives me significant confidence regarding our
future prospects. You can read more detail about our COVID-18
response directly after my review, on pages 121013,

PERFORMANCE

The year was challenging from a financial performance perspective,
as weak demand and destocking impacted most of cur end markets,
particularly in Q2. While Coatings, our biggest business, benefited to
some extent from increased DIY activity, albeit more than offset by
weaker industrial demand, Personal Care and Talc were both
negatively impacted by COVID-18. In Personal Care, restrictions

on social interaction and travel resulted in the cosmetics and
anti-perspirant decdorant markets declining significantly as 2020
progressed. In Europe, it is estimated retail saies of cosmetics fell by
21% and deodorants by B%. Likewise, in Talc, a 16% decline in global
lignt vehicle production was a material headwind to performance.
Results in Chromium and Energy were impacted by weak industrial
production and lower oil prices respectively.

Inresponse to economic and market uncertainties, we took several
steps to reduce costs and control cash. Savings of $15m, of which
$10m are temporary, protected earnings, whilst tight control of
capital expenditure and working capital management drove a $46m
reductioninnet debt to $408m, representing a leverage ratio of 3.2x,

Elemeniis has a strong track record of cash conversion and cur
focus remains on reducing our financial leverage as quickly as
possible. This will be driven by delivery of our strategic priorities,
continued efficiency programmes and further demand recovery
as the impact of COVID-19 recedes.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

Heaith and safety are the bedrock of our licence ta do business and
lam pleased to report another year of good performance relative to
both the industry and our medium term track record. However, with
nine recordable injuries we recognise we still have more to do to
ensure all our employees go home safely every day.



Many of our sites achieved notable milestones this year and deserve
recegnition—forinstance. Corpus Christi recorded its 17th year of no
recordable injuries, The recent launch of our TogetherSAFE safety
campaign, and the introduction of enhanced supervisor training and
audits, mean we are well placed to drive future improvement.

SUSTAINABILITY

Sustainability progress is a major focus at Elementis, This is reflected
in both how we run our operations and the benefits our products bring
to customers and wider society. This year we introduced sustainability
targets for 2030 and are nowfocused on actions to progress towards
these goals. Our ltimate goal is to be carbon neutral and delivering on
our 2030 sustainsbility targets is a step towards this.

Our ambitious targets are based on clear operational improvement
programmes. The installation of solar panels at our Newberry,
California site and ensuring that our new site in India will operate a
closed loop water systermn are examples of projects that make both
great business sense and are much better for the environment.

INNOVATION, GROWTH AND EFFICIENCY

In the last few years, we have made significant progress transforming
our portfolio and have repositioned Elementis as a premium
performance additives business, based on unique assets with clear
apportunities for growth, Qur strategic pillars of Innovation, Growth
and Efficiency are gesigned to leverage this differentiated portfolio
and create significant value for our shareholders.

innovation is at the heart of what we do. As 2 speciafty chemicals
company, we are focused on developing distinctive additives that
improve the perfarmance of our customers’ products.

While COVID-19 has reduced the time spent in laboratories with our
customers, effectively making us reassess many of ourways of
working, we have continued to suppeortthelr needs. This year, we
were able to launch 12 new products in areas such as preservative
free premium decorative coatings and high efficacy anti-perspirant
{AP} Actives, driving new products from 12% to 14% of our sales.

Today, over 90% of Elementis’ earnings are generated by Personal
Care, Coatings and Talc segments that benefit from fundamentally
attractive high marging and GDP + growth, While 2020 presented
market demand challenges for the Group, we have continued to
execute against our growth objectives. The develspment of $30m
of new business gpportunities during the year inareas such as
waterborne industrial additives, skin care and long life plastics
positions us well for medium term success.

OUR APPROACH TO ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG)
PERFORMANCE

NEW TARGETS

Thig year we introduced anew ESG strategy. This Group-wide
strategy enables us to leverage the experience and scale of the
organisaticn, to more effectively contribute te the communities
inwhich we operate and the environment in which we live. By the
year 2030, we aim to:

REDUCE GREENHQUSE GAS
EMISSIONS BY 25%

INCREASE ENERGY EFFICIENCY
BY 20%

REDUCE WATER USAGE BY 10%

REDUCE WASTE BY 10%

WHY ESG MATTERS

We recognise it is critical that we raise our standards through
rmeasurable objectives. Together —working with our employees,
communities, partners and customers —we will achieve

our sustainability goals through three key areas of focus:
innovation in sustainable solutions and products, efficiency

in our operations and the drive and passion of cur people -

all of which will be underpinned by the ambition and ingenuity
that are a hallmark of cur Elementis cuiture.

You can read more about our ESG credentials on page 32
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CEO'S REVIEW CONTINUED

“We are a premium performance additives
business, based on unique assets
with clear opportunities for growth.
Our strategic pillars of Innovation, Growth
and Efficiency are designed to leverage
this differentiated portfolio and create
significant value for our shareholders.”

While we know how and where we want to grow, our Efficiency
programme is focused on ensuring we do it at the best operating cost.
In 2020 we delivered $5m of headcount savings, $10m of temporary
cost aveidance from our COVID-19 response actions, and accelerated
the delivery of $10m of further supply chain efficiency savings in 2021.
You can read more about our strategic progress on pages 2410 29,

The Group has a robust foundation from which to capture future value
and we remain confident of delivering our medium termfinancial
objectives of a 17% adjusted operating profit margir; 20% plus
operating cash conversion, and a reduction in leverage to <1.5x net
debt/EBITDA In the mid term,

CHROMIUM

Itis worth noting the quality of Chromium and the role it holds in

our portfolio. Our Chromium business holds significant competitive
advantages. We are the only producer of chromium chemicals in
North America and we utilise a proprietary delivery system that
eliminates both operational and safety risks associated with handling
these chemicals. This has resulted in a very high and resilient market
sharg accompanied by attractive cash flows and returns oninvested
capital. Due to the COVID-19 reliated industrial shutdowns, global
Industry capacity utilisation of chromium chemicals and rest of

the world pricing were the weakest since 2009. That said, as the
pandemic abates and conditions improve, we expect demand
recovery to positively impacgt volumes, pricing conditions and,
ultimately, materially improve operating cash fiow; a key attribute

a5 the Group focuses on quickly reducing debt levels,

OUR PEOPLE AND CULTURE

Elementis aims to be an open and inclusive workplace. We continue
to move forward in shaping our culture for success, engaging our
peopie at alllevels in conversaticns. The feedback we receive is
incredibly helpful, highlighting both what we do well and what we
can do better. Everyone at Elementis understands our values, the
behaviours expected and actions we must take to ramp up the
delivery of cur business strategy.

10 ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2020 | ELEMENTIS PLC

We are fortunate to have developed a deeply experienced and highly
committed leadership team, Their contribution in this particularly
challenging year was crucial to our perfermance. During the year

| was pleased to welcome Stijn Dejonckheere as SVF Personal Care
replacing Marci Brand who retired after along and distinguished
career. Stijnis an accomplished leader who has thoroughly
demonstrated an ability to lead high perferming Personal Care
teams during his career at Elementis.

OUTLOOK

While the last 12 months have been uniquely challenging, the
transformation of the business in recent years has created a solid
foundaticn and enabled the Group to respond with speed and
resilience. The fundamentals of our business remain streng, with
high quality assets and a clear strategy for value creation.

We will centinue to maintain cur focus on delivering our Innovation,
Growth and Efficiency strategy, and self-help actions to optimise
performance. In 2021 we expect to deliver more than $30m of new
business opportunities, over 20 new products and $10m of additional
cost savings. Also, as previously communicated we expect to see the
impact of the reversal of temporary cost savings from last year
alongside ongoing growth investment.

We have made an encouraging start{o 2021 but remain cautious

on the outlook given the COVID-19 dynamic. For the full year, we are
confidentthat further steady demand improvement fromH2 2020
levels, augmented by our self help actions will drive improved financial
performance and a reduction in leverage,

PAUL WATERMAN
CEO



CEO Q&A

Q: HOW HAS THE COMPANY RESPONDED TO
CcOoVvID-197?

A: As ateam we responded immediately. The spread of COVID-19
and its impact on cur communities and everyday lives has beena
challenge of unprecedented scale. In response, our priority has
peen, and remains, the health and safety of our employees,
customers, suppliers and the communities in which we operate.

I have continued tn he proud and appreciative ol Lhe dedication
of our employees which has ensured that all of our 23 global
manufacturing sites have continued to operate largely
uninterrupted, providing retiable supply to our customers,

Q: HOW IMPORTANT ARE SUSTAINABILITY
CONSIDERATIONS AT ELEMENTIS?

A: Sustainability is at the forefront of our decision making
processes. Through our technical expertise and innovation focus,
we deliver new products that help address some of the biggest
environmental challenges that our customers face. For instance,
using our talc to develop fully recyclable food packaging or
developing industrial coatings that are water based and contain
less volatile organic compounds (VOCs). We are also commiitted
to improving the sustainability of our manufacturing cperations.
In 2020 we introduced 2030 sustainability targets that will
materially reduce our environmental impact and bring us closer
to our ultimate goal of carbon neutrality. These targets are built on
anumber of projects throughout our global supply chain that will
support our pregress and which we are pursuing at pace.

Q: HOW HAS INNCVATION PROGRESSED IN 20207
A:In 2020, the pace of innovation at our customers has
unquestionably slowed as they focused theirimmediate efforts on
responding to COVID-19 and their employees were forced to spend
less time in laboratories. Nonetheless, cur innovation efforts have
continued to progress and | am proud of what we have achieved.
Starting with our established customer relationships and
leveraging digital platforms, we have delivered virtual training and
technical workshops to over 10,000 customer employees around
the world. We also launched 12 new products in areas such as
premium decorative coatings and executed two open innovation
partnerships with AQDOT and NXTLEVVEL Biochem. Importantly,
our portfolio quality has continued to improve — new products
increased from 12% to 14% of total sales. In 2021, we plan to
further accelerate our progress by launching over 20 new
products, ali of which will deliver enhanced product performance
and sustainability credentials.

Q: WHAT ARE THE GROWTH AREAS FOR THE
ELEMENTIS BUSINESS?

A: In our transformed portfolic, over 90% of earnings are generated
by Personal Care, Coatings and Talc —businesses with enduring
positions of strength in structural growth markets. The growth of
premium cosmetics in Asia and natural skin care ingredients are
clear opportunities for cur unique hectorite clay based Personal
Care products. In Talc, vehicle light weighting, emission regulations
and reduced single use plastic consumption are expected to drive
demand growth. And in Coatings, our differentiated technologies in
applications such as waterborne industrial additives and adhesives
& sealants have clear opportunities to grow. That said, | would be
rerniss not to mention that we also have a highly advantaged and
highly cash generative Chromium business; an important attribute
as we aim to reduce our financial leverage.

“Innovation has not stopped in 2020.
We launched 12 new products,
created two new innovation
partnerships, our new products
rose from 12% to 14% of sales and
our new product pipeline for 2021
is encouraging”

Q: WHAT IS ELEMENTIS DOING TO ADDRESS THE
QUESTIONS OF DIVERSITY AND INCLUSION WITHIN
THE WORKPLACE?

A:We strongly believe that having a diverse workforce brings great
benefits to the organisation, not only through creating a broader
talent pool from which we can recruit and promote but also frem
the variety of perspectives and experiences that alt employees
bring. To make progress, itis critical that across Elementis our
actual behaviours and actions are as strong as our beliefs. {n 2020
we formed a Diversity, Equity & Inclusion Council that | chair.

Its purpose is to implement initiatives that ensure every personis
respected, valued and empowered to contribute their ideas and
perspectives, This will be supported by improvements to our
recruiting, training, talent development and mentoring systems.

@: LOOKING FORWARD, WHAT ARE YOUR CAPITAL
ALLOCATION PRIORITIES?

A:Inrecent years, through M&A activity we have focused Elementis
on high guality, high margin activities in Personal Care, Coatings
and Talc. As a result, we have a portfolio that is well positioned to
deliver our medium term Groug financial performance objectives
and to generate significant shareholder value. Elementis has a
strong track record of cash generation, and our immediate focus is
to use this capital to fund organic growth and reduce our financial
leverage. We also clearly recognise the importance of dividends to
shareholders and will look to reinstate payments once material
progress Is made on reducing our financial leverage.
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RESPONDING TO COVID-19

COVID-19: Rising

to the challenge

The COVID-19 pandemic had a significant
impact on our business. In January 2020 we
put in place an executive team to manage
our response to the pandemic, as the
business reacted swiftly and efficiently.

We focused on three clear priorities: the
safety of our workforce, maintaining reliable
supply to our customers and optimising our

financial performance.

The global measures taken to mitigate
the pandemic’s impact have resulted in
significant change for our employees,
customers and shareholders.

TIMELINE OF ACTIVITIES

JANUARY

MARCH

OUR PEOPLE

Qur top pricrity is to do the right thing for our people, in the
knowiedge that they will ook after our customers.

In 2020, most of our office based staff {approximately 25-30%
of our workforce} successfully switched to home waorking.
Their ability to do so was significantly enabled by our digital
technology investments over recent years.

At our 23 global manufacturing plants, employee wellness
protocols, hygiene and social distancing measures helped to

keep our people safe,

Enhanced emplayee cosmmunications, improved health benefits
and wellbeing resources ensured continued engagement and
close collaboration across the organisation.

Many of these changes have been beneficiai from an efficiency
perspective —for instance increased flexible working and digital
connectivity —and itis anticipated some will continue into 2021

and beyond.

APRIL

JUNE

Executive COVID-~12 team
established - focused on
implementing proactive
empioyee communications,
preventative measures and
guidance to reduce exposure
and risk ta our employees

« Government mandated two
week closure of our two
manufacturing sites in China.
Remaining 21 sites operating
as usual and delivering
reliable customer service

Given macroeconomic
uncertainties, the Group
secures arelaxation of its
banking covenants from
3.25xt0 3.75x% net debt/
EBITDA* for 2020 and
suspends the FY 19

final dividend

Global employee and site
hygiene and health protocois
and guidance issued

Global travel restrictions and
work from home mandate
implemented where possible
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+ Launch of COVID-19 website
for employees focused on
remote work, health and
wellness support.

Global commitment on
employee benefits and
medical leave

* Robust site-by-site
contingency plans
astabiished to reduce the
likelihood and severity of any
patential disruption to our
global supply chains

+ Two week government
mandated shutdown of
Palmital, Brazil site,
Remaining 22 plants
operating as usual and
delivering reliable
customer service

« Continued innovation
support for customers with

online innovation and training

delivered tc over 7,000
customer employees in 60
countries by the end of June



CUSTOMERS

We continued to provide a reliable service for our customers
throughout 2020.

Except for temporary closures at two sites in China and one site
each in Brazil and the US, the Company’s production sites operated
continuously, with no raw material shortages. This performance is
partly 1eflleclive of recent operating improvements. Fer instance,
reducing our single sourced raw materials from 40% in 2016 to
25% and increasing operational automation has made our supply
chain more efficient and resilient.

Itis also a credit to our people who worked tirelessly with suppliers,
logistics partners and customers to ensure adequate plans were in
place for all contingencies.

We have also continued to support our partners’ innovation efforts.,
Through the delivery of virtual innovaticn and technical support
sessions to over 10,000 customer employees, we helped our
partners develop new products and grow their industry and
application knowledge, in spite of COVID-19 restrictions.

JULY SEPTEMBER

SHAREHOLDERS

As demand quickly declined, we took swift and decisive action to
reduce costs, conserve cash and strengthen our balance sheet.

While the Group benefited from $5m of headcount related cost
reductions taken inlate 2019, and accelerated progress towards
nir 20217 targot of $10m in supply chain savings, in year mitigation
focused on the cessation of discretionary expenditure in areas
such as marketing and travel, This saved approximately $10m

in 2020.

Coordination between our global supply chain, sales and finance
teams also delivered $7m of sustainable working capital savings
in 2020, bringing our total working capital reduction to $30m
since 2C17.

In addition, given the market and economic uncertainties, the
Group took steps to provide additional financial headroom and
preserve cash. Firstly, we secured a relaxaticn of our banking
covenants from 3.25x to 3.75x net debt/EBITDA* for 2020 and 2021;
and secondly, the 2019 final dividend was suspended in March
2020 and the Board decided not to declare an interim or final
dividend for 2020,

* OnaprelFRS 16 basis,

OCTOBER DECEMBER

A 4

= Group achieves further
relaxation of banking
covenants to 3.75x net
debt/EBITDA* for 2021
providing increased
financial headroom

» Attheinterimresults, the
Group announces $10m of
in-year COVID-19 response
5avings, geod progress on
$7m of working capital
reductions and accelerated
progress on $15m medium
term efficiency programme

» New 2030 sustainability
targets for GHG emissions,
energy efficiency, water
usage and waste annsunced

» Taskforce continues
to meet and assess

« Essential business critical
travel begins with further
guidance and training on
COVID-19 prevention
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MARKET REVIEW

A sustainable future

DEMOGRAPHICS

PREMIUMISATION

MARKET TREND

The UN expect the world's population to increase by 2 billion
in the next 30 years, to 9.7 billion peaple.

Mast of this increase will be in the developing world, driving
further urbanisation and investment ininfrastructure.

Economic development, an expanding middle class and
arowing leveis of western style consumerism will generate
demand for products that improve living standards in
these markets.

WHAT THIS MEANS FOR OUR INDUSTRY

+ Increasing demand for construction and infrastructure
related solutions {e.g. industrial coatings)

» Rising demand for personal care products such as colour
cosmetics and skin creams

Increasing demand for longer lasting and more
technologically advanced products

OUR OPPORTUNITIES

= New geographic markets for consumer and ingustrial
products that require premium performance additives

« Opportunities to innavate and serve facal market needs

CUR RESPONSE

« Capital investment in manufacturing assets in India to
enhance our efficiency and bring our products closer
to our customers

« Investment in new laberateries in China and Brazil to
enhance our regional innovation support and capture
new business opportunities

= Enhancing our sales and marketing capabilities in Asia
to support regional growth
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MARKET TREND

Premiumisation is bridging the gap between luxury and mass
market — offering all consumers access to unique or innovative
products that promise more.

Consumers are willing to pay premium prices on value added
praducts with real benefits.

Premium is not just about price. Itis the promise of exceptional
guality and experience, fuelling the growth of unigue. value
added products.

As a result, the premium segment is experiencing strong
growth, outpacing tetal category sales in many markets.

WHAT THIS MEANS FOR DUR INDUSTRY
» Demand for products that make consumers'lives easier

+ Demand for products with feelgood and
premium characteristics

= Demand for natural or naturally derived additives

OUR OPPCRTUNITIES

* Higher demand for additives focused on improving
product performance

» Opportunities for natural or naturally derived ingredients
such as hectorite and talc based additives

OUR RESPONSE

+ Focused Innovation targeting technologies that deliver
improved
product performance and enhanced sustainability claims

+ Launch of 12 new products in 2020in areas such as premium
decorative coatings, natural skin care ingredients and high
efficacy anti-perspirant actives



SUSTAINABILITY

TRANSPARENCY

MARKET TREND

The maost often quoted definition of sustainability comes from
the UN World Commission on Environment and Develepment:
"Sustainable development is development that meets the
needs of the present without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs.”

Sustainability presumes that resources are finite, and should be
used conservatively and wisely with a view to long term
priorities and consequences in the ways inwhich resources

are used.

Simply put, sustainability is about our children and our
grandchildren, and the world we will leave them.

MARKET TREND

in an ever more connected world, customers and employees
want more transparency from the crganisations that serve and
employ them.

Consumers and stakeholders want to know how gocds and
services are deliveredto their door, how items are manufactured
and what happens to their personal data.

Aword on Twitter, right or wrong, and the world will know instantly.
Organisations of all kinds must establish and maintain trust, as
their licence to operate and the basis for successful collaboration
and innovation.

WHAT THIS MEANS FOR OUR INDUSTRY

« Demand for innovative products that deliver
sustainability benefits

+ Movement towards natural or naturally derived ingredients

* Pressure to minimise social and environmental impact
throughout supply chains

WHAT THIS MEANS FOR OUR INDUSTRY

« Consistent and transparent communicaticn of activities
throughout the value chain

« Clear evidence of ethical and social consideraticns
in decision making

« Qpen and frequent consultation with all stakeholders

OUR OPPORTUNITIES
» Reduce the environmental footprint of cur supply chain

« Demand for cur technology solutions that lower our
customers’ environmental footprint

QOUR RESPONSE

» Introduction of new 2030 targets for GHG emissions,
energy efficiency, water usage and waste

= Launch of new products focused onrecyclable food
packaging. VOC emission reduction in coatings and
natural personal care ingredients

« New partnership with NXTLEVYEL Biochem focused on
bicbased ingredients

OUR OPPORTUNITIES

« Help customers make informed purchasing decisions
through clear scientific evidence

= improved reporting and disclosure of corporate activities

OUR RESPONSE

« Investment in digital capabilities including social media
platforms and a further enhanced Company website

+ Comprehensive empioyee engagement consultation

= Verification against demanding labelling standards {e.g. SO,
COSMOS) and sustainability ratings (e.g. EcoVadis) to
highlight the sustainability of cur products and operations.
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OUR STAKEHOLDERS

Listening and responding
to our stakeholders

CUSTOMERS

Keeping our customers
at the forefront of their
industries

INVESTORS

Continue to deliver
sustainable returns

EMPLOYEES

Our employees drive our
performance and success

WHAT MATTERS TO THEM

High quality products with superior
performance, efficiency and
sustainability features

Innovation and technical expertise
aligned with consumer and
industrial trenas

HOW THE BOARD ENGAGES

The Board received strategic updates
from each of the global business
segments during the year. These updates
included key customer achievements,
customer insight, competitive landscape
and trends (including innovation}
Customer engagement shapes our
annual operating plan and 3 year plan

HOW WE ENGAGE ACROSS
THE GROUP

Global key account relationship
management and technical support
Technical seminars, workshops and
collaboration opportunities

OUTCOME OF ENGAGEMENT

12 new products launched in 2020
Online training delivered to over 10,000
customer employees

New business opportunities

LINK TO STRATEGY AND THE
BUSINESS MOPDEL

Input — Relationships

WHAT MATTERS TO THEM

» Robust balance sheet, disciplined capital
allocation and a strong management
team focused on strategic delivery

« Sustainable growth andreturns

HOW THE BOARD ENGAGES

» Continued investor dialogue through the
Director of Investor Relations and
Company corporate brokérs

» Chairman and SID governance meetings

* Regular investor relations reports at each

Board meeting

Investor presentations and roadshows

Matters relating to strategy, £SG and

remunecation policy

» Annual sharehclder meeting

HOW WE ENGAGE ACROSS

THE GROUP

» The Director of Investor Relations or the
Group Company Secretary is available to
deal with shareholder matters as &
general point of contact

OUTCOME OF ENGAGEMENT

* 125 meetings during the year

» All AGM resolutions passed

+ Shareholder feedback inforrms Board and
Committee decision making

LINK TO STRATEGY AND THE
BUSINESS MCDEL

+ Stakeholder Value ~ Shareholders
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WHAT MATTERS TC THEM

Safe and proper working conditions and
inclusive culture

Ethical and sustainable working practices
where each employee is empowered to
make a difference

Rewarding careers, investments in
training and development and fair

pay practices

HOW THE BOARD ENGAGES

The Board receives regular updates from
the CEC and CHRO on people, safety ang
crganisation related matters including
insight gained from the employee
engagement survey

Designated Nan-Executive Director for
workfarce engagement

HOW WE ENGAGE ACROSS
THE GROUP

Employee engagement survey
Internal communication programme,
email updates, townhalls, line manager
dialogue, talent and succession
processes and performance reviews

OUTCOME OF ENGAGEMENT

Engagement survey action plans
A cufture driven by strong values,
accountability and high performance

LINK TO STRATEGY AND THE
BUSINESS MODEL

Input-People



SUPPLIERS

Sustainable supply chain
built on trust and strong
ethical standards

COMMUNITIES

Respect and care for
our environment and the
communities we serve

WHAT MATTERS TO THEM

+ Fair business dealings including
payment practices

= Long term partnerships and
strategic alignment

WHAT MATTERS TO THEM

« Employees andthose representing the
Company continue to act responsibly
and ethically, and uphold our values

+ Environmental impact of our operations

HOW THE BOARD ENGAGES

« The Board receives regular updates on
supply chain matters from the CEO and
SVP Globkal Supply Chain
and Manufacturing

HOW WE ENGAGE ACROSS

THE GROUP

« Ongoing relationship management and
strategic reviews

« Employee training on sustainable supply
chainmanagement

+ Supplier conferences

» Supplier audits and compliance

QUTCOME OF ENGAGEMENT

* Suppliers are held to the same high
ethical standards

+ Reliability of supply/key raw matenals -
develcpment of additional raw material
SUPPlY SOUrces

« EcoVadis Silver medal

LINK TO STRATEGY AND THE
BUSINESS MODEL

+ Input-Relationships
» Stakeholder Value — Suppliers

HOW THE BOARD ENGAGES

» The Board receives regular updates on
environmental updates from the CEQ
and SVP Glopal Supply Chain
and Manufacturing

+ Compliance and litigation reports

« Qversight of performance on carbon
emissions, waste, waterand
anergy efficiency

HOW WE ENGAGE ACROSS

THE GROUP

+ Ethics and compliance programme

» We develop products with sustainability
benefitsresulting in tess enargy
consumed in the production process

« Site efficiency targets and KPls

» Local biodiversity initiatives

QUTCOME OF ENGAGEMENT

« Alignment with UN SDGs

» Certifications and accreditations build
trust and transparency through
operating as aresponsible business

LINK TO STRATEGY AND THE
BUSINESS MODEL

+ Stakeholder Value - Environment
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FURTHER INFORMATION

See more information on our approach
to environmental, social and governance
[ESG) cn pages 32-43

See more information agnemployee
engagement on page 40

Sege more information on how the Board
engages with shareholders onpage 75

See more nformation on our response to
COVID-19 on pages 12-13
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

Creating long term value

OVERVIEW

Elementis is a geographically diversified business operating across 8 countries serving five core business segments. With strong
competitive positions and a diverse customer base the Group has access to material growth opportunities and protection against
cyclical swings in any one particular market.

VALUE
FOR OUR
INPUTS STRATEGIC STAKEHOLDERS
PRIORITIES
People, Expertise, Supply ) Sharehoiders
Chain, Relationships, Innovation Employees
Assets, Capital Growth Customers
Efficiency Suppliers

Environment

We collaborate We develop We manufacture We deliver to
with our customers innovative safely, responsibly QUr GUSIOMErs
solutions and effectively globally

INPUTS & COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE

RELATIONSHIPS
Close long term relationships with customers, suppliers and
other stakeholders, centred on trust and collaboration.

PEOPLE
Cur engaged and skilled workforce are focused aninnovation,
customer service and delivery of our strategy. See also Social,

pages 39-41. + Enhanced global key account management systems to

cooperate with customers on a local and global basis
+ Updated digital systems to identify and develop new
business pipeline

« Commitment to protecting the safety of our 1,300+ people
and to operating responsibly

+ Adoption of our & core values which are embedded
throughout the organisation

ASSETS
We combine competitively advantaged positions in hectorite,
talc and chromiurm with our distinctive technology.

EXPERTISE
Qur experts deliver unigue and superior product formulations
to a wide range of end markets. See also Innovation, pages 24

and 25. « Theworid's largest known source of high quality rheoiogy

« Qver 90 scientists working at six locations, partnering with grade hectorite clay; over 50 years estimated resource life

our customers to drive product innovation
* Market leading capabilities inrheology, surface chemistry
and fermulation

SUPPLY CHAIN

Our globat manufacturing footprint allows vs te deliver high value
innovation solutions to customers in all geographies. See also
Efficiency, page 29.

« 23 manufacturing sites in 8 cauntries argund the world
« Quality controls, testing, certification and compliance with
applicable regulations drive consistent product quality
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Four high quality talc mines in Finland, ane of twe deposits
of scale in Europe; over 90 years estimated resource life
Only domestic producer of chromium chemicals in North
America with advantaged customier delivery system

CAPITAL

A disciplined capital allocation framework that allows us to invest
in growth, to support delivery of our strategy. See Finance report.
pages 45-50.

+ Acash generative business model (average three year

operating cash conversion 105%) which funds investment
for organic growth, debt reduction and, when possible,
shargholder returns



CREATING VALUE
FOR STAKEHOLDERS

SHAREHOLDERS

Elementis seeks to generate appreciable returns for
sharehalders over time through sustained earnings growth
and, subject to capital constraints, progressive

dividend payments.

$245m

dividend payments
since 2016

EMPLOYEES

Flementis promotes equality and diversity throughout the
organisation and has policies and procedures that allow its
employees to meet thair training needs and maximise
their potential.

$112m

employee pay in 2020

CUSTOMERS

Providing value enhancing products and building relationships
with our customers ensures we are better placed to solve their
biggest challenges.

12

new products launchedin 2020

SUPPLIERS
We value our supplier reletionships and take along term
strategic approach te mutual value creatian.

700+

Number of raw material suppliers used in 2020

ENVIRONMENT

Through product innGvation and operational improvements
we are reducing the environmental impact of both our
activities and our custamers' products.

4

sustainability targets to be met by 2030
{see page 22)

WHY INVEST

TRANSFORMED PORTFOLIO

The fundamentals of our business are strong. We have a
transformad portfolio that is focused on high quaiity, high
margin activities in Personal Care, Coatings and Tale.
These premium performance additive businesses have
enduring competitive advantages centred on access to
differentiated resources, unique technology and market
leading formulation capabilities.

INNOVAT!ON FOCUS

Innovation is at the heart of what we do. Elemenitis is a global
leader in performance-driven additives that help create
innovative solutiong for our customers. Leveraging our
capabilities in rheology, surface chemistry and formulation,
we help customers respond to their biggest challenges
through deep partnerships, ongoing technical support and
consistent quality, service and delivery. This focus on markeat
leading innovation will drive our growth,

MATERIAL GROWTH OPPORTUNITIES

These premium performance additive businesses are exposed
to significant structural growth opportunities which Elementis
is well positioned to capture. In Personal Care, the growth of
premium cosmetics in Asia, natural skin care ingredients and AP
Actives are clear gpportunities for our unigue hectorite clay and
technology platforms. Vehicle light weighting, emission
regulations and reduced single use plastic consumption will
drive strong sustainable demand for our Talc ingredients.

In Coatings there are clear growth opportunities in premium
decorative, waterborne industrial additives and adhesives

& sealants.

STRONG CASH GENERATION

Strong cash generation is a hallmark of Elementis.
Looking forward, we target operating cash conversion of
at least 90%, supported by working capital and capital
expenditure discipline. The execution of cur medium term
Innovation, Growth and Efficiency priorities (see page 23)
cambined with strong cash generation will facilitate sustained
reinvestment for organic growth and a clear deleveraging
profile. Qur medium term leverage objective is under

1.5 EBITDA, with further reduction thereafter, and is
anticipated to drive significant shareholder returns.
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SECTION 172

Promoting the success
of the Company

The Board acknowledges that OUR APPRCACH TO SECTION 172
thereis a jegaj requirement for the The table on the next page provides examples of decisions taken

Dy the Board, including how stakeholder views and inputs have

Company to report on how the been considered in its decision making.
Board and its Committees have The Board duly considers stakeholders' views and recognises
H H that it is hot aiways possible to provide positive cutcomes for ail
consi d e re.d S 1 7 2 Of th e C om pa nies stakeholders inthe context of making important decisions for
Act 2006 in their decision making. the long terrr'\n SL;ccess ofthe Company. In adidition, the Board have
. . regard to other factors which we consider relevant to the decision
This means that each Director being made. for example, pension scheme members and
must act |. n th ow ay h e or Sh e relationship with regulatory or state authorities. The Board receives
. . . regular reports from management to enable it to monitor the
considers, in goc od faith, would be quality and effectiveness of the arrangements for
likely to promote the success of stakeholder engagement.

H H Plea fert es 71 and 74 of the Corporate Governang
the Company fOT the bene_ﬁt Of.itS rezaif;:d ho?fvpusgfi:tenz:d engage with ourstakeholdersoi
members as a whole, and in doing pages 16 and 17.
so have regard (amongst other
matters) to the factors outlined

ins172.

INFORMATION FLOW
The Company Secretary has papersto
consider 5,172 considerations

Management may share information in Draft Board papers requiring a decision
advance of decision making to elicit are reviewed by management prior to
additional insight and releagse of Board papers

individua! experience

“% NP é—J

Board papers include a table setting out Management receive training fromthe
s.172 factors and relevant information Company Seprletary re_gardlng Board
reiating to each potential decision decision making processes

!—9 A —1
BOARD STRATEGIC DISCUSSION ‘
~[ N

As a collective Board, the information Board considers stakeholders (see pages
is challenged and given sufficient time _ 16.and 17) and other factors suchas
for discussion financial, operational, and macroeconomic

or reguiatory environment

L BOARD DECISION (———l

Company Secretary records all Board decisions cascaded
Board decisions . forimplementation
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KEY SECTION 172

Likely consequences of decisionsinthe long term

The interests of the Company's workforce

The need to foster relationships with suppliers, customers and others

CLOSURE OF
CHARLESTON SITE

Section 172 considerations:

Impact of operations on the community and environment

High standards of business conduct

COVID-19 RESPONSE

Section 172 considerations:

The need to act fairly between members of the Company

ENVIRONMENTAL,
SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE (ESG)
MATTERS

Section 172 considerations:

Consideration of s.172 impacts by the
Board in its decision making

SECTION 172 LINK

+ Asaconsequence of macroeconomic
conditions affecting the performance
and cost structure of the Energy
business, the Board unanimously
agreed the consolidation of our
organaclay manufacturing in North
America from Charleston, West Virginia
to St Louis, Missouri

+ Inconsideration of the long term
success of the Company, whilst
regrettable joblosses were made, the
future for Charleston was not
considered sustainable over the long
term and has enabled the Group to
underpin operational and
cost efficiencies

WHAT WE CONSIDERED

+« Employees —process and timeling
of communications with affected
employees {¢.30 employees) including
retention, redeployment and
severance packages

+ Customerimpact-formal
communications with customers was
considered. Additional buffer stock
was built to ensure that customers
would not be impacted by the transition
or any potential construction delays.
Demand planning and inventory
alignment was also considered.

« Environmental and community impact
—reduction of carbon emissions
through site closure. Local permit
obligations and environmental
assessments continue to be met
whilst vacant

+ Ctherfactors included technical
process risks and condition of
equipment being relocated

Read more on page 28

Consideration of s.172 impacts by the
Board in its decision making

SECTION 172 LINK

* Thehea'th and safety of the workforce
combined with reliability of operations
andfinancial resilience were key priorities
for the Board throughout the yaar

+ Pay freezes or significant reduction of
workforce and significant government
SUPPOrt were Not Necessary.
No bonuses are payable inrespect of
2020 performance

= Taking into account the considerations
below, it was agreed that financial
prudence and balance sheet
protections such as covenant
relaxations, available financial banking
facilities, working capital, capéx
phasing and suspension of the dividend
were appropriate to promote the
success of the Company

WHAT WE CONSIDERED

* Regular updates on operational
reliability, site and employee status
updates, supply chain updates on raw
material supplies and shipping/
transportation issues and custamer
and market insight

+ COVID-18&risk impact assessment

» Customer/supplier demand status and
monitoring of any potential distress or
payment issues

= Regutar financial modelling and
scenario stress testing for
banking covenants

» Investor sentiment and regular updates
from corporate brokers and advisers

* Impact of COVIE-19 on directors'
remuneration, further infermation can
be found on pages 87-113 inthe
Directors’ Remuneration report

Read mare on COVID-18 on pages 12-13

5172 reflected in our governance documentation: www eiementis com
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Consideration of 5.172 impacts by the
Board in its decision making

SECTION 172 LINK

+ The long term consequences of
creating a sustainable business are
dependent on strategic decisions
based on our innovative products and
pipeline, our dedicaticn toreduce the
effects of manufacturing cn the
environment and our core values to
being a safe, ethical, environmentally
and socially responsible company

* Inconsideration of the longer term
environmental targets announced in
2020, the Board considered that these
targets would promote the success of
the Company

WHAT WE CONSIDERED
* Environmental climate related targets
for carbon emissions, waste, water and

energy efficiency to be achieved by 2030

» Climate related briefings

* Investor feedback on ESG matters

Health and Safety performance

and initiatives

» People strategy including talent and
succession, organisational capability,

employee engagement insight and new

initiatives such as establishment of

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Council

and volunteering programme

Innovation pipeline with focus on

sustainability benefits

+ Capital expenditure plans with a clear
focus on sustainability related projects

* Modern Slavery transparency statement

Read more on ESG onpages 32t0 43
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OUR STRATEGY

Maximising value

OUR PURPOSE

[

OUR VISION

We airm to be a high guality growth
business that creates sustainabie
value for all stakeholders.

QUR VALUES

Safety, Solutions, Ambition, Respect and
Team are core to our high performance
culture and reflectad in evarything that

we do.

OUR STRATEGY FOR THE FUTURE IS BUILT ON THREE KEY PILLARS

With strong positions in attractive markets, we see clear growth and margin improvement opportunities and expect to deliver strong,
sustainable returns. The execution of our Innovation, Growtn and Efficiency strategy will address our customers’ most challenging
problems whilst driving sustained value creation.

INNOVATION GROWTH EFFICIENCY

Over Q0% of our earnings are generated
from Personal Care, Talc and Coatings —
businesses with enduring competitive
atlvantages and ¢lear growth opportunities
- supportad by market megatrends, such as
dernand for natural ingredients in skin care
and more environmentally friendly coatings,

We constantly seek to be a fit for purpose
and maore efficient business, agile and
growing, with our impact on the environment
and the communities in which we cperate at
the forefront of cur minds.

We are a global leader in performance-
driven additives that help create innovative
solutions for cur customers, Leveraging our
capabilities in rheology, surface chemistry
and formulation, we help our customers ta
create better products.

Read more on pages 24 and 25 Read more onpages 26 and 27 Read more on pages 28 and 29

OUR ENVIRONMENTAL GGALS

We are a leading specialty chemicals company that enhances the performance of many preducts used by industry and consumers
around the world, We deliver innovative solutions, through unique, effective and sustainable praducts. Our promise of applied innovation
is at the heart of our commitment to doing better as a company for all our stakeholders—our employees, our customers, our partners,
ourinvestors and cur communities.

GHG EMISSIONS

We are committed to reducing
the GHG emissions from our
operaticns by 25% by 2030"

* Vs 2019 baseline data.

25%

reduction in GHG emissions

WATER

We are committed to reducing
the amount of water used by
cur aperations and peopie by
10% by 2030*

10%

reduction in water usage

WASTE

We are committed to reducing
the waste produced by cur
products, cperations and
people by 10% by 2030*

10%

reduction of waste

ENERGY

We are committed ta increasing
the energy efficiency of our
operations by 20% by 2030*

20%

increase in energy efficlency

UNDERPINNED BY CULTURE

Together — working with our employees, communities, partners and customers -~ we will achieve our sustainability goals through three
key areas of focus: our products, our operations and our people - all of which are underpinned by the ingenuity, values and new ways of
thinking we always seek to deliver.
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INNOVATION

GROWTH

EFFICIENCY

2020 OVERVIEW

« Launched 12 new products and
increased new products from 12%
to 14% of sales*

« Online technical workshops delivered
to over 10,000 customer employees

= Investmentin new Personal Care
labioratories in Asia and South America

» Established openinnovaticn
partnerships with AQDCT and
NXTLEVVEL Biochem

PRICRITIES

= Start up of new laboratories in Asia &
South America

+ Progress towards 20265 target of 17%
of sales coming from naw products

= Continued focus on the significant
innovation opportunities that deliver
enhanced performance and improved
sustainability credentials; over 20 new
pragduct launches in 2021

LINK TO KPIS
= Please referto pages 30-31

LINK TO RISKS
= Please referto pages 59-62

Read more on pages 24 and 25

* MNew products defined as products launched
within the last 5 years, patented and protected
products (exciudes Chromium)

2020 OVERVIEW

= Captured arcund $30m of new
business opportunities

+ Coatings transformation complete
and 6% volume increase across
technology growth platforms

+ Expansion of Talc in Asla; sales
up 18% in China

+ Successfulroll out of new skin
careingredients; $8m new
business pipeling

PRIORITIES

+ Double our cosmetics sales in Asia and
grow our market share in AP Actives

= Drive $10m of incremental sales from
new hactorite based skin care products

+ Achieve market share gains for Coatings

and Talc ingredients through increased

product and geographic penetration

Deliver $20-25m of Talc revenue

synergies by 2023

LINK TO KPIS
» Please referto pages 30-21

LINK TO RISKS
* Pleasereferto page 59-62

Read more on pages 26 and 27
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2020 OVERVIEW

+ Delivered $5m of organisaticnal
cost savings

« $10m of temporary COVID-19
response cost savings

= Working capital - $7m delivered to
reach $30m target since 2017

* Announced the closure of our
Charleston, West Virginia plant

* Launched new 2030
sustainability targets

PRIORITIES

= Consolidation of Charleston capacity at
St Louis; delivery of $10m of global supply
chain savingsin 2021

= Startup of AP Actives plantin Taloja,
Indiain H1 2021; delivery $10m of
additional supply chain savings by 2023

= Further working capital reduction with
$10m of savings by 2023

» Progress towards our 2030
sustainability targets

LINK TO KPIS
+ Pleasereferto page 30-31

LINK TO RISKS
» Pleasereferto pages 59-62

Read more onpages 28 and 29
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OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

innovation

SUSTAINABLE INITIATIVES
INTERWOVEN WITH INNOVATION

PERSONAL CARE - REACH 9000

Worldwide, the demand for anti-perspirant actives is anticipated
to grow 3-49% per annum over the next fewyears, led by faster
growth in emerging markets and product innovation.

Product claims matter in anti-perspirants and are grounded
in science. Consumers increasingly look for products that are
differentiated, and globally the most widespread product
claimis ‘long lasting’, whether it be 24 or 72 hour protection.

In 2020, we launched a new high performance product {Reach
9000). This active ingredient delivers market keading
protection performance, enhanced formulation and it can be
incorporated into sticks, aerosols and roll-ons.

Initial customer reaction has been very encouraging and we
have a strang pipeline of further innovations to be launched
in the coming months. Combined with our new AQDOT
partnerstip for odour capture and smart fragrance release
systems, and the start up our new, environmentally friendly
production site in India, we are well positioned for growth in
the anti-perspirant deodorant category.



Innovation is at the heart of what we

do. As a specialty chemicals company,
we leverage our capabilities in rheology,
surface chemistry and formulation,

to help our customers improve their
products, responding to their biggest
challenges through deep partnerships,
ongoing technical support and consistent
quality, service and delivery.

Innovation excellence is critical for any specialty chemicals company
and targeted inngvation drives both growth and efficiency. In 2020
our revenue from new products rese from 12% to 14%, progressing
towards cur goal of 17% by 2025 and driven by 12 new products

in areas such as natural personal care ingredients and premium
decarative coatings. Our innovation pipeline is well positioned and

in 2021 we plan to bring more than 20 new products to the market.

While COVID-19 reduced the physical time spent inlaboratories

with our customers during 2020, we continued to deliver innovaticn
excellence via virtual interaction. Starting with our established
customer relationships and using digital platforms, we delivered virtual
training and technical workshops to aver 10,000 employees at 500
customers in 60 countries around the world. This innovation support
allowed our customers tc grow and develop their industry and
application knowledge even while working remotely.

Ourinnovation priorities are clear. Firstly, we want to create distinctive
new technologies that deliver both improved performance and
sustainability benefits. At present 45% of cur revenue is from products
that are natural or naturally derived - for exarmple, hactorite based skin
care ingredients or organic thixotropes derived from castor wax —and
our aimis to drive this higher in coming years,

Secondly, we are focused on the material innovation challenges that
face our customiers and the industries in which they operate. In the last
12 months we hiave launched solutions for recyclable food packaging,
waterborne industrial coatings and natural skin care ingredients.

This focus ensures our resources are directed to the biggest, most
impactful cpportunities.

Thirdly, the integration of our technology and commercial teams, and
afocus enfast prototyping and technelogy transfer across segments
means we are increasing the speed of our innovation. In 2020, products
such as high surface areatalc for food products, preservative free
thickeners for decorative coatings and dispersants for waterborne
industrial coatings were all commaercialised within 12 months of
customer request or project start.

Lastly, we also understand that & collaborative and open approach

to nnovation often accelerates time to market and provides
differentiation, Qur new partnership with NXTLEVVEL Biochem is
developing biomass derived products that protect our environment,
starting with two biobased solvents for industrial coatings in early 2021
In addition, with AQDOT. a supramolecular chemtech company, we are
combining their novel odour capture and smart fragrance release
solutions with our market leading anti-perspirant decdorant formulation
capabilities to enhance our customer value preposition,
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OUR STRATEGY CONTINVED

Growth

POSITIONING OUR BUSINESS
FOR THE FUTURE

COATINGS - PREMIUM SOLUTIONS

The premium decorative coatings (paint) segment is a
growing market, where consumers want preducts that make
their lives easier, while caring for the environment. itis a
market that can be transformed by research and technology.
We aim to double our market share in this area; and products
such as our Rheolate® HX series deliver easier and quicker
application, enhanced one ceat hide and better

stain resistance.

Market reaction to our technology has been positive, In 2020
we helped our customers create award winning paints,
achieved 8% volume growth and launched a preservative free
technology. the first of its kind to market. Our premium
decorative coatings technology is becoming the industry
standard andis currentfy being qualified at several other
major paint manufacturers.

Our next product launch will see a powdered version, the first
of its type. come to market in 2021. Compared with alternative
liquid systems, this can be more efficiently incorporated into
production lines, reduces transportaticn emissions and gives
customers more freedom in the formulation of their paints.



Qur Personal Care, Coatings and Talc
operations transform natural and long life
resources into high value additives through
distinctive processing and formulation,

and have clear medium term structural
growth vpportunities. While our financial
performance was materially impacted in
2020 by COVID-19, we continued to execute
against our strategic priorities and captured
$30m of new business opportunities.

In Coatings, we are a leading supplier of high value, premium additives,
critical to performance, As a result of our transformation programme
the business is simpler, more efficient and performance focused -
with higher operating margins, Growth epportunities exist where cur
technologies play into specific market needs or trends with clear
sustainability benefits - areas such as premium decorative coatings
and waterborne (as opposed to solvent based) industrial additives.
In aggregate, such growth platforms represent roughly cne third

of our Coatings revenue. in 2020, they grew 6% by volume —a good
resultin 2 very tough market environment, and a clear indication of
the potential for further profitable, high margin, growthin these
differentiated technology areas.

We also see significant opportunities in Personal Care. Despite double
digit average annual cosmetics growth in Asia since 2015, the region
represents under 20% of our global business. Aiming to double our
sales inthe region over the medium term, we have invested in a new
dedicated technical service centre in Shanghai, China, due to openin
the first half of 2021. Progressin the construction of our AP Actives
plant in India was slowed by the COVID-19 pandemic; however we are
ontrack fora mid-2021 start up. This will build on our global leadership
position as we will have the most advantaged global supply chain while
simultaneously providing better access to faster growing Asian
rmarkets. Skin care is an attractive market for our natural solutions,

and here our ambition is to add $10m of sales over the mediurn term.
In 2020, our new skin care ingredients showed encouraging early
growth, appearing in new products such as Tula Serum and
GlamGlow's water-gel moisturiser, and we have a growing new
business pipeline already worth $8m of revenue.

In Talc we are the second largest global producer, serving high value
industrial applications. While customer demand was lower in 2020
due to the impact of COVID-19, we continuad to make encouraging
progress. Qur growth strategy is based on leveraging our global
scope and scale, synergistically expanding into new geographies and
market sectors. In 2020 we grew sales by 6% in Asia, predominantly
inlong life plastics applications as we increased our market share.
Sates of talc to coatings customers rose 1%, as we expanded into

13 new countries such as Brazil and South Africa — driving our revenue
synergies since acquisition to $7m, and on track for $20-25m by the
end of 2023. We are also expanding into new applications. In barrier
coatings, where our natural talc ingredients help replace single use
plastics in food packaging we have over 30 live customer projects
and further commercial roll out planned for 2027,
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OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

Efficiency

IMPROVING OUR COST TO SERVE
AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

CHARLESTON PLANT CLOSURE

inNarth America, we have historically operated two
organoclay piants, one in St Louis and one in Charleston.
Alongside our plants in Europe and Asia, these assets have
formed the backbone of our global organoclay operations.
As the only organocclay producer with a global presence, this
is a true source of differentiation, particularly in a year of
challenged global supply chains.

Following a review of our manufacturing operations, the
decision was taken in November 2020 to close our Charleston
site and to consolidate activities in St Lours, White this
regrettably resulted in the loss of approximately 30 jobs,
moving to single site production will deliver material cost
savings and restore future profitability of the Energy business
even at the 2020 level of sales.



Improving efficiency is an ongoing focus
at Elementis. We are always seeking to
improve our organisation, drive ongoing
efficiency gains and become more agile.
We are currently focused on three areas:
organisational structure, operational
efficiency and digitalisation.

In 2020, we implemented a new organisational structure, better
aligned to ourimproved partfolio. The creation of a flatter
organisational structure with fewer layers has facilitated faster
decision making and more efficient execution, At the same time
we embedded cur newly aligned job levels on a global basis.

These steps resulted in $5m of cost savings in the year. In addition,
inresponse to COVID-19, short tarm cost mitigation has focused
onthe cessation of discretionary expenditure in areas such as
marketing and travel, saving approximately $10m in 2020.

Ongoing work in our gioba! supply chain is focused on volume
reallocation across our agset footprint, efficiency gains in
Chromium and developing key capabilities to underpin future
improvements. We are aiming to deliver $1C0m of supply chain
savings in 2027, A key driver of these savings will be improved
efficiency and capacity utilisation across our North American
operations following the recent closure of cur Charteston, West
Virgfnia, production piant and consolidation of capacity at our St
Louis, Missouri, site. In addition, enhanced key capabilities such as
global procurement, continuous improvement of operations and
capital project management will support future efficiency gains.

Sustainability and the reduction of our environmental footprint

are at the forefront of all operational decisions. We have made
considerable progress across our supply chain with increased
feedstock recycling and the conversion to more sustainable raw
materials. In 2021, we will install solar panels at our Newberry site,
start our zero-water discharge plant in India and drive further
efficiency gains in our Chromium operations. These decisions are
appropriate from both an efficiency and environmental perspective
and are the first steps on the road to fulfilling our newly adopted
2030 sustainability targets.

Digitalisation is & key enabler of cur efficiency and simplification
drive. In 2020, the investments in modern tools and system
integration, in areas such as data management and infrastructure,
proved crucial to cur ability to remotely manage the Company,
interact with our customers, and for many of our pecple to switch
to enline working through the COVID-18 pandemic.

Our website and digital tool-set are ready to deliver online ordering
for customers, This capability will launchin 2021 as part of our
mutti-channel customer engagement offering and will result in
animproved customer experience.

$15m

2020 cost savings

$10m

2021 costsavings
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Measuring our progress

TOTAL
RECORDABLE
INCIDENT RATE
{TRIR}

DEFINITION

We use the US
Occupatiaonal Safety and
Health Administration
{OSHA)} definition for
recordabie injuries

and illnesses.

TRIR 5 the total number
of recordable incidents
multiplied by 200,000
divided by total hours
worked by all employees
during the year.

PERFORMANCE
Further information can be
found on page 39.
REMUNERATION
LINKAGE
Non-financial targets
within the Executive
Directors’ annual bonus
structure typically include
a component of individual
objectives relating to
safety performance,

Refer to pages 106-107

LINK TC STRATEGY

LOST TIME
ACCIDENTS {LTA)

DEFINITION

LTAis an injury or ilness
that requires greater than
three days away frcm
work notincluding the day
ofincident.

PERFORMANCE
Further information can be
found on page 39.

REMUNERATION
LINKAGE

Non-financial targets
within the Executive
Directors’ annual bonus
structure typically include
a component of individual
objectives relating to
safety performance.

Refer to pages 106-107

LINK TO STRATEGY

ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACT

DEFINITION

We record and categorise
environmental incidents
into tiers based on the
severity or actions taken
by regulatory authorities.
Tier 3 incidents are those
that have a significant
impact on the environment
and require reporting to
an external autharity and
where enfarcement action
is fikety, Tier Z incidents
have 8 minor impact and
require notification but are
likely to result in minimal
action by the authorities.

PERFORMANCE

Further information can be
found on pages 34-37.

REMUNERATION
LINKAGE

Non-financialtargets

within the Executive
Directors' annual bonus
structure typically Include
acomponent of individual
objectives relating to
environmental performance.

Refer to pages 106-107

LINK TO STRATEGY

DEFINITION

ROCE is defined as
operating profit after
aajusting items dividend by
operating capital employed,
expressed as a percentage.
Operating capital
employed comprises

fixed agsets (excluding
goodwill) working capital
and aperating provisions.
Operating provisions
inciude seff-insurance and
ervironmental provisions
but exciude retirement
benefit cbligations.

PERFORMANCE
Further information can be
found on page 182.

REMUNERATION
LINKAGE

ROCE is an underpin for the
long term incentive plan,

ROCE including goodwill
was 5% (2019: 8%},

LINK TO STRATESGY

ADJUSTED
CPERATING
CASH FLOW

DEFINITION

Adjusted operating cash
fiow is defined as the net
cash fow from adjusted
EBITDA plus changes in
working capital, provisions
and share based payments,
less net capital expenditure.

PERFORMANCE
Furtherinformatioh can be
found on page 49.

REMUNERATION
LINKAGE

No direct linkage
with remuneration.

LINK TO STRATEGY

@ Other non-financial performance can be found in the environmental, social and governance section (ESG)on pages 32-43
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ADJUSTED GROUP
PROFIT BEFORE
TAX

DEFINITION

Adjusted Group profit
before tax is defined as the
Group profit before tax on
total operations {continuing
and discontinued) after
adjusting items, excluding
adjusting items relating
totax.

PERFORMANCE
Further information can be
found on pages 141-144.

REMUNERATION
LINKAGE

Adjusted Group profit
before tax is a key element
of the bonus plan for the
Executive Directors.

Further information within
the Directors’ Remuneration
report on page 106.

LINK TO STRATEGY

CONTRIBUTION
MARGIN

DEFINITION

Cantribution margin, is
defined as total revenue
less all variable costs,
divided by total revenue and
expressed as a percentage.

PERFORMANCE
Further information can be
found on page 181.

REMUNERATION
LINKAGE

Nodirectlinkage
with remuneration.

LINK TO STRATEGY

ADJUSTED
OPERATING
PROFIT/ADJUSTED
OPERATING
MARGIN

DEFINITION

Adjusted operating profit is
the profit derived from the
continuing cperations of
the business after adjusting
items. Adjusted operating
margin is the ratio of
adjusted operating profit

to totalrevenue,

PERFORMANCE

Further information can be
found on page 182.

REMUNERATION
LINKAGE

Ne direct linkage
with remuneration.

LINK TO STRATEGY
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AVERAGE TRADE
WORKING CAPITAL
TO SALES RATIO

DEFINITION

The trade working capital to
total revenue ratio is defined
as the 12 month average
trade working capital
divided by total revenue,
expressed as a percentage.,
Trade working capital
comprises inventories,
trade receivables and trade
payabies, it specifically
excludes prepayments,
capital orinterest

related recevables cr
payables, changes due

to currency movements
anditems classified as
otherreceivables and
other payables.

PERFORMANCE
Further information can be
found on page 182.

REMUNERATION
LINKAGE

Average trade working
capitalis a key element
of the bonus plan for the
Executive Directors.

Further information within
the Directors’ Remuneration
report on page 106,

LINK TO STRATEGY

KEY TO
STRATEGIC
PRIORITIES

o Efficiency
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE OVERVIEW

A clear ESG strategy

Elementis is committed to creating a
sustainable future world through our
innovative products, our dedication to
reduce the effects of manufacturing on
the environment and our core valuas to
being a safe, ethical, environmentally and
soclally responsible company.

Our Code of Conduct and values underpin

OUR 2030 GOALS AND ALIGNMENT
WITH THE UNITED NATIONS
SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

GOALS {UN SDGS)

The United Nations [UN} Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs),
are ablueprint to achigve a better and more sustainable future for
all, They address the global challenges we face, including those

related to ineguality, climate change, and responsible consumption
and production.

This is the first year Elementis has reported against these SDGs.

our commitment to our stakeholders and
the communities where we operate, This
focus ensures safe and proper working
conditions, high ethical practices and
behaviours, and business integrity.

See Company website for Code of Conduct and Values

How we:
measure our

Relevant SDG contribution Relevant SDG
We have launched TogetherSAFE,  We monitor
to advance our ambition of safety  environmental
excellence and zere injuries across  and safety metrics,
oUr prganisation to drive a Further
stronger, safety culture as an information
extension of our Values, onpage 39.
We have robust management
systems in place to ensure safe
handling protccols and
environmental housekeeping
protects our employees from any
potential harm,
We are committed to equality angd  37.5% of Board
recognise the value that can be members
created froma diverse and are female,
inclusive working environment. 27% of ELT
Our Diversity, Equity and Inclusion  and Direct reports
Councilis respensible for are femafe.
implementing initiatives that For further
embed diversity, equity and information on
inclusion into our cullture and gender diversity,
ensure that we continue to attract, referto pages 81.
retain and develop our collective
talents t0 respond to the business
challenges of the future.
Safeguarding water resources for ~ We aimto
future generations is vital and reduce water
Elementis is cornmitted 1o consumption by
responsible water stewardship. 10% by 2030,

Awater stewardship policy has
been adopted to establish our
committment and actions for
positive water stewardship,
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We provide decent work and
economic prosperity and growth
Tor our employees and

wider society.

For further information on how we
contribute to this SOG, please
refer to pages 38-41.

We support industry, innovation
ang infrastructure through our
inngvation expertise indesigning
products that offer
sustainabiiity benefits.

We continue to invest in our
manufacturing sites and we aim fo
increase number of sites using
renewable or alternate

energy scurces.

We have set environmental targets
o reduce carbon emissions, waste
and water stewardship angd
improve energy efficiency, each of
which wilf minimise cur impact on
the environment.

We welcome the framework as it is committed to solving global
issues, and our commitment to responsible business operations
support these universal principles. During the year, we reviewed the
SDGs and undertook a mapping exercise to establish pur focus
areas. We have linked the SDGs to our sustainability principles

and operations.

How we
measure our
contribution

We employ over
1,300 employees,

Total wages for
2020 were
$125.3m.

Energy
efficiency

target
established.

45% of

revenue is from
products that are
natural or
naturally derived,

Further
inforrnation on
pages 34-36.



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK - HOW WE MANAGE OUR ESG ACTIVITIES

¥

HSE COUNCIL

The Board has oversight of ESG matters and the CEO has
responsibility for the day-to-day management of health, safety,
environmental and sustainability activities. Regular updates on
these matters are provided to the Board during the year,

The Elementis Sustainability Council (ESC) provides leadership,
oversight and coordination for all Elementis’ sustainability and
corporate social responsibility policies, programmes and geals.

The Group's health, safety and environmental (HSE) management
programmes conform to international standards and include
documented policies and procedures, internal and external
auditing, risk assessments, management systems, training,
incident investigation, management of change, emergency
planning and risk mitigation. The effectiveness of these
programmes, as well as overall performance, is continually
evaluated through management reviews to ensure they are
effective and aligned with regulatory requirements and industry
bast practices.

The Group's activities are closely regulated by robust
environmental permits. We record and categorise environmental
incidents into tiers based on the severity or actions taken by
regulatory authorities. Tier 3 incidents are those that have an
impact on the environment and require reporting to an external
authority and where enforcement action is likely. Tier 2 incidents
have a minor impact and require notification but are likely to result
in minimal or no action by the authorities, Tier 1 incidents require no
external reporting and are recorded internally and investigated sc
that continual improvements can be made to reduce the likelihood
of future Tier 2 and Tier 3 incidents.

In 2020, Elementis had no Tier 3 or Tier 2 incidents
(2019: zero Tier 3, zero Tier 2).

SUSTAINABILITY COUNCIL

DIVERSITY, EQUITY &
INCLUSION CQUNCIL

A new Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DEI} Council was established
inthe year to develop and implement a 3 year rcadmap designed to
support and accelerate DE| goals and track progress for key focus
areas such as; recruitment and retention, training, site reviews,
updating of policies and job descriptions to eliminate bias and
ensure equity in our processes, Further information can be found
on page 40.

EXTERNAL VALIDATION

We participate in a number of external assessments and receive
ratings and recognition for cur sustainability efforts. These include
EcoVadis (Silver medal} and Carbon Disclosure Project {ranked Cin
climate change) and we rernain part of the FTSE4Good index.

We are certified under the Roundtable on Sustainable Palm Oil for
our organoclay and bentone gels product range. We are an active
signatory of the UN Global Compact and our latest progress report
can be found on the Company’s website.

CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL ACTION

We are committed to a sustainability journey where operational
efficiency and innovative solutions and products with lower carbon
footprints can lead us to carbon neutrality. The environmental
targets that we have set are focused on the areas of our business
where we can make the most positive impact on the environment.
These are energy efficiency, carbon reduction, water and waste
management, Information on our climate focused innovation and
efficiency projects can he found on pages 24 to 29.
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

Environmental

WHY THIS |S IMPORTANT TO QUR
BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

The products we supply and how we manufacture them have
an impact on everyday life. Qur strategy of innovation, growth
and efficiency is the foundation to achieve our longer term
environmental targets. Together with our purpose to deliver
cleaner and better performance solutions, we can minimise
our environmental impact and help our customers to solve
their sustainability challenges.

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

2030 environmental goals announced — carbon emissions,
energy efficiency, water stewardship and waste
Independent external verification of our GHG

amissions (2019 baseling)

New water stewardship policy

Milwaukee site transitioned to running on wind, solar,

and bio-waste gas

Milwaukee {LTP} site certification - Alliance of

‘Water Stewardship

In July 2020, we set new environmental goals which we aim to achieve by 2030 and underscore our approach to minimising our impact

on the environment.

ENERGY

We are committed to increasing
the energy efficiency of cur
operations by 20% by 2030*

GHG EMISSIONS

We are committed to reducing
the GHG emissions from our
operations by 25% by 2030*

' Vs 2019 baseline data.

25%

reduction in GHG emissions

20%

increase in energy efficiency

WASTE

We are committed to reducing
the waste produced by our
products, operations and

WATER

We are committed to reducing
the amount of water used by
our operations and people by

10% by 2030* people by 10% by 2030*
reduction in water usage reduction of waste

Our operational processes are one element of how we approach
sustainabllity at Elementls. Our products provide a range of
sustainability benefits to our customers, for example, recyclable
food packaging or lower VOC industrial coatings. Our fong term
priorities are focused on reducing our environmental impact and
leading with innovation te help solve our customers sustainability
challenges in the transition to a lower carbon economy.

Elementis commissioned Avieco. a highly experienced
independent verifier of GHG emissions data, to verify the GHG
emissions for Elementis’ 2019 baseline year in accordance with
150 14064-~3: 2019 'Greenhouse gases - Part 3: Specification with
guidance for the verification and validation of greenhouse gas
statements’. Avieco’s full verification opinion statement, which
includes a summary of the work performed and Avieco's findings,
is available on the Company's website.

GREENHQUSE GAS EMISSIONS (GHG)
QCur target is to achieve 25% reduction in GHG emissions by 2030
{from the 2019 baseline). 2020 has been a year overshadowed by

the impact of COVID-19 which has impacted cur emissions metrics.

We measure efficiency in terms of carbon emissions per tonne of
production intensity ratio} which in 2020 increased by 2.2%. rising
10 0.362 from 0.354 {2019 baseline). Total Scope 1 and 2 emissions
reduced by B.7% on an absolute basis primarily due to lower
production volumes caused by reduced demand.

Thereductionin production volumes and raw material shortages
led to severa! of our sites having to adjust production schegdules
resulting in operational inefficiencies, For example, whilst certain
sites had to ternporarily shut down, other sites had to shorten
production runs mare frequently which resulted in increased
energy consumption to ensure that the equipment was operating
at optimum temperature efficiency.
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Qur GHG report {in line with the UK government’s new policy on
Streamlined Energy and Carban Reporting {SECR')} includes our
corporate COz emissions by emission type (Scope 1 emissions
generated by the direct combustion of gas; Scope 2 emissions
from purchased electricity and steam and total energy used).
Absolute emissions data is reported along with Scope 1 and 2
emissions per unit revenue and production volumes.

2018
GLOBAL 2020 {b line}
Scope 1 Combustion of fuel and
operation facilities (tonnes CO.e) 163876 181.345
Scope 2 Electricity, heat, steam
and cooling purchased for own 104,005 112,189
use (tonnes CC»e)
Total Scope 1and 2
(tonnes COze) 267,881 293,534
Production volumaes (tonnes) 740,768 828,156
Total turnover (£m} 584 664
Total carbon emissions by
turnover from all sites 4587 442.34
{tCOze/E1m turnover)
Totalintensity ratio
(tonnes COze/tonne production) 0362 0354
Supplementary intenslty ratio
(kg CO.e/kWh energy consumed) 0214 0.212
Global energy consumption 895054660 073610657

fkwh)



METHODOLOGY

Carbon dioxide derived from natural gas combustion is the
principal GHG attributed to our operations, Other GHG emissions
arising from our aperations include those from chemical reactions
in production processes, wastewater treatment and carbon dicxide
used for process cooling. Qur data includes all operating sites and
principal offices. Small office locations are excluded as the level of
carbon dioxide equivalent {CO.¢) emissions from these offices do
not make a material contribution. Emissions have been calculated
based on the GHG Protocol Corporate Standard for data gathered
to fulfil our requirements and emission factors from the UK
Government's GHG Conversion Factors for our corporate
reporting. Emissions reported cerrespond with our financial year.

2019
UK 2020 {baseline)
Scope 1 Combustion of fugland 6216 7534

operation facilities (tonnes COze)

Scope 2 Electricity, heat, steam
and cooling purchased for cwn 1,695 2021
use (tonnes CO,e)

Total Scope 1 and 2

{tonnes CO:e) 7811 95555
UK intensity ratio

(tonnes COzeftonne production) 048 050
UK energy consumption{kWh) 33,817,770 40976994

As aresult of COVID-19, certain efficiency projects at our UK site
(Livingston) have been deferred to 2021, Overall, total Scope 1and
2 emissions for the UK decreased year on year by 17%; however, as
noted above, the impact of COVID-19 had a significant impact on
operational efficiency in terms of intensity ratio pertonne

of production.

ENERGY CONSUMPTICON
Qur target is ta increase energy efficiency in our operations by
20% by 2030 (by 2018 baseline). Our performancein 2020 is below:

2020 2019 {baseline)’
Absolute Pertonneof Absolute Pertonneof
{"000) production {‘0oc) production

Total energy
consumption 4,508 6.086 4,986 6.021
{GJ)
Scope 1
eneray 3222 4350 3553 4201
consumption
(GJ)

In 2020, our energy efficiency measure per tonne of production
remainad broadly stable increasing slightly to 6.086 from 6.021
{2019 baseline}, given the reduction in production and adjustments
to production schedules. Energy usage reduced by 8% cn an
absolute basis.

We consume energy from several sources: electricity {wind and
solar), steam, natural gas, LPG, bicmass and oil, at manufacturing
sites, offices and laboratories, whilst energy consumption varies
with production volumes and product mix.

Woe have continued to focus on energy efficiency
initiatives at our sites during 2020 which included:

+ Atour Castle Hayne site in North Carclina (US), a
plant-wide lighting project was carried out reducing site
electricity usage by 1,023,341 kWh (8% reduction and
annual savings of $86,000)

= Byreducing natural gas usage during talc milling, our
Vuonos (Finland) and Amsterdam (Netherlands) sites
were able to make a total reduction of 9,600,409 kWh
{30% reduction of total natural gas consumption,
¢.$150,000 cost savings)

+ Atour Sotkamo site in Finland, a reduction of energy
consumption during milling and reduction of oil
consumption during drying, both contributing to a
reduction of 669,353 kWh (1% reduction, $30,000
cost savings)

« AtStLouis, Missouri (US), flushing centrifuge separators
were optimised, resulting in total energy reduction (gas
and electricity) of 268,578 kWh (0.5% reduction, $19,000
cost savings)

» Atour Huguenot site in New York State (US), energy has
been reclaimed by rerouting an air compressor to
provide ambient heat during cold weather months.

We are investing in solar panels at our site in California and have
started work to transition to alternate or renewable energy sources.
Milwaukee purchases electricity sourced fromwind and in 2021,
Amsterdam, Sotkamo and Vuonos sites will run on green

electricity purchases.

In addition, our climate focused innovation products are designed
to reduce our customers' environmental impact. For example,
developing preducts that reduce manufacturing process time, are
highly valued by our customers, For further information on these
innovations, please refer to page 23.

Qur efficiency initiatives in 2021 are:

+ Solar panel installation at Newberry Springs (US),
estimated 1,800 MT CO;e p.a.

= Kitln liner improvements at Castle Hayne (US),
estimated 270 MT CO:ze p.a.

* Waste classification at Livingston (UK}, estimated
3,600 MT waste p.a.
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ENVIRONMENT,. SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

WATER STEWARDSHIP

Safegquarding water resources for future generations is vital and
Elementis is cormmitted to responsible water stewardship. A water
stewardship policy has been adopted to establish our commitment
and actions for positive water stewardship.

Qurtarget is to reduce 10% of our water consumption by 2030 (by
2019 baseling). The reduction of water usage in 2020 reduced by
7.7%, however, this was a mix effect of water stewardship initiatives
and COVID-19 related issues such as raw material supply. volume
demand and operational inefficiency caused by running shorter
production runs which contributed to an increase of 3.1% in water
usage related to production,

2019
2020 {baseline)

Water usage related to
production {m?/1,000 te) 480 466
Water usage (m?} 3,559,501 3,858,185

During 2020, at Corpus Christi, Texas we reduced water
consumption by 20,800m°, the equivalent of eight Olympic sized
swimming pools and saving $24,000 p.a. Arange of projects are
currently under evaluation for 2021 and beyond.

In Finland, we have started the installation of a water pumping
station, water treatment process and water pipelines, to purify
water used by Sotkamo and return it to the nearby river.

Qur newest site, currently under construction inIndia, is being built
with environmental sustainability features that wifl enabie recyciing
and reuse of entire water consumption thereby not affecting
public supplies.

Examples of our other water stewardship initiatives can be seen in
the following examples:

* Where possible water is collected, cleaned and reused and rain
is captured from roofs and outside secondary containment,
cleaned and used to reduce water purchases. At our Brazil site,
we have introguced processes where our rainwater and alf clean
water discharges are used to water banana fields, supporting
farms inthe area

+ Qurleather tanning plant (LTP) in Milwaukee, Wisconsin has been
following water catchment and reuse procadures for many years
and in August 2020 was awarded the Alliance of Water
Stewardship {AWS) Core level certification, Further AWS
certification will be sought for other LTPs in Texas and Nebraska
in 2021 as we seek to optimise water consumption across
aur gperations
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WASTE

Our target is to reduce waste produced by our products,
operations and people by 10% by 2030 (by 2019 baseling).
Gur performance in 2020 is below:

2018
2020 {baseline]

Waste per unit of production
{MTIMT) 0.045 0036
Waste (MT) 33712 29,99

In 2020, waste generated perunit of production was higher than
prior year mainly attributable to a disposal of excess sodium
sulphate as a resuli of a large customer shutting down its US plant.

We seek to reduce the quantity of alltypes of waste. Our first
priority is to reduce the amount of waste that is classed as
hazardous. Beyond that non-hazardous waste is minimised and
recycled. Some of our manufacturing processes create by-
products which are capable of being sold.

initiatives in the year inglude:

* At our New Martinsville site, in West Virginia, toluene (a solvent)
use decreased by over 50,000kg during 2020. By recycling
toluene, there are significant benefits including less hazardous
waste disposal, fewer drums of waste and reduced handling by
employees to manually drum the waste,

At our Anji site in China, as part of our manufacturing processes,

methanol has been used as a carrier liquid, By eliminating

methanol from the manufacturing process and replacing it with
water, there is a significant reduction of rigk for any potential
process incident and complete reduction in any methanol that
has been either evaporated to atrnosphere at the drying step or
dissolved in the waste water. As a direct result of not having to
purchase methanol, there have been procurement savings of
$170.000.

+ We have reduced the use of unrecyclable, single use paper
products across our sites, including eliminating more than
150,000 coated coffee cups each year. Additionally, we have
repurposed the waste of some of our portfolio ingredients into
naturally gerived by-products, effectively reducing
operational waste.



We are evaluating potential to report effluent waste and waste
{which is capable of being recycled orreused).

AIR QUALITY

Emissions of the oxides of sulphur and nitrogen and volatile organic
compounds (VOCs) arising from the Group's operations are controlled
to comply with regulatory permits. Any emission to air above
regulatory permitted levels woutd be reported as an environmental
incident. Our air quality initiatives include air scrubbers and regular
housekeeping at cur sites to minimise pollutants being released into
the air. Air quality is regularly monitored.

PROCDUCT STEWARDSHIP AND SAFETY

We are committed to making sure our products wilk not harm
people or the environment during manufacture, use and disposal.
To support the highest levels of product safety and regulatory
compliance, we have comprehensive product safety and product
stewardship processes in place to ensure that any hazards relating
to our products are fully understoad and communicated to our
customers. We provide safety data sheets and labels in multiple
local languages in order for our customers to safely use and
dispose of cur products. Qur goal is to ensure that anyone handling
our products can do so with full knowledge of the hazards and safe
handling requirements regardiess of country or language.

Safety data sheets for cur products are available on the
Company's website.

BIODIVERSITY

We believe that the variety of life, should be protected insofar as
it is reasonably practicable by reducing or avoiding the impact
on, and potential damage to sensitive species, habitats and
ecosystems as a direct or indirect result of our operations and
activities. Qur biodiversity policy is available on the

Company's website,

Examples of our efforts and specific action plans implemented
{0 enhance biodiversity include:

« Seedlings for native species trees have been planted at our
Palmital, Brazil and our Taloja, India facilities

= Afence barrier, installed at our Hectorite mine in California,
protects the habitat of the desert tortoise, which is a protected
species. If a tortoise makes its way beyond the barrier, we work
with a certified biologist to return them to their habitat

REPORTING FRAMEWORKS

Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosure (TCFD)
We support the aims of the recommendations of the

TCFD and intend tc report disclosure in line with the
recommendations which will become a regulatory
requirement from 2022,

As we prepare for TCFD disclosure, we have established a
Climate Risk Governance charter andwill allocate resource

to oversee the implementation through four work streams which
will be focused on governance, strategy. risk management; and
metrics and targets.

Preliminary steps have been taken to:

+ identify climate-related risks through our existing risk
management systems and processes

+ Board and Audit Committee briefing on
TCFD implementaticn

« Environmental targets have been established and
performance will be monitored and reported on a
regular basis.

During 20217, we will carry out activities to:

* ensure that key internal stakeholders understand the
regulatery requirements

= assess the Cormpany’s risk and opportunities inrelation to
climate change including exposure to physical risks {acute,
chronic) and transition risk to a lower carbon economy
{policy and legal, technology. markets, reputation}

* review our systems for collecting and reporting data

= seek external expertise where appropriate

+ develop policies, systems and processes

CDP

We participate in the annual submigsion of climate related
information as part of the Climate Change survey to the COP
and were scored a ‘C'in 2020. In addition, we received a'B’
Supplier Engagement score demonstrating how we are
engaging with our suppliers cn climate change. In 2021, we
intend to submit our first Water survey responses to COP.

EcoVadis

We participate in the annual submission of supply chain
related information to EcoVadis and in 2020 we were awarded
a Silver medalin recognition of cur sustainable procurement,
business ethics, environmental performance and human
rights practices.
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

Social

WHY THIS IS IMPORTANT TO OUR BUSINESS
MODEL AND STRATEGY

We believe in a culture driven by strong Values and an
environment that promotes safety, diversity, inclusion,
accountability and high performance.

Qur people drive the success of delivering value to customers,
shareholders and the communities where we operate.

Safety is a core value at Elermentis and aur focus has been
keeping our employees safe and continuing to keep our
operations reliable during the pandemic.

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

Diversity, Equity and Inclusion {DEI)

= DEl council established

+ Volunteering programme launched

* Employee engagement survey insight and action plarning
* UK Living Wage accreditation

Employee engagernent

* Virtual employee townhalls — US, Europe and Asia

* Virtual senior leadership conference

+ Employee workshops and Company performance updates
+ Launch of Linkedin learning

Heaalth and safety
+ TogetherSAFE launch
+ Site manager certification

Supply chain
+ Supply chain engagement throughout the pandemic
+ EcoVadis Silver medat

COViD-19 response

* Global and regional specific taskforces established

+ Limited site shutdowns

» COVID-19 employee tracking system

« Employee commitment on pay, benefits, medical and furlough
* Regular Board and Executive Leadership Team (ELT) updates

OUR PERFORMANCE

INVESTMENT IN
HEALTH AND SAFETY
(INC, MAINTENANCE)

TOTAL RATE OF LOST TIME ACCIDENTS

RECORDABLE INJURIES (>3 DAYS)
NUMBER OF VOLUNTARY EMPLOYEE  EMPLOYEE

EMPLOYEES TURNOVER {%)
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LOCATIONS (%)

HUMAN RIGHTS RELATED
COMPLIANCE TRAINING
COMPLETION RATES {%)

NUMBER OF INTERNAL
PROMOTIONS



OVERVIEW

We recognise that our people are critical for the delivery of our
strategy. We are committed to creating an environment that
promotes safety, diversity. inclusion, accountability and high
performance that is underpinned by our Values.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

We piace great emphasis on protecting people and cperating
respansibly. Qur Health and Safety programmes provide the basis
of how we develop, manufacture and distribute our products
around the world. Our objective is to maintain a world class HSE
programme that delivers excellence in HSE perfermance and
drives continuous improvement. A copy of our HSE policy is
available on our website.

Accountability for health and safety sits at the top of the business
and is led by our Chief Executive Officer supported by the SVP
Glabal Supply Chain and Manufacturing and the Global Director
forHSE.

Qur Board receive a detailed update on cur health and safety
performance at each meeting and the ELT receive updates ona
monthly basis as part of cverall Group performance. Safetyis a
core value at Eiementis and providing a safe working environment
inwhich ocur employees return homea safely is a key priority for the
Board and the Group as a whole.

Allemployees and contractors are given training to understand
theirroles and responsibilities to ensure compliance with our safe
work procedures and we conduct regular audits to determine
policy compliance.

In 2020, our TogetherSAFE initiative was launched as a new
initiative that will help us advance our ambition of safety excellence
and zerc injuries across every cornér of our organisation to drive a
stronger, more committed safety culture throughout the
organisation as an extension of our Safety and Teams values.

COViD-19 - OUR APPROACH

In February 2020, we established a global taskforce led by ELT
members with support from HSE and our internal communications
team. This taskforce met three times per week for the first three
months to review empioyee status and emerging developments
relating to COVID-18, developing employee communications,
preventative measures and guidance to reduce exposure and risk.
In addition, specific pandemic status levels were defined to provide
a consistent system to compare facilities globally.

Our manufacturing sites were considered ‘critical’ and as such
remained open with the exceplion of temporary shutdowns in
China and Brazil. At our Newberry Springs site, a temporary
shutdown was mandated for 10 days due to the number of
supervisory employees self-isolating,

In February 2020, an Asia specific taskforce was established
followed by taskforces for the Americas and Europe as COVID-19
spread. Bi-weekly meetings were held with site leaders focusing on
status updates and sharing of best practices. Each site developed
pandemic action plans to ensure operability and policies and
procedures have been updated to reflect local guidance and
hygiene practices.

Alltaskforces continue to meet regularly to develop responses
asscciated with the pandemic. Further resources have been putin
place such as receiving medical input to develop policies and
cngoing case management.

COMMUNITY VIRTUAL WALK - OCTOBER 2020
For Breast Cancer Awareness Month (October 2020}, 121
employees from our management headguarters in East
Windsor, NJ participated in the local annual Susan G.
Komen Virtual Race for the Cure Walk and Elementis
matched employce donatiens to the Susan G. Komen
non-profit organization.

SAFETY PERFORMANCE

Our safety journey in 2020 was challenging. Whilst there
were no fatalities, we know that we canimprove our
performance as we continue to drive and embed safety
practices with employees and contractors. We had a
challenging first quarterin 2020 with five injuries, then made
noticeable improvement as the year progressed, but ended
up with a total of nine recordable injuries to our employees in
2020. Overall, this was a gisappointing result for the year
since we did not meet our continucus improvement goal.
We have started to see that our investments in capital
improvements, training, TogetherSAFE roll out and
management system upgrades are starting to have a
positive impact on our safety performance.

Tragically, we lost one employee to a COVID-13 related
illness in February 2021.

During the pandemic, our priorities have been employee wellbeing
and to provide guaranteed income and social benefits in line with
local regulations to demonstrate our commitment to employees by
committing to:

+ Pay-guaranteed 100% of gross weekly pay for up Lo two weeks
due to COVID-19 refated absence

« Benefits - employee health benefits such as medical, disability
and life/death insurances maintained during furlough/
temporary unemployment

* Furlough mandatery leave/temporary unemployment or reduced
hours —guaranteed minimum of two weeks at 100% gross
weekly base pay and up to 80% gross weekly pay for a further
four weeks in the event of temporary worksite closures,
temporary curtaiiment of operations and where home offiice
warking is not possible
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT AND WELLBEING
Elementis is committed to employee engagement throughout the
business. Employees are kept informed of the performance and
strategy of the Group, HSE matters and other initiatives through
regutar ernail bulleting and townhalls.

Allemployees have the opportunity to participate in an employee
engagement survey on the anniversary date of joining the Company
and the insight from the first complete year has been reviewed by the
Board, ELT and in local teams. Action plans have been developedin
response. The response rate for employees participating inthe
survey was 56%.

Whilst certain employees have been Gperating in a home working
environment, global employee townhalls have continued through the
year in avirtuai setting and our senicr leadership team participated in
avirtual leadership conference.

The CEQ has also initiated informal sessions such as ‘Coffee with the
CEC to further connect with employees. A dedicated intranet site was
developedto serve as a central access point for up to date reference
materials and infermation including for example; information onhow
to set up a home working station ina safe manner; and specific
information on COVID-19 symptoms and hygiene practices.

Despite certain employees working from home, the Company
succassfully migrated to cloud based tools strengthening cyber
security protocols and rise of potentialincrease in cyber security
threats. Thare were no significant data or privacy breaches in the year.

The Company continues to bring awareness to the topic of mental
health and resources such as; ways of working flexibly to balance
work and domestic priorities; the employee assistance helpling; and
informal check-ins with employees. As employees continue towork
through the challenges associated with COVID-19, angoing focus and
support will remain a key priority in 2021 and beyond.

DIVERSITY, EQUITY AND INCLUSION

Elermentis strives to create a culture where all employees belong,
feel safe, respected, valued, and feel empowered to contribute ideas
and perspectives. We recegnise that the diversity of our people and
the inclusive nature of our culture are intrinsic to better business
decisions. Diversity, equity and inclusion is fundamental to the
success of our strategy, culture and values,

In 2020, we established a Diversity, Equity and Inclusion (DEI)
Leadership Council whichis ¢o-chaired by the CEQ and CHRQ and
is represented by senior leaders who have a passion to implement
strategic initiatives that embed DElinto our collective talents to
respond to the business challenges of the future.

The remit of this Councilis 1o develop and implement a 3 year
roadmap designed to supportand accelerate DElgoals, create
meaningful metrics and track performance in areas such as
recruitment and retention, training, elimination of barriers at our
facilities, updating of policies and job descriptions 1o eliminate bias
and ensure equityin our processes. Employee resource group
initigtives, mentoring and womenin leadership activities are planned
for 2021.

The Board has received updates on DEl matters during the year and
has perforrmed in line with the Board diversity policy and objectives
during the year. We are proud to maintain a Board composition of
37.5% female Board members. Further information on progress can
be found on pages 81 and 82.
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Our HR policies underscore our commitment to providing equal
opportunities in emplayment, striving to ensure that the work
environment is free of harassment and bullying and that everyone is
treated with dignity and respect. Training is provided to employees
during the course of their employment and during the year, certain
employees completed training in anti-harassment in the workplace
with completion rates of 90%.

The Group is an equal opportunities employer and considers
applications for employment from disabled persons. We provide
facilities, equipment and training to assist disabled employees and
sheould an employee become disabled during their employment,
efforts would be made to retain them in their current role or to explore
opportunities for redeployment in the Group.

GENDER PAY

‘Whilst the Company has less than 250 employees in the UK and

is therefore not required ta repart under the gender pay gap
regulations, a comprehensive global review of gender pay was
completed towards the end of 2020, The outcome was reviewed
by the Board in December, Whilst a small number of minor changes
were implemented, no materialissues were identified either with
the pay process or individual pay. Further information on page 90.

UK LIVING WAGE ACCREDITATION

In June 2020, we received accreditation from the UK Living Wage
Foundation in respect of cur commitment to direct and third party
employees at all UK locations. We are proud to be 1 of nearly 7,000
companies that have committed to using the Living Wage for

UK employees.

TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

We are committed toinspiring, growing and investingin our people,
building an ethically led and high perfarming business culture.
Assessment of individual training needs is an important feature of
the annual performance process and employees agree a learning
and development goal with their manager each year. Exampies of
our commitment to invest in our people include:

» Launch of LinkedIn learning platform

« 2,000 hours of training completed (via our compliance
training portal)

« External leadership development pragrammes and coaching

« 125 site supervisors and giobal lgaders participated in an eight
week lecture/lab virtual safety leadership training course



We suspended our US internship programme in 2020 as a result of
COVID-19 and we look forward to restarting this in 2021 when safe
o ¢o $0.

The recent launch of the volunteering programme enables
employees to receive an additional day of paid time-off to volunteer
in the communities where they work and live.

Employees inthe UK and US are able to save and invest through the
annual share saving scheme where employees are able to choose
afixed amount to save over 3 or 5 year terms and can gither receive
all their savings back as cash or buy Flementis shares at a
discounted price,

HUMAN RIGHTS

QOur appreachis guided by international conventions and
standards, including the UN Universal Declaration of Human Rights
and the UN Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights as
well as the International Labour Crganisation's Declaration on
Fundamental Principles and Rights at Work, the latter being
freedem of association and the effective recognition of the right
to collective bargaining, the elimination of forced or compulsory
labour, the abalition of child labour and the elimination of
discrimination inrespect of employment and occupation.

We prohibit the use of child and ferced labour and are committed to
the principles of freedom of association, equality of treatment and
nen-discrimination. 9.5% of our employees are union members and
24% are subject to collective bargaining agreements. The total
voluntary attrition rate in 2020 was 7.9%.

There were no human rights grievances made against the
Company during the year.

As part of our cngoing commitment to support the UN Global
Compact, our latest communication on progress report details
the steps we have taken in 2020 relating to human rights, labour,
environment and anti-bribery and corruption. A copy of this report
and our anti-bribery and corruption policy are available on

our website,

SUPPLIERS AND SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Our Code of Conduct upholds our commitment to high ethical
standard cf fairness and respect in all business dealings including
with customers, suppliers and distributors. In turn, we expect the
people inour supply chain to be treated fairly and their human
rights respected. We strive for the highest ethical standards and
hold our suppliers and partners to the same criteria.

Our Purchasing Code of Practice refiects the requirements of the
US California Transparency in Supply Chains Act of 2010 and the
UK Modern Slavery Act 2015. A copy of our Modern Slavery
transparency statement is available on our website.

Training is provided to employees oh sustainable supply chain
management which includes prevention of modern slavery and fair
business dealings with customers, suppliers and distributors.

During the pandemic, Elermentis has taken proactive actions to
reducerisk to its supply chain andin turn, ensuring that our
customer commitments can be met, These actions included
waorking with suppliers regarding raw materials, reviewing
contingency plans to reduce the likalihood of disruption in our
supply chain and engaging our supply chain partners, including
railroads and trucking comparnies, to confirm adequate plans are
in place to mitigate any impact to services.

DUE DILIGENCE

Qur suppliers range in size from small and medium sized
enterprises to large multinationals, each of which has its own
supply chain. We assess and audit our key suppliers to ensure
conformity and consistency with our policies, including compliance
with international labour laws and the absence of slavery and
hurman trafficking. We use questionnaires which are assessed by
our procurement team. If a supplier is found to be in breach of
international labour laws and standards that seek to preohibit
slavery and human trafficking we will terminate our agreement
with them immediately.

Our purchase order terms and conditions, provided to all our
suppliers, reguire compliance with international labour laws that
seek to prohibit slavery and human trafficking. We expect our
suppliers and distributors to comply with all applicable legisiation.

PAYMENT PRACTICES

We work collzboratively with our suppliers to enable us to deliver
value to the business and are committed to paying cur suppliers
on time. Cur standard payment terms for suppliers are net 60 days
fromreceipt of goods and services. In the UK, we report our
payment practices to the UK Government's reporting portal,
consistently demonstrating that more than 90% of invoices are
paid within 80 days.

PRODUCT QUALITY AND SAFETY

We are committed to making sure our products will not harm
people or the environment during their manufacture, use and
disposal. To support the highest levels of product safety and
regulatory compliance, we have comprehensive product safety
and product stewardship processes and systems in place to
ensure that any hazard relating to our products are fulty understood
and communicated to our customers. Any rigsks are managed to
minimise petential impacts to people and the environment.

Our products are sold in compliance with all applicable local and
country laws and regulations.

TAX TRANSPARENCY

On an annuzl basis, we develop and publish our tax transparency
statement. This statement is approved by the Board and is available
on the Comipany’s website. We aim for a proactive, open and
transparent relationship with all relevant tax authorities in order

to facilitate meeting our statutory and legislative obligations.
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

Governance

WHY THIS IS IMPORTANT TOQ OUR BUSINESS
MODEL AND STRATEGY

Maintaining high standards of ethical business conduct and
compliance with local, national and international legislation
are fundamental hallmarks of being a responsible buginess.
Our behaviours, values, policies and governance frameworks
serve as the cornerstone of how we do business and enable
us to protect our reputation and underpin delivery of
sustainable value for our stakeholders.

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

« 203 new employees received training on our Code

of Conduct

Board and Audit Committee oversight of

compliance reports

+ Board and Audit Committee received regular COVID-18
status updates (including employees, raw materials,
iogistics, operational reliability and financial response)

= BthModem Slavery transparency statement approved

+ Taxtransparency statement approved

» Environmental sustainability targets approved

* Water stewardship policy established

+ Capital expenditure projects focused on sustainability and
efficiencies~$19m

-

OVERVIEW

The right governance structures, accountability processes and
transparency are essential compoenents of delivering sustainable
value for our stakeholders, Embedding environmental and sociat
sustainability within our business is expressed through our
strategy. purpose, culture and values.

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORKS

The Board is collectively responsible to shareholders for the
delivery of long term value and success and provides effective
challenge and support to management in relation to the execution
of strategy. whilst ensuring the Group maintains an effective risk
management and internal controls system.

As stewards of the Company, the Board leads an ongoing
prograrmime to ensure the highest standards of corporate
governance and integrity right across Elementis.

The Boardis supported by an effective corporate governance
structure, including the Audit Committee, which continuously
reviews the effectiveness of the Group's internal control
mechanisms, financial reporting, internal audit and risk
management processes. For further information, please refer to
pages 83 to 86. Each Board Committee has terms of reference
which are available on the Company's website. In addition, there
are certain decisions that can only be made by the Board and are
clearly defined in the schedule of matters reserved by the Board
which is available on the Company's website.

CUR PERFORMANCE

SPEAKING UP/
WHISTLEBLOWING
REPORTS

BOARD GENDER INDEPENDENT BOARD
DIVERSITY (M:F) MEMBERS
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ANTI-BRIBERY
COMPLIANCE TRAINING
COMPLETION RATES (%}

TOTAL COMPLIANCE
TRAINING {HOURS)



SUSTAINABILITY LEADERSHIP

The Elementis Sustainability Council (ESC) was established in 2019
to provide leadership, oversight and cocrdination for all Elementis’
sustainability and social responsibility policies, programmes and
goals, The ESC reports directly to the CEC who reports on ESG and
sustainability matters to the Board.

CODE OF CONDUCT

Our Code of Conduct sets the standards of conduct expected from
everyone who works for the Company. Cur Code is aligned with
applicable laws and regulations, as well as our Values. To help our
employees understand and adopt these values, principles and
standards in their daily work life, information and training are
provided and are supported by comprehensive whistieblowing
procedures and an anti-retaliation policy. The Code is availablein 7
languages representing the diversity of employeas who work for
the Company: Brazilian Portuguese, Dutch, English, Finnigh,
German, Chinese Simplified and Chinese traditional). The Code

of Conduct is available onthe Company's website. The Code of
Conductis suppeorted by a range of policies which include:
anti-bribery policy; data protection; anti-harassment; anti-
retaliation; and share dealing.

All new employees are required to undertake training on the Code
and refresher training every two years,

ANTI-BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION

We have a zero tolerance policy for bribery and corruption.

Our Code of Conduct includes bribery and corruption and is further
supported by an anti-corruption policy. Reperting nrocedures are
in place supported by processes to prevent retaliation against any
employees relating to business conduct. Employees receive
regular training on anti-bribery and corruption.

WHISTLEBLCWING

The Group's whistleblowing facility is provided by Alertline and is
accessible ona 24/7 basis, 365 days of the year. This confidential
reporting service is available for employees to report any potential
violation of our Code of Conduct either by telephone orviaa
dedicated website. Reports are duly investigated promptly and
actions are taken, The Audit Committee and the Board have
oversight of whistleblowing matters. In 2020 there were 6 reports
(2019: 4). Ali reports were investigated fully and closed during

the year.

CONTROLS ASSURANCE
The controls assurance framework in place at Elementis is based on:

= Board leadership supported by an open and transparent culture
of 'no surprises’, good governance and compliance

+ Internal and external audit programmes, regular litigation and
compliance reports

» Compliance audits, regulatory inspections, envirenmentat
reviews and property surveys

= Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, on which all employees
are given training and are required to self-certify compliance
with, supplemented by an online compliance training
orogramme, an anti-bribery and corruption policy which
contractors are also required to adhere to, whistleblowing
arrangements and an anti-retaliation policy

* Cross-functional Ethics and Compliance team comprised of
senior leaders within the organisation, which reports to the
General Counsel and Compliance Officer

COMPLIANCE PROGRAMME
Curing the year, the following training modules were providedto
employees with participation rates of more than 90% for each module:

+ Preventing sexual harassment ang anti-haragsment training
{California and New York employees)

= Competitive intelligence/trade secrets

+ Creating a harassment free workplace (US and ELT members}

+ Slavery and human trafficking in supply chains

» Anti-bribery and corruption

= Dataprotection/GDPR/CCPA

» Recordsretention

+ Giving and receiving gifts

For employees at our manufacturing facilities, classroom learning
is facilitated.
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NON-FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Non-financial information
statement

Reporting Policies and standards Information necessary to understand our business
requirement which govern our approach and its impact, policies due diligence and outcomes
Environmental * Code of Conduct » Environmental, social and governance, pages
matters « Health, safety and environmental policy 321043

* Envircnmental management systems
Employees + Code of Conduct « Environmental, social and governance, pages

+ Health, safety and environmentat policy 32t043

+ Life saving rules = Diversity policy and initiatives page 82

« Data protection and privacy policies * Whistleblowing, page 43

+ Equality and diversity policies
+ Whistleblowing policies

Human rights * Code of Conduct « Environmental, social and governance, pages
+ Equality and diversity policies 32t043
+ Data protection and privacy policies < Diversity policy, page 82

+ Purchasing Code of Practice
+ ModernSlavery statement

+ Code of Conduct » Environmental, social and governance, pages
= Volunteering policy 321043

* Where we do not have specific policies on

social/ community matters, we engage directly

with our communities wherever we operate

Social matters

Anti-corruption + Code of Conduct » Environmental, social and governance, pages
and anti-bribery « Anti-corruption policy 32tc43

« Anti-trust policy {global competition)
+ Purchasing Cede of Practice

1 Certain Group Policies, internal standards and guidelines are not published externally

As required under section 414CA and 414CB of the Companies Act 2008, the table above includes reference to non-financial matters
in our Strategic report.

Reference to our policies, due diligence processes and information on how we are performing on these areas are contained
throughout the Strategic report. Information on our principai risks can be found on pages 59 to 62, information on our non-financial
key performance indicators can be found on page 30 and a description of our business model can be found on page 18.
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FINARCE REPORT

Strong cash

conversion drives

debt reduction

"COVID-19 impacted volumes
across both industrial and
consumer end markets."

RALPHHEWINS
CHIEF FINANCIAL CFFICER

In a challenging market backdrop
we delivered a $46m reduction in
net debt, driven by working capital
reductions, capital expenditure
discipline and suspension of the
dividend.

GROUP RESULTS

In 2020, revenue declined 14% from $874m to $751m principalty
due to COVID-12 related impact on velumes across both industrial
and consumer markets. Excluding the impact of currency
translation and business disposals, underlying revenue declined
12%. Revenue in Personat Care fell 18% on a reported basis and
9% on an underlying basis* with demand impacted by restrictions
limiting socialinteraction and travel. In Coatings, revenue declined
8% on a reported basis and 7% on an underlying basis*, with
resilient DIY decorative demand more than offset by weaker
industrial activity. In Talc, revenue declined 12% on a reported basis
and 13% cn an underlying basis* with a strong second half demand
recovery and encouraging revenue synergy progress offset by
automotive plant shutdowns in the second quarter, Revenugin
Chromium decreased 14% due to weaker volumes and pricing,
primarily outside of North America. Energy revenue declined by
49% as & result of the lower oil price and weaker drilling activity in
Narth America.

Reported operating profit declined from $107m to aloss of $28m
due to areduction in revenue and associated earnings as well as
an $88m increase in adjusting items, mostly due to the $60m
non-cash impairment of Energy and Talc goodwill recegnised in
the first half of the year. Adjusted operating profit declined 33% on
anunderlying basis* from $123m to $82m with the aforementioned
lower ravenue and associated earnings partially offset by $15m of
cost savings delivered in the year. The statutcry result for the year
was aloss of $67.0m compared to a profit of $46.4min 2019.
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FINANCE REFORT CONTINUED

Finance report

ADJUSTING ITEMS

In addition to the statutory results, the Group uses alternative performance measures, such as adjusted operating profit and adjusted
diluted earnings per share, to provide additional useful analysis of the performance of the business. The Board considers these non-
GAAP measures as an alternative way to measure the Group's performance, Adjusting items in 2020 resulted in a charge of $121.5m
before tax, anincrease of $89.0m againstlast year, The key categories of adjusting items are summarised below. For more information
on adjusting items and the Group's policy for adjusting items, please see Note 5 and Note 1 to the financial statements respectively.

Personal Central

Care Ceatings Tale  Chromium Energy costs Total
Creditflcharge} $m $m $m $m $m $m $m
Restructuring - (0.9} - - - - 0.9}
Business transformation (3.0} (18) - 2.3) {15.6) - 227
Environmental provisions - - - 8.7 - - 8.7
M&A and disposal costs (2.0) - - - - (1.7) 3.7
Impairment of goodwill - - (33.4) - (26.9) - 60.3)
Amortisation of intangibles arising on acquisition 8.6) 1.1 (5.6} 0.2} - - {15.5)
Total charge to operating profit (13.6) (38) (32.0) 9.2) (42.5) (1.7} (109.8)
Sale of Elementis Specialties {Changxing) Ltd 0.3 - - - - - Q03
Charge to finance costs
Mark to market of derivatives - - - - - 102 0.2}
Currency hedge due to dividend canceliation - - - - - (.8 (8
Total {13.3) {3.8) (39.0) {9.2) {425} {13.7} {121.5)

Restructuring

In 2020, restructuring costs relate predominantly to the
organisational efficiency pregramme commenced in late 2019
which eliminated duplicate roles, reduced management layers
and increased spans of control in order to realise cost savings
and efficiencies across the Group. The restructuring programme
concluded in 2020.

Business transfermation

In November 2020, in line with Elementis’ ongoing strategy to
optimise its footprint, the closure of the Charleston plant was
announced resulting in a cne-off charge of $15.6m. Further charges
of $7.1m relate to the continuation of the prograrmme to review and
optirnise the supply chain and manufacturing fogtprint across our
Coatings, Personal Care, Energy and Chromium businesses.

Environmental provisions

The Group's environmental provision is calculated on a discounted
cash flow basis, reflecting the time period over which spending is
estimated to take place. The movement in provisicnrelatestoa
change in discount rates that has increased the liabllity by $1.1m

in the year, extra remediation work identified in the year which has
resulted in a $6.1mincrease to the liability offset by unused
amounts reversed in the year of $0.5m. As these costs relate to
non-operational facilities they are classed as adjusting items.

M&A and disposal costs

Charges of $3.7m represent costs refating to the disposaf of small,
non-core businesses in the Personal Care business segrment and
advisory fees incurred in response to an unsolicited takeover
approachreceived in the year.
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impairment of goodwill

As aresult of the low average oil price in 2020 and the expected
ongoing ¢halienging outlook for the Energy sector, in particutar the
North American shale market, & $26.9m impairment has been
recognised in Energy. In Talc, while the business fundamentals are
unchanged and the mediurm term growth outlook attractive, the
significant impact of COVID-19 on wider industrial activity and the
near term profitability of the business combined with anincrease
in the pre-tax discount rate has resulted in a $33.4m goodwill
impairment charge.

Amortisation of intangibles arising on acquisition
Amortisation of $15.5m (2012 $18.6m) represents the charge in
respect of the Group's acquired intangible assets. As in previous
years, these are included in adjusting items in order to present 2
more reflective view of the Group’s overall performance and the
key business drivers that underpin it.

Sale of Elementis Specialties (Changxing} Ltd
The profit on the exit of a non-core plant (previously part of the
Coatings business) has been treated as anadjusting iterm in 2020.

Mark to market of derivatives

The movements in the mark to market valuation of financial
instruments which are not in hedging relaticnships do not form
part of the underlying performance of the business and thus are
treated as adjusting items,

Currency hedge due to dividend cancellation

The charge of $1.8m relates to the cancellation of currency hedges
following the suspension of the 2018 final ordinary dividend that
provided additional financial headroom in response to COVID-19.



REVENUE 2020 2019
$m Sm Change
Personal Care 160.8 185.0 -18%
Coatings 295.5 3201 -8%
Talc 1325 150.7 -12%
Chromium 146.9 171.0 -14%
Energy 236 46.6 -49%
Inter-segment (8.0) (8.8) -18%
Revenue N L 751.3 873.6 -14%
OPERATING PROFIT
2020 2019
Adjusted Adjusted
Operating operating Operating operating
profit/  Adjusting profit/ profit/ Adjusting profit/
(less) items {loss) {loss) items {loss)
$m $m $m* $m $m $me
Personal Care 20.0 13.6 33.6 281 13.6 4277
Coatings 43.3 3.8 47.1 437 46 48.3
Talc (22.4} 39.0 16.6 18.8 5.8 257
Chromiurm (3.6) 9.2 56 126 5.6 18.2
Energy (48.2) 425 5.7 38 - 3.8
Central costs {17.3) 1.7 (15.6) 8.2) {7.5) (15.7)
Operating {loss)/profit (28.2) 109.8 81.6 100.9 221 123.0
A After adjusting items — sea Note 5
GROUP PERFORMANCE - REVENUE Effect of {Decrease)
Revenue exchange Impact of increase Revenue
2019 rates ME&AF 2020 2020
$m $m $m $m $m
Personal Care 1950 0.8 (18.0} (15.4) 160.8
Coatings 3201 (1.6) - (23.00 295.5
Talc 150.7 1.3 - (19.5) 1325
Chromium 1710 - - 24.1) 146.9
Energy 46.6 - - (23.0) 23.6
Inter-segment (9.8) - - 1.8 (8.0)
Revenue 8738 {1.1} {(18.0) (103.2) 751.3
GROUP PERFORMANCE - ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT Operating Effect of Operating
profit exchange Impact of Decrease profit
20194 rates MEBA? 2020 2020
$m $m $m $m $m
Personal Care 427 @1 0.6) (8.4) 33.6
Coatings 48.3 - - (1.2} 47.1
Talc 257 0.1 - 9.2) 16.6
Chromium 18.2 - - (2.6} 5.6
Energy 38 - - (9.5 (5.7)
Central costs (15.7) 0.1 - - (15.6)
Adjusted operating profit 123.0 o {0.6) 40.9) 81.6

A After adjusting items —see Note 5

i M&Aimpactincludes the sale of a non core gypsum plant (previousty part of the Dental business).
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FINANCE REPORT CONTINUED

HEDGING

Cash flow hedges are used as part of a programme to manage our
exposure to interest rate risk and commaodity price risk particularly
associated with USD and EUR interest payments and aluminium
pricing. In 2020, interest rate and cemmaodity price movements
were such that the netimpact of these hedge transactions was
aloss of $0.9m (2019: $0.0m) recycled to the income statement.

CENTRAL COSTS

Central costs are those costs that are not identifiable as expenses

of a particular business and comprise expenditures of the Board

of Directors and corporate head office. In 2020, adjusted central costs
of $15.6m were broadly similar ta the $15.7m for the previous year.

COVID-19 ASSISTANCE

The Group has accessed various government support schemes
aimed at mitigating the potentiai impact on individuals’ job losses
resulting from the impact of COVID-19. The most significant
amounts received by the Group include the following:

« $0.9minrelation to government support under temporary
wage support schemes available in the Netherlands and China.
The Group does not have any unfulfilled obligations relating to
these support programmes. This amount has been offset
against employee remuneration costs.

= Agreement of payment plans with tax authorities in the US and
China to defer payments of corporation taxes and payroll taxes
resulting in $3.0m payment deferrals across the Group.

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses are administration costs incurred and paid by
the Group's pension schemes, which relate primarily tc former
employees of legacy businesses, and were $1.6min 2020
comparedwith $1.5m in the previous year.

NET FINANCE COSTS

2020 2018
$m $m

Finance income 0.3 0.4
Finance cost of borrowings (22.6) (23.7)

{22.3) (23.3)
Net pension finence costs (0.6) [0.5)
Discount unwind on provisions 2.7} (2.4)
Fair value movement on clerivatives (10.2) (1.4)
Dividend currency hedge cancellation {1.8) -
Interest on lease liabilities {1.7) (1.8)
Net finance costs {39.3) (29.4)

Net finance costs far 2020 were $39.3m, an increase of $3.9m on
last year. Finance costs comprise interest payable on borrowings
calculated using the effective interest rate method. facility
arrangement fees, the unwinding of discounts on the Group’s
envircnmental provisions, fair value movement on derivatives
and interest charged onlease liabilities.

Theincrease innet finance costsis primarily due to the fair value
movement on derivatives ($8.8m increase) and the cancellation of
the dividend currency hedge following the suspension of the 2019
final ordinary dividend ($1.8m increase). Finance cost of borrowings
decreased by $1.1m due to lower average net borrowing in the year.
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Both pension finance costs, which are a function of discount rates
underIAS 19 and the value of schemes’ deficit or surplus positions,
and the interest on lease liabilities, were broadly consistent in 2020
compared with 2019.

The discount unwind on provisions relates to the annual time value
of the Group's environmental provisions which are calculatedon a
discounted basis. The smallincrease to the provision in 2019 has
resulted in & higher discount unwind in 2020.

TAXATION
Taxcharge
2020 2019
Effective Effective
rate rate .
$m % $m %
Reported tax (credit)/
charge {1.8) (2.6) 14.6 2329
Adjusting items tax credit 16.0 - 6.1 -
Underlying tax charge 14.2 26.9 20.7 22.1

The Group incurred a tax charge of $14.2m (2019: $20.7m) on
adjusted profit before tax, resulting in an effective tax rate of 26.9%
{2019: 22.1%). As previously guided, the Group's effective tax rate in
2020 is slightly above its usual range due to withholding tax
incurred on the repatriation of profits from Asia and the
derecognition of a deferred tax asset inthe US.

Tax on adjusting items, which in 2019 primarily related to the
amortisation of intangible assets, was further impacted in 2020 by
the conseguences of the impairment of gooawiil associated with
the Energy business, the closure of the Charleston plant and other
restructuring actions.

The expectation for the Group's effective P&L tax rate is around
22-23% until 2023, after which it is anticipated to rise to 25-26%
due to the recently anncunced increase in UK corporation tax rates
from April 2023.

Following the European Commission’s State Aid investigation into
the UK Finance Company Exemption (FCE') regime, Elementis
received a charging notice in February 2021 for the maximum
exposure of $19m (excluding interest). Elementis paid the notice
amount to HMRC on 5 March 2021, as required, and has lodged an
appeal. As Elementis considers that the appeal will ultimately be
successful, an asset will be recorded in the 2021 accounts on the
expectation that the charge will be repaid in due course.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements sets out a nrumber
of calculations of earnings per share. To fully understand the
underlying performance of the Group, earnings per share reported
under IFRS is adjusted for items classified as adjusting.

Adjusted diluted earnings per share was 6.5 cents? for 2020
compared with 12.4 centstin the previous year, a decrease of 48%
due to lower profit and a higher effective tax rate. Basic earnings per
share before adjusting items was a loss per share of 11.5 cents®
compared to a profit per share of 8.0 cents?in 2019,

Note 9 to the Group consoligated financial statements provides

disclosure of earnings per share calculations both including and
excluding the effects of adjusting items and the potential dilutive
effects of outstanding and exercisable options.




DISTRIBUTIONS TO SHAREHOLDERS

Given the market and economic uncertainties during the year,
and the Board's desire to provide additional financial headroom
and preserve cash, no dividend distributions to shareholders
were made during In 2020. The Board is also not recommending
a final dividend for 2020. The Beard recognise the importance
of dividends te sharcholders and will look to reinstate payments
once material progress is made on reducing financial leverage.

CASH FLOW
Net cash flow from operating activities decreased by $36.3m to
$107.3m in 2020, as a result of lower operating profits in the year.

Net cash outflow in relation to investing activities decreased by
$9.8mto $39.2min 2020, due to disciplined cash management
of capital expenditure,

Net cash outflow in relation to financing activities reduced by
$20.8mto $64.7m in 2020, predominantly due to the suspension
of the dividend.

The adjusted cash flow which excludes the effect of adjusting
items from operating cash flow is summarised below.
Areconciliation of statutory operating profit to EBITDA is shown
in the alternative performance measures section on page 183.

2020 2018

$m $m

EBITDA" 132.8 174.5
Change in working capital 18.8 33.0
Capital expenditure (40.0) (47.3)
QOther (1.8) (5.4}
Adjusted operating cash flow 109.8 154.8
Pension payments {0.1) (1.2}
Interest (23.4) 124.6)
Tax (8.5) (2.2}
Adjusting items {12.2) (30.4)
Payment of lease liabilities {6.7) O
Free cash flow 58.9 90.4

lssue of shares 0.1 0.1
Dividends paid - 149.3)
Acquisitions and disposals 0.5 (2.1}
Currency fluctuations 13.4) 48
Movementin net debt 46.1 439
Net debt at start of year (454.2) (498.1)
Net debt at end of year (408.1) (454.2)

1 EBITDA - earnings before interest, tax, adjusting ftems. depreciation
and amortisation.

Adjusted operating cash flow decreased by $45.0m to $102.8m

for 2020 due to lower adjusted EBITDA ($41.8m lower) and a smaller
working capital inflow in the period ($14.2m lower), partially offset
by disciplined control of capital expenditure ($7.3m benefit).

Free cash flow of $58.9min 2020 represents a reduction of $31.5m
year on the prior year period. Cash tax outflows increased from
$£2.2mto $8.5m, primarily due to settlement of a historical tax
liability to the Belgium tax authorities of $2.1min 2020 and a
one-off tax refund from the IRS in 2018 of $2.0m. This was offset by
areductionin cash outflows associated with adjusting items from

$30.4m1n 2019 to $12.2min 2020, principally related to business
transformation activities. Net pensions payments in the year
decreased by $1.1m to $0.7m mainly due to areduction in employer
contributions to US pension schemes. The 2017 triennial review of
the UK pension scheme concluded that no cash tep up payments
will be required from Elementis until at least 2021,

Whilst net debt decreased from $454.2min 2019 to $408.7m
in 2020, 2 reduction of $46.1m, net debt to adjusted EBITDA
increased from 2.7x**in 2019 to 3.2x**in 2020. The increase
in leverage is due to the decline in adjusted EBITDA, reflective
of the Group's lower earnings.

BALANCE SHEET

2020 2019
$m $m
intangible fixed assets 892.6 9581
Tangibie fixed assets 516.0 5136
Working capital 141.4 152.2
Net tax liabilities (132.2) (137.9}
Provisions and retirement benefit
obligations (79.0) 68.7)
Financial assets and liabilities {30.7) {15.1}
Lease liabilities {44.4) {46.9)
Unamortised syndicate fees 4.8 51
Net debt (408.1) (454.2)
Total equity 860.4 906.2

Group equity decreased by $45.8min 2020 (2019: decrease of
$9.4m). Intangible fixed assets decreased by $65.5m due to an
impairment of $60.3m and $16.1m of amortisation of intangibles
partially offset by $10.6m of foreign exchange gains. Tangible fixed
assets increased by $2.4m, with gross PPE additions of $41.5m,
right-of-use asset capitalisation of $1.4m and exchange
differences of $24.0m partially offset by depreciation of $50.6m
and impairment loss of $11.7m.

Working capital comprises inventories, trade and other receivables
and trade and other payables. Working capital decreased by
$10.8min 2020, aresult of lower underlying revenue and tight
working capital management. As part of our multi year working
capital improvament programme $7m of sustainable working
reductions were achievedin 2020, taking our cumulative, project
related, working capital reductions since 2017 to $30m.

Net tax liabilities decreased by $5.7m primarily due to the
continued unwing of defarred tax liabilities cnintangible assets.

ROCE (excluding goodwill} decreased tc 10% from 15%in 2019,
due to reduced adjusted operating profit partially offset by
reductions in working capital (see Alternative Performance
Measures on page 182}

The main dollar exchange rates relevant to the Group are set
outbelow.

2020 2018

Yearend Average Yearend Average

Pounds steriing 0.73 0.78 0.75 078
Euro 0.82 0.88 0.89 0.89
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FINANCE REPCORT CONTINUED

PROVISIONS

The Group records a provision in the balance sheet whenit has a
present obligation as a result of past events, which is expected to
result in an outflow of economic benefits in order to settle the
obligation, The Group calculates provisions on a discounted basis.
At the end of 2020 the Group held provisions of $58.8m (2019
$51.6m) consisting of environmental provisions of $50.6m (20719:
$44.1m), self-insurance provisions of $1.5m {2019: $2.2m) and
restructuring and other provisions of $6.7m (2019: $5.3m).

Environmental provisions have increased by $6.5m in 2020,

with $6.7m taken through adjusting items, of which $1.1m relates
to a change in the discount rate applied to the liabilities and $6.1m
relates to extra remediation work identified offset by unused
amounts reversed in the year of $0.5m. The remaining movement
relates to $2.0m of unwind of discount in the year, $1.5m of
currency translation offset by $3.7m of utilisation. The self-
insurance provision represents the Group's estimate of its
liability arising from retained liabilities under the Group's
insurance programme.

Within the restructuring and other provisions categories the
maijority of the balance relates to the organisational efficiency
programme which has eliminated duplicate roles, reduced
management layers and increased spans of control in crder to
realise cost savings and efficiencies across the Group.

PENSIONS AND OTHER POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS

2020 2019
$m $m
Net {surplus)/liabilty:
UK (7.9) {7.4)
us 18.3 15.9
Other 9.8 86
20.2 17.1
UK PLAN

The largest of the Group's retirement plans is the UK defined
benefit pension scheme (UK Scheme’) which at the end of 2020
had a surplus, under IAS 19, of $7.9m (2019: $7.4m). The UK
Scheme is relatively mature, with approximately two thirds of its
gross liabilities represented by pensions in payment, and is closed
to new members. Return on plan assets of $75.2m (2019: $62.1m)
outweighed liability adjustments of $59.5m (2019: $57.7m) arising
due to lower discount rates based on real corporate bond yields.
Company contributions of $nil (2019; $nil) refiect the funding
agreement reached with the UK Trustees following the 2017
triennial valuation which concluded in 2018. Under this agreement
top up contributions are no longer required untilat least 20217,
The 2020 triennial review is cngoing and expected to complete
in2021.

US PLAN

inthe US, the Group reports two post retirement plans under |1AS
19: a defined benefit pension plan with a deficit value at the end of
2020 of $11.8m (2019: $2.9m}, and a post retirement medical plan
with a liability of $6.5m (2019: 36.0m). The US pension plans are
smaller than the UK plan and in 2020 the overall deficit value of the
US plans increased by $2.4m as the financial cost of the liability of
$4.0m (2019: $5.0m) and the actuarial increases in the liability of
$12.8m (2019:$11.Bm decrease} were partially offset by the return
on plan assets of $15.8m {2019: $21.1m} and employer
contributions of $0.5m (2019 $1.5m}.
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OTHER PLANS

Other liabilities at 31 December 2020 amounted to $3.8m {2012
$8.6m) and relate to pension arrangements for a relatively small
number of employees in Germany, certain UK legacy benefits and
one pensicn scheme acquired as part of the SummitReheis
transactionin 2017.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities at 31 December 2020 include $13.4m of
contingent consideration in respect of Mondo (2019 $13.0m).
This balance s payable to the previous owners of Mondo should
Elernentis be successful in an historic, pre-acquisition interest
deductibility tax case relating to Mondo. Should Elementis be
unsuccessful the balance payable to the previous owners of
Mondo will be nil.

Also included are net derivative financial liabilities of $15.9m (2019:
$2.0m}relating to the valuation of various risk
management instruments.

The movements in the mark to market valuation of financial
instruments which are not in hedging relationships do not form
part of the underlying performance of the business and thus are
treated as adjusting items.

BREXIT

Following the end of the Brexit transitional period on 31 Decermber
2020 management have continued to manitor the status of the
trading relationship between the EU and the UK and the impact an
the Group inearly 2021 has been immaterial. Further information
on our ongoing approach to Brexit is provided on page 58.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
The ongoing EU state aid case is discussed in the taxation section
of this finance report.

There were no other significant events after the balance
sheet date.

RALPH HEWINS
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

23 March 2021

A After adjustingitems —see Note 5

*  Agdjusted for FX (where constant currency reflects prior yearresults
translated at current year exchange rates) and the impact of M8A.

** See calculation within the unaudited information on page 184



CFERATING REVIEW

PERSONAL CARE

Demand impacted by COVID-19
social and travel restrictions

STIJNDEJONCKHEERE
SVP GLOBAL PERSONAL CARE

$34m

2020 adjusted operating
profit (2019: $43mj)

$161m

2020 revenue {2013 $195m)

In Personal Care, the social and
travel restrictions widely imposed
in response to COVID-19 presented
significant headwinds to our
financial performance.

Nonetheless, our strategic pricrities remain clear and we are
well placed to return to, and exceed, previous levels of financial
performance once working and living conditions begin to normalise.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCGCE

Personal Care revenue in 2020 was $161m compared with $195m
in the prior year, an 18% decline on a reported basis. Of this
reported decline, $18m was due to the sale of a non-core dental
gypsum plantin December 201$ and $1m was due to adverse
currency movements, Excluding these impacts, revenue fell by 9%
on an underlying basis*.

This decline was primarily a resutt of demand weakness in our two
key end markets, colour cosmetics and anti-perspirant deodorants.
Due to COVID-19 related social and travel restrictions, it is
estimated that retail sales of cosmetics and deodorants fell by 21%
and 8% respectively in Europe during 2020. While these markets will
rebound ence life starts to normalise, weak consumer demand
significantly impacted our performance. Actions taken to expand
our presence in Asia, grow in skin care and increase our market
share in anti-perspirant deodorants helped to partially offset the
decline inindustry demand.

Adjusted operating profit fell by 21% from $43m to $34m, with
adjusted operating margins solid at 20.9% (21.9% in the prior year
period). This decling was primarily a result of weaker volumes and
unfavourable mix, due to relatively lower sales of our higher margin
hectorite basedingredients for use in colour cosmetics
applications such as lipsticks and mascaras.

STRATEGY
Our medium term Personal Care growth strategy is focused on two
areas, Cosmetics and AP Actives.

“Consumers are increasingly looking for
products that contain natural ingredients.”

In Cosmetics, consumers are increasingly looking for products
that contain clean and natural ingredients, providing a positive
long term outlook for our hectorite based Cosmetics business.
Our Cosmetics track record is strong and incremental investment
will further increase our ability to develop new customers, and
enter new gecgraphies and markets.

We have performed well in Asia over recent vears, but withthe
region representing under 20% of our sales we have more 1o do.

In 2020, we continued to invest in our capabilities and in the first
half of 2021 we will open a new technical service laporatory in
China dedicated to servicing our Personal Care customers in the
region. This investment, combined with innovation focused on local
market needs, will drive our medium term aim of doubling our
cosmetics sales in Asia.

Skin care is a large and growing part of the personal care market,
and an area where we have historically had little participation.

In 2019, we launched two new hectorite based products for this
market, and while customer new preduct launches have been
impacted by COVID-19, we have made encouraging early progress
towards our medium term goal of $10m incremental sales.

in AP Actives, population growth and rising incomes will support

a growing market for anti-perspirants in most South American and
Asian countries. To help cost effactively serve this growth we are
investing approximately $20min a new manufacturing facility in
India which wilt commence production in 2021,

As the market evolves to demand premium products with claims
supported by science, customers increasingly value our differentiated
ingredients and technical support. In 2020 we launched Reach 9000, a
high efficacy active ingredient and a good example of the innovation
we will continue to deliver to drive our growth ambitions.

While COVID-18 has clearly had a near term impact, we believe that
our strategy will enable us to deliver organic revenue growth above
GDP growth, with high and stable margins over the medium term.

* Agdjusted for FX and the impact of M&A. See page 46,
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OPERATING REVIEW CONTINUED

COATINGS

Increased marginsina
challenging market environment

LUC VAN RAVENSTEIN
SVP GLOBAL COATINGS
AND ENERGY

$296m

2020 revenue (2019: $320m)

$47m

2020 adjusted operating
profit (2019: $48m)

It is encouraging that our financial
performance showed resilience,
with adjusted operating margins
increasing on the prior year
despite a sharp slowdown in global
macroeconomic activity.

This performance is a clear indication that we are ina strong
position tc deliver on our medium term aspirations of revenue
growth in excess of GDP growth and improving margins.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Coatings revenue in 2020 was $296m cornpared with $320min
the pricr year, an 8% decline on a reported basis. On an underlying
basis* revenue fell by 7%, primarily due to weak demand in
industrial markets, such as automotive and protective coatings,
as aresult of the macroeconomic impacts of COVID-19.

Europe and the Americas reported a resilient performance,

with sales falling 4% on an underlying basis* in both regions.
While demand from industrial markets was weak, decorative
demand, which represents approximately 40% of our sales in
both regions, was relatively strong as consumers used COVID-19
lockdowns as an opportunity to undertake home improvements.
In Asia, industrial end markets represent arcund 90% of our sales,
and as aresult underlying* revenue declined by 12%.

Adjusted operating prefit declined by 2% from $48m to $47m,
representing an adjusted operating profit margin of 15.9%, up from
the 15.1% reported in 2019. This degree of marginimprovement is
an encouraging resultin a tough gdemand environment and reflects
an improved underlying cost position, enhanced product portfolio
and new business wins.
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"We have a solid foundation from which
to grow.”

STRATEGY

Inrecent years we have focused on transforming our Coatings
business to create a simpler and higher value product portfolio,
and a more efficient operating maodel. As a resutt, we have a solid
foundation from which to grow. In 2020, we have focused on
executing our growth strategies, centred con differentiated
technologies that deliver solutions to key industry challenges.

Consumers want decorative coatings that make their lives easier
and deliver sustainability benefits. Our Rheolate® HX series delivers
award winning single coat performance, a step change in stain
resistance and enables VOC free coatings. In 2020, customer
adoption of this technology has been strong. To further drive
growth we have continued to innovate, delivering a preservative
free solution, the first of its kind to market. In additicn, in 20217 we
are working towards the launch of a new powdered alternative that
brings clear sustainability advantages.

In industrial coatings. we have broad and complementary
technology solutions that enable the transition from sclvent to
waterborne technologies, thus delivering significant environmental
benefits without sacrificing performance. Products such as
Thixatrol® 5020W, critical in waterborne metallic flake effect
coatings, are in strong demand and we have a significant number
of customer trials in progress, promising further growth.

Hybrid adhesives and sealants are another high growth segment
supported by megatrends including fight weighting and energy
efficiency regulations. Here, our range of Thixatro!® additives
deliver enhanced adhesion, up to 30% lower energy processing
costs and genuine sustainabllity benefits as they are derived from
natural castor wax. Our customer base in this sector doubled in
2020 and we have an encouraging new business pipeline.

*Adjusted for FX and the impact of M&A_See page 46




TALC

A much improved second
half performance

CHRISTIAN KATHER
SVP GLOBAL TALC

$17m

2020 adjusted operating
profit {2019: $26m)

$133m

2020 revenue (2019: $151m)

Despite a strong second half
recovery, Talc performance
declined on the prior year, impacted
by weak Q2 demand as automotive
production plants closed in
response to COVID-19.

Looking past short term demand weakness, our fundamentals are
strong and we remain well positioned to capture market share in
new and existing geographies and applications.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue in 2020 was $133m compared with $151m in the prior
year, a 12% decline on a reported basis. Excluding the impact of
currency movements, revenus fell by 13% due to weak demand
inindustrial markets, primarily talc for use in automotive
applications. Performance in the secand half of the year improved
substantially, with fourth quarter revenue above the prior year
period, driven by a rebounding plastics market, market share
gains and geographic expansion.

Despite a strongtrack record of underlying* sales growth,
averaging 8% over the decade to 2019, industrial talc sales
declined by 6% in 2020 primarily due to automotive market
weakness as global light vehicle production declined 16%.

This was partially offset by growth in Asia and revenue synergy
delivery. In Asia, our sales grew 6% as we increased market share,
prirmarily in long life plastics applications. Sales of talc for coatings
applications rose 1% as we gained new customers and entered
new geographies, in line with our strategy to grow Talc outside
our core European market, taking our revenue synergies since
acquisition to $7m.

QOutside of industrial talc, sales to the graphic paper markat declined
significantly as retailers cancelled the printing of catalogues in
response to COVID-19 lockdowns. Though representing just over
10% of total Talc revenue, we continue to expect our sales to the
paper market to decline in the medium term driven by the ongoing
structural shift to digital media platforms.

"We have continued to execute against our
Strategic priorities and are fit for the future.”

Adjusted operating profit declined by 35% from $26m to $17m,
with adjusted operating margins of 12.5% down from 17,1% in the
prior year period. This deciine in earnings and margin was primarily
aresult of lawer volumes and lower fixed cost absorption.

STRATEGY

While 2020 presented clear demand headwinds, with industrial
production down across all geographies, we have continued te
implement our strategic priorities to ensure we are fit for the future.

European paper markets have been the historical focus of our
business, reflective of the location of our talc deposits in Finland.

In recent years we have successfully increased our ability to serve
higher value industrial applications on a global basis. There are
material opportunities to further globalise and accelerate growth
by leveraging the Group's asset base, marketing and distribution
capabilities and technical expertise. In 2020, we won $10m of new
business opportunities and gained market share in China where we
achieved 18% growth. Locking forward, recent key hires in sales
and technical support will continue to drive our global expansion.

In coatings and personal care applications we aim to generate
$20-25m of revenue synergies by 2023. In 2020 we expanded our
Talc sales to 60 new coatings custemers in 13 new geographies,
leveraging the Elementis brand and coatings knowledge. As a
result, we have captured over $7m of revenue synergies to date
and have an encouraging pipeling of new business cpportunities
representing over $15m of revenue.

We are also focused on growing and increasing our market share in
applications such as long life plastics and catalytic convertors.
Demand for these products is supported by consumer and
regulatory needs to reduce vehicle weights and emissions.
Likewise, in emerging technologies such as barrier coatings for
recyclatile food packaging we are making encouraging earty
progress. With over 30 customer projects in progress we expect

to generate our first material sales in 2021.

* Adjusted for FX and the impact of M&A. See page 46
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COPERATING REVIEW CONTINUED

CHROMIUM

Weaker global industrial demand

and pricing

ERIC WALDMANN
SVP GLOBAL CHROMIUM

$147m

2020 revenue (2019: $171m)

$6m

2020 adjusted operating
profit (2019: $18m)

Chromium performance materially
declined on the prior year, impacted
by weaker global industrial demand
and lower pricing.

Quir priority for Chromium is to run our cperations in a safe and
reliable manner, whilst focusing cn performance improvement
initiatives to drive earnings and cash returns.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Revenue in 2020 was $147m compared with $171m in the prior year
period, a decrease of 14% driven by weak global industrial demand
and pricing for chromium chemicals. Despite a pick up in activity in
Q4, our volumes declined by 10% on the prior year period due to
lower demand from industrial applications such as metal plating
and leather tanning. Average pricing was also lower, reflective of
weaker global ingustry capacity utilisation which we estimate fell
from 80% on average in 2079 to 70% in 2020.

While cur North American volumes were impacted by the global
industriai production slowdown and customer plant shutdowns
due to COVID-19, compared with the rest of the world cur margins
in the region were relatively robust, protected by our strong market
share and differentiated customer delivery system. Outside North
America, our performance was more materially impacted by lower
unit pricing.

Adjusted operating profit declined by 69% from $18m to $6m, with
lower volumes and pricing partially offset by efficiency gains.
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"Pricing in North America was relatively
robust compared with the rest of our
global business.”

STRATEGY

In Chromium, we have a strong competitive position as the sole
producer in North America with a differentiated product delivery
system that materially reduces customer product handling risk.
Whilst our business is exposed to the economic cycle, in particular
cutside of North America, it is a high return operation with
opportunities ferimprevement.

Qur primary focus is the delivery of safe and reliable operations

for our employees and customers. Outside this, there are
cpportunities to drive improved performence in Chromium and
strong cash generation. Priarities include the delivery of cost and
working capital gains, increased custemer adoption of our fast
penetration Waynetan Chrome Sulphate product range and driving
our product mix increasingly to high value chrome acid and

oxide applications.



ENERGY

Restructured to restore
future profitability

LUC VAN RAVENSTEIN
SVP GLOBAL COATINGS
AND ENERGY

$24m

2020 revenue (2019: $47m}

$(6)m

2020 adjusted operating
loss {2018: $4m profit)

2020 performance in our Energy
business was impacted by
lower oil prices and a decline in
drilling activity, particularly in
North America.

Looking forward the business has an improved cost positicn and
is well placed to deliver our advantaged rheclogy solutions to
customers all around the world.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Energy revenue in 2020 declined by 49% from $47m to $24m as
aresult of lower drilling activity. A decline inthe cil price, due to
COVID-19 and OPEC supply decisions, along with cash constraints
for exploration and discovery companies, resulted in notably
weaker demand for our products. in North America the rig count
fell by approximately 50% versus 2019.

Adjusted operating profit deciined from $4min 2019 to aloss of
$6m in 2020, This swing was primarily a result of lower volumes and
therefore weaker fixed cost absorption, Going forward, the closure
of our Charleston facility and consclidation of production at our St
Louis site, announced in November 2020, will restore future
profitability, even at a 2020 level of sales.

“In North America the rig count fell by
approximately 50%."

STRATEGY

InEnergy, we are focused on the delivery of drilling solutions te oil
field service companies. Onaglobal scale we provide arange of
technelogies including organcclays, such as our differentiated
hectorite based solutions, and synthetic alternatives.

These products heip deliver faster and more efficient oil and gas
drilling in the most challenging of conditions.

Following the closure our Charleston production facility we are well
positioned for profitable growth. Deeper market penetration of key
oil producing regions in the Middle East, Russia, Africaand Asiais a
priority. This strategy, executed in tandem with the Group's global
key account programme, will ensure that our advantaged rheology
solutions and technical support help sclve the most demanding
production challenges ali around the world.

For future external reporting purpeses, Energy will be sbsorbed
within Coatings, with which it shares a senior management
structure and a global production netwoark.
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RISK MANAGEMEMNT

Managing our risks
and opportunities

RISK MANAGEMENT

Elementis faces a number of risks
and uncertainties in the ordinary
course of its operations. The
effective identification, mitigation
and ongoing management of these
risks underpins the delivery of
strategic objectives. Elementis has
an established risk management
framework and system of internal
controis to support decision making
throughout the financial year.

TOP DOWN BCOARD

Oversight,

identification, well as providing cversight to management
assessment and

mitigation of risks
at a Group level

AUDIT COMMITTEE CEQ

Risk management systems are intended to mitigate and reduce risk
to the lowest extent possible: however, complete elimination of all
risks faced by Elementis is not possible. The risk management
processes can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or ioss.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Board has overall responsibility for risk management and sets
the Group's policies, culture and tone on risk as well as providing
oversight to management. A risk management framework is in
place to identify, assess, mitigate and monitor the risks faced.

The Company places the nighest priority on preventing loss of life,
other harmto people and the environment, legal and regulatory
breaches and damage to reputation or brand and has in place
Group policies, pracedures and guidance in varicus agpects of
business pperations and functions inorder to help the ELT andg
employees manage risk in these areas.

RISK CULTURE

Every individual at Elementis has a responsibility to manage risk,
irrespective of function, business or role, Risk awareness exists
through decisicn making processes and is embedded in systemns,
policies, procedures, ieadership and behaviours and speacific
standards such as the Code of Conduct. Aif Company employees
ara respansible for complying with retated Company policies and
guidance, and share responsibility for ensuring that the Company
conducts its business in a safe, lawful and ethical manner.

“Every individual at Elermentis
has a responsibility to manage
risk, irrespective of function,
business or role.”

The Board has overall responsibility for risk management and sets the Group's policies, culture and tone onrisk as

! ELT

{(SUPPORTED BY THE ELT)}

Supports the Board and has specific
responsibility for monitoring
financial reporting as weli as the
internal and external audit
programmes, one of the primary
purposes of which is to provide
assurance on financial, cperational
and compliance controls.

BOTTOM UP
Identification,
assessment and
mitigation of risk
across operational

” expenditul ion,
and functional areas penditure & aliocation)
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Tne CEQ is responsible for
implementing Group policies, risk
management performance,
identifying principal risks and ensuring
resources are aliccated for effective
risk management and mitigation.

individua! ELT members have
responsibility for managing and
manitoring risks relevant to their
business or function on an
ongoing basis.

OPERATIONAL AND SUPPORTING FUNCTIONS
Data Protection Steering Committee, HSE Council, Manufacturing Council, ECT (Ethics & Compliance], Sustainability
Council, Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Courial, linternal audit and investment Commitrment forum (Capital



RISK APPETITE AND TOLERANCE

Risk appetite at Elementis is understood as being the amount of
risk that the Board is prepared to accept in return for reward or
investment return. There is a dearee of variability in determining
risk appetite which may be based on strategic objectives as well

as guidance from management or advisers based on appropriate
understanding and analysis of the nature of the risk. The strategic
appetite for risk is decided on a case-by-case basis at Board level,
for example with respect to any corporate transaction or significant
capital expenditure project, and delegated te the ELT to implement
as appropriate. The maximum risk that can be taken before the
Company experiences financial distress is also decided at Board
level and mitigated, as far as possibie, by internal controls, business
continuity plans, insurance, financial instruments and cantracts.

RISK REVIEW PROCESS

The Board maintains an annual forward planner to ensure that
appropriate focus is given at scheduled meetings to discuss,
review and monitor business performance, strategic priorities,
governance, compliance and risk matters. This approach enables
the Board to engage directly with each of the business units and
functional departmental leaders.

Each ELT member is responsible for identifying, assessing and
monitoring their respective business and functional risks as weli as
measuring the impact and likelihced of the risk to the business.
Eachidentified risk is categorised as strategic, commercial,
operational, financial or compliance.

RISK HEAT MAP (GROSS IMPACT)

On an annual basis, the ELT reviews operational risks and the Board
carries out a review of the principal risks and uncertainties.

During the year, the following risk management activities have been
carried out:

* Renewal of insurance programme

« BUand function risk registers reviewed and updated

+ New risk registers for COVID-19 and physical climata risk

* Propertyrisk survey programme

« Board briefings on climate change reporting frameaworks, risks
and implementation

Priorities for 2021 include:

» Review of risk management policies and procedures

= Completion of site risk survey programme and renewal of
insurance pregramme

+ Develop dashboard format for principal risk reporting

» ESGriskregister and human rights risk impact assessment

» TCFD implementation in arder to fully report in 20271

KEY AREAS OF FOCUS DURING THE YEAR

During 2020, the Board carried out a robust assessment of the key
risks which we believe could threaten the Group's business model,
future performance, solvency or liguidity or long term viability of
the Company onpage 63, These risks, if they materialise, could
have a significant impact on the Group's ability to meet its strategic
objectives over the medium term.

OUR PRINCIPAL RISKS

1. Giobal economic conditions and competitive
market pressures

2. Business interruption as a result of a major event or
a natural catastrophe

3. Business interruption as a result of supply chain
failure of key raw materials and/on 3rd party
service provision

4. Regulatory compliance and product
stewardship challenges

5. Maijcr regulatory enforcement action, litigation

andlor other claims arising from products andfor

historical and ongoing operations

Inteliectual property and know-how

Portfolio inncvaticn and technoiogy

People, talent management and succession

. IT networks, data security and privacy

0. COVID-19 pandemic

SO mNm
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RIEK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19)

The COVID-19 outbreak has become a global pandemic moving
from an emerging risk in the earlier part of 2020 to a principalrisk
by the end of 2020, COVID-19 has been assessed and is included
as a principal risk. The dynamic nature of COVID-19 and scale of
response had a significant impact on the Company’s profitabiity
during 2020 as noted on pages 8-10. We continue to monitar
post-COVID-19 risks and opportunities as global economies
recover and vaccination programmes gain traction.

As noted on page 62, the Company responded swiftly to risk
igentification and mitigation activities. A risk impact assessment
was carried cut and each of the following risk areas were
categorised inrespect of level of preparedness;

« Workforce protection

+ Supply chain stabilisation

= Customer engagement/market behaviour
* Financial stress testingfresponse, and

+ Strategy

COVID-19 has a number of interdependencies with several
principal risks and has therefore increased the risk profiles in
respect of Risk numbers 3 (Business interruption as aresult of
supply chain failure of key raw materials and/or 3rd party service
provision} and 8 (Pecple).

Risk number 3 has increased in risk profile as a result of heightened
focus on supply chain risk mitigation for key raw materials, logistics
and operational reliability throughout 2020, as a consequence of
operating in a pandemic. The ongoing efforts by our supply chain
during the year ensured that the Group was able to maintain
operaticnal reliability, changes in demand planning. logistics and
cargo shipments,

Risk number 8 has increased inrisk profile as infection rates spread
on a global basis. Management established regicnal taskforces as
part of its response plan with the key cbjective of ensuring
emplayees continued to operate in a safe manner and in
accordance with local and national guidance and emergency
regulation. For further information on how we responded, please
refer to page 12.

There have been no significant changes to the risk profiles for the
remaining principal rigks although we continue to moniter and
review as appropriate.

EMERGING RISKS

Emerging risks and opportunities are identified and documented
through the existing risk management framework and in addition
through the follawing activities:

« Monthly performance calls with each business unit and
functions including deeper dives on new business opportunities

= Arnualand 3 year financial plans and budgets and processes

* Board, ELT and other internal governance forums

+ Customer/marketinsight
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BREXIT

0On 31 December 2020, the transition period for the UK's withdrawal
from the EU ended. Qur most significant risk was potential supply
chain delays and a new customs regime. Qur cross-functional
Brexit team secured Importer of Record status to ensure
synchronised goods flowing between the UK and the EU and we
cantinue to monitar changes to customs clearances, duties and
exports as part of our ongoing supply chain processes.

CLIMATE CHANGE

Awareness and engagement of climate change and the transition
to a low carben economy. sustainability and ESG matters are
gaining intensity amongst a number of stakeholder groups.

In 2020, we set challenging environmental climate-related targets,
for further information on the activities in each of these areas,
pleaserefer to page 34.

At present, we envisage that climate ¢hange is not a specific risk
category in its own right rather, that it could have the ability to
affect each of our principal risk categories as we conduct our
assessment of reporting frameworks and allocate resources as
appropriate to report in line the recommendations of the Taskforce
for Climate-related Financia! Disclosures {TCFD).

A charter for climate risk governance has been adopted by the
Sustainability Committee which includes oversight of climate risk,
climate-related external reporting disclosures. Itis envisaged that
we willundertake a materiality assessment during 2021 as part of
our preparation for TCFD implementation.

Using the TCFD framework to map our physical and transition risks
and opportunities will enable us to analyse the financial impact over
a much longer time horizon. Qur purpose is at the heart of enabling
the transition to a lower carbon economy, Further information on
TCFD can be found on page 37.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The key elements of the Group's internal control framework are
maonitored throughout the year and the Audit Committee has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems on behalf of the Board.

To support the Board's annual assessment, areportis prepared on
the Group's principal risks and internal controls. This describes the
risk management systems and key internal controls, as well as the
work conducted in the year to improve the risk and control
environment including the level of assurance undertaken.

Theinternal control framework is intended to effectively manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives. It can only provide reasconable, but not absolute,
assurance against the risk of material misstatement or financial
loss. For further information on internai controls, please refer to
page 85



PHINCIVAD RITKE ANL UNCERTAINTIES

Principal risks
and uncertainties

GLOBAL ECONOMIC CONDITIONS
AND COMPETITIVE MARKET
PRESSURES

BUSINESS INTERRUPTION AS
A RESULT OF AMAJOR EVENT OR
A NATURAL CATASTROPHE

LINK TO STRATEGY

o Innovation o Growth o Efficiency

Read more on pages 24-29

LINK TO STRATEGIC oee
OBJECTIVE

LINK TQ STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

CHANGE IN RISK

Increasing Decreasing No change
fisk profile inrisk profile

risk profile

LINK TO KPIS Read more on LINK TO KPIS Read more on
page 30-31 page 30-31

MOVEMENT MOVEMENT

IN YEAR e IN YEAR e

DESCRIPTION OF RISKS

The performance of the specific end-user
markets we serve is affected by general
economic conditions. Adverse developments
that may result in a downturnin general economic
conditions or in the industries in which our
customers operate may include palitical
uncertainty, retaliatory tariffs or other disputes
between trading partrers. Sub-optimal global
economic conditions can affect sates, raw
material costs, fluctuations in foreign exchange
rates, capacity, utilisation and cash generation
which canimpact our position against

hanking covenants.

Increased competitive pressure in the
marketplace canresult in significant pricing
pressure and loss of market share. The impact

of non-delivery of operating plans can lead to
market expectations of Group earnings not being
met and slower delivery of reported

strategic priorities.

DESCRIPTION QF RISKS

The ability of the Group to manage its operations
successfully and achieve performance in line with
its strategy. business plans and budgets depends
on the efficient and uninterrupted operation of
planning processes, operational delivery
capeabhilities and internal control environment.
Production facilities may be subject to planned
and unplanned shutdowns. turnarounds and
outages including natural catastrophe, weather.
climate change, disruption associated with
transportation, utilities and distributors could
resultinincreased COStS In securing alternate
facilities, significant time to increase production
or custamer qualification.

Amajor event is categorised as an operational
or HSE incident, transportrelated, workplace
incident caused by system fallure and/or human
error or by fire, storm, flood or pandemic.

CONTROLS AND MITIGATING

ACTIVITIES

« Financial performance (monthly sales, profit
and cash flows and position against key
barking covenants) is clesely monitored with
full year reforecasts updated twice a year and
variances investigated and explained

« Contingency and cost reduction plans can be
implementedin the event of an economic
downturn to reduce operating costs, including
non-essential capital expenditure tems and
discretionary spend

* Currencyhedging action taken as appropriate

* Glaobal key account management programme
in place to deepen how we work and grow with
ourlargest customers as well as monitoring
customer performance and trends

» Balanced geographic footprint and supply
chainand broad differentiated product
offering across different sectors

CONTROLS AND MITIGATING

ACTIVITIES

« Preventative maintenancse, critical spares,
process and other safety procedures to
mitigate the effects of a major incident

» Property damage and business interruption
insurance coverage

« Each site /s required to develop a business
continuity plan that includes emergency
response and business recovery protocols;
annual reviews, periodic updates, training; and,
exercising the plan via periodic drills or table
top exercises. We verify business continuity
compliance through the HSE auditing process.

« Business continuity scenario planning
averseenby ELT

* HSE management pregramme whichincludes
corporate compiiance audits and insurance
DrOpErtY SUrveys

* HSE matters reviewed by ELT ona
monthly basis

DEVELOPMENTS IN YEAR

» Closure of Charleston site, see page 28 for
further information

» Costreductions, capex reviewed, working
capital and discreticnary spend, see page 8
for further information

* Newbusiness apportunities delivered $30m

* Balance sheet protections including bank
covenant relaxations and suspension
of dividends

* Referto business summaries on pages 51-55

DEVELOPMENTS IN YEAR

+ Launch of TogetherSafe

+ Site hygience protocofls, cleaning, PPE and
contingency plans inplace

« MNewberry Springs and Livingston internal
audits carried outinyear

+ Seeour COVID-19response onpage 12
and in our social section on page 38
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

BUSINESS INTERRUPTION AS A
RESULT OF SUPPLY CHAIN FAILURE
OF KEY RAW MATERIALS AND/OR
THIRD PARTY SERVICE PROVISION

LINK TO STRATEGIC

REGULATORY COMPLIANCE
AND PRODUCT STEWARDSHIP
CHALLENGES

LINK TO STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

Read more on
page 30-31

LINK TO KPIS

MAJOR REGULATDRY ENFORCEMENT
ACTION, LITIGATION AND/OR OTHER
CLAIMS ARISING FROM PRODUCTS
AND/OR HISTORICAL AND ONGOING
OPERATIONS

LINK TO STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVE

Read more on
page 30-31

LINK TO KPIS

OBJECTIVE

LINK TO KPIS Read more on
page 30-31

MOVEMENT

IN YEAR 0

DESCRIPTION OF RISKS

The Group is dependant on numerous raw
materials from various sources. In the event of a
fong term supply disruption or market volatility,

it may not be possible to secure sufficient
supplies of raw materials from afternative sources
on atimely basis or in sufficient quantities or
quaiities or pn commercially reasonable tarms.
The lead time and effort needed to establish a
refationship with a new supplier could be fengthy
and could result in additional costs, diversion of
resources and reguced production yields.

MOVEMENT
IN YEAR

DESCRIPTION OF RISKS

Emerging regulations in globial markets canilead to
hurdies and additional costs to deliver on strategic
objectives. Non-compliance and suspected
non-gompliance could lead to regulatory action.
The Group is subject to extensive and evolving
risk in multiple jurisdictions.

CONTROLS AND MITIGATING

ACTIVITIES

» Preventative maintenance, critical spares,
process and other safety procedures to
mitigate the effects of a majer ingident

» Property damage and business interruption
insurance coverage

+ Implementannual review and periodic testing
of business continuity plans at all sites

« Business continuity scenario planning
overseenbyELT

» HSE management programme which includes
corporgte compliance audits and insurance
property surveys

« HSE reviewed by ELT on a monthly basis

DEVELOPMENTS IN YEAR

+ Supply chain contingency planning to mitigate
Brexit and/or other trade related risks
continually assessed and updated to address
dynamic planning environment

+ Review of strategic supplier relationships for
raw materials resulting in cost efficiencies

» Improved planning process ensured
appropriate inventory and safety stock levels

« Continued focus on qualification of new
sources of supply

CONTROLS AND MITIGATING

ACTIVITIES

« Global Product Stewardship team oversees,
manages, and monitors regulatory
developments in various jurisdictions

« Coordinationwith R&Dteamtoenablea
faster speed-to-market of new technologies
and applications

» Safety Data Sheets, labels, and regulatory
information is provided for alobal customers
specific 1o the requirements in their
jurisdiction. Multiple languages are used to
communicate these requirements

«  Active compliance and risk management
programmes in place fincluding policies,
procedures and training)

» Horizon scanning for evalving reguiatory
landscape in new markets

DEVELOPMENTS

+ Brexit implementation executed to ensure
uninterrupted supply. UK REACH planning and
assessment are underway

* Sugcessfulimplementation of Turkey REACH.

Monitoring new regulatory developments in

upcoming markets and structured 1o

support sales

«  Adding regulatory expertise to growth regions
to support expanding market segments

80 ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2020 | ELEMENTIS PLC

MOVEMENT
IN YEAR

DESCRIPTION OF RISKS

The global nature of the Graup’s operations
means that the Group 1s subject toa wide range

aof legislation and regulation, including for example,
anti-hribery and anti-competition legislation,
taxation, data privacy. employment, import/axport
controls and environmental litigation.

Failure to comply can lead tolitigation. claims,
gamages, fines and penalties. The Group may be
involved inlegal proceedings and claims within the
ordinary course of business including legacy claims
from businesses that have been acquirad or
disposed of by the Group or cngoing operations.
Adverse results in legal proceedings could result
in reputational and financial damages and
diversion of managerment time and resources.

CONTRQLS AND MITIGATING

ACTIVITIES

= Active compliance and risk management
programmes in place {including policies.
procedures angdtraining)

* Insurance programme and risk transfer
strategy in place to mitigate potential
financial losses

» Experienced General Counsel supported by
in-house and external legal teams

» Regular reviews of litigation and compliance
reports by the Board and the Audit Committee
as well as the internal audit programme help
ensure these key risks are managed effectively

« Business processes are supported by HR
policies and the Code of Conduct

+ Data Protection Steering Commitiee meets
reqularly to oversee compiiance with
applicable data privacy laws

DEVELOPMENTS

+ See page 30 for KPI's on ethics
and compliance

+ Internal audit programme and agtivities
continued in 2020, see page 85 for
further information

+ Renewal of Group Insurance programme
inyear



LINK TO STRATEGY
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Read mare on pages 24-29

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
AND KNOW-HOW

CHANGE IN RISK

Decreasing
risk profile

PORTFOLIC INNOVATION AND
TECHNOLOGY

Ne change
inrisk profile

Read more on our Business
Model on page 18t 1%

PEOPLE, TALENT MANAGEMENT AND
SUCCESSION

LINK TO STRATEGIC

LINK TO STRATEGIC

LINK TO STRATEGIC

OBJECTIVE OBJECTIVE OBJECTIVE

LINK TO KPIS Read more on LINK TO KPIS Read more on LINK TO KPIS Read more on
page 30-31 page 30-31 page 30-31

MOVEMENT e MOVEMENT e MOVEMENT o

IN YEAR IN YEAR IN YEAR

DESCRIPTION OF RISKS

Failure to adequately protect and preserve
inteflectual property and proprietary know-how
in both existing and new markets could harm our
competitive position.

DESCRIPTION OF RISKS

The ability of the Group to compete is highly
dependent onits ability to meet the changing
needs of customers and keep pace with

[t

echnological innovations and sustainability trends.

New or substitute products and technologies
develeped by competitors could erede the
Group’s ahility to compete and lead (o declings
in sales and market share.

DESCRIPTION OF RISKS

The Group operates in highly competitive labour
markets and relies upon the expertise and
services of talented individuals and teams

t

o succeed.

Loss of key people or disruption to teams
without timely action could resultin adisruption

t

o business operations.

CONTROLS AND MITIGATING

ACTIVITIES
General Counsel supported by in-house
and external legal teams

+ Employmentand computer policies
(supported by training) ensure employees are
made aware of their obligations relating to
confidential information and access controls
to protect HR processes inplace to ensure
new hires undergo appropriate background
and reference checks

* Trademark and patentwatch lists

» Litigationand compliance reports reviewed
by Audit Cammittee and Board

CONTROLS AND MITIGATING
ACTIVITIES

Global R&D team aims to develop new
products and technologies used in an avoiving
market to meet the changing needs of our
sophisticated customers

Collaborative relationships with customers
and industry formulators ensures our efforts
are aligned with latest market trends
Innovation stage gate process with systematic
prioritisation enables the Group to deliver high
value solutions for the market

Hectorite and high quality talc minerals are
natural resources enabling the Group to
consistently deliver high performance innovation

CONTROLS AND MITIGATING
ACTIVITIES

Formal talent, succession management and
retention risk programmes in place with
individual development goals reviewed

+ Successiontothe ELT reviewed with the Board
= Regional HR Directors and Global Talent

Director supports the CHRC with focus
on Talent

+ HR systems functionality for performance

management, goal setting, career profile
and compensation planning

+ Formal system for job grading and

compensation benchmarking in place
supported by external expertise

DEVELOPMENTS
Freedom to operate practices for all new
productinnovations

+ Patentand Intellectual Property disclosures
to keep distinctien in our newlaunches

* Use of confidentiality agreements for
partnerships with key technology leaders

* Active monitoring of competitive Intellectual

Praperty landscape for each business segment

» Enforcement of proprietary advantage

DEVELOPMENTS IN YEAR

12 new progqucts launched in 2020 (with over
25 planned for 2021)

Innovation from new progducts increased from
12 to 14%in 2020

New innovation managernent tool wiltincrease
speed to market

Sustainability rermnains a key driver for
Innovation: backward integration into natural
raw materials {ie. Hectorite, Talc) support this
Open Innovation with strategic partners

DEVELOPMENTS IN YEAR

Orderly transition to new SVP Personat Care
and Head of Procurement completed through
internal succession

Recruitment process for new General Counsel
and Chief Compliance Officer following a
srmooth transition via interim resource

Talent and Succession process updated to
include; retention risk and impact analysis; and
careerprofiles

Employee experience survey reviewed on

6 monthly basis and action plans development

« COVID-19
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FRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES CONTINUED

IT NETWORKS, DATA SECURITY AND
PRIVACY

LINK TO STRATEGIC

OBJECTIVE

LINK TO KPIS Read more on
page 3G-31

MOVEMENT

IN YEAR e

DESCRIPTION OF RISKS

The Group is expected to Increasingty rafy on (T
systems for its internal communications,
controls, reporting and relationships with
customers and suppliers.

A significant disruntion could cause delays to key
cperations and inabiity to meet customers’
requirements and result inincreased operating
costs, legal liability and reputational damage.

In addition, GDPR has created a range of
compliance obligations with increased financial
penalties for non-compliance.

CONTROLS AND MITIGATING

ACTIVITIES

« Security controls including policies and
procegures, staff awarengss and training,
risk management and compliance,
systems and information management
and protection process

» Reguiar IT, cyber and GDPR updates
to the Board

« Business continuity and emergency

response plans are in place at each of

our manufacturing sites

Internal audits are scheduled on a regular basis

DEVELOPMENTS IN YEAR

« (Global cloud emafl migration and other cloud
tools to further our digital transfermation,
funictionality and security

» Enhancedinternal structures to control and

mitigate risk and manage potential data breach

events arising from GDPR. California
Consumer Privecy Act [CCPA)and The Le
Geraide Protegao de Dados (LGPD) {Brazilt

+ Data privacy horizon scanning and privacy
testing & assurance framework

COVID-19 PANDEMIC

LINK TO STRATEGIC

OBJECTIVE

LINK TO KPIS Read more on
page 30-31

MOVEMENT

IN YEAR NEW

DESCRIPTION OF RISKS

The global spread of COVID-19 may continue

to have a significant and prolongedimpact on
global economic cenditions, disrupt our supply
chain including employee absentgeism and
adversely impact our operations. The range

of restrictions imposea by iocal and national
governments introduced temporary emergency
public measures such as travel restrictions,
quarantines and public lockdowns. Whilst vaccine
immunisation programmes are beginning to gain
traction (at the time of writing), further restrictions
and uncertainties remain and should these
continue for an extended period of time, our
strategic and financial progress would
beimpacted.

CONTROLS AND MITIGATING
ACTIVITIES

We acted quickly to respond to the challenges
posed by Covid-12 withi the safety and
wali-being of our employees

Risk impact assessment carried outinrespect
of workforce. supply chain stabilisation,
customer engagement/market ingight,
financial stress testing/response and strategy
Global employee and site hygiene and health
protocols and guidance issued

Employee COVID-19 status updates

Site by site contingency plans

Transition 1o onling inngvation support

for customers

Prudent financial response and measures
taken including two banking covenant
relaxations. suspension of dividends, working
capital reductions and other efficiencies to
protect the balance sheet

DEVELQPMENTS IN YEAR
« Seepage 12 for our COVID-19reponse
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VIABILITY AND GOING CONCERN STATEMENT

Viability and going
concern statement

GOING CONCERN

The Directors are satisfied that it is appropriate
forthe Group and the Company to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing
these Group and parent company financial
statements, and that there are no material
uncertainties impacting the ability of the Group
and Company to continue to operate over a
period of at least 18 months from the date of
approval of the financial statements.

Following the material uncertainty relating to
going concern reported at the half year the
Directors applied the following consideration
to their assessment at 31 December 2020,

The Directors produced three models covering
afuture peried of three years from the date of
these accounts demonstrating the position of
the Group regarding its two financial covenants,
Net Debt/EBITDA and Interest Cover at each
measurement period for the 18 manths following
the date of signing of these accounts and
annually thereafter. These models comprised:

* Abase case scenario, aligned to the latest
Group annual operating plan for 2021 as well
as the Group's three year plan for 2022
and 2023;

« Asevere but plausible downside scenario
that assumes that the global economic
environment is severely depressed over the
assessment period: and

« Areverse stress test flexing sales to determine
what circumstance would be required to
breach borrowing covenants.

Having agreed covenant relaxations with our
lenders in March and September 2020, the
revised provision in our barking arrangements

is for the net debt/EBITDA covenant to step down
from 3.75xat present to 3.25x in June 2022,

No breachesinthe required covenant tests were
reported during the year and under both the base.
and severe but plausible downside, scenario the
Group is expectad to remain within its financial
covenants throughout the going concarn period
and the conditions necessary for the reverse
stress scenario to be applicable were
deemedremote,

The Directors also considered factors likely to
affect its future performance and development.
the Group's financial position, current excess
liquidity position, highlevel of cash conversion
and the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group. including the Group's exposure to
credit, liguidity and market risk and the
mechanisms for dealing with these risks.

The Group's net debt position at the 2020 year
endwas $408.1m. Ithas access to a syndicated
revolving credit facility of $375m with an expiry
date of September 2024 and long term loan
facilities of $200m and €172m which have an
expiry date of September 2023. The Group had
further borrowings available to it of over $350m
atthe yearend,

Inconclusion, after reviewing the base case. the
severe but plausitle downside scenario and
considering the remote Nkelihood of the scenario in
the reverse stress test occurring as wellas having
considered the uncertainty relating to COVID-19
and the mitigating actions available, the Directors

have formed the judgement that, at the time of
approving the consolidated financial statements,
there are no material uncertainties that cast doubt
onthe Group's going concern status and thatit is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated accounts
onthe going concern basis.

BUSINESS VIABILITY
ASSESSMENT

The basis of the assessmentincludes a detailed
review of strategic and operating plans,
underpinned by one- and three-year financial
forecasts including profitand loss and cash
flows. Consideration is therefore given to capital
expenditures, investment plans, returns to
shareholders and other financial commitments,
as well as the Company's debt bearing capacity,
its financial rescurces. borrowings and the
availability of finance. Na review of business plans
and financial forecasts is complete without a
robust assessment of the risks and opportunities
in such planning medels and the assumptions
used. These reviews include consideration and
discussion of the materials prepared and
presented to the Board by management andits
advisers (where appropriate), as well as additicnal
information requested by the Board, The Board's
programme of monitoring major risks is therefore
animpaortant component of the business viability
assessment and the financial impact of the
principal risks is modelled over the three-year
period. Business and segment growth scenarios,
rate of return on investments, assumptions on
global GOP growth rates, refevant currency rates,
commodity prices in business plans and financial
forecasts are all considered, with stress testing
on financial models where appropriate. Finally, a
review of litigation and tax reports, legal and
compliance risks throughout the year and at a
formal year end risk review ensures that the
viability statement is made with a reascenable
degree of confidence.

PRINCIPAL RISKS

For each principal risk that is deemed to be both
permanent and have a high impact, a severe but
plausible scenaric has been considered. In making
the business viability statement, the Board has
reviewed and discussed the overall process
undertaken by management and has assessed
the outcome of the stress-testing, carried cut
using the Group's three-year financial forecast

as the base case.

The three-year financial forecast considers
the Group's cash flows, interest cover, Net
Debt:EBITDA covenant ratio and other key
financial ratios over the period. These metrics
are assessed against the Group Risk Register
to determine the most impactful cnes to stress
test against, and this is carried out to evaluate
the potential impact of the Group's principal risks
actually occurring. Based on the results of its
review, and as set out above, the directors have
areasonable expectation that the Group will be
able to continue its operation and meetits
liabilities as they fall due over the three-year
period of their assessment.

BUSINESS VIABILITY STATEMENT
In accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code provision 31, the Directars

have reviewed the Group's current position and
carried out a robust assessment of the principal
risks and uncertainties that might threaten the
business model, future performance, solvency
and liguidity of the Group, including resilience
to such threats, and consider thatthey have a
reasonable expectation thatthe Group willbe
ableto continue in operation and meet its
liabilities as they fall due over a period of at
least three years,

A period of three years was chesen as being
consistent with the Group's business and financial
planning models, R&D plans, a number of key
supply contracts and external borrowing facilities.
In addition, three years is the period used for
mid-term business planning purposes.

Regarding accessibility to financing, whilstthe
RCF currently has an expiry of Sept 2024, the

Term Loan expires in Sept 2023, within the three
year period, and so will require renegetiatiocn cr
replacement before this. Elementis has to date had
avery supportive banking syndicate {as indicated
by theirwilingness to extend the RCF facility in
2019 and to relax the barking covenants in March
and September 2020} as such the Directors do not
believe there will be any issues in renegotiating a
further Term Loan when necessary.

whilst the Directors have no reason to believe
that the Group will not be viable over alonger
period, a three year period allows the Directors
to rake the viability statement with a reasonable
degree of confidence whilst providing
shareholders with anapprepriate longer term
outiook. The Directors’ viability assessment of
the Group's prospects is based on reviews of
annual operating and three year business plans,
nank covenant compliance forecasts, including
sensitivities. the Group's strategy and strategic
priorities, principal risks and how these are
managed and mitigated. How these reviews were
carried out, the principat risks and howthey are
eing managed are more fully described and
explained in the Principal Risks and Uncertainties
section on pages 59 to 62, together with relevant
assumptions and qualifications.
STRATEGIC REPORT

The Strategic report was approved by the Board
of Diractors on 23 March 2021 and is signed on its
behalf by:

Ofaee  Moe de

PAUL WATERMAN RALPH HEWINS
CEO CFO
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Chairman’s Corporate
Governance Statement

ANDREW DUFF
CHAIRMAN

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

lam pleasedto present our Governance report for the year ended

31 December 2020. This report sets out cur approach to governance,
our key areas of focus during the year, our ways of working and how
we, as your Board, remain effective as stewards of your Company.

BOARD MEETINGS AND NEW WAYS OF WORKING

As a direct consequence of 'stay at home’ government guidance,

the Board transitionied intc remote ways of working with all Board

and Committee meetings held in a virtual format for the majority of
meetings in 2020, The IT investments made by the Company over

the past few years have enabled us to work seamlessly and securely
although it is widely recognised by all Board members that the
discursive nature of virtual Board dialogue has at times felt artificial as
aresult of virtual meeting protocols. Board members have been highty
responsive and flexible to changes in schedules to accommodate the
geographic location of Board members and meetings have been over
acouple of sessions to mitigate against screen fatigue. As a Board,
we have continued with our formal programme of business for all
Board and Committee meetings with additional meetings held as
appropriate. | am impressed with the (evels of commitment,
enthusiasm and responsiveness that each Boaryd member has
demonstrated throughout this challenging year. All of that being said,
Board members are anxious 10 meet and connectmore personally
with management and employees. This is an important mechanism
for ensuring that members of the Board are well connected to the
business, employees and stakeholders. It is very much hoped that
2021 will bring the oppartunity to re-establish personal meetings.

BOARD SUCCESSION AND DIVERSITY

During the year, as part of the Board's ongaing succession planning
processes, John O'Higgins was appointed as a Non-Executive
Director in February 2020 and assumed the rale as Serior
Independent Director in April 2020. Sandra Boss retired from

the Board in April 2020 to take up a full time executive role and a
recruitment process was initiated to search for Sandra's successor.
Fallawing a thorough recruitrment process, we were delighted that
Chrigtine Soden joined the Board on 1 November 2020 and has
assumed the role of Designated Non-Executive Director for workforce
engagement. For further information on the recruitment process,
please refer to page 8C. We are proud to maintain our gender balance
of 37.5% of female Board members and we continue to ensure that
Board diversity is reflected in our ongoing succession planning
activities. We are fully supportive of the tenets of the Parker Review
and will continue to ensure that diversity in its broadest terms is fully
considered in the context of future Board composition,
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As mentioned inmy Chairman's letter on pages § and 7. [ have
informed the Board of my intention ta retire as non-executive
Chairman of the Company during 2027 once a successor has been
appointed. The Nomination Committee has initiated a process to
identify and appoint a new Chair and a successor which will be
announced in due course,

WORKFORCE ENGAGEMENT AND COVID-1%2

it has not been possible to physically meet with our smployees during
2020 as our plans tovisit sites were not possible. We look forward to
resuming those activities as soonas itis safe to do so. We continue to
explore ways of conneacting with employees who have worked tirelessly
1o maintain the reliability of our operations. The CEQ, CHRO and other
members of the Executive Leadership Team (ELT) have provided
frequent reperts onworkforce matters including employee
engagement insight, leadership activities, townhalls, diversity and
inclusion initiatives, organisational capability, health and safety andthe
impact of the pandemic on employees in each of the countries in which
we operate. For further infarmation on employee engagement. please
refertopages 73and 74.

BOARD EFFECTIVENESS

During the year aninternal effectiveness review of the Board and

its Committees was conducted with support from the Company
Secretary. We expect to carry out an external effectiveness reviewin
2021 in line with the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance
Code. As an extension of the process for this year, we invited insight
from those who have had the most interaction with the Board and its
Committees during the year, for example, the ELT and laver below.
This insight helps us to understand whether our perception of the
boardroom environment is shared by others. 1 am delighted to share
that all respondents felt welcomed, listened to and that their expertise
was valued and the interaction was a positive experience. For further
information on the outcomes of the effectiveness review, please refer
topage 78.



POTENTIAL CASH OFFER BY MINERALS
TECHNOLOGIES INC.

In the final quarter of the year, the Board received three conditional
proposals fram Minerals Technoldgies inc. As part of the Company’s
robust governance processes, the Board, together with its
management and advisers, conducted a thorough review to assess the
fundamental value of Elementis as well as the likely value to be created
by the continued delivery of its strategy. This valuation framewark was
tested at every stage by the Board and its advisers. including taking into
account shareholder feedback singe the approach from Minerals
Technclogies became public information. The Board was Linanimous
that each of the proposals sigrificantly undervalued the Company and
its future prospects. | would ike 10 take this opportunity to emphasise
that the Board remains focused on maximising value for shareholders
and gelivering their performance expectations.

UK CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE -

REMUNERATICN POLICY

I light of our focus on managing the impact of COVID-13. the
Remuneration Committee consultedwith our 1op shareholders to
seek aone year ol over’ of currant Remuneration Policy 5o that the
existing policy be renewed on its current terms for a further year
before undertaking a review in 2021. The Company's top shareholders
were supportive of this approach. Further information can be found in
the Directors' Remuneration report on pages 87 to 113

AGM

As ever | am grateful to vou, our sharehnlrers for your centinued
support and | look forward to welcoming you at our AGM on
Thursday, 13 May 2021. The Notice of AGM, which will confirm the
time, location and arrangements for the meeting, will be sent to
sharehclders in due course,

ANDREW DUFF
CHAIRMAN

PRINCIPLES AND HOW THE COMPANY ADDRESSES THEM

BOARD LEADERSHIP AND COMPANY PURPOSE

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

Activities of the Board
Board of Directors
Culture

Shareholder engagement
Stakeholdger engagement

Workforce engagement

DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

Read more on page 71
Read more cn page 66
Read more on page 73
Read more on page 75
Read more on page 16

Read more on page 74

Governance framework

Roles and respensibilities

COMPOSITION, SUCCESSION AND EVALUATION

Read more on page 70

Read more on page 76

Board evaluation process
Board skills and attributes
Diversity policy

Nomination Committeereport

AUDIT, RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Read more on page 78
Read more on page 81
Read more on page B2

Read more on page 79

Audit Committee report

Internal contrals and risk and risk management

REMUNERATION

Read more on page B3

Read more on page 85

Directors’ Remuneration report
Directors’ Remuneration Policy

Directors’ Annual Report on Remuneration

Read more on page 87
Read more on page 94

Read more on page 105

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2020 | ELEMENTIS PLC 65

The UK Corporate Gevernance Code
2018 {the Code) sets standards of good
practice inreation to all areas of corporate
governance the UK. The Code has applied
to the Company since 1 January 2018,

In this annual repert we report on how we
applied the main principles of the Code
and complied with its relevant provisions.

The Company was not in compliance
with Provisicns 36 and 38 during the year,
however inrelation to provision 36 there
is a commitment to consider an Executive
Director palicy for post cessation of
employment share ownership during the
forthcoming 2021 Remuneration policy
review (as noted on page 103 inthe
Directors' Remuneration report and that
inrelation to provision 38 the Executive
Directors are currently on a phased
glidepathreduction in pensiontowards
the workforce rate (as noted in page B8
inthe Cirectors’ Remuneration report
and as noted inthe 2019 Directors’
Remuneraticnreport.

Elementis has complied with all other
relevant provisions throughout the year
ended 31 December 2020 and from that
date up to the date of approval of this
annuai report. The Codeis currently
available www.frc.org.uk

Read more on page 114
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The right skills to deliver

our strategy

KEY TO COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

A Audit Committee N Nomination Committee R Remurneration Committee

ANDREW DUFF
CHAIRMAN

Tenure on Board

Andrewjoined the Board as a Non-
Executive Director and Deputy Chairman
oh 1 April 2014 and was appointed Non-
Executive Chairman inAprit 2014,

Committee membership
Ne

External appointments

= Non-executve director of UK
Government Investments Ltd (UKGl}
{from July 2019). UKGI s responsible
for the portfelic of over 20 arm's
lengthbodies and for peliverng a
range of corporate finance acvice to
the UK Government.

« Non-executive director and chair
designate of The Sage Group plc
{effective 1 May 2021)

EXPERIENCE AND ROLE
Andrew has significant boardroom
expenence gained from servingas
adiractor and charrman of a number
of UK and international companies,
This, combined with experience nthe
manufacturing, energy and utilities
seclors. enabies Andrew to effectively
lead the Board and deliver valueto
shareholders and other stakeholders,

From 2003 unhl 2009, Andrew was
chief executive officer of npower, the:
successor enitity to Innogy plc which

1 2000 was demerged from Nationa!
Power, restructured and then soid to
RWE, the Gerrman electricity and gas
company. He was aiso a member of the
RWE's executive committee. Sefore this,
he spent 16 years at BPin downstream
international markets. Angrewwas a
non-executive director of Wolseley pic,
the internatonal plumbing and building
matenais Comparny. between 2004

and 2013, where he was also the senior
independent director and chairman of the
remunerahgncommittee. Most recently,
Andrew was non-executive chairman

of Severn Trert plc, between 2010 and
2020, and was also chairman of the
nominations committee anc member of
the corporate respensibility committee
andremuneration committee.

Andrew hoids aBSc (Honours) degrean
Mechanical Engineering and is & fellow
ofthe Energy Institute.

PAUL WATERMAN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Tenure on Board
Paulwas appointed CEO on
8 February 2016,

Committee membership

* Chairman of the Committee

RALPH HEWINS
CHIEF FINANCIAL
OFFICER

JOHN O'HIGGINS
INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Tenure on Board

Ralph was appointed CFO-Designate
and Executive Director on 12 September
2016 and became the Elernentis Group
CFO on 1 Novernber 2018

Committee membership

External appointments
None

EXPERIENCE AND ROLE

Paulhas a proventrackrecord

in developing markets, progucts

and opportunities for creating

value, business optimisationand
transformation. Paul's global expenence
provides the skil setrequired to deliver
the Company's strategy and provide
mspiring leadership.

Prior tojomning Elementis, Paul was
global CEO of the BP Lubricants
business n 2013 after having overseen
the BP Australia/New Zealand
downstrearmbusiness. n 2010, Pau!
Was country president of BP Australia.
Pniorto this hewas CEQ of BP's global
aviation, industrial marine and energy
{ubncants businesses (20048 to 2010}
and CED of BP Lubricants Americas
12007 to 2009). He joined BF after it
acquired Burmah Castrol in 2000, having
joinedthe latterin 1984 after roles at
Reckitt Benckiser and Kraft Foods.

Paul holus a BSc degree in Packaging
Engineering from Michigan State
University ang an MBAIn Finance anc
International Business fromNew York
University, SternSchool of Business
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External appointments
None

EXPERIENCE AND ROLE
Raiph is anaccomplished CFOwho has
astrang trackrecord infinance, strategy
development and implementation,

and M&A which enables him 1o provide
affective financial leadership to
underpinthe defivery of the Reignite
Growthstrategy

Ralph had a 30 year career with BR,
where he held a number of significant
leadership positions, including roles
infinancial management. sales and
marketing, corporate development,
ME&A, strategy and planning. In 2010,
Ralph was CFO of BP Lubricants and
served on the board of Castrol india
Limiteg from 2010 until 2016.

Ralph holds an MA degree inModern
History and Econornics from the
University of Oxford and an MBA
from INSEAD.

Tenure on Board

Johnwas appointet a Non-Executive
Director orr 4 February 2020 and
became the Senior Independent
Director on 29 Aprll 2020,

Committee membership
AMNR

External appointments

+ Trustee of the Wincott Foundation

= Non-executive director of

Oxtord Nanopore Technologies

Senior independent directer of

Johnson Matthay plc anda member

of the audit, nomination and

remuneration committees

»  Adviserto EnveaGlobal.amarket
leader inemvronmental air and
emiSsIoNs Measurenment and
majorty owned by The Cartyle Group.

.

EXPERIENCE AND ROLE
Johnbrings strong strategic and
operational experience ganed frorm
his CEQ rele at Spectns plc (January
2006 to September 2018), leading

the business through a period of
significant strategic transformation
and development. John's background
in global markets, chemicais and
mianufacturing will enable him 1o provide
valuable knowledge and guidance to
the Board.

Prior to Spectris pic. John spent 14 years
af Honeywel International ina number
of senior management roles including
chairman of Honeywel! Autemation India
and president of Automation & Controt
for Asia- Pacific. His early career was
spent at Daimler Benz A.G. as aresearch
ahd development engineer.

Previous non-executive director roles
include Exide Technoiogies, aUS
based supplier of battery technology
10 autornotive and industrial users
(201020151

John heles 8 master's degree
inMecharscal Engineering from
Purdue Universty [US)and an MBA
from INSEAD.



STEVE GOOD
INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTQR

ANNE HYLAND
INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

DOROTHEE DEURING
INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Tenure on Board

Steve was appointed a Non-Executive
Director on 20 October 2014 gnd
became Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee in April 2017,

Tenure on Board

Anne was appointed a Non-Executive
Drrector on 1.June 2013 and became
Chairman of the AuditCommittee in
August 2013,

Tenure on Board
Dorothee was apponted a Non-
Executive Director on 1 March 2017

Committee membership
R* N

External appointments

*  MNon-executive chairman of
Zotefoams picinon-executive
director from October 2014 and
chairman from Apr’1 2016} and
chairman of the nomination
cormmittee and member of the
remuneration committee

* Non-executive charmarn of Devro
ple {from June 2018

«  [Director of Low & Bonar Pension
Trustee Ltd ffrorn July 2018}

EXPERIENCE AND ROLE
Steve has strong andrelevant
international experiencein Specialty
chemicals businesses, manufacturing
and diverse industrialmarkets which
enableshim to provide guidance and
challenge to management. Steve's
involvement with remuneration
committees in other organ sations
enables him to provide judgement and
demonstrate sound knowledge of topcal
remunerationmatters in his capacity as
Remuneraticn Committee chair,

Steve was chiefexecutive of Low &
Bonar plc between September 2009
and September 2014,

Priorto thatrole,he was managing
directr of its technical textiles division
(2006-2009}, drecter of new business
(2005-2006), and managing director

of its plastics division [2004-2005).

Prior toc Low & Bonar, he spent tenyears
with BIP plc inow part of Clanantyina
variety of leadership positons manag ng
nternational specialty chemicals
businesses. Steve has previously servec
a5 non-executive director and chairman
of the remuneration commitiee of Cape
ple{(2015-2017), non-executive arrector
of Anglian Water Services and member
of the audit committee, nomination
committee andremuneration committce
(2015-2018)and non-executive drrector
of Dialight p'c {2018-2020).

Committee membership
AN

Committee membership
AN.R

External appointments

»  Non-executive director of Climgen
Group plc {from January 2018) and
chairman of the audit committee

«  CFOof Kymab Group Ltd {from
March 2015)

EXPERIENCE AND ROLE
Anne brings sigrificant and current
financial, internal controls, audit and tax
expertise to the Board which enables
herto be effective in her role as Audrt
Committee char. Anne's background
with global companies enables her to
effectively contribute in the contesxt

of Elementis’ existing markets and new
business opportunities

Anne s currently GFO of Kymab Group
Ltd, a bip-pharmaceutical company
partty owned by the Wellcome Trustand
the Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation.
Prior te her current executive role, she
was CFO and company secretary of
both BBI Diagnostics Group Ltd and
Vectura Group pic. Previous senior
finance positions held includs director
of corporate finance at the then FTSE
100 Celltech Group pic, Medeva ple
and KPMG

Anne holds a degree inBusiness
Studies from Trinity College, Dub inand
isacharteredaceeuntant {FCA)and e
corporate tax adviser {CTA-AITH

External appointments

*  Non-executive cirector of the
supervisary board of Bilfnger SE
{from May 2016} and member of
the audit committee

« Non-executive director of AXPO
Holding AG (from March 2017)

+  Non-executive drector of Lonza
Group (from April 2020)

EXFERIENCE AND ROLE
Dorothee provides the Board with
valuable insight .nto the wider European
chemicals and Industrial sectors as well
as sector speeic acquisition expertise,

Dorothee manages her own corporate
agdvisory consultancy serving a number
of Euvropean ¢hents n the pharma/
biotech sector Sheisactive invarious
industry bodies. Her previous executive
roles included managing director and
head of Corporate Advisary Group
{Europe) at UBS in Zurich, head of M&A
chemicals and health care ataprivate
investment bank in Germany and as a
senior executive In the corporate finance
department at the Roche Group.
Derothee holds a master's degree in
Chemistry from the Université Louis
Pasgteur, Strashourg and an MBA

from INSEAD

CHRISTINE SODEN
INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Tenure an Board

Chnstine was apponted a Non-
Executive Director on 1 Novernber 2020
and is the Designated NorrExecutive
Director for workforce engagement.

Committee membership
AN.R

External appointments

* Non-exgcutive director of Fertility
Focus Limited

* Nen-executive director of
Futurenova Limited

*  Mon-executive director of Celland
Gene Therapy Cataput

EXPERIENCE AND ROLE
Christine bnings sigrificant experience
ofinnovation ang the commercialisation
of technology to the Board Sheisan
experienced CFO with astrongtrack
record from leading a range of private
ang public companies rootedin
innovation with a particular focus

on biotechnology. life sciences and
pharmageutical progucts.

Chnistine was CFO and Company
Secretary of Acacia Pharma Group pic, a
public quoted provider of pharmaceutical
products des-gned to improve the
outcomes and recovery for surgical
patients {2015-2020). Priorto Acacia
Pharma Group plc, Christine served as
CFQ and then non-executive director

of AIM-listed Electrical Geodesics, Inc..
which was acguired by Phlips NV in
2017, Other CFO and finance leadership
roles incluge Optos plc, BTG pic tformer
FTSE250 constituent), Oxagen Limited
and Celltech Chroscience Group plc,
having started her life-sciences career
as financial controller of Medeva plc.

Christine has previously servedas chair
ofthe auditcommittee at e-therapeutics
p'c,an AlM Iisted techno.ogy based
drug discovery platform {2017-2020)
and at Provasis plc, a guoted health care
business (2000-2005]

Christine 15 a chartered accountant and
holds a degree inMathematics from the
University of Durham

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2020 | ELEMENRTIS PLC €7

1H2d3d 31931vHLS

AINYHUIADD ALVHOLHOD

S LNIWILYLS TWIDNYNIL

NOLLYWYOINI H3A10HIYYHS



EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP TEAM

Executive Leadership Team

PAUL WATERMAN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

RALPH HEWINS
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

LUC VAN RAVENSTEIN
SVP GLOBAL COATINGS

Full iography can be found cnpage 66.

STIJN DEJONCKHEERE
SVP GLOBAL PERSONAL CARE

LUC VAN RAVENSTEIN

SVP GLOBAL COATINGS AND ENERGY
Tenure: Joined Elementis in 2012,
EXPERIENCE AND ROLE
Luc is responsible for leading the Global Coatings and Energy busingsses.
His focus in 2021 will be to further drive our exciting growth agenda for the
business, laid cut in our recent capital markets day.
Luc started his career with Elementis leading the Personal Care and
Surfactants businesses following leadership positions at specialty
chemicals company Croda.
Luc has an MSc degree in Chemistry and Chemical Engineering and
aProfessional Doctorate in Engineering from Eindhoven University
of Teehnology.

STJIN DEJONCKHEERE

SVP GLOBAL PERSONAL CARE
Tenure: Joined Elementis in 2807 and was appointed SVF, Global
Personal Care in May 2020.
EXPERIENCE AND ROLE
Stijr is responsibie for the leadership of the Personal Care business which
includes Cosmetics and AP Actives businesses, Heis anatcomplished
leader who has demonstrated an ability to build and lead high performing
commercial teams. Stiin spent many years developing his career at Elementis
invarious positions in our Personal Care and Coatings busingss, most
recently as Director Globa! Sales Personal Care.
Prior to Elementis, he also held leading commerciai roles at Capsugel, now
Lonza, and Barentz.
Stijn holds Master degrees in Bio-Engineering from Ghent University and
Agro-Management from Montpellier SupAgro and is a graduate of the
Executive Development Program from the Wharton School.
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Fullbiography canbe found on page 66.

DR CHRISTIAN KATHER
SVP GLOBAL TALC

AND ENERGY

ERIC WALDMANN
SVP GLOBAL CHROMIUM

DR CHRISTIAN KATHER
SVP GLOBAL TALC
Tenure: Joined Elementis in 2018.

EXPERIENCE AND ROLE
Christian has led the Talc business since 2011, having joined Mondo in 2010,
Following the acquisition of Mondo, he is currently focusing on growing the
Talc business on a global basis and delivering the integration synergies.
Previously, Christian worked as senior vice president & general manager
at Evonik Degussa Corp. in Parsippany, NJ. There he was heading the
Business Unit Coatings and Additives and was responsibfe for the globai
pigment dispersion business. Before that, he held a number of senior
executive positions with the Degussa Group, both in Europe and the US.
Christian has a business education from Harvard Business School gnd insead,
and a PhDin International Law from the University of Munster, Germany.

ERIC WALDMANN

SVP GLOBAL CHROMIUM
Tenure: Joined Elementis in 2007 and was appointed SVYP Global
Chromium in February 20718,
EXPERIENCE AND ROLE
Eric is responsible for the leadership of our global Chromium business.
Eric has held a number of roles in the Chromium business and prior to his
current role, was VP Finance and Sourcing. Prior to joining Elementis, Eric’'s
experience wasfocused in the areas of finance, accounting, mergers and
acquisitions, and sourcing.
Eric holds a bachelor's degree in Business Administration from Bucknell
University and an MBA from Villanova University. Eric is a member of the
International Chromium Development Association {{CDAJ Council, which
oversees and sets the strategy for promoting the value and sustainability
of chromium and represents the chremium industry worldwide,

STEVE RIDGE

SVP GLOBAL SUPPLY CHAIN & MANUFACTURING
Tenure: Joined Elementisin 2019.
EXPERJENCE AND ROLE
Steve brings to Elementis his solid experience in overseeing a global
manufacturing and supply chain foot print. With a proven track record of leading
international teams and a passion for safety and continuous improvement,
Steve drives a strong safety culture and operational excellence across all of the
Elementis facilities around the world.



STEVE RIDGE JOE LUPIA
SVP GLOBAL SUPPLY CHAIN

& MANUFACTURING

GREG BELLOTTI LAURA HIGGINS

CHIEF INFORMATICN OFFICER

Steveis responsible for supply chain, manufacturing, capital projects,
orocurement, guality, health and safety andis Chair of the Elementis
Sustainability Council.

Steve joined Elementis from FMC where he was the global manufacturing
director. Prior to FMC, Steve was the global EHS and cperational excellence
director at Celanese.

Steve has a master's degree in Chemical Engineering from Texas A&M
University and a bachelor's degree in Chemistry and Mathematics from
Florida Southern College.

JOE LUPIA
SVP GLOBAL TECHNQLOGY
Tenure: Joined Elementis in 2019,

EXPERIENCE AND ROLE

Joejoinedin 2019 and is respensible for the leadership of the Global R&D and
Product Stewardship functions. His former commercial experiences enable
him ta ensure ourinnevation pipeline is capable of delivering both technical
and financial success. Joeis respoensible for collaberating with the business
leaders to develop new technalogies that enhance our customers' product
performance as it pertains to the guality, sustainability and efficiency needs
of our partners. Joe is a member of the Elementis Sustainability Council.

Joe has 30 years' experience in the chernicals industry and joined us from
BASF where he had many different technical and commercial roles over hig
24 year tenure.

Joe has a PhD in Organic Chemistry from Seton Halt University.

CHRIS SHEPHERD
CHIEF HUMAN RESOURCES OFFICER (CHRO}
Tenure: Joined Elementis in 2017,

EXPERIENCE AND ROLE

Chris leads the Group Human Resources and Communications function and
is responsible for talent, succession, HR operations, reward programmes
and internal communications. His focus is on embedding the Company's
culture and values throughout the organisation, developing internal talent
and standardising our global people processes. Chris is co-Chair of the
Elementis Diversity, Equity and inclusion Council and serves as 8 member
of the Elementis Sustainability Council.

Chris has over 20 years' experience of global human resources gamnedin
amix of privately held US and UK listed plcs, with the first 12 years of his
career inmanufacturing and supply chain.

Chris holds an MEng in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Liverpool,

SVP GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY

CHRIS SHEPHERD
CHIEF HUMAN
RESQURCES OFFICER

ANNA LAWRENCE

GENERAL COUNSEL AND

CHIEF COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Anna joined Elementis in March 2021
andis amernber of the ELT,

GROUP COMPANY SECRETARY

GREG BELLOTTI

CHIEF INFORMATION QFFICER
Tenure: Joined Elementis in 2104 and was appointed CIQ in
January 2021,

EXPERIENCE AND ROLE

Greg has been with Elementis since 2014 and took on the leadership of the

IT functicnin 2018, joining the ELT inFebruary 2021, As Chief Information
Officer, Gregis responsible for global 1T strategy, operations, service delivery,
innovation and digital transformation.

Priorto joining Elementis, Greg held IT leadership roles at Allscripts {Summit
Medical Group) and Siemens. At Summit, he rebuilt a team and aninfrastructure
to support exponential growth across facility locations. During his tenure at
Siemens, Greg was instrumental inthe acquisition of HEAR USA, the first B2C

in Siemens’ portfolio, and led project management, global service provision and
the global PMO at various times.

Greg graduated from The College of New Jerseyin 1992 with a Bachelor of
Science degreein Law & Justice.

LAURA HIGGINS
GROUP COMPANY SECRETARY
Tenure: Joined Elementis in 2018.

EXPERIENCE AND ROLE

Laura is the Group's Company Secretary and is responsible for providing

Board support and acvice on corporate governance, UK listing obligations

and corporate transactions. She s also responsible for overall Group risk
management processes and the global insurance programme and is a pension
trustee. Laura is amember of the Elementis Diversity, Equity and Inclusion
Council and the Elementis Sustainability Council.

Laura has held various senior company secretarial positions at public quoted
companies including Sky, Britvic, Betfair and Rio Tinto.

Laura holds a postgraduate diplema in Legal Practice and a BA (Honours)in
Law and Legal Studies with History. Sheis also a Fellow of the Chartered
Gowvernance Institute.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Division of responsibilities

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

SHAREHOLDERS

BOARD OF DIRECTQRS
The Board is collectively respansible for ensuring long term sustainability and
the delivery of long term value $

nd success for our sharchalders. The

pport 1o the Excoutive
nsuring the Group maintair
managemernt andinternal Controis systems.

provid "
relation to strategy, whilst

BOARD COMMITTEES
The Board is supported in its activities by Board Committce
delegated responsibilities, as setout in separate terms of ¢
availablc on the website: www.clementis.com

that have specific

nce which are

X

AUDIT COMMITTEE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

« Owverseeing financial reporting and
the Group's financial systems

+ Monitoring internal cantrels andg
risk management

» Maintaining an appropriate
refationship with our internal
and external auditors

For further information,
please see pages 83 to 86

» Responsibility for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of
the Board, ensuring the Board and
Committees have the correct
batance of diversity, skills,
knowledgge and experience

« Ensuring and overseeing Board
and senior management
succession planning and
responsibility for the annual review
of Board effectiveness

+ Identifying and nominating
suitable candidates for
appointment to the Board

For further infermation,

please see pages 79t0 82

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
« Setting the remuneration policy

and determining the review
structure for the Chairman,
Executive Directors and Executive
Leadership team, to align their
remuneration with the lang term
interests of the Company
Approving bonus plan, leng term
incentive plan targets and

share awards

For further information,
please see pages 87 to 113

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER [CEO)
The CEQ is responsible for the day-to-day running of the business and

oversceing its performance, development and strategy

EXECUT
The Exccutive Leadership Tea
and consider a number of reports. It also meets monthly to review and discuss
cach business segment. Relevant matters are reported to the Board by the CEO
or the Chief Financial Officer.
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Board leadership and
Company purpose

HOW THE BOARD OPERATES

The Board held eight scheduled mestings during the year and
additional Boarg meetings were aiso held to discuss emerging
matters such ag COVID-19 updates, climate change and
sustainability, Board recruitment and succession matters and to
consider defence activities relating to an unsolicited offer for the
Company. The Directors’ attendance at scheduled Board and
Committee ieelings held during the year 1s set out on page 72,

For each Board and Committee meeting, meeting papers are
provided in advance through a secure portal. Board papers include
standing items such as financlal performance and investor relations
updates and special business such as strategic, operational ar
governance rmatters, which are prepared by Exacutive Directors,
senior management, the Company Secretary and/or external
advisers. The Board regularly invites ELT members to attend Board
meetings and receives presentations and updates from their
relevant business and functional areas.

Cther kay information such as analyst/investor reports, Company
policies and governance guidelings is available through the
secuUre portal,

SCHEDULED MEETINGS DURING THE YEAR

Business & financial
perfarmance 32%
Strategic 34%
Governance, risk
&compliance 13%
Emerging 21%

2020 BOARD ACTIVIT!IES TIMELINE

Board meeting

Strategic updates: Litigation
and Compliance, IT

and Cyber

Board meeting

Strategic updates:

Sustainability and

Supply Chain

Full year results review Board meetings x 2
| CCVID-19 updates

Q1 trading update
announced

AGM

2019 full year results
announced

Strategic updates: Tale, Engagement
Survey, Litigation and Compliance
and Sustainability

Board meeting
CQvID-19
and business continuity

2020 interim results announced

Inyestor feedback

Board meeting
Strategic update:
Chromium

Insurance strategy

Board meeting
Interim results

BOARD ALLOCATION OF AGENDA TIME

Agendas for each Board meeting are prepared by the Company
Secretary as arolling programme over a 12 month period but are
reviewed regularly and updated where appropriate. The agenda for
each Board meeting is agreed with the Chairman, CEO and CFO.

MATTERS RESERVED FOR THE BOARD

To ensuie Uiere is & clear division of responsibilities between the
Board and the running of the Ccmpany business, the Board has
a formal schedute of matters reserved for its decision. Thisis
reviewed on a periodic basis and is available on cur website
www.elementis.com.

BOARD ACTIVITIES DURING THE YEAR

The Board has a formal annual pregramme of activities which is
supplemented by adhoc meetings and conference calls, as and
when appropriate. At each of its formal meetings, the Board
receives standing updates, as part of the CEQ's report, regarding
financial, operational, governance, compliance, HSE perfarmance
and investor engagement. Due to the ‘stay at home' measures
during 2020, the Board meetings from March onwards were

held remotely.

The Non-Executive Directors usually meet for dinner once a year
without management present. Due to COVID-19, this meeting was
also held remotely.

Board meeting
Strategic updates:
People related topics

Board meeting
Strategic updates:
Personal Care and HSE

and Three Year Plan
|

Non-Executive
Directors only
meeting

Defence activity ~
Minerals
Technclogiss Inc.

Board meeting
Strategic updates:
Coatings and Energy

Three Year Plan

Q3 trading update
announced

Investor recadshow
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

FOCUS DURING 2020

INNOVATION, GROWTH
AND EFFICIENCY
STRATEGY

Supply Chain

strategic updates
Strategic reviews of
Coatings, Personal Care,
Energy. Chromium and Talc
Annual plan and Three
year plan

Sustainability including
environmental targets
Charleston piant closure

QOPERATIONAL
PERFORMANCE

= Regular GEOreports
[Product Stewardship,
fnnovation, Business
Development, IT, People,
Communications,
Safety and Supply
Chain pricrities)

* Heaith, Safety and
Environment reports

+ Group insurance and
risk management
activities programme

+ Grouprisk review

+ GDPRanddata
privacy updates

+ Digital and cyber update

« COVID-19anabusiness
continuity updates

v Litigationand
Compliance updates

CHANGES TO THE BOARD DURING THE YEAR

John O'Higgins was appointed to the Board on

4 February 2020

Nick Salmon stepped down from the Board on 29 April 2020
Sandra Boss stepped down from the Board on 29 April 2020
Christine Soden was appointed to the Board on

1 November 2020*

Further informationregarding Christine’s appointment can be found within the

Nomination Committee report onpage 80.
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SHAREHOLDERS,
STAKEHOLDERS
AND GOVERNANCE

» Investor relations reports,
roadshows and other
investor meetings
and feedback

+ Board effectiveness evaluation

= NewDesignated
Non-Executive Director
waorkforce engagement
appointment and
engagement updates

+ People strategy including
engagement and
talent management

* ModernSlavery
transparency statement

+ Litigationand
campliance reports

« Corporate
Governance updates

+ Updates from Board
Committee Chairs

= Employee engagernent,

tewnhalls and site visits

Insurance strategy

Heaith, Safety and

Environment update

+ Committee terms
of reference

* Non-Executive Director
recruitment/succession

« Defenceactivity refating to
Minerals Technologies Inc.

FINANCE
MATTERS

Firangial performance

reports and forecasts

Distributable reservesand

dividend recommendations

* Treasuryand

hedging reports

Financial statements for

fulland half year and

trading statements

Full and half year

results presentations

» Taxreports, tax strategy
and updates on EU state aid

* Annual operating plan

The attendance of the Directors at the Board mesetings in the year

ended 31 December 2020:

Andrew Duff 8/8
Paul Waterman 8/8
Ralph Hewins 8/8
Sandra Boss 3/3
Dorothee Deuring 8/8
Steve Good 8/8
Anne Hyland 8/8
John O'Higgins 8/8
Nick Salmon 3/3
Christine Soden 11



OUR PURPOSE

Our purpose is to achieve sustainable progress across the world
through innovative specialty chemical products that deliver
cleaner and better performance.

We are collaborative industrial innovators; developing long term
partnerships with our custormers, innovating at pace to keep them
at the forefront of their markets. Combining our access to unigue
natural resources with cur unmatched rheclogy and technological
expertise, we responsibly transform raw materiais into advantaged
ingredients that provide crucial end product benefits. This enables
our customers to solve their product performance and
sustainability challenges.

The Board is satisfied that the Company's culture continues to be
aligned with its purpose, values and strategy:

+ Company values were established during 2018 following
a refresh and engagement with employee focus groups

= Strategyis discussed regularly and includes the Three year ptan
and annual operating plan and is formally agreed as part of the
Board's annual programme

* The Company's values of Safety, Soluticns, Ambiticn, Respect
and Team underpin the behaviours expected to cultivate an open
and inclusive culture

MAINTAINING A HEALTHY CULTURE

To ensure that the Company is creating the right environment for
longer term success, a variety of mechanisms are available to
measure Company culture, for example:

+ Whistleblower reports

+ HSE updates

» Internal and external audit reports

+ Compliance reports

* Engagement survey insight and other HR metrics
= Townhali meetings and site visits

+ Business and functional deep dives

There are alst other mechanisms for measuring culture which can
be directly linked to the Company’s values, such as:

= Safety - nearmisses or process safety incidents
« Solutions - number of praducts launched or custemer
innovation projects
= Ambition —new business opportunities and market participation
+ Respect - compliance training and speaking up channeis
+ Team-—employee engagement survey, talent and
succession plans

Read more on pages 38-41

HOW THE BOARD MONITORS CULTURE

EMPLOYEE SURVEY AND EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT

As aresult of the transition of the role of the Designated
Non-Executive Director (DNED) for workforce engagement, the
Board received frequent reperts on workforce matters including
employee engagement insight, leadership activities, global
townhalls, diversity and inclusicn initiatives, organisational
capability, health and safety and impact of the pandemic on
employeesin each of the countries inwhich we operate.

The Board receives regular updates on employee engagement
and the insight gained from survey allows the Board to
understand areas of Company culture that need specific focus
and attention.

An employee engagement planis in place and features

a number of engagement mechanisms and activities for the
year. Feedback is shared with the Board. As a result of the
workforce engagement transition, the newly appointed DNED
will ensure that feedback is shared with employees during 2021,

COMPLIANCE

The Board receives regular compliance reports on a bi-annual
basis, In addition, internal audit and external audit reports provide
further insight on our compliance culture.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Board receives regular Health and Safety information at
each of its Board meeting in respect of monthly performance
relating to recordable injuries, lost time accidents and process
safety avents.

In addition, a deeper dive cceurs annually with a focus on health
and safety programmes, performance and initiatives.

EMPLOYEE RETENTION

The Board receives a deep dive on people strategy which
includes metrics on employee turnover, diversity, talent

& succession. The Board receives regular updates from the
CEC on people related matters.

INNOVATION

Interms of being able to understand the innovation culture, the
Board has oversight of each business’ innovation pipeline and
product launches. The Board receives a deep dive oninnovation
on an annual basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT CONTINUED

WORKFORCE ENGAGEMENT IN ACTION

SAFETY

SOLUTIONS

AMBITION

RESPECT

TEAM

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT FOCUS GROUPS

Adiscussion was facilitated with employees
representing arange of organisational grades and roles
i China, US. Finland and Germany. The engagement
thermes centrad on areas which were linked ta the
Company's values, for example:

= lam proud to work for my organisation

« | believe my organisation is committed to upholding
Our corporate values

« Employees are encouraged to offer ideas and
suggestions on how to improve safety

Further information on @mployee engagement
can be found on page 16.

NEW DNED FOR WORKFORCE ENGAGEMENT

Christine Soden has been appointed as the Designated
Non-Executive Director for workforce engagement,
effective 1 November 2020. Supported by the CHRO,
Company Secretary and SVP Global Supply Chain and
Manufacturing, quarterly updates on engagement
activities and insight are received.

As well as regular Board reporting and feedback,
Christine locks forward to connecting with our
empiloyees as part of our 2021 programme for employee
engagement including a variety of mechanisms, for
example, global townhalls, employee focus groups,

and site visits when considered safe to do so.

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT SESSION

The Board received and discussed insights arising from
the employee engagement survay. This insight. along
with management’s response and action pfans, has
enabled the Board to gain a deeper understanding of
ourworkforce including regional differences, views on
Company culture, values, strategy and remuneration,

Further information on employee engagernent
can be found on page 16.
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Shareholder engagement

SHAREHCLDER COMMUNICATIONS

The Chairman is respensible for effective communication with
shareholders. The CEQ and CFQ are the Company's principal contacts
for investors, analysts, press and other interestad stakeholders.

There is a dedicated investor relations programme for current and
potential investors, which is managed by the Director of Investor
Relations who reports to the CFO. Further information regarding
shareholder services can be found on page 186.

SHAREHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Investor meetings

The Board receives an investor relations report at each of its meetings
outlining recent dialogue with investors and feedback received, and
frequent updates from our corporate brokers JP Morgan and Numis.
Analysts' reports are also made available to the Board. The Chairman
attends financial results presentations where he has the opportunity
to meet with those analysts who attend. All Board members are invited
to attend results presentations.

The Chairman and Senior Independent Director are available to
shareholders to discuss governance and strategy concerns as
appropriate. During the year, our new Senicr Independent Director
met with the Company's major investors, At these meetings,
investors are invited to meet with other members of the Board,

for example, the Chair of the Audit, Nominaticn or Remuneration
Committees. In 2020, 125 meetings were held with investors,

Private investor

The Board is keen to hear the views of our private sharehclders
and they are encouraged to use our shareholder mailbox —
company.secretariat@elementis.com, The Company's website
is kept updated with Company reports and related information,
Enguiries may also be addressed to the Company Secretary
and sent to the registered office.

2020 Annual General Meeting

Inlight of the Government’s ‘stay at home’ measures inresponse
to the COVID-18 pandemic, it was decided and announced that the
2020 Annual General Meeting {AGM) would be held as a closed
meeting with a minimum quorum in attendance at the Company’s

SHAREHOLDER ACTIVITIES DURING THE YEAR

FY19 results presentation
Retail sharehaolder
presentation
Chairman’'s Gavernance

Roadsnow Benelux Investor

| Relations Roadshow

f

FYi9roadshow AGM

JP Morgan Eurcpean
SmallMid Cap
Investor Conference

Credit Suisse
Fireside Chat

H1 20 resuits presentation

registered office. Sharehclders were encouraged to submit
questions prior to the AGM, with responses published on the
Company’'s website. All resolutions were passed by shareholders.
No shareholder questions were received prior to the AGM.

2020 AGM voting update —Resolution 15

The Company received votes cast against special resolution 15 at
the AGM held on 28 April 2020. As announced by the Company.
this resolution was approved by shareholders, however, 20.40% of
the votes were cast against the shortening of the notice period for
calling general meetings to 14 days. This authority is commonly
sought by UK listed companies.

As required by the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Company
issued an update statement within six months of the AGM to detail
the steps that had been taken by the Company. A significant
shareholder together with a small number of shareholders voted
against this resolution. Certain shareholders typically vote against
suchresolutions as a matter of established voting pelicy and itis
understood since the Company’s update statement that the
established voting policy held by the significant sharehelder is
unlikely to change. It is understood that the helding has been
reduced. The Company respects such voting policies and
continues to hold regular dialogue with its major shareholders
during the course of the year.

The Company continues to maintain that having the flexibility to
call general meetings on short notice is, in certain circumstances,
of benefit to shareholders, however, the Board will continue to
review the merits for including this type of resolution at future
AGMs and will continue to engage with its major shareholders te
understand their views of the Company.

Shareholder consultation
During the year, major shareholders were consulted regarding the
renewal of our remuneraticn policy. Further information on page 65.

Senior Independent Berenberg European

Director Governance Investor Conference

Roadshow ) .
Bank of America Materials
and Infrastructure
Investor Conference

Berenberg Food &

Chemicals Investor

Conference

Coatings Analyst
roundtable event

H1 20 roadshow
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COMPOSITION, SUCCESSION AND EVALUATION

Composition, succession
and evaluation

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board has agreed a clear division of responsbilities between the Chairman and the CEQ as well as those of the other Directors
which are available on the Company's website.

Role Nams(s} Responsibility

Chairman* Andrew Duff = Leadership of the Board and responsibility for its effectivenass
 Setting the agendas in consultation with the CEQ, CFO and Company Secretary
+ Promoting open, honest and constructive debate and challenge during
meetings and guiding the CEQ and CFO in delivery of the Innovation, Growth
and Efficiency strategy
Ensuring the Board conforms with the highest standards of
corporate governance
= Chairing the Nominaticn Committee and ensuring the Board has an appropriate
valance of skill and experience and effective succession planning in place, and
leading the annual Board effectiveness review
« Effective engagement and communication sharehclders and other
* independent stakeholders, and ensuring that their views are understood by the Board
on appofntment

CEOQ Paul Waterman * Day-to-day management of the business
* Execution of strategy and operational performance
*+ Providing regular updates to the Board on all significant matters relating to
the Group
= Ensuring the Company has a strong team of high calibre executives, and putting
in place management succession and development plans

CFO Ralph Hewins * Supporting the CEQ in the delivery of the Company's strategy and

financial performance

Leading the Group Finance function and responsible for financial reporting.

investor relations, 1T, risk, insurance and tax matters

+ Keyrole in external stakeholder relationships, including investment community,
lenders and pension trustees

Senior Independent John O'Higgins * Acting as a sounding board to the Chairman, providing support and advice
Director where necessary
+ Point of contact for shareholders and other stakeholders to discuss matters
of concern

Leading the Board's appraisal of the Chairman’s performance with the
Non-Executive Directors

Independent Dorothee Deuring = Providing independent oversight abjectivity to the Board's deliberations
Non-Executive Steve Good * Using their broad range of experience and expertise to chailenge management
Directors Anne Hyland and aid decision making
John O’'Higgins + Serving onvarious Committees and playing & leading role in the effectiveness
Christine Soden of these Committees
Company Secretary Laura Higgins = Supporting the Chairman in ensuring the Board operates efficiently

and effectively

Praviding the Board with advice on governance developments

Facilitating the Directors’ induction programmes and assisting with ongoing
training and develepmeant

Assisting the Chairman with the Board effectiveness review process

Designated Non- Christine Soden * Representing the Board when engaging and communicating with émployees and
Executive Director for providing communication on any outcomes
workforce engagement
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TIME COMMITMENTS

Following the Board evaluation process, as detailed on page 78,
the Board has considered the individual Directors’ attendance,
contribution and external appointments, and is satisfied that each
of the Directors is able to allocate sufficient time to the Group

to discharge their responsibilities effectively. Information on
Diractors’ external appointments canbe found on pages 66 to 67,

The Directors’ commitments register is maintained by the Group
Company Secretary and is regularly reviewed by the Nomination
Committee. All Directors are expected to commit sufficient time to
the Board, and the Company, as is necessary to carry out their
duties as a Director.

Non-Executive Directors are required to devete suchtime as is
necessary for the proper fulfiment of their duties, which istobe
anticipated to be a minimum time commitment of between 30 and
40 days p.a. onwork for the Company. This includes: attendance at
aminimum of eight Board meetings and pre-Board dinners; two 2
to 3 day overseas Board trips; the Beard Committees which they
serve [if any); the AGM and general meetings; meetings with the
Non-Executive Directors; meetings with managers and non-
managerial members of the workforce; and other ad hoc meetings/
meetings with investors and advisers, as required. Copies of letters
of appointment can be found on the Company's website.

Prior to issuing a letter of re-appeintment, the Nomination
Committee will also consider the ability of Directors to meet the
time commitment, amongst other factors such as external
responsibilities and independence.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
The Board operates a policy to identify and, when appropriate,
manage actual or petential conflicts of interest that may arise.

Directors are required to seek Board approval for any actual or
potential confiicts of interest. Conflicts of interest are considered
formally by the Board at each meeting, and are kept under review
throughout the year. Annual confirmations are obtained from each
Directer that no conflict of interest has arisen during the year.

The Code of Conduct also contains guidance on avoiding conflicts
of interest.

Ralph Hewins is inreceipt of a cenflict autharisation from the
Company in respect of him acting as a trustee of the Elementis
Group Pension Scheme. Further details can be found in the
Directors' report on page 114.

ADDITIONAL APPOINTMENTS

If a Non-Executive Director wishes to take on an additional external
appointment, they are required to seek permission from the Beard
befcre they can formally accept any suchrole. The Board will take
into consideration the time commitment required by the Non-
Executive Director in their role as a Becard Director, Commitiee
Chair or Committee member before any permissionis given.

No such external appointments are currently held by any of the
Executive Directors,

BOARD TRAINING AND INDEPENDENT ADVICE

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Group
Company Secretary and may take independent professional
advice, as appropriate, at the expense of the Company.

Directors are given the opportunity throughout the year to
undertake training and attend seminars, as necessary, to keep their
skills and knowledge up to date. In addition, technical briefings are
regularly included in Board and Committee papers. Atraining logis
maintained by the Company Secretary.

The Company Secretary supports the Chairman in ensuring that
the Board and its Committees operate within the governance
framework and that communication and information flows within
the Board and its Committees and between management and
Non-Executive Directors remain effective.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the Non-Executive Directors is considered independent in
character and judgement. The Chairman was considered independent
on appointment. The independence of Non-Executive Directorsis
reviewed on a regular basis (in terms of additional appointments) and
at least annually by the Nomination Committee.

Further information can be found in the Nomination Committee
report on pages 79to 82,

The biographies of the Directers can be found on pages 66 to 67
and details of the membership of each Board Committee can be
found on pages 79, 83 and 87 respectively.

DIRECTORS' INSURANCE AND INDEMNITIES
The Company maintains Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance,
inthe event of legal action brought against its Directors.

The Company has also granted indemnities to each of the Directors.
These indemnities are uncapped in amount, in relation to certain
losses and liabilities which they may incur to third parties inthe
course of acting as a Director of the Company. Neither the indemnity
nor insurance provides coverage in the event that a Director is
proved to have acted fraudulently or dishonestly.

INFORMATION FLOWS

The Chairman and the Company Secratary ensure that the
Directors receive clear and timely information on atl relevant
matters. Board papers are circulated in a timely manner in advance
of the meetings to ensure that there is adequate time for them to
be read and to facilitate robust and informed discussion. A fully
encrypted electronic Beard portal is used to distribute Board and
Caommittee papers and to provide efficient distribution of business
updates and other resources to the Board.

SUCCESSION PLANNING

InFebruary 2020, John O'Higgins was appointed as aNon-
Executive Director and succeeded Nick Salman as Seniar
Independent Director when Nick retired from the Board after
the AGM on 29 April 2020, Sandra Boss also stepped down from
the Board after the AGM on 29 April 2020 to take up a full time
executive role. Following Sandra's departure, a new search for
aNon-Executive Director was undertaken and Christine Soden
was appointed te the Board on 1 November 2020.

The Nomination Committee has oversight of succession planning
for the Board and regularly reviews the structure, size, diversity and
composition of the Board and its Committees. Processes arein
place to ensure that Board members cannot participate inany
discussions relating to their own succession.

Further information ¢an be found within the Nomination Committee
report on page 7¢.
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BOARD COMPOSITION, SUCCESSION AND EVALUATION CONTINUED

BOARD EVALUATION

In line with the UK Corporate Governance Code, an externally
facilitated review of the Board effectiveness is carried out every
three years, The last externally facilitated review was carried out in
20%8.In 2020, it was agreed that an internally facilitated review
would be appropriate.

PROCESS

Adiscussionis held by the Normination Committee to consider the
approach and process for evaluation. Following agreement, the
Company Secretary and the Chairman of the Nomination Committee
agree the timetable, process and resources required for the
evaluation activity.

AREAS OF FOCUS DURING 2020

» Continue to identify ways of leveraging the expertise of the
Non-Executive Directors

+ Deepenthe Board's understanding of the ‘customer voice' in
the boardroom

+ Continued focus onh Beard succession planning

PROGRESS AGAINST ACTIONS ARISING FROM THE

2020 BOARD REVIEW

* Succession planning has continued with appointments in year:
John O'Higgins and Christine Soden as successors to Nick
Salmon and Sandra Boss

+ The’customer voice' has been heard through each strategic
update provided by each business segment in the year as well as
in regular COVID-19 updates and updates on innovaticn and new
business opportunities

BCARD COMMITTEE AND DIRECTORS"
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CYCLE

YEAR 1
(2018)

AnIndependent externally facilitated review

YEAR 2
{2019}

An internal review facilitated by the Company Secretary

YEAR 3
(2z020)

Aninternal review facilitated by the Company Secretary
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2020 INTERNAL EVALUATION
The process for the 2020 review comprised a questionnaire of:

« areas identified for focus from the prior evaluation,

» Board changes and general observations such as navigating the
Board’s operations and decision making processes during
COVID-19,

* Boardrelationships.

* observations on the operationfeffectiveness of the Board and its
Committees, and

* Individual performance and other themes and priorities for 2021,

The performance of the Chairman is led by the SiD invoiving the
whole Board. it was confirmed following the evaluation that the
Chairman continues to be highly effective in his role, His strong
leadership significantly contributes to the tone and culture of
Board matters.

Focus for 2021

* Balance/cadence of Board calendarin 2021 to include
physical and virtuai meetings

* Continued focus on Beard succession, executive
development and talent mapping

+ Agree external effectivenessfevaluation approach and timing

+ Complete induction programmes for John O'Higgins and

Christine Saden

Continued focus on risk management and compliance

Initiation of site visits and re-connecting with management

{when considered safe to do o} and informal Board events

THE PROCESS 1S DIVIDED INTO FOUR STAGES:

STAGE 1

The Company Secretary and Chairman agree the format of
the evaluation.

The internal review is usually carried out by means of an online
questionnaire, Directors are invited tc give thelr responses on
the individual and collective performances of the Board and
its Committees.

STAGE 2

If there are any issues raised, the Company Secretary will reach
out to the individuat and discuss their concerns orissues.

Individual responses are collated inta a report prepared by the
Company Secretary.

STAGE 3

The Company Secretary discusses the underlying themes of
the evaluation with the Chairman and prepares a formal paper
fer discussion.

The Chairman meets with each Director individually to air any
concerns they may have around Board dynamics and operation
of Board and Committee effectiveness.

STAGE 4
The report is presented and discussed with the Board.

The Board agrees on the development areas for the forthcoming year.




Nomination Committee report

ANDREW DUFF
CHAIRMAN

Dear Shareholders,

As Chair of the Nomination Committee
(the ‘Committee’), | am pleased to present
the Nomination Committee report
covering the work of the Committee

in 2020. This report should be read in
conjunction with the separate section

on compliance under the UK Corporate
Governance Code on page 65.

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The Committee is responsibie for the structure, size and
compaosition of the Board, ensuring that the Board and Committees
have the most appropriate balance of skills, knowledge and
axperience. This Committee ensures and oversees succession
planning and has responsibility for the annual review of the Board.

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

* Regularly reviewing the structure, size, diversity and compesition
of the Board

+ Ensuring that the Company has the right leadership, balance of
skills and experience to deliver the Company's strategy and
enable the Board to effectively fulfitits abligations

* Succession planning for the Board and Executive
Leadership team

» Leading on the annual performance evaluation of the Board and
its Committees

+ Identifying and nominating, for the approval of the Board,
candidates to fill Board vacancies as and when they arise

* ldentifying and managing any potential conflicts of interests
Directors may have

The Committee’'s terms of reference are avaitable on the
Company's website at [ www.elementis.com

RE-APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

All Directors are subject to re-electicn at the next Annual General
Meeting (AGM), &s required by the UK Corporate Governance Code.
Following the appraisal process, the Committee concluded that
each of the Directors continued to make an effective contribution
to the Board and provided sufficient time to the Company.

HIGHLIGHTS

Andrew Duff (Chair)
Sandra Boss®

Derothee Deuring
Steve Good

Anne Hyland

Nick Salmon’

John Q'Higging
Christine Soden®

In accordance with the Code, Christine Soden will submit herself
for election and the remaining Directors will submit themselves for
re-election atthe 2021 AGM.

PROGRAMME OF BUSINESS

+ Annuatreview of Directors’ independence and conflicts in
accordance with the Committee's terms of reference

* Engagement with external search consultants to conduct a
search for a new Non-Executive Director

» Reviewing structure, size, diversity and composition of the Board

+ Succession planning for the Board and oversight of senior
management succession plang

= Ensuring that at least annually the Non-Executive Directors meet
without the Executive Directors present

+ Approval of Nomination Committee report for inclusion in the
Annual Report.

RE-APPOINTMENTS TO THE BOARD

The re-appointment of Andrew Duff (for a third term from April
2020) and Steve Good (for a third term from Qctober 2020) were
approved and recommended to the Board during the year.

The recommendations were supported by considerations
regarding their independence, experience and contribution that
they bring to the Board and its Committees. These matters were
subsequently confirmed following the Board evaluation process
and a review of confiicts and independence. In line with best
practice, their continuing Board roles remain subject to annual
re-election by shareholders.

BOARD EFFECTIVENESS

Onan annual basis, the Chairmanis respensible for conducting an
appraisal with each Non-Executive Director inrespect of their skills,
experience, contribution and time commitment to the Company.
The Committee oversees the evaluation process which during 2020
comprised aninternal evaluation. The last externally facilitated
review was carried outin 2018 and itis anticipated that the next
external review will be conducted in 2021. Furtherinformation can
be foundonpage 78.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUVED

SUCCESSION PLANNING

Following Sandra Boss stepping down from the Board in Aprilt 2020,
the Committee appointed Russell Reynolds, external search
consultants, to undertake a search for suitable candidates.

Fallowing a thorough recruitment process, Christine Soden was
appointed as a Non-Executive Director, and Designated Non-
Executive Director for workforce engagement, with effect from
1T November 2020.

John C'Higging was appointed to the Board on 4 February 2020
and a description of the recruitment process featured inthe 2019
Annual Report.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR RECRUITMENT PRCCESS
The Chairman of the Board, assisted by the Nomination Committee
members and Company Secretary, led the process in the search
for a new NED.

Following a Committee discussion and with input from the
Executive Directors. a role specification was prepared along
with a recruitment brief and shared with Russell Reynolds.

Russell Reynolds prepared a longlist comprising gender diverse
candidates. The Committee duly discussed the merits of each of
the candidates and agreed the shortlist for interview with Board
members. Committee meetings were hetd to discuss feedback.

Having carried out further due diligence inciuding reference
checks, time commitments and potential conflicts, the Committee
agreed to reccmmend to the Board that Christine Scden be
appointed as a Non-Executive Director and Designated Non-
Executive Director for workforce engagement.

BOARD INDUCTION

The Chairman, with the support of the Group Company Secretary,
i5 responsible for preparing and coordinating an appropriate
induction pregramme, which is to be tailored to the needs of each
newly appointed Non-Executive Director,

Newly appointed Directors are provided with a briefing on
Directors’ dutigs from the Group Company Secretary, and legal
advisers if required.

John O'Higgins and Christine Soden have undertaken their
induction programmes entirely remotely. Site visits will take
place when safe to do so and in line with latest guidance.

2021 PRIORITIES

= Complete site visit programme as part of the induction
prograrmme for John O'Higgins and Christine Soden

« Agree Board effectiveness scope and activity for 2021

* Review Board and senior management succession plans

» Review Board diversity policy and objectives
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EXAMPLE OF ATYPICAL INDUCTION PROGRAMME

INDUCTION - GENERAL TOPICS

* Therole of a Director + Currentissues
« Board and Committees = Nature of the Company, its
* Board meetings business and its markets
+ Rules andregulaticns » TheCompany's
and guidance main relationships
* Boeard procedures

h g
INDUCTION - BOARD COMMITTEES {AS APPROPRIATE)

* Role and remit of * Thelegal requirements
the Committee relevantto the
» Link betweenthe Committee's operations

Committee’s policy and = Market practice and current
the Company's trends relevant to
strategic objectives the Commitiee

* Theannual meeting + Currentissues

schedule for the Committee  « Views ofinvestors on
* The main business matters considered by the
conducted by Committee and potential
the Committees areas of focus
* Any technical training on
key matters

A 4
INDUCTION - EXTERNAL ADVISERS

Meetings with: » Remuneration advisers
* External auditars * Brokers
* Internal audit function v Lawyers
A2

INDUCTION - SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Meetings with: » Chief HR Officer
* CEO + SVP Global Technology
< CFQ * SVP Global Supply Chain &
* SVP Global Coatings & Manufacturing

Energy + Group General Counsal and
= SVP Global Perscnal Care Chief Compliance QOfficer
« SVP Globai Chromium = Group Company Secretary
* SVP Global Talc + GroupHead of Tax

+ Group Financial Controlier
= Director of
Investor Relations

4
INDUCTION - SITE VISITS

» SciPark —New Jersey, US (US head office}

» Amstercam, Netherlands (Talc)

« Castle Hayne — North Carolina, US {Chromium)
+ Others as agreed during the course of the year




BOARD COMPOSITION AND SKILLS

Following the internal effectiveness review, the Committee
considers that the current Board membership has the right balance
of commercial and governance experience, independence and
challenge, and that the diverse range of skills and experience of the
Directors prevents any dominance, either individually or
colleclively, aver the Doard’s decision malking.

BOARD SKILLS AND ATTRIBUTES

Andrew Paul Ralph John Steve Anne Dorcthee Christine
) Duff Waterman Hewins O'Higgins Good Hyland Deuring Soden
Manufacturing/industrial processing ® ® ® ® [ ] ®
Specialty chemicals [ J @ [ ] ®
Strategy/business development ® ® ® ® [ ] ® [ ]
International businegss and markeats ® ® ® ® L] L ] | ] L
Innovation/product development | ® ® ® ® ®
Sales/marketing/customer L 4 [ ] ® ®
Accounting/tax/treasury/risk [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ]
Regulated markets ® L ® ® ® [ ]
As at 31 December 2020
COMPOSITION AVERAGE AGE NATIONALITY
OF THE BOARD GENDER OF BOARD OF THE BOARD OF THE BOARD LENGTH OF TENURE
Independent Female 37.5% Further information
Non-Executive Male 52.5% about Directors’

Directors 62.5%
Chairman* 12.5%

Executive
Directors 25%

* Independent cn appointment

GENDER BALANCE

independence, the
Board's conflicts of
interest policy and
Directors’ commitment
is set out cnpage 77.

QF ELT AND DIRECT GENDER OVERALL GENDER DIVERSITY SUMMARY
GENDER OF ELT REPORTS COMPANY WIDE {AS AT 31 D!_E_CEMBEI_R___Z_O?O)

Female 9% Female 27% Female 23%

Male 1% Male 73% Male 1% Male _ Female
Board 5 3
ELT 10 1
Senior management [XLT) 33 15
Senior managers (5,474
CA 2006 definition) 25 6
Allemployees 1,038 314
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

DIVERSITY POLICY

Policy objective Search and recruit the right candidates from the widest talent poo), against objective criteria
and with regard for the benefits of diversity. including gender and ethnicity. When recruiting new Board
members, the Nomination Committee Chairman will engage recruitment advisers who are able to demonstrate
a commitment 1o gender and ethnic diversity as part of their role in identifying suitably qualified candidates
from a talent pool that also reflects the Group's international profile.

Implementation Russeli Reynoids were appainted to undertake a search for a new Non-Executive Disector in
2020, Russell Reynolds have signed up to the Voluntary Code of Conduct for Executive Search Firms which
aims to address gender diversity on corporate boards and best practice for the related search processes.

Pollcy objective Ensure that the Board is comprised of an appropriate balance of skills, experience and
knowledge to effectively oversee and support the managemeant of the Company.

Implementation The Nomination Committee continues to review the compaosition of the Board and ongoing
succession plans in accordance with its terms of reference.

Policy objective Maintain gender balance cf females on the Board of at least 33%.

implementation During the year, Nick Salmon and Szndra Boss retired from the Board and were succeeded by

John Q'Higging and Christine Soden.

Pollcy objective Aspire to improve the percentage of senicr leadership positions held by women throughout
the Group. The Nemination Committee will monitor pipeline diversity and the delivery of plans toimprove
gender and ethnic diversity across the erganisation and promote talent from across our locations into
management roles.

Implementation The Nomination Committee has visibility of diversity and inclusion initistives to improve
diversity throughout the organisation and recelves succession planning updates for talent below senior
management level as well as diversity, equity and inclusion updates. See page 40 for further information.

Policy objectlve Oversee succession plans to ensure that they meet both current and future needs of the
business including improvement of gender and ethnic diversity across the organisation.

Implementation Succession plans are regularly reviewed in line with the current and future needs of
the business.

Policy objective Report annually against policy objectives and assess the skills, expertise, backgrounds and
experiences of Board members.

Implementatlon The Nominaticn Committee has reviewed and approved the Nomination Committee repart.

Policy objective Continue to monitor regulatory developments and best practice in respect of diversity.

Implementation The CHRO and Company Secretary provide regular updates on reguiatory developments and
practices nthis area.

Policy objective Periodically review this policy and its effectiveness.

Implementation This policy, its objectives and effectiveness will be reviewed every 3 years or in line with
developing practice if sooner.

Please read more on our diversity and inclusion policies in the Social section on page 40
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PROGRESS
AGAINST
OBJECTIVES

Longlists have
supported our
diversity
objectives
representing
gender

and ethnicity

Ongoing

Exceeded target

Cngoing

Ongoing

Compiete

Ongoing

Every 3 years



AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Audit, risk and internal control
Audit Committee report

ANNE HYLAND
CHAIRMAN
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dear Shareholders,

As Chair of the Audit Committee
(the '‘Committee’), | am pleased

to present the Audit Committee
report covering the work of the
Committee during 2020. This report
should be read in conjunction

with the separate section on
compliance under the UK Corporate
Governance Code on page 65.

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

To assist the Board by establishing, reviewing and monitoring the
Group's financial reperting, internal controls framework and risk
management, internal audit programmes and changesin
regulatary reguirements.

COMPOSITION OF THE COMMITTEE

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code (the
‘Cade’), the Board has confirmed that all members of the
Committee are independent Non-Executive Diractors and have
been appointed to the Committee based ontheir individual
financial and commercial experience.

The Board is satisfied that Anne Hyland, as Chair of the Committee,

has recent and relevant financial experience to chair this
Committee through her current executive role as CFQ at Kymab
Group and in a previous role as CFO at FTSE listed Vecturaplc.
Anne is a chartered accountant (FCA} and a corporate tax adviser
(CTA-AITI.

The Committee, as a whole, bas financial and commercial
competence relevant to the sector in which the Group operates.
Further information onthe skills, expertise and experience of
Committee members canbe found on page 81.

HIGHLIGHTS

ATTENDANCE AT AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Anne Hyland (Chair}

Sandra Boss’

Derothee Deuring

Nigk Salmon*

John O'Higgins

Christine Soden®

KEY RESPONSIBILITIES

« Menitoring the integrity of the Group's financial statements,
financial reporting and related statements

« Ensuring the appropriateness of accounting policies, any
changes tc these, and any significant estimates and
judgements made

= Reviewing the effectiveness of internal control,
compliance and risk management systemns (including
whistleblowing arrangements)

= Qverseeing all aspects of the relationship with the internal
and external auditors; approving the policy on non-audit
services; making recommendations to the Board for their
dismissal or changes; and supervising any tender process

The Committee's terms of reference, which are reviewed and
approved annually, are available on the Company's website,
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

PROGRAMME OF BUSINESS
The Committee’s focusin 2020 has been:

Meetings with both the internal and external auditors to review
their key findings

Reviewing the internal control systems and considering the
output of internal audit reviews and management’s action plans
Reviewing the integrity and consistency of key accounting
judgermenits made by management in both the Cornpany's full
and half year results

Advising the Board on whether the Annual Report and Accounts
is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's
position and performance, business model and strategy

= Reviewing the going concern and viability statements and the
supporting assumptions and assessments inthe Company’s
Half year report and Annual Report and Accounts

Ensuring compliance with applicable accounting standards,
monitoring developments in accounting regulations which affect
the Group and reviewing appropriateness of accounting policies
and practices currently inplace

Reviewing effectiveness of the internal and external auditors,
theirindependence and objectivity and terms and scope of
engagement and recormmending their re-appointment

» Overseeing matters relating to tax including the impact of tax
rates on the financial statements, appraving the Company's tax
strategy and EU state aid

Litigation and compliance reports for both the full and half year

* Considering the material lega! risks impacting the Company and
the associated provisioning for beth the full and half year
Receiving updates on the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
and the associated training and whistleblowing policies
Techrical updates on Annual Report and Accounts key
developments, 2020 year end reporting environment, corporate
governance matters and future developments

Reviewing the Group's risk management activities undertaken by
eachbusiness area, and at Group level to identfy and assess the
Group's principal risks

» Monitoring and assessing the Group’s insurance arrangements

The report of the Audit Committee for the 2020 financial year
explains how its responsibilities have been carried out during
the year.

COMMITTEE EFFECTIVENESS

As part of corporate governance, the Committee's performance and
effectiveness was reviewed in the year as part of the review of Board
and Committee effectiveness conducted by the Company
Secretary, further details are on page 78.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

Deloitte have served as external auditors to the Company since
April 2016. The Committee engaged with Delaitte to ensure this
key area of oversight was appropriately maintained.

The Committee periodically meets privately with the lead audit
partner and senior members of the audit team to discuss their work
and findings, particularly in relation to the key areas of audit risk
previously identified.
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AUDITOR ROTATION AND TENDERING AND
COMPETITION AND MARKETS AUTHORITY ORDER -
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The Committes carried out an audit tender process in 2015 resulting
inthe appointment of Deloitte as external auditors in April 2016.
Deloitte's re-appointment in 2020 was approved by shareholders at
the Company's AGM in April 2020. The year ended 31 December
2020 is the fourth year for the lead audit partner Christopher Powell,
The Committee confirms that the Company is compliant with the
provisions of the Statutory Audit Services for Large Companies
Market Investigation {(Mandatory Use of Competitive Tender
Processes and Audit Committee Responsibilities) Order 2014,

for the year ended 31 December 2020,

AUDIT OF THE 2020 ANNUAL REPORT

At the end of 2020, Deloitte presented their audit plan for the
year which the Committee considered and then approved.
Deloitte highlighted the key areas of risk, which were primarily
identified as areas of judgement and complexity and were
consistent with those areas identified by the Committee. As part
of the audit process, Deloitte then presented a detailed report of
their audit findings, which was reviewed and discussed. A similar
process is undertaken for the half year results.

AUDIT EFFECTIVENESS

Te support the Committee in evaluating the effectiveness of the
external guditors, a questionnaire based evaluation is circulated to
internal stakeholders who have had the most interaction with the
external auditors during the audit process, The data is collated into
a score card which is used to assess the strengths and
weaknesses of the external auditors.

Management and the external auditors then address any areas of
weakness intheir regular review meetings, and the lead audit partner
from Deloitte updates the Committee on how areas of weakness are
being addressed.

The Committee also monitors audit effectiveness by reviewing the
Augit Quality Inspection reports published by the FRC.

The Committee will formally assess Deloitte’s performance in
relation to the 2020 audit following its completion. It is intended
that a resolution to re-appoint Deloitte as the external auditor wil!
be proposed at the 20271 AGM.

AUDIT INDEPENDENCE

The Committee considers the external auditors’ objectivity and
independence at least twice a year. It receives reports from
Deioitte onits internal quality controls and independence rules andg
considers carefully the extent of the non-audit services proviged
by Deloitte. The Committee is of the view that Deloitte was
objective and independent throughout the 2020 audit process
notwithstanding the level of non-audit services provided.




KEY JUDGEMENTS AND AREAS OF SIGNIFICANT FOCUS

The following table sets out the significant matters considered by the Committee during the year in relation to the financial statements.
Further information on these judgements are detailed in Note 1 of the accounts,

Key judgements

How the Committee has addressed these matters

Going Concern

Given the continuing significant uncertainties resulting from the impact of COVID-18 on the economic
environment in which the Gioup uperates, and the material uncertainty arcund going concern reported at the half
year, the Committee have placed a particular focus on the appropriateness of adopting the going concern basis in
preparing the consclidated financial statements for the twelve months ended 31 Decermber 2020.

To support the Committeg's assessment, Management produced three models over a future perfod of three years
from the date of these accounts — a base case, a downside case and a reverse stress case with cashflows for each
demonstrating the position of the company regarding its two financial covenants — Net Debt/EBITDA and Interest
cover at each measurement period for the 18 months following the date of signing of these accounts.

Having agreed covenant relaxations with our lenders in March and September 2020, the revised provisionin

our banking arrangements is for the net debt/EBITDA covenant to step down from 3,75x at pregent to 3.25x in June
2022. Under both the base and downside cases the Group is expected to remain within its financial covenants
throughout the going congern pericd and the conditions necessary for the reverse stress case tobe applicable
were deemed sufficiently remote. As such the Committee concluded it was apprapriate for the Group to adopt the
going concern basis for these accounts.

Environmental
provision

A process consistent with 20712 for the evaluation of environmental provisions was followed by management,
the key area of judgement being the discount rate used for future liabilities. In 2019, the discount rate was 1%
for the UK and 2% for the US. The Committee considered these discount rates and decided that revised rates
of 0.8% for the UK and 1.7% for the US would reflect current market assessments of the time value of money
and risks specific to the liabilities and therefore appropriate for 2020.

Impairment testing of
goodwillin relaticnto
the Talc CGU

Critical accounting estimates arise in determining the value in use for the goodwill balances testad, which require
assessments of the achievability of business plans {and therefore future cash flows), growth rates beyond the
period covered by the five-year business plans and appropriateness of the discount rates applied to future cash
flows. A report from management was discussed setting out the basis for the assumptions and confirmation that
the cash flows used were derived from the 2020 three year plan (which in their role as members of the Board,
Committee members had previously reviewed and approved).

The Committee has reviewed the robustness of the impairment model, challenged the appropriateness of the key
assumptions used to calculate valug in use Including forecast sales volumes, sefling prices, growthrates usedto
extrapolate beyond the forecast period and the discount rates applied to the resulting cash flows.

After considering these items, and also the impairment of $33.4m made to goodwil relating to the Talc CGU atthe
half year, the Committee concluded na further impairment was necessary at 31 December 2020.

Revenue recognition

The main area of judgement continues to be in relation to recognition of revenue from shipments by sea.
The Committee satisfied itself that the Group had appropriately recognised revenues in accordance with their
contractual obligations during the period, paying particular attention to period end cut-off.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES AND FEES INTERNAL CONTROLS & RISK

The Group has anagreed policy with regard to the provision of audit AND RISK MANAGEMENT

and non-audit services by the external auditor, which has operated The Committee's role is to review the effectiveness of the internal
throughout 2020 ang is available onthe Company's website. control, compliance and risk management systems whichit carries

Under the palicy, the CFQ may approve individual engagements where  outin support of the Board's formal review of significant risks and
the fee is up to 15% of the Group's audit fee for the year, provided that material controls, as summarised in the Risk managementreport on
the non non-audit fees in the year do not exceed 50% of that Graup pages 56 to 58.

audit fee. Decisions above thase thresholds must be referredto the
Committee for determination.

Audit fees ($m)

Assurance related services ($m) 0.1 a1

PwC provide an outsourced intemal audit function. The Committes
considers that the vaiue of internal audit is enhanced by having a third
2020 2019 party perform this function, to support the independent challenge of
2.2+ 14 management and give greater access to expertise and resources
thanan internal function could provide. The internal audit planis based
on areview of the Group's key risks which are considered high risk or

Norj-auditfees ($m} 0.1 00 have not been subjectto arecent audit.
Ratio of non-audit fees to audit fees (%) 4,5% 0%
Total fees [$m) 2.4 15 The 2020 internal audit planwas discussed and agreed between

“Ircludes $0.3rm of extra fees relating to the 201& group audit

managerment and PwC ahead of it being considered and subsequently
approved by the Committee. Management review the schedule with
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

PwC on a guarterly basis and adapt the schedule during the year to
incorporate any new or increasad risks which materialise. This is ther
reviewed and approved by the Committee.

The outcome of the Internal reports are provided to the Committee,
alongside any remedial actions.

Following an evaluation of the services provided by PwC inrespect
of the internal audit, the Committee ¢onfirms that both the process for
determining the internal audit programme, and the programme itself,
are appropriate and effective. Required actions have arisen from the
review of principal risks and uncertainties, management monitoring
activities and internal and external auditreports, relating to inventory
management within the Chromium division; the recognition of
deferred and current taxation; user access contrels and segregation
of duties within certain finance systems; and the preparation of the
goodwill impairment modeis used and the precision of the
management review controls of those models. Management have
putin place a planto address these control findings, which the Audit
Committee will aversee. Set out below is a summary of the key

features of the Group’s interna! controls and risk management system.

CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

The Group has policies and procedures that setout the
respensibilities of business and site management, including authority
levels, reporting disciplines and responsibility for risk management
and internal controls. Inagdition, annual compliance statements on
internal controls are certified by each operating segment.

RISK IDENTIFICATION AND REVIEW

A formalrisk review process exists at Board and ELT levels for the
identification, evaluation, mitigation and ongcing monitoring of
risks, including emerging risks. Further details can be found on
pages 5910 62.

INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRAMME

Aninternal audit programme is proposed by PwC in consultation

with the CFO and approved by the Commitiee each year, setting

out a programme of audits over the course of the next 12 months.
The pragramme covers the menitoring of the effectiveness of internal
controls and the design of processes to test the effectiveness of
controls. As well as conducting audits of operating facilities, sales
offices and tolling sites on a two to three year rotational basis, the
internal audit programme includes reviews of Group functions

and processes.,

During 2020, the following audits were undertaken {with three cther
audits being deferred until 2027 due to the impact of COVID-19):

= Contract governance and compliance

= Creditmanagement and collections

* Cyber security = maturity and incident response preparedness
» Environmental, social and governance framework assurance

= Livingston site

+ Newberry Springs site

+ Supplier management

« Traveland expenses

INTERNAL AUDITOR EFFECTIVENESS

To support the Committee in evaluating the effectiveness of the
internal auditor programme, a questionnaire based evaluationis
completed by employees who have had the most interaction with the
internal auditors during the year. Ascorecard is reviewed by the
Committee to assess the strengths and weaknesses of the internal
auditors. The effectiveness of the internal audit function was
confirmed and agreed by the Committee.
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CONTROLS ASSURANCE

The cantrols assurance framework at Elementis is as follows:

+ Boardleadership supperted by an open and transparent culture

of ‘no surprises’, good governance and compliance. This means

knowing and understanding the businesses, and guality

interactions between the Board and the Executive Leadership Team

fincluding a regular programme of presentations and reports to the

Board, as well as operational site visits}

Internal and external audit prograrmmes, regular litigation and

compliance reviews with the General Counse!

« Aprogramme of compliance audits, regulatory inspections,
environmental reviews and property surveys by external specialists

+ Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, on which all employees are
giventraining and are required to self-certify compliance with,
supplemenited by an online complience training programime, an
anti-bribery and corruption policy, which contractors are also
required ta sigrnup to, whistieblowing arrangements and arn
anti-retaiiation policy

WHISTLEBLOWING

The Group's whistieblowing faciiity is accessible on a 24/7 basis,

365 days of the year and provides arrangements for an independent
service provider to receive, in confidence, reports of breaches of

any legal or Company policy or standards, including those refated to
accounting, auditing, risk, internal control and related matters.

Details of how to access this service are referenced in the Code of
Conduct, posters are available at each site and via the compliance
training portal. The Committee have oversight of reports aof this nature.
In 2020, there were sixreports, all of which were duly investigated and
closed during the year.

FAIR, BALANCED AND UNDERSTANDABLE

The Committee adopted a similar approach as in previous years to
ensure that the Annua! Reportis farr, balanced and understandable,
The process was as follows:

« Aninternal Annual Report team (ART} was set up to manage the
process. The ART consisted of members drawn fram Group
Finance, Company Secretariat and Investor Relations teams.

The ART was responsible for reqularly reviewing work and ensuring
balanced reporting with appropriate links between key messages
and sections of the Annual Report

* The Committee Chairman held meetings with the audit partner, and
the Committee held meetings with the external auditors without
management being present

« Anaudit clearance meeting was held with the Committee Chairman,
CFO and members of the Finance team alongside the audit partner
and auditteam members

» The Committee received updatas from managerment on the Annual
Report progress and audit throughout the process as well as from
the Company's brekers and other advisers

+ The Committee, Chairman and Executive Directors reviewed the
ArnualReport inits final stages

Following this process, the Committee and then the Board were able
to confirm that the Annual Report, taken as a whole, is fair. balanced
and understandable and provides the necessary information for
shareholders to assess the Group's position, perfermance, business
model and strategy.

ANNEHYLAND
CHAIRMAN, AUDIT COMMITTEE



Directors’' Remuneration report

STEVE GOOD
CHAIRMAN
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

As Chair of the Remuneration
Committee (the 'Committee’), | am
pleased to present the Directors'’
Remuneration report for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The reportis set outin the following parts:

1. This Annual Statement from the Chair of the Remuneration
Committee surmmarising how our Remuneration Policy has been
implemented and the key decisions taken by the Committee

2. An At a glance section providing an overview of how we
implemented the Remuneration Policy during the year
under review

3. The Remuneration Policy in respect of continuing application
of existing Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be submitted
to shareholders in a binding vote at the AGM to be held on
13 May 2021

4. The Annual Report on Remuneration which provides full detail
cn how we paid Directors during 2020 and how we propose to
implement the policy in 2021

The Remuneration Policy and the Annual Report on Remuneration
will be presented to shareholders for approval at the AGM on
13 May 2021 and | hope you will vote in support of the resolutions.

ATTENDANCE AT REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
MEETINGS

Steve Good (Chair) L 11 11]
Sandra Boss! L 1)
Dorothee Deuring TYYY
Nick Salmon' . L 1 ]
John O'Higgins? L 111 1)
—ahrist'me Soden; ]

1 Nick Salmon and Sandra Boss stood down from the Board and the
Committee on 29 April 2020.

2 John O'Higgins joined the Committee on 4 February 2020.
3 Christine Sodenjoined the Committes on 1 November 2020,

INDEX PAGE

Annual Statement of the Chair of the
Remunegration Committee

Remuneration ataglance

Directors’ remuneration policy

Palicy report

REMUNERATION POLICY

As a global specialty chemicals company that utilises manufacturing
technology and scientific inngvation to detiver high value products
to our clients, our Remuneration Policy has been designed with a
natural bias towards long term performance which aligns with the
long term nature of our business.

The 2021 AGM marks the third anniversary of the adeption of

the current Directors’ Remuneration Policy and in line with UK
Directors' remuneration regulations, we are required to submit the
Policy to sharehoiders for approval this year. Given the impact of
the pandemic since early 2020, the Committee consideredthat the
most appropriate course of action would be to roll-over the current
Policy at the 2021 AGM, with the intention that an in-depth review
would be undertaken later in 2021 and a refreshed Policy be
presented at the 2022 AGM. On this basis, shareholder approval
will be sought for the continuing application of the existing
Directors’ Remuneration Policy untilthe 2022 AGM.
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CHRECTORS REMUNERATION REFOQRT CONTINUED

The Committee reached this conclusion on the following rationale:

* The current Policy is considered to have worked effectively,
complies with the majority of best practice governance
requirerments and the approach to aligning pensions with the
warkforce has already been agreed

* Undertaking a review of Directors’ remuneration during 2020
would have resulted in diverting management time away from
guiding the business through the unprecedented challenges
arising as a resuit of COVID-19

« Given the uncertainty over the medium to long-termimpact of
COVID-19, deferring the Policy review work enables a considered
response to be taken inrelation to its impact on future
remuneration design [if any}

Investors were consulted on this approach and were supportive.
The only updates to the Policy are therefore from a drafting
perspective. In particular, we have reflected the phased reducticn
to incumbent Executive Director pension levels to those typical
in the wider UK workforce and alignment of the pension policy for
new Executive Directors with that in force for new joiners to the
UK workforce. This is as set out inlast year's Directors’
Remunerationreport.

The Committee did note that whitst the Pelicy is in line with the majority
of gorporate governance best practice, a post-cessation share
awnership guideline had nat yvet been adopted. The Committee has
however agreed that this will be a feature of the policy renewal to take
place atthe 2022 AGM and that it expects to introduce a guideline that
reflects both current Institutional investor expectations and market
practice at that time. The details of the operation of the guideline will
be finalised during 2021 for adoptionin 2022.

REMUNERATION IN 2020

Against the backdrop of the pandemic, 2020 has been a
challenging year but one ih which our management team
responded strongly.

In March 2020, as the COVID 19 pandemic began to be felt around
the giote, the Company's immediate priority was to safeguard
the health and wellbeing of cur employees, and to support our
customers. Given the pandemic significantly impacted demand
across our key markets, the Board took decisive early steps

to mitigate against any material adverse financial impact.

This focused on cash flow optimisation via cost savings, working
capital reguction and tight management of capex. We also took
the decision to suspend our 2019 dividend payment and not to
declare an interim 2020 dividend with a view to preserving cash.
The Board’s proactive response enabled the Company to deliver
rasilient performance as demand in some of our key markets has
started to recover and we continued to achieve strong progress
against our (nnovation, Growth and Efficiency strategy.

Key highlights of the year included the launch of 12 new products,
capturing over $30m of new business opportunities and delivering
$15m of in year cost savings.

Qur ability to deliver the performance achieved during the year
was a testament {o the commitment and professionalism of our
employees. Whilst tough choices were made, the Board was
grateful that the Company was not in a position to have to
implement pay cuts for the workforce, or place significant relisnce
on government support or government guaranteed loans,
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Annual bonus

Whilst we performed resiliently in 2020 and met the bonus targetsin
part, including exceeding our threshold working capital target and
achieving strengly against our non-financial strategic targets, the
Executive Directors recommended, and the Committee agreed, that
no bonuses should be payable in relation to 2020 performance.

In determining that no bonuses should be payable, the Cormmittee
recognised the progress achieved following the onget of COVID-19in
targetingimprovements to our management of working capitaiand,

in particular, the amount of inventories held, which notwithstanding
the reduced volume of business during the year. resulted in partial
achievemnent against the targets originally set. The Committee aiso
noted the Executive Directors’ robust performance against their
strategic targets with strong progress in the areas of new business
sales, business synergies and cost savings delivered. However, inthe
context of reduced overall profitability as a result of COVID-19, and the
decision to sugpend dividend payments in 2020, it was not considered
appropriate to pay bonuses.

Further details of the targets set for 2020, and performance
againstthem, are disclosed on pages 106 to 107. The Committee
continues to provide detailed disclosure for non-financiai targets
following feedback from shareholders.

Long term incentive plan (LTIP)

The 2020 LTIP awards were granted on 7 April 2020. However, the
awards were granted cn arevised basis vis-3-vis awards granted in
previous years.

Firstly, to reflect the prevailing share price which was impacted by
COV|D-19, the number of shares comprising the award was set with
reference to a notional share price of 73.5p versus the closing
share price from the day before grant (8 April 2020) of 49p.In effect,
this resulted in the normal headline award levels of 200% of salary
for the Chief Executive and 175% of salary for the Chief Financial
Officer being reduced by 33%. On an equivalent multipie of salary
basis this resulted in awards being granted at 135% of salary for the
Chief Executive and 117.5% of salary for the Chief Financial Officer.
The Committee also retains discretion to reduce the number of
shares on vesting should it be considered appropriate, including
inthe event of a perceived windfall gain,

Secondly, inlight of the impact of the COVID 18 pandemic,

the Committee censidered that given its increased strategic
importance, cash canversion should be included as an additionai
performance measure in the 2020 LTIP award in addition to EPS
growth and relative TSR, This change was made prior to the grant

of the award with full details of the performance measures and

the targets disclosed in the RNS announcement upon grant.

The introduction of cash conversion as a metric differed from

the preliminary performance metrics set out inlast year's Directors’
Remuneration report. However, given the range of cash conversion
targets were set to reflect our publicly stated mid-term target of
90%, and the range of EPS growth targets and TSR targets remained
unchanged as per the intended grant disclosediniast year's
Directors’ Remuneration report, the Committee was comfortable
that the targets were appropriate and, overall, mere demanding in
the context of COVID-19 than targets set in prior years. The vesting
of the award is also subject ta a return on capital employed underpin
which requires the Committee to consider whether the return
generated is in line with the Board's expectations and if not, to
reduce the vesting to a more appropriate level,



The Committee entered into dialogue with the Company’s major
shareholders in refation to the revised approach to guantum and
target setting for the 2020 awards and did not receive any
negative feedback.

Full details of the targets and the awards are set out on page 108.
To the extent these awards vest at the end of the three year
nerformance period, shares will be required to be held for a further
two years.

The 2018 LTIP Awards that were subject to EPS growth and TSR
performance targets measured over the three years to 31 December
2020 will not vest due to the required levels of performance not
being achieved. Further details are included on page 108.

The Committee believes that the overall incentive outturns and
approach to targat setting for 2020 (as detailed above} were
appropriate based on the Company's performance over the whole
period and demonstrates that the Cormmittee has, and will continue
to, set performance targets which it considers to be meaningful
and appropriatety stretching.

With regards to use of Committee discretion during the year, as
detailed above, following recommendation from the Executive
Directors, the Committee used its discretion to reduce the
formulaic 2020 bonus cutcome to zerc given that it was not
considered appropriate to make bonus payments in light of
COVID-19.

REMUNERATICN IN 2G21

Consistent with the Committee's decision to roll-over the
Remuneration Policy for 2021 and noting there has beenno
material change to the Company s strategic priorities versus 2020
there will be no changes te the application of policy proposed for
2021, with the revised 2020 LTIP performance metrics also being
retained for 2021, The key points to note include:

Salary review: In line with the 2% salary increases set for
employees inthe UK and US, the Executive Directors base salary
increases will be 2% for 2021.

Pension reductions: In line with the previously communicated
glidepath detailed in last year's Directors’ Remuneration report,
pension contributions forincumbent Executive Directors will
continue to be reduced from 249% of salary to 22.5% of salary on

1 December 2021. The final phased reduction in pension
contributionwill be on 1 December 2022 to 21%, which will bring
incumbent directors in line with the typical funding cost of pension
benefits for UK employees as determined in 2019. To provide
further context, both the median and upper guartile employee
includedin the pay ratio analysis in the 2019 Directors’
Remuneration report had a funding cost (as a percentage of salary)
inexcess of the 21% of salary {.e. typical 2019 UK employee
pension provision was circa 21% in 2019). New Executive Directors
will be aligned with the average new joiner UK employee pension
rate of 8%.

2021 annual bonus: There will be no change to the quantum of
the Executive Director banus opportunity and as such the CEC
will have the opportunity to earn up to 150% of salary and the CFO
up te 125% of salary.

As for 2020, the bonus wilt be based 70% against a challenging
range of financial targets {50% on adjusted Group profit before tax
and 20% on average trade working capital to sales ratic (AWC} on
total operations), 10% on Safety and Envircnment and 20% based

on the delivery of specific and measurable objectives that are
related to the Company's strategic priorities. 50% of any bonus
earned is deferred in shares for two years.

Summary details of cur approach to target setting are detailed

on page 93 and full detaiis of the financial target ranges and our
performance against them will be disclosed on aretrospective
basis in next year's report. The Committee has discretion to modify
the overall amount of bonus payable to ensure it is appropriate.

2021 LTIP Awards: Awards are expected to be granted at 200%
of salary for the Chief Executive and 175% of salary for the Chief
Financial Officer. In determining the award sizes, the Committee
considered the degree of stretch in the targets noting both the
minimal vasting at the threshold perfcrmance levels (which is well
below market norms) and the demanding nature of the financial
targets set in light of ongoing challenging market conditions.

The primary performance targets will be as per the 2020 awards
and will be 33% based on EPS, 33% based on cash conversionand
33% based on TSR performance conditions.

* The EPStargets will be set based on the level of EPS achieved
in 2023 with vesting to take place from 10 cents per share {cps)
to 13 cps for threshold to maximum vesting which runs from 0%
to 100% on a straight-line basis. EPS is to be set with reference
to 2023 EPS to take account of the relatively low EPS base for FY
2020 which includes the impact of COVID-19. Itis the
Committee’s intention to consider a return to setting EPS targets
based on a range of annual growth targets from the previous
year's EPS in due course. The Committee considers the 2023
EPS target to be appropriately stretching inlight of the progress
made with our Company's strategy after having had regard to
current internal planning and external broker forecasts for our
future performance in light of current market conditions.

+ Thecash conversion targets witl again be set based on a range
of 86% to 95% which aligns with the Company's publicly stated
medium term target. Threshold te maximum vesting runs from
0% to 100% on a straight-line basis

« TSRwill continue to be assessed against the constituents
of the FTSE All Share index [excluding investment trusts).
Threshold vesting starting at 3.85% for median performance,
increasing on a graduated basis with 100% vesting for achieving
stretch targets, which for TSR will require at least upper
quartite performance.

The 2021 LTIP awards will also be subject to areturn on capital
employed ungerpin and general Committee discretion. The return
on capital employed underpin will require the Committeg to
consider the vesting resuit determined based on the application
of the EPS, cash conversion and TSR performance conditions in
light of the return on capital employed achieved during the three
year period ending 31 December 2023 relative to the Board's
internal plans over the period. If the Committee does not consider
the vesting result appropriate in light of the return on capital
employed achieved in this context, the underpin enables vesting
to be reduced to a more appropriate level. The general discretion
the Commitiee retains will require the Committee to consider on
vasting if it considers there to have been a windfall gain and, if so,
reduce the vesting level to a level considered reflactive of
underlying financial performance.
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DIRECTORE REMUNFERATION REPORT CONTINUED

CONTEXT OF DIRECTORS' PAY WITHIN

THE COMPANY

In 2019, Sandra Boss was appeinted the Designated Non-
Executive Director (DNED) for workforce engagement with
Christine Soden taking over this responsibility on appointment.
During the year we held employee focus groups inthe US, China,
Finland and Germany tc gather employee feedback on pay and
benefits. This followed an analysis of our employee engagement
survey results and will result in a communication and education
programme throughout 2021,

The Group is not required to provide disclosure of the CEC to all
employee pay ratio given the Group has less than 250 employees
in the UK. However, given the external focus on pay ratios the
Committee has included full pay ratio disclosure on page 111.
The Committee noted that the ratio was towards the lower end

of practice range of those previously disclosed by FTSE

350 companies.

AT A GLANCE

OUR MEASURES

ANNUAL BONUS

Adjusted Group profit before tax:
50% weighting

Adjusted average trade working capital to
sales ratio [AWC):

The Groupis alsc not required {o report under the gender pay gap
regulations. Despite this, the Group reviews gender pay on a biennial
basis. In 2020 the salary and bonus gaps were 26% at the mean and
7% at the median which was a reduction from 42% and 15% in 2018,
The reduction in the gap follows an internal review of pay differentials
with action taken to address any areas where legacy pay issues were
identified. CEO pay ratio and gender pay gap ratios will be taken into
account when there is a full review of the Executive Director and
wider Remuneration Policy in 2021.

CONCLUDING REMARKS

The Committee believes that the Policy and our approach to
implementation in both 2020 and 2021 are in the bestinterests of
the Company and we hope that you wlll support the actions the
Committee has taken by voting Infavour at the 2021 AGM. If you
have any concerns, please feel free to contact me via the Group
Company Secretary at company.secretariat@elementis.com.

STEVEGOOD
CHAIRMAN REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

2020 LTIP

Earnings per share (EPS):
33% weighting

Relative Total Shareholder Return {TSR):
33% weighting

20% weighting <€ > Cash Conversion:
Non-financial objectives (aligned with 33% weighting
strategic implementation, safety and
environment and people:)
20% weighting - Strateqgic implementation RQOCE underpin
and People
10% weighting - Safety and environment
HOW OUR MEASURES LINK TO STRATEGY
Strategic pricrities
Performance metrics Innovation Growth Efficiency
Bonus Financial: (70%)
Adjusted Group profit before tax ® L ®
Average trade warking capital to sales ratio o @
Non-financial: {30%)
Safety, compliance and risk management ® ® L]
Strategic implementation o L] [ ]
People L} ® e
LTip EPS (33%) o L] ®
Relative TSR versus FTSE All Share (33%) L ® ®
Cash Conversion (33%) P
Return on operating capital employed (underpin) [ ] L ®
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IMPLEMENTATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY FOR 2020

The section below summarises how the Policy was implemented in the financial year ending 31 December 2020, Further details are

provided on pages 101 to 110,

Key Policy features Performance assessment

How we implemented in 20207

Salary Not applicable
* Increases normally guided by the generalincrease for

the local workforce andfor broader workforce as

awhole

Paul Waterman  Ralph Hewins
2020 salary £715,868* £362,237

* Equivalent to $917,741

Inline with the average increases awarded to the
US and UK salaried workforce, the salaries of the
CEQ and CFO were increased by 2% and 2.2%
respectively. These changes were effective from
1 January 2020.

Pension/benefits/all employee share schemes Notapplicable
+ Pension: In line with the phased pension contribution

announced last year, the CEO and CFO pension

contribution reduced to 24% of salary, effective from

1 December 2020,
« Benefits: Directors receive market competitive benefits

and may participate in all-employee share schemes

PaulWaterman Ralph Hewins
Pansion £178,370" £90,257

* Equivalentto $228,670
Implementation inline with the Policy.

Executive Directors’ pensions have been and will
bereduced inphases to be in aligned with tha
pensicn provision of the median employee:

= From 1 January 2020: 25%

+ From 1 December 2020: 24%

* From 1 December 2027: 22.5%
= From1 December 2022: 21%

Annual bonus Paul Waterman Ralph Hewins

* Performance relted Opportunity  150%ofsalary  125% of satary
scheme which delivers -
value for achievement BT $54m vs target of $97.2m
against annual targets Payout

* Committee may adjust {50% of bonus) 0% of PBT maximum
outturn where formulaic AWGC 23.8% vs target of 23.3%

. assessmentisinconsistent  Payout

with Company's {20% of bonus) 50% of AWC maximum
overall performance Non-financial See page 106 to 107

* 50% of anus earned 73.3% of 71.7% of
deferred into shares for Payout Non-financial Non-financial
two years _ ‘ {30% of bonus) maximum maximum

. Recqvgry and withholding 32% of 31.5% of
provisions apply Total maximum maximum

Further information can be found on pages
10610 107.

As detalled in the Annual Statement on page 87
whilst resilient performance was deliveredin 2020
and the bonus targets were met in part, including
exceeding our threshold working capital target and
achieving strongly against our non-financial
strategic targets, the Executive Directors
recommeanded and the Committee agreed that no
bonuses should be payable inrelation to

2020 performance.
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

IMPLEMENTATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY FOR 2020 CONTINUED

TSRvsFTSEAN  Sincethe performance targets were notmetin

Share  relation to the 2018 LTIP award, ho vesting will

50%  lakeplace.

Long term incentive plan Average EPS

» Performance measures 2018 Award growth
based onfinancial and/or Weighting 50%
relative TSR metrics and Threshald 3% pa. Median
measured over 3 years target

+ Committee may adjust

i a. artil
outturn where formulaic ::I::;;Tum 10%pa Upper quartile
assessmentis inconsistent -
with Company’s Actual -583%pa.  16th percentile
overall performance Vesting 0%/50% 0%/50%

+ Holding period applies for
two years following vesting

Further information can be found on

RalphHewins  Boththe CEO and CFO increased their holdings

200% of salary during the year.

Ontrack Further informaticn can be found on page 110,

« Recoveryand withhalding pages 10810 109.
provisions apply
Sharg ownership _guic_jelines Paul Waterman
+ Buildup and maintsin a Guideline 200% of salary
shareholding equal to 2C0%
of salary Ontrack
Level 123% of salary®  49% of salary’

1 For the purposes of the guideline, an estimate has
beenmagde Inrelation to the after tax number of shares
in relation to vested/unexercised share awards.

IMPLEMENTATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY FOR 2021
The section below summarises how the Committee intends to implement the Policy for the forthcoming financial year ending

31 December 2021.
Key Policy features

2021 implementation

Salary

+ Levelbased on the scope and responsibilities of the role

= Increases hormally guided by the general increase for the local
warkforce and/or broader workforce as a whole

+ The Committee reviewed salaries and decided to award Paul
Waterman and Ralph Hewins each a salary increase as shown in
the table below, which is congistent with the average increase in
year for the regpective US and UK salaried workforce.

PaulWaterman Ralph Hewins

Salary as at 1 January 20 $917,740 £362,237
Salary as at 1 January 21 $936,096 £369.482
2021 Increase {+2%) {+2%)

Pension/ benefits/ all empioyee share schemes

+ Pension: CEQ participates in US specific arrangements and
receives a salary supplement and the CFQO receives a
salary supplement

= Any new Director appointment will have pension set at 8%
of salary

» Benefits: Diractors receive market competitive benefits and may
participate in all-employee share schemes

* Implementation in line with the Policy

* Pension rates for incumbent Directors are on a glidepath to be
aligned with the typical individual pension funding rates
prevalent at the time of the Directors’ appointment (see page 110
for further detail)
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Key Palicy features

2021 implementation

Annual bonus

* Policy maxirmum of 160% of salary for CEQ and 125% of salary
for CFO

» Performance related scheme which delivers value for
achigvement against annual targets

= Committec may agjust cutturm where formulaic assessmentis
inconsistent with Company’s overall performance

» 50% of bonus earned deferred intg shares for two years

* Recovery and withholding provisions apply

Link to KPIs

= Adjusted Group PBT

= AWC

+ Individual objectives linked to strategic priorities

PaulWaterman Ralph Hewins

150% of 125% of

Opportunity salary salary

Performance metrics:

+ Adjusted Group PBT. 50%

» Average trade working capital to sales ratio: 20%

» Non-financial strategic priorities: 30%

+ The Committee considers that the bonus targets are commercially
sensitive and therefore plans to disclose themoniyona
retrospective basis in next year's Directors’ Remuneration repart.

+ Therange of targets around budgeted performance lavels 1o apply
in 2021 has been calibrated to take into account the current
external environment and internal planning.

Long term incentive plan

= Policy maximumis 250% of salary

» Awards vest to the extent performance conditions are achieved

= Performance measures based on financial and/or relative TSR
metrics and measured over three years with a ROCE underpin

+ Committee may adjust outturn where formulaic assessment is
inconsistent with Company’s overall performance and/or thereis
a perceived windfall gain

= Helding period applies for two years following vesting

+ Recovery and withholding provisions appty

» ROCE underpinintroduced for the 2019 awards continues
1o apply

Link to KPIs

+ EPS
* Relative TSR

Paul Waterman  Ralph Hewins

200% of 175% of
LTIP Award salary salary
Performance metrics:
Threshald Threshold Maximum
Weighting target vesting target
10 cents 13 cents
FY 2023 £EPS 33%  pershare Q0%  pershare
Cash
conversion 33% 85% 0% 95%
Relative TSR vs
FTSE all-share Upper
index 33% Median 3.85% quartile

« Therange of EPS targetsis considered to be appropriately
demanding noting (i} that vesting takes place from 0% {as opposed
10 the market norm of 25%), and (i) In lIne with institutional investor
expectations such that the range straddles consensus
growth expectations

= Cash conversion is three year average Qperating Cash Conversion

Chair and NED fees

» Toattract individuals with the relevant skills, knowledge and
experience that the Board considers necessary in order to
maintain an optimal mix that ensures the effectiveness of the
Board as a whole in carrying out its duties and responsibilities

» Intine with treatment for the UK workforce, fees will increase by
2% for the upcoming year

2021

2021 2020 Increase
Basic fees
Chairman £198,957 £195055 (+ 2%}
Non-Executive Directar £52,294 £51,268 (+2%})
Additlonal fees
Senior Independent Director £9.087 £8.908 (+2%})
Chair of Audit or
Remuneration Committee £9,087 £8,208 (+2%)
Workforce engagement NED £4,544 £4,454 (+2%)
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

REMUNERATION POLICY REPORT

The Company’s existing Remuneration Policy was appraved by shareholders at the Company’s 2018 AGM anhd took effect from the date of
that meeting. As stated in the Chairman's statement, the Committee are propesing the rollover of the current Palicy for approval at the
2021 AGM, and if approved this will be the effective date of the Policy although it will be applied for the full financial year given it is
essentially the same Policy as is currently in operation. A full Palicy review will be conducted in 2021 with a view to presenting an amended
Policy at the 2022 AGM.

The only minor amendment tc the Policy presanted at the 2021 AGM, is ta farmalise the changes to pension which had been agreed and
communicated in the 2019 Directors' Remuneration report. This is a phased reduction to incumbent Executive Director pension provision
so that the level of Company contributian in relation to pension is set to be aligned (as & percentage of salary) with the typical annual
funding rate of pension benefits for UK employees as calculated in 2012, Newly appainted Executive Directars will be aligned with newly
appointed UK employees, Further summary details of this change are included in the Remuneration Committee Chair's Introductary
Statement in this Report with the details of the changes made set outin full in the 2019 Directors’ Remuneration report.

The current Policy is aligned with the six factors listed in Provision 40 of the UK Corporate Governance Code:

= Clarity -the Policy is set out as transparently as possible and the workforce engagement director retaing oversight of employee
cemmunication and education. We proactively consult our shareholders on any proposed changes to remuneration policy.

* Simplicity —the Remuneration Policy is structured as simply as possible however a degree of complexity is required to align pay and
performance. Performance metrics are chosento focus on the key operaticonal, financial and strategic performance objectives of
the business.

= Risk-the Remuneration Policy has been shaped to discourage inappropriate risk taking including long-term performance

measurement, deferral and shareholding guidelines. The Committee retains discretion to override formulaic outcomes.

Predictability - elements of the Policy are subject to caps and dilution limits. Examples of how remuneration varies depending on

performance is set out in the scenario charts.

= Proportionality - there is a sensible balance between fixed pay and variable pay. and incentive pay is weighted to sustainable long-
term performance.

= Alignmentto culture - the Policy is weighted towards performance related pay which reflects supports a performance-based culture
and the non-financial targets encourage innovation and optimisation which are also central to the Eilementis culture and is aligned to
Company values. These factors will be reconsidered as a part of the full policy review conductad in 2021,

POLICY TABLE
The information in the 1able below sets out the remuneration policy for the different elements that make up total temuneration applying
to Directors.

Basic salary

Purpose and link to Targeted at a level to attract and retain world class executives who are essential to drive the

Company's strategy business forward and deliver the Company's strategic goals.

How it operates Annual salary increases that are broadly in line with the local workforce (in percentage of salary

in practice terms}, subject to Committee approval.
Increases beyond the average of those granted to the local workforce (in percentage of salary
terms) may be awarded in certain circumstances, such as where there s a material change in
responsibility or experience of the individual, to recognise exceptional performance over a
sustaihed period or a significant increase in the complexity, size or value of the Company.
Where new joiners or recent promations have been placed on a below market rate of pay initially, a
series of increases above those granted to the local workforce {in percentage of salary terms) may
be given over the following few years subject to individual performance and development in
therole.
Salarigs are normally reviewed in December and any changes are effective from 1 January inthe
following year.

Maximum There is no prescribed maximum for salary increases, The Committee will be guided by the general

potential value increase for the local workfarce and/ar broader warkforce as & whole, as well as the circumstarnices

listed above.
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Benefits

Purpose andlink to
Company's strategy

Tc aid retention and to remain competitive in the marketplace. Healthcare benefits in order to
minimise business disruption.

Executive Directors may also participate along with other employees in the Group's HMRC
approved SAYE or other equivalent savings based share schemes to share inthe success of
the Group.

How it operates
in practice

Life assurance and private medical health insurance are provided.
Provision of either a company car (for business and personal purposes) or a car allowance.

Payments in connection with an international assignment and payments in connection with a
refocation, which would typically be paid for a transitionary period only, tailored to the location of
each executive. The benefits may include provision of tax advice where, at the Company's request,
the international iocation {or bajance of time spent in different locations] is changed.

Participation in all employee/savings based share option schemes as above.

In addition, benefits in the US, where it is standard, include cover for dental costs, accidental death
and disablement, long term disability and club membership.

Maximum
potential value

Pension

SAYE/savings based schemaes are subject to individual limits, These are $2,000 permonth in the US
and in the UK up to the HMRC prescribed limit (€500 per month}.

Other benefits: the Committee will determine the leve! of benefit as it considers appropriate, taking
into consideration local market practice.

Purpose and link to
Company's strategy

Te aid retention and remain competitive in the marketplace.

To provide appropriate retirement benefits commensurate with local market practice, seniority of the
role and tenure with the Company.

How it operates
in practice

Executlve Directors are gligible to participate in a Company sponsored pension scheme, a statutory
pension arrangement, receive cash in lieu of a Company pension or a combination of these.

Maximum
potential value

Forincumbent Executive Directors pensions will be reduced in phases to be in aligned with the
pension provision of the median employee:

= From 1 January 2020, 25%

* From 1 December 2020: 24%

» From 1 December 2021: 22.5%
¢ From 1 December 2022: 21%

Any new Director appointment will have pension set to be aligned with the average of the approgriate
wider workforce rate (currently 8% of salary).
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OIRECTORS' REMUNERATION REFORT CONTINUED

Annual bonus scheme

Purpose andlink to
Company's strategy

To incentivise the senior management team to exceed the annual operating plan approved by the
Board at the start of each financial year.

To ensure that a significant proportion of an executive's total remuneration is based on corporate/
business financial performance that is Yirked to the Company’s annual operating plan.

Through the part deferral of bonuses into deferred shares this enables incentive pay to help
axecutives build and maintain meaningful sharehoidings and thereby providing a long term focus.

How it operates
inpractice

An annual bonus is based on over performance against selected performance measures which are
linked to the Company's key performance indicators, or the achievement of strategic andfor
cperational objectives.

Bonus payments are paid following the approval of fuil year results. Payments are based con salaries
at the time of payment.

Bonus deferral element: 50% of any cash bonus payable must be awarded in shares and deferred
for 2 years, Dividends accrue on deferred shares (which are normally structured as nil cost options
or conditional share awards) that vest during the vesting period. Deferred shares are forfeitable for
gross misconduct (dismissal for cause).

The Committee may seek recovery and/or withholding of bonuses paid that are later found to have
been based on performance that was mis-stated or incorrectly calculated, or where the amount of
any bonus may have been reduced or withheld due to reasons of gross misconduct. Recovery and
withholding provisions will apply for a period of 3 years following payment of any borus.

Detailed provisions are incorporated into the rules of the various schemes which govern the terms
of a bonus payment and/or the making of any deferred share or conditional award.

Maximum
potential value

CEQ: 150% of basic saltary.
CFO: 125% of basic salary.

Ahigher annual bonus limit of 200% of basic salary may apply for new recruits.

Framework used to
assess performance

Performance measures will be mainly financial measures. The Committee reserves the right to select
other non-financial targets (including the basis of their measurement} as appropriate considering the
Cempany's strategic objectives for the year ahead.

The financial element of the bonus may include (butis not limited to) the Company's key performance
indicators which include:

Profit before tax or other measures of profitabitity.

Group average trade working capital to sales ratio expressed as a percentage (AWC') or other cash
flow indicators.

For any profit related metric, targets wilf be set at threshold, plan and stretch levels and the amount
payable for threshold performance is 0% for financial targets rising on a graduated basis through to
100% becoming payable at the stretch performance level. With regards to non-financiaf targets, itis
nect always practicable to set targets on a sliding scale and so targets may be set based onthe
achievement of specific milestones and/or on a graduated scale.

The Committee will consider the bonus cutcome each year based on the Company's performance
agasinst the measures set at the start of the year, If it considers the guantum to be inconsistent with
the Company's overall performance during the year it can override the result of the performance test.
For the avoidance of doubt this can be to zero and bonuses may not exceed the maximum levels
detailed above. Any use of such discretion would be detailed in the Annual report on remuneration.

The Committee keeps performance metrics under review on an annual basis to ensure they continue
to remain appropriate and has the discretion to introduce new metrics or remove existing ones and
amend their relative weightings. As a result, the performance metrics and weightings may vary inline
with the Company's evolving sirategy during the fife of the policy. The profit related element of annual
bonus shallnot be iess than 50% of the overall bonus opportunity.
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Long termincentives

Purpose and link to
Company's strategy

The LTIP is the sole leng term incentive mechanism for Executive Directers and is intended to align
the interests of the executives and shareholders in growing the value of the Group over the long term.

When granting awards under the LTIP the Committee generally takes into consideration the neadto
motivate and retain the Executive Directors and other participants.

How it operates
inpractice

Awards are normally structured as either nil cost options or conditional share awards which are
eligible to be granted annually. Options may be exercisable 3 years from, and within 10 years of, the
date of award, Share awards normally vest on the third anniversary of the date of award.

A post-vesting holding pericd of 2 years will apply to annual awards.

Recovery and withholding provisions similar to those described in respect of annual bonus payments
but relating to the vesting of LTIP awards will apply tc awards.

Dividends may accrue on shares that vest during the vesting period (and during the post-vesting
holding period where awards are structured as nil-cost opticns) and may be paid in cash or shares

Maximum
potential value

The maximum award limit is set at 250% of basic salary.
Current practice is as follows:

+ CEQ: 200% of basic salary
= CFO:175% of basic salary

Framework used to assess
performance

Awards are subject to achievement of financial (e.g. EPS}and/or relative TSR performance
conditions, measured over a minimum of 3 financial years beginning with the financial year inwhich
the award is made. The Committee also retains flexibility to introduce strategic targets as s
performance measure for amincrity of an award.

For any financial performance condition, thresheld vesting will start from 0% and this willincrease on
a graduated basis with 100% vesting for achieving the stretch targets.

TSR will be measured against the constituents of a broad equity index, or a bespoke group of
appropriate comparator companies. For any relative TSR performance condition, threshold vesting
will start at 3.85% and this will also increase on a graduated basis with 100% vesting for achieving the
stretch targets, which for the TSR performance condition will require at least upper

guartile performance.

inrelation to strategic targets, the structure of the target will vary based on the nature of target set
{i.e. it will not always be practicable to strategic targets using a graduated scale and so vesting may
take place in full if specific criteria are met in fuli).

The metrics and their weighting and targets within the LTIP will be reviewed each year.

The Committee will consider the LTIP vesting outcomes for awards granted from 2018 based on
applying the performance conditions and if it considers the level of vesting to be inconsistent with
the Company’s overall performance during the performance period (including its underlying financial
performance} it can override the result of the performance test. For the avoidance of doubt this can
beto zero. Any use of such discretion would be detailed in the Annual report on remuneration.
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DIRFECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

Share ownership guidelines

Purpose and link to
Company's strategy

How it operates
inpractice

To aligh an executive's interests with those of shareholders and to encourage executives to
participate and sharein the long term success of the Group.

Executive Directors are expected to build up a shareholding in the Company that is equal in value to
200% of their basic annual salaries,

Shares vesting from share awards, or transferred pursuant t¢ an exercise of any option, granted
under any share incentive or empioyee share saving scheme may not be sold (other than to meet a
tax liability} until the above shareholding level bas been met. In exceptional circumstances the
Committee may allow the Director to sell some, or all, shares received from a share incentive scheme
evenif the individual has nct met the share ownership guidelines, provided they are satisfied that
shareholder interests are adequately aligned.

The Committee monitars compliance with these guidelines and can make changes to them from
time totime.
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Neon-Executive Chairman and Directors' fees

Purpose and link to
Company's strategy

Non-Executive Directors’ fees are determined by the Chairman and the Executive Directors, having
regard to fees paid to Non-Executive Directors in other UK quoted companies and the time
commitment and responsibilities of the role.

in the case of the Chairman, the fee leve!is determined by the Committee. As well as taking into
consideration the above tactors, the Committee sets the fee at an appropriate level necessary to
attract a role holder gualified to effectively lead the board of a company of a similar size and prestige
as Elementis.

Fees are payable in cash and Non-Executive Directors are not eligible to participate in any pension,
bonus or share incentive schemes.

All Non-Executive Directors are reimbursed for travel and related business expenses reasonably
incurred in performing their duties so that they are fully recompensed on a pre-tax basis for
undertaking Company business.

No individual is allowed to vote on his/her own remuneration.

How it operates
inpractice

Non-Executive Directors’ fees are determined by the Chairman and the Executive Directors, having
regard to fees paid to Non-Executive Directors in other UK quoted companies and the time
commitment and responsibilities of the role.

Inthe case of the Chairman, the fee level is determined by the Committee. As well as taking into
consideration the above factors, the Committee sets the fee at an appropriate level necessary to
attract a role holder qualified to effectively lead the board of a company of a similar size and prestige
as Elementis.

Fees are payable in cash and Non-Executive Directors are not eligible to participate in any pension,
honus or share incentive schemes.

AllNon-Executive Directors are reimbursed for travel and related business expenses reasonably
incurred in performing their duties so that they are fully recompensed cn a pre-tax basis for
undertaking Company business.

No individual is allowed to vote on his/her own remuneration.

Maximum
petential value

Fees will be reviewed annually with changes taking effect from 1 Januaryin the following year.

It is the Company's policy {other than where there is a step change in the time commitment required
of the Non-Executives Directors) that fees paid o the Chairman and other Non-Executive Directors
are increased annually in line with the average increase awarded to the UK salaried workforce.
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HRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

LINK BETWEEN POLICY, STRATEGY AND STRUCTURE
The remuneration policy is principally designed to attract, motivate
and retain the Executive Directors and other members of the
Executive Leadership team [senior management team) to execute
the Company’s corporate and business strategies in order to
deliver the annual operating plan and sustainable year on year
profitable growth, as well as to generate and preserve value for
shareholders over the longer term, without encouraging excessive
levels of risk taking. The principles and values that underpin the
remuneration strategy are applied on a consistent basis for all
Group employees.

The remuneration structure for Executive Directors is made up of
2 elements: fixed remuneration {consisting of basic salary, benefits
including for example non-contributery health insurance and life
assurance and pension provision), and variable remuneration
[annua! bonus scheme and long term share incentives).

Itis Company policy to reward all employees fairly, responsibly and
by reference to iocal market practices, by providing an appropriate
balance between fixed and variable remuneration.

CHOICE OF PERFORMANCE MEASURES

AND APPROACH TO TARGET SETTING

The performance metrics that are used for annual bonus and long
termincentive plans are drawn from a suite of Company KPls
monitared by the Beard that are closely linked to the financial KPls
onpages 30to 31.

In the annual bonus scheme, the financial measures currently used
are adjusted Group profit before tax and AWC. Adjusted Group profit
before tax is a clear measure of the Company's trading performance
and AWC encourages the most efficient use of working capital and is
how earnings are converted into cash. These metrics are aligned
with the Company's objectives and strategy.

In addition, non-financial criteria also form part of the targets set

in the bonus scheme and these are based on Company specific
business objectives, such as the achievement of specific strategic
or aperational goals including metrics that take account of
business or corporate performance in environmental, sociai and
governance areas and typically incorporate specific HSE related
targets or objectives.

With regard to long term performance targets, EPS is currently
used since it is aligned with the Company's strategy of delivering
profitable growth and creating long term shareholder returns.
Cash conversion Is also used to encourage efficient working
practices. Use of relative TSR aiso further aligns shareholders
and executives.

Targets for financial metrics are set relative to internal planning
expectations after having regard to general economic conditions,
external market data, current and past performance of the
business and any organic or acquisitive growth plans.

Where appropriate, targets are set based on sliding scales.

Only very modest rewards are available for delivering performance
at threshold levels or above with maximum rewards requiring
outperformance of our challenging plans approved at the start

of each year,
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The Committee keeps the choice of metrics and targets under
review for the both the annual and long termincentive plans each
year to ensure they are appropriate inlight of the Company's current
circumstances. The Committee retains giscretion to revise the
choice of metric and weightings within the incentives as detailed
above. Should the Committee make material changes to the
application of remuneration policy from the approach (detailed on
pages 59to 60 of the 2017 annual report) e.g. introduce a strategic
target into a future iong term incentive award, appropriate
consultation with the Company’s major shareholders would

take place.

DIFFERENCES IN EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION
POLICY COMPARED TCO OTHER EMPLOYEES

The Cormmittee is informed of pay structures across the wider
Group when setting the remuneration policy for Executive
Directors. The Committee considers the general basic salary
increase for the broader Group and, in particular the empioyees
based in the US, UK and Europe, when determining salary increases
for the Executive Directors.

The same principles and values behind the design of remuneration
for the Executive Directors apply to other members of the
Executive Leadership team and employees throughout the rest of
the Group, with maodifications ta reflect local market practice and
the level of seniority and ability te influence Group performance.
Qverall, the remuneration policy for Executive Directors is mere
heavily weighted towards variable pay than for other employees.
This ensures that there is a clear link between the value created for
shareholders and the remuneration received by the Executive
Directors given itis the Executive Directors who are considered to
have the greatest potential to influence shareholder value creation.

The level of variable pay varies by level of employee within the
Group and is informed by the specific responsibilities of each role
and local market practice as appropriate.

In 2018, the Board introduced the ability to grant restricted shares
into the new LTIP. The majority of the senior executive population
at Elernentis is based in the US where it is common market practice
to grant restricted shares. It is considered that the ability to grant
restricted shares in tandem with performance related share awards
enables the Company to compete for the best talent,

Where restricted shares are used, the award levels will be lower
than if performance shares were granted since restricted share
awards are more valuable to arecipient given there is no
performance requirement attached to the vesting of the award.
Restricted shares will not be granted to Executive Directors.

HOW THE VIEWS CF EMPLOYEES ARE TAKEN

INTO ACCOUNT

The Board has established a Designated Non-Executive Director
for workforce engagement as a direct response to the UK
Corporate Governance Code enabling the workforce voice in
Board matters. The role of the workforce engagement directoris
to review and monitor employee insight informed by engagement
activities and employee engagement surveys. For more
information see page 74 on engaging with the workforce.



COMMITTEE DISCRETION WITH

REGARD TO INCENTIVE PLANS

The Committee will operate the annual bonus plan, deferred share
bonus plan, LTIP and all employee plans according to thelr
respective rules and in accordance with the Financial Conduct
Authority’s Listing Rules (Listing Rules} and HMRC rules where
relevant. The Committee retains discretion, congistent with market
practice, in a number of regards to the operation and administration
of these plans. These include the following (plan limits and
performance targets restricted to the descriptions detailed in

the preceding policy table):

* Who participates in the plans

+ Thetiming of grant of award and/or payment

» The size of an award and/or payment

+ The determination of vesting

* Dealing with a change of control (e.g. the timing of testing
performance targets) or restructuring

« Determination of a geod/bad leaver for ingentive plan purposes
based on therules of each plan and the appropriate
treatment chosen

+ Adjustments required in certain circumstances (e.g.
rights issues, corporate restructuring and special dividends}

« The annual review of performance conditions, including metrics
and weightings, for the annualbonus planand LTIP

The Committee also retains the ability to adjust the targets and/or set
different measures and alter weightings for the annual bonus plan and
to adjust targets for the LTIP if events occur (e.g. material divestment
of a Group business) which cause it to determine that the conditions
are no longer appropriate and the amendment is required so that the
conditions achieve their originat purpose and are not materially less
difficult to satisfy. The Committee i introducing discretion to override
incentive pay cutcomes in the event that payouts are not considered
reflective of overall Company performance having applied the
performance conditions for the annual benus and LTIR.

CEOQ AND CFO REWARDS SCENARIO ANALYSIS

The bar charts below illustrate the potential pay opportunities

for Executive Directors under 3 different scenarics for 2021,

The CEC's remuneration has been converted into pounds sterling
using the average exchange rate for 2020 ($1.2820:£1.00}.

« Fixed: comprises fixed pay being the value of salary, benefits
and pension {taken to be 24% of salary)

« Ontarget:the amount receivable assumes performance in which
50% of annual bonus is payable and 50% of LTIP awards vest.

* Maximum: the maximum amount receivable should all stretch
targets be met and vesting under both the annual bonus scheme
and LTIPis 100%. In addition, in line with paragraph 35A of
Schedule 8 cf the Large and Medium-sized Companies and
Groups (Accounts and Reperts) 2008 Regulations, we have
provided an illustration of the maximum outcome assuming
50% share price appreciation for the purpose of the LTIP value.

The LTIPs alsorelate to awards to be made in 2021 rather than any
awards vesting in 2021.
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATICN REPORT CONTINUED

RECRUITMENT POLICY
For Executive Director recruitment and/or promotion situations, the Committee will follow the policy outlined below:

Elament Policy

Basic salary Basic salary levels will be set in accordance with the Company’s remuneration policy, taking into
account the experience and calibre of the individual (e.g. typically around market rates prevalent in
companies of comparable size and complexity] or salary feveis may be set below this levei (e.g. if the
individual was promoted to the Board). Where it is appropriate to offer a below market rate of pay
initially, a series of increases to the desired salary positioning may be given over the following few
years subject to individual performance and developmentin the role.

Benefits New Directors may be entitled to benefits such as life assurance, private medical health insurance,
cover for dental costs, accidentat death and disablement, long term disability and provision of either a
company car (for business and personal purposes) or a car allowance, club membership cr any other
appropriate benefit as the Committee reasonably determines.

Where necessary the Committee may approve the payment of reasonabie relocation expenses to
facilitate recruitment for a maximum period of 12 months.

Pension Any new Executive Directors will have pension level set to be aligned with the appropriate wider
workforce rate (currently 8% of salary).
Annual bonus The annual bonus would operate as outlined for current Executive Directors but where necessary

to aid recruitment the maximum bonus cpportunity is 200% of basic salary for the life of this policy.
Bonus will be pro-rated for the proportion of the year served. Depending on the timing and
responsibilities of the appeintment it may be necessary to set different performance measures and
targets initially.

Long term ihcentives Awards under the LTIP will be granted in line with the policy outlined for the current Executive Directors
on an annual basis but where necessary to aid recruitment the maximum award is 250% of basic salary
for the life of this policy.

An award may be made shortly after an appointment (subject to the Company not being in a prohibited
period). For an internal hire, existing awards would continue over their original vesting period and
remain subject to their terms as at the date of grant. In addition, if the grant of awards for thatindividual
precedes his or her appointment as a Board Director for that financial year, the Committee’s policy
would include flexibility to top up awards for that year (subject to the cverall individual salary limit}
based on the executive's new salary.

Buyout awards Inthe case of an external hire, if it is necessary to buy out incentive pay or benefit arrangements (which
would be forfeited on leaving the previous employer), this would be provided for taking into account the
form (cash or shares), timing and expected vaiue {i.e. likelinood of meeting any existing performance
criteria) of the remuneration being forfeited.

Replacement share awards may be granted using the Company’s LTIP {up to the individual limit) or
outside of the LTIP if necessary and as permitted under the Listing Rules.

Interim appointments Where a Director is appointed on aninterim basis (e.g. to cover a role until a permanent successor is
appointed), the Company may pay additional remuneration to an individual in line with the paticy for
the role.
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OQUTSIDE BOARD APPOINTMENTS

The Company's policy is to support executives should they

wish to take on an external board appointment, provided that there
is no conflict of interest and the role dees not interfere with the
executive's commitmant or duties. If an executive does take on

an external appointment they may retain any fees paid and will be
restricted generally to only cne such external appointment.

SHARE OWNERSHIP GUIDELINES

Executive Directors are expected to build up a shareholding in

the Company that is equalin value to 200% cf their basic annual
salaries. Shares vesting from share awards, or transferred pursuant
to an exercise of any option, granted under any share incentive or
empioyee share saving scheme may not be sold {other than to
meet a tax liability) until the above shareholding level has been met,

A post-cessation share ownership guideline has not yet been
adopted. The Committee has however agreed that this willbe a
feature of the policy renewal to take place at the 2022 AGM and
that it expects to introduce a guideline that reflects both current
institutional investor expectations and market practice at that time.

SERVICE CONTRACTS
Executive Directors' service contracts contain a terminaticn notice
period not exceeding 12 months.

Name Date of contract* Notice period
Paul Waterman, CEO 6 Novemnber 2015 12 months
Ralph Hewins, CFQ 27 June 2016 12 months

* Thedate of the service contractis not the same as the date of
appointment which for PaulWaterman was 8 February 2016 ang Ralph
Hewins 12 Septernber 20186.

Copies of the Executive Directors’ service contracts are available
for inspection at the Company's registered office during normal
business hours and will be available for inspection at the AGM.

POLICY ON PAYMENT FOR LOSS OF OFFICE
Termination payments

The maximum amournt payable under both the CEOQ's and CFO's
contract is basic salary. benefits and pension for 12 months while
each serves his notice period. For the Executive Directors, the
tarms covering termination were agreed at the date their contracts
were made and both are required to mitigate their loss in the event
of loss of office by making efforts to secure a new pesition.

The Company may pay compensation in lieu of the nctice period

of basic salary only, to be paid in monthly instalments (pro-rated
for the actual notice period), This would apply if the Company
terminates his/her contract for any reason other than for cause, or
if hefshe serves natice to terminate his contractin 12 months' time.

Payments in lieu of notice to both the CEO and CFO may be
reduced or ceased if either secures a new position. In both cases,
the payments will only be ceased if the salary in a new positionis
equal to or more than the salary on terminatiory, if not the monthly
payments will be reduced by the gross safary earned by the CEO
or CFQin his new position each month,

The above summary only addresses contractual rights to
payments in lieu of notice, or during the relevant Director’s notice
period, and may not reflect any settlement or compromise sums
which are separately agreed at the point of termination.

TREATMENT OF INCENTIVE PLANS

Annual bonus plan

If an Executive Director resigns and serves his/her notice period,
the Committee retains discretion to make a pro-rata payment
based on performance. The same applies in cartain circumstances
such as if the individual's employment is terminated on the grounds
of /It health or disability. No bonus is payable for termination

for cause.

In line with the Company’s policy, rules of the annual bonus scheme
incorporate a requirerment to defer half of the amount of bonus vesting
for 2 years in the form of share awards under the deferred share bonus
plan. In certain ‘good leaver circurmstances fe.g. ill health, death), the
Committee, acting fairly and reascnably, may waive deferral.

Deferred share bonus plan

If ar Executive Director’'s employment is terminated before a
deferred share award vests (after 2 years}, then the awards would
vest in full on the date of leaving unless termination is for cause in
which case the awards would lapse.

LTIP

As with the annual bonus plan, the Company’s current (and propcsed}
LTIP also includes a number of discretions in connection with an
Executive Director leaving employment. Other than in certain defined
‘good leaver’ circumstances, awards lapse on cessation of
employrment. Where an individual ceases employment for one of the
defined 'good leaver’ events (i.e. ill health, disability, redundancy within
the meaning of UK legistation cr its overseas eguivalent, transfer out of
the Group/sale of business or retirement with employer's consent and,
inthe case of the new LTIR, any other reason at the discretion of the
Committee), the award will rermain eligible to vest on its normal vesting
date (unless the Committee uses its discretion to vest the award on
the date of cessation of employment}in all cases subject to a pro-rata
reducticn to reflect the portion of the vesting period that has elapsed
{unless the Committee determines otherwise) and the application of
the performance condition. In the event of a death of an Executive
Director the default is for the award to vest at the date of death unless
the Committee determines otherwise inwhich case it wil vest at the
normal vesting date with pro-rating and performance conditions
applied as described in other ‘good leaver’ circumstances.

Similar provisions apply in the event of a change of control, with
perfcrmance measured up to the date of the relevant event, and
a pro-rata reduction applying unless the Committee
determines otherwise.

Itis the Committee’s policy to exercise these discretions in a way
that would be in the best interests of the Company and depending
on the individual circumstances of each case.
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

PAYMENTS AGREED PRIOR TO THE EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS POLICY
Any agreements entered in good faith prior to the commencement of the 2021 remuneration policy will remain eligivle to operate on their
original terms.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' TERMS OF APPOINTMENT

Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a 3 year term, subject to annual re-election by sharehoiders. For Non-Executive Directors who
have served for 9 years or more, they may be appointed for a further year at a time. Each letter of appointment currently provides that the
Director's appointment can be terminated by the Company cn 6 months’ notice on any grounds without claim for compensation.
Following the 2018 AGM, the letters of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors were amended to 30 days’ notice by either party,
which is the applicaticn of the new remuneration policy where a Iimit of up to 3 months is permitted. Ali other terms will remain the same.
The Chairman's letter of appointment willremainwith a 6 months’ notice period.

Non-Executive Directors are not eligible to participate in any pension, bonus or share incentive schemes. No individual is allowed to vote
on his/her own remuneration.

The table below provides further details of the letters of appointment that the Non-Executive Directors held with the Company
during 2020.

Date of last re-

Name Date of appointment appointment Date of expiry
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

A Duff 01 April 2014 1 April 2020 1 April 2023
D Deuring 1 March 2017 1 March 2020 1 March 2023
S Good 20 October 2014 20 October 2020 20 October 2023
A Hyland 1 June 2013 1 June 2019 1 June 2022
J O'Higgins 4 February 2020 n/a 4 February 2023
CSoden 1 Navember 2020 n/a 1 November 2023

Copies of all letters of appointment of Non-Executive Directors are available on the Company’s website.

SHAREHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The views of shargholders are important to the Committee, Regular dialogue and engagement with the Company's shareholders is
undertaken. For example, the Committee wrote to its major shareholders and the leading advisory bodies in May 2020 noting the intent to
renew the current remuneration policy for a further year in light of CCVID-19 as detailed in the Annual Statement on page 87. As a result of
the feedback received, which was supportive, a confirmation letter was sent to those consulted. The Committee will undertake a full
consultation with sharehclders in 2021 inrelation to presenting an updated remuneration policy at the 2022 AGM.
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION {REPQRT}
This Report details how the Company’s policies and practices on Directors’ remuneration were applied in respect of the financial year
ended 31 December 2020 and how they will be applied in the 2021 financial year.

REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO DIRECTORS FOR 2020 (AUDITED)
Although the Company reports its results in US dollars, the remainder of this report on remuneration is presented in pounds sterling
because the majority of the Directors are UK based and paid in pounds sterling.

A breakdown of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 20201s set out in the table below.

Fixed Performance related
£000 Year Salary/fees Benefits?  Pension Sub-total Bonus LTIP Other®  Sub-tctal Total
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Paul Waterman, CEQ!? 2020 716 76 178 970 0 - 37 0 1,007
2018 705 70 152 927 187 - — 187 1,114
Ralph Hewins, CFO 2020 362 26 90 478 0 - - 0 478
2019 354 25 29 468 75 - - 75 543
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Andrew Duff, Chairman 2020 195 - - 185 - - - - 195
2019 191 - - 191 - - - - 191
Sandra Boss* 2020 19 - - 19 - - - - 19
2019 51 - - 51 - - - - 51
Dorothee Deuring 2020 51 - - 51 - - - - 51
2019 50 - - 50 - - - - 50
Steve Good 2020 60 - - 60 - - - - 60
2019 59 - - 59 - - - - 59
Anne Hyland 2020 60 - - 60 - - - - 60
2019 59 - - 59 - - - - 59
John O'Higgins® 2020 46 - - 46 - - - - 46
2019 - - - - - - - - -
Nick Salmon® 2020 20 - - 20 - - - - 20
2019 59 - - 59 - - - - 5¢
Christine Soden” 2020 9 - - 9 - - - - g
2019 - - - - - - - - -
TOTAL 2020 1,538 102 268 1,208 0 - a7 o} 1945
Total 2019 1.528 95 241 1,864 262 - 0 262 2,126

1 Paul Waterman is based in the US and paid in US doliars. He received an annual salary $918k {2018: $899k). His pension comprises 20% of his salary and
employer contributions to defined contribution retirement schemes, Foreign exchange rate applied is the 2020 average rate of $1.2820:£1.00 (2019
$1.2764:£1.00).

Taxable benefits far Paul Waterman consist of a car allowance, private health care (£19,265), dental, life assurance, accidental death and disablement
cover and long term gisability insurance (£20,953) and tax advice (£23.4017). The tax advice benefit allowed appropriate tax filngs to be made in both the
UK and US as a result of company business travel requirements during 2019/20 which exceeded the normal business expectations agreed on
appointment and gave rise to the need for dualfilings. Taxable benefits for Ralph Hewins consist of a car allowance (E18,000), private health care and
life agsurance.

L\

3 Asrequired by remuneration reporting regulatians, the valuation of Paul Waterman's US Savings-Related Share Option Scheme (SRSOS) award is based
ontheface value of shares at grant (September 2020), There are no performance measures for the SRSOS.

Sandra Boss stepped down from the Board on 29 April 2020,

Jahn &*Higgins was appointed a Non-Executive Director on 4 February 2020 and became Senior Independent Director on 29 April 2020,

Nick Salman stepped down from the Board on 29 April 2020.

Christine Soden was appointed a Non-Executive Director on 1 November 2020 and is the Designated Non-Executive Director for workforce engagement.

-~ ® w0 A
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DIRECTORS' REMUNERATICON RFPORT CONTINUED

DETERMINATION OF ANNUAL BONUS OUTCOME FOR PERFORMANCE IN 2020 (AUDITED}
This section shows the performance targets set inrespect of the 2020 annual bonus scheme, the level of performance achieved.

As detailed in the Chair's Introductory Statement, while we performed robustly against challenging average working capital targets and
our strategic targets, including in the areas of Growth and Efficiency, whilst we performed resiliently in 2020 and met the bonus targets in
parts. including exceeding our thresheold working capital target and achieving strongly against our non-financial strategic targets, the
Executive Directors recommended, and the Commiitlee ayreed, that no bonuses should be payable inrclation to 2020,

Based on a testing of the performance conditions originally set, the bonus payable wouid have been as follows but for the Committee
agreeing noc bonuses would be payable.

Percentage
of Maximum Percentage of
FY 2020 bohus plan targets Bonus Earned Salary Earned
Relative

weighting of Paul Ralph Paul Ralph
performance Actual Percentof Waterman Hewins Waterman Hewinsg
Full year bonus conditions Threshold Plan Stretch result  maximum CEO CFO CEQ CFO
Maximum as % salary 100% 160% 150% 125%
PBT ($m) 50% 935 97.2 106.9 527 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
AWC (%) 20% 253 233 21.3 238 50% 10% 10% 15% 12.5%
Non-financia! 30% See disclosure below 22% 21.5% 33% 26.9%
TOTAL FULL YEAR 100% 32% 31.5% 48% 39.4%
POST DISCRETION 0% 0% 0% 0%

n relation to the targets, 0% is payahie at the threshoid performance tevels, 50% at Plan and 1009 at the maximum performance fevel,

Set out below are the challenging 2020 individual strategic objectives and actual performance against them prior to the use of discretion
by the Committee to reduce the bonus outcomes. The objectives established and the assessment of performance is shown in the table

below, The objectives were categarised into three groups — (1) Safety, Compliance & Risk Management, (2} Strategic implementation and
(3) People, with each group having an egual weighting.

2020 BONUS ASSESSMENT FOR CEO

Measure Performance indicators Achievements Summary scoring
$Safety, compliance and risk management - 10% * Reportabie Injunes, TRIR-target <0.54, « TRIR=068

threshaoid <0.69 and slretch <0.29 + Environmental Tier 2/3 incidents =0
ASSESSMENT + Environmental Tier 2/3 incidents:target  + (TA>3days=2

Targets partially achieved - further investment made
in Safety culture through Together SAFE programme:

Tier 2incidents = 1, threshold = 1 Tier 3
and stretch=0

LTA> 3 days: target =2, threshold = 3,
stretch = 1

Strategic implementation - 10% .

Actions to deliver "Innovation” Strategic Priority
ASSESSMENT

Targets partially achieved

increase nurber of new products
launches 1o 16 1n 2020.

increase revenue contribution of unique
and distinctyve produets to 47% in 2020

12 néw product Innovations delivered
Revenue contribution of unique and
distinctive products to 46% in 2020

Actions to deliver *Growth” Strategic Priority .

ASSESSMENT

All targers achieved or exceeded

Delver $26.5m of new business pipeline,

Taic Revenue synergies actieved

$30m of new business achieved
Taic Revenue synergies aelvered

Actions to delwer “Efficiency” Strategic Prionty

ASSESSMENT

Targets mainly achieved

Supply chan operational savings

Actions inplace to underpin $10m savings
by 2021

Continued development of AP Actives
plant inIndia

Actions to celiver adaitional Financial Resilience
Strategic Prierity

Pro-active actions to underpin net debt/
EBITDA ratio performance

.

Optimise CAPEXH1vsH2 ($315mH1 vs
$26mH2}
Putinplace 2x Covenant

ASSESSMENT relaxation mechanisms,

Targets achieved +  Deiivered $7madditional underlying
working captal regucton

People-10% = Drive Employee Engagement = Increased employee engagement scere

Actions to dewver "People” Strategic Prionty
ASSESSMENT

Targets manly achievec

Embed the Organisational Changes
Diversity. Equity and!Inclusion (DERD

Step change in organisational efficiency
evidenced by reduced layers, increase 'n
span of control and $5m staff cost savings
Established DE&I Council and key activities
as part of 3 year plan
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2020 BONUS ASSESSMENT FOR CFO

Measure

Performance indigators

Achievements

Summary scoring

Safety, compliance and risk management- 10%

ASSESSMENT

Targets partially achieved - further investment made in
Safety culture through Toqether SAFE programime

Reportable Injuries: TRIR - target <0.54,
threshold <0.69 and stretch <G.39
Envircnmental Tier2/3 incidents: target
Tier 2incidents = 1, threshold = 1 Tier 3
and stretch =0

LTA> 3 days target =2, threshold = 3,
stretch =1

TRIR=0.68
Environmentai Tier 2/3 incidents =0
LTA > 3days =2

Strategic Implementation - 15%
Actions to deliver “Growth” Strategic Priority
ASSESSMENT

All targets achieved or exceeded

Deliver $26.5m of new business pipeline
Talc Revenue synergies achieved

$30m of new business achieved
Talc Revenue synergies achieved

Actions to deliver “Efficiency” Strateg-c Pr.onty
ASSESSMENT

Targets partally achieved

Supply Chain Operational Savings

Actions in place to underpin $10m savings
by 2027,

Continued deve opment of AP Actives
plantin India

Actions to deiiver "Efficiency” Strategic Priority

ASSESSMENT

Targets partially achieved

Development of the IT Platform
Management Information and business
Intelligence {MI?B1} development

Implermentation of JOE in Asia delayed due
to COVID-19

Successful trans tion from IBM Notes 10
cloud based system
Partialimplementation of the 2020
element of the MI/BI platform and project

Actions to deliver edditional Financial Resilignce
Strategic Priority

ASSESSMENT

Targets achieved

Pro-active actions to underpin net debt/
EBITDA -atio performance

Optimise CAPEXH1vs H2($15mH1 vs
$£26mH2)

Futinplace 2 x Covenant

relaxat.on mechanisms.

Delvered $7m additional underlying
working capital reduction

People-5%
Actions to deliver “People” Strategic Priority
ASSESSMENT

Targets ma rly achieved

Drive engagement of Fnance & IT teams
Finance team capability

Achieved improved finance and IT function
engagement scores

Progress made secunng continuity of
knowledge and expertise in the Finance
teamns in buileing colaboration between
US and UK teams
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

DIRECTORS' SHARE BASED AWARDS

Determination of 2018 LTIP awards (audited}

Unger the 2018 Award, achieving the threshold EPS growth target (3% p.a) would result in 8% of the EPS portion vesting and achieving the
threshold TSR target imedian rank versus the FTSE All Share Canstituents excluding Investrment Trusts) would result in 3.85% of the TSR
portion vesting.

Neither the EPS threshold target or the TSR threshold target was met and so the awards lapsed.

Annual LTIP awards granted in the year (audited)

On 7 Aprii 2020, LTIP awards were granted in line with the Remuneration Policy. Whilst the CEQ was granted a notional award over shares
to the value of 200% of salary and 175% of salary for the CFO, this was based on a notional share price at grant of 73.5p as oppoged to the
actual closing share price on 6 April 2020 of 49p. Based on the actual share price at grant awards were reduced by 33% versus the normal
award levels granted to the Executive Directors. The actual awards expressed as a percentage of salary ysing the grant share price were
135% of salary for the CEO ang 117.5% of salary for the CFO, The Committee also maintains discretion to reduce the number of shares an
vesting should it be considered appropriate, including in the event of a perceived windfall gain.

Details of the main terms of the 2020 LTIP awards are summarised in the table below. The awards are subject to EPS, TSR and Operating
Cash Conversion performance conditions (equally weighted} each measured over the three years to 31 December 2022 as shown in the
1able below.

Operating Cash Cenversion was included in addition to EPS and TSR given the increased focus as a result of the impact of COVID-19 as
explained in the Chair’s Introductory Letter,

Face value The end
of award date of the
Type of Number atgrant Percentage thatwouldvest  performance  Asummary of performance
Award holder share award Grantdate  cof swards (£ 000s) at threshold performance period targets and measures
Nil cost 0% of the award subject Average annual EPS
(restricted to the EPS conditicn growth of 3%to0 12%
Paul Waterman stockunit}  07.04.2020 2037577 1498 and 31122022 and
3.85% of the award TSR performance of
subject to the TSR median to upper quartile
condition and
and Three-year operating cash
Nit cost 0% of the award subject to conversion between 85%
Ralph Hewins  option 07.04.2020 862,469 634 aperating cash conversion and 95%

1 Theshare price used to determine the number of awards granted was a notional price of 73.5p pence - the share price on the day prior to award was 49p,
in effect reducing the award size by 33%.

2 Details of deferred bonus and savings based share schemnes are shown in the table overleaf.

SOURCING SHARES FOR QUR SHARE PLANS

Employee share plans comply with the Investment Association’s guidelines on dilution which provide that overallissuance of shares under
all plans should not exceed an amount equivalent 1o 10% of the Company's issued share capital over any ten year pericd, with a further
limitation of 5% in any ten year pericd on discretionary plans. Based on the number of awards that remain outstanding as at the year end,
the Company's headroom for all plans is 4.80% and for discretionary plans is 3.99% of issued share capital.
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DIRECTORS' SCHEME INTERESTS (AUDITED)
The interests of the persons who were Directors during the year in the issued shares of the Company were:

Scheme interests

Vested but
QOption Granted Exercised Lapsed unexercised
price during during during share
Interest type Grant date p) 01.01.20" 2020 2020 2020 31.12.20 options
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Paul Waterman LTIP®  03.04.2017 - 512,509 - - 512,509 - -
DSBP® 05032018 - 159,523 - 158523 - - -
LTIP®™  30.04.2018 - 483,127 -~ - - 483,127 -
DSBP®  06.03.2019 - 110,378 - - - 110,378 -
LTIP®™  01.04.2018 - 849,232 - - - 849,282 -
DSBP®  05.03.2020 - - 188730 - - 188,130 -
LTIP®  07.04.2020 - - 2037577 - - 2037577 -
SRSOS®  1500.2020 63.11 - 59,188 - - 59,188 -
TOTAL SCHEME INTERESTS o 2114819 2284895 159,523 512508 3727682 Nil
Ralph Hewins B -
DSBP®  (07.03.2017 - 7,140 - - - 7,440 7,140
RA®  (07.03.2017 - 17,458 - - - 17,458 17,458
RA®  07.03.2017 - 92,262 - - - 92,262 02,262
LTIP®  03.04.2017 - 221128 - -~ 221128 - -
CsBP® (5032018 - 73,123 - - - 737123 73,123
LTIP®  30.04.2018 - 225,983 - - - 229983 -
SAYER  27.11.2018 16391 10,881 - - - 10,981 -
DSBP® 06032019 - 48,865 - - - 48,865 -
LTIP®  D1.04.2019 - 381,469 - - - 381.469 -
DSBP®  (05.03.2020 - - 76,266 - - 76,266 -
LTIP®™  07.04.2020 - - 862469 - - B62.469 -
TOTAL SCHEME INTERESTS 1,082,409 938735 0 221 :1 28 1800016 189,983
Notes

(A) LTIP awards are subject to performance conditions. The same relative TSR performance conditions apply inrespect of the awards made in 2017, 2018
and 2019 and the same EPS growth targets apply te all awards {annual growth of 3% to 10%) other than the 2019 award (annual growth of 3% to 12%,).
The 2020 eward is based on £PS, TSR and Operating cash conversion targets. The EPS and TSR targets are the same as the 2019 award end the
operating cash conversion performance conditions is based on three year targets between 85% and 95%. These awards ordinarily vest on the third
anniversary of the grant date. Full detail of the vesting conditions are set out on page 108,

(B} Conditional share award under the Deferred Share Ronus Plan {DSBP). Structured as restricted stock units for Paul Waterman and nil cost options for
Ralph Hewins. For DSBP awards granted in March 2020, the share price at date of grant was 98.95 pence. The face value of awards at grant were
£186,154.63 and £75,466 for Paul Waterman and Ralph Hewins respectively.

{C) Replacement Awards structured as nif cost options made under standalone arrangements that borrow terms from the LTIP as amended. In line with the
remuneration forfeited on leaving his former employer, the 2017 Award did not have performance conditions, but shares were required to be held for
WO YEars.

D) Replacement Awards structured as nil cost options made under standalone arrangements that borrow terms from the DSBP as amended.

(E) Grantunder the Elementis ple US Savings-Related Share Option Scheme 2018, The options are exercisable from 15 September 2022 with an option
price of 63.11 pence per share. The options are made pursuant to a two year savings contract and the exercise price is based on the share price at close
of business on 15 September 2020, being the date of the grant.

{F} Options held under the UK SAYE scheme. This is a savings based share option scheme that is not subject to performance conditions. Further details on
this scheme is shown in Note 26 1o the consolidated financial statements on page 169.
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MRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED

DIRECTORS' SHARE INTERESTS (AUDITED)
The interests of the Directors (including any connected persons) during the year fand from the year end to 23 March 2021) in the issued
shares of the Company were:

Acquired Disposed Shareholding
during during ievelmet as at
01.01.20 2020 2020 31.12.20 31.12.20
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Paul Waterman 435872 277,97 0 713843 No!
Ralph Hewinsg 14,660 44,533 ¢} 59,193 No?

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Andrew Duff 69,500 44,000 0 113500 n/a
Sandra Boss 15,625 25,000 0 40,625 nfa
Dorothee Deuring 16,250 10,000 0 26,250 nfa
Steve Good 12,500 50,000 0 62,500 nfa
Anne Hyland 22153 0 0 22,153 n/a
John O'Higgins 0 0 o] 0 n/a
Nick Salmon 17.500 0 0 17,500 nfa
Christine Soden 4] 0 0 0 n/a

1 As perthe Policy, Executive Directors are expected to build up a shareholding that is equal in value to 200% of their basic annual salaries. Share awards
vesting over time will contribute to meeting the shareholder requirement. See page 109 for current holding values.

The market price of ordinary shares at 31 December 2020 was 115 pence {2019; 179 pence) and the range during 2019 was 18 pence to
185 pence (2019: 129.8 pence to 179.7 pence).

As at 31 December 2020, the Trustee of the Company's Employee Share Ownership Trust {ESOT) held 621,236 shares (2018: 780,759).
As Executive Directors, Paul Waterman and Ralph Hewins, as potential beneficiaries under the ESQT, are deemed to have aninterest in any
shares thatbecome held inthe ESOT.

As at 23 March 2027, no person who was then a Director had any interest in any derivative or other financial instrument relating to the
Company’s shares and, so far as the Company is aware, none of their connected persons had such an interest. Between 31 December
2020 and 23 March 2021 there was a change to Paut Waterman's relevant interests due to the automatic vesting of a DSBP award granted
in 2018 increasing the level of shareholding by 60,619 shares after deduction of tax and withholding liabilities. There was no other change,
so far as the Company is aware. in the relevant interests of other Directors or their connected persons,

Other than their service contracts, letters of appointment and letters of indemnity with the Company, none of the Directors had an interest
in any contract of significance in relation to the business of the Company or its subsidiaries at any time during the financial year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS
The table below shows the breakdown of the retirement benefits of the Executive Directors, comprising employer contributions to defined
centribution plans and salary supplements paid incash,

Paul Waterman received a salary supplement of 20% of his basic salary and participated in US contractual retrement schemes,
Further detail canbe found in the Policy. The amount shown in the table below represents employer matching contributions and both this
and the salary supplement are included in the Directors’ emoluments table shown on page 105.

Ralph Hewins received a salary supplement of 25% of his basic salary in lieu of any other retirement benefit, The amount received is shown
in the table below and in the Directors’ emoluments table.

DIRECTORS' RETIREMENT BENEFITS (AUDITED)

Defined contribution plans Salary supplement
2020 2019 2020 2019
£'000 £'000 E£'000 £'000
Paul Waterman 36 i 143 141
Ralph Hewins n/a n‘a 20 89

Note: The pensions received were in line with the glidepath set cutin the 2018 Directors’ Remuneration report and for Paul Waterman included contributions
to his US pension arrangements (which included a tax qualified 401k plan and & non-qualified plan with contributions to these structures varying year to year
butin all cases cappedinline with the commitments included in the 2019 Directors’ Remuneration report.

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS OR PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE {AUDITED)
There were no payments in the financial year.
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TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN PERFORMANCE AND CHANGE IN CECQ'S PAY

The graph below illustrates the Company’s total shareholder return for the ten years ended 31 December 2020, relative to the FTSE 250
Index, aleng with a table ilustrating the change in CEO pay since 2010. The table also details the varying award vesting rates year on year
for the annual bonus scheme and LTIP.

As the Company's shares are denominated and listed in pence, the graph below tooks at the total return to 31 December 2020 of £100
invested in Elementis on 31 December 2010 compared with that of the total return of £100 invested in the FTSE 250 ndex. This index was
selected for the purpose of providing a relative comparison of performance because the Company is a member of it.

201 2012 2013 2014 2015 2015 2017 2018 2018 2020
CEQ pay {total
remuneration —£'000s) 2964 3.560 2252 1573 763 1,553 2,539 1,229 1,114 970
Annual bonus payout
{% of maximum} 100% 81% 56% 50% 0% 27.5% 93.0% 35.0% 17.3% 0%
LTIP vesting
(% of maximum) 100% 100% 100% £5% 0%  91.2%° 91.4%7 0% 0% 0%

1 Includes remuneration for Paul Waterman and David Dutre for the period inwhich each was CEO during 2016,
2 Relates to Paul Waterman's buy-out awards which vested in March 2017,
3 Relates to Paul Waterman's buy-out awards vesting in March 2018.

CEOQO TO ALL-EMPLOYEE PAY RATIO

Whilst Elementis is nct required to publish a CEO to all-employee pay ratio given it has less than 250 UK employees, voluntary disclosure
of the payratic is included below. In line with the relevant legislation, the analysis has been completed using Option A (i.e. actual total
remuneration earned in 2019 has been used as the basis for comparison).

Whilst this is only based upon 73 UK employees there is a mix of factory based employees c. 80% and corporate Head Office employees.
Option Awas used as it was deemed the most accurate and prevalent amongst recent FTSE 250 disclosures. The ratio has reducedin
2020 versus 2019 largely due to no bonuses being earned in 2020 by Executive Directors. The ratio is comparable with that measured
internally for 2012 and is consistent with the pay, reward and progression policies for the company's UK employees taken as a whole.

CEO pay ratio ) 2019 2020
Method A A
CEO Singe figure ) _,, ~£1,114,000 £1,007.671
Upper quartile - 15 14
Median 21 19
Lower quartile 25 23

The salary and total pay for the individuals identified at the Lower quartile, Median and Upper quartile positions in 2020 are set out below:

2020 Salary Total Pay
Upper guartile individual £49,407 £70.407
Median individual £43,268 £51.608
Lower quartile individual £38,203 £41,641
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DIRECTORS REMUKRERATION REPORT CONTINUED

RELATIVE IMPORTANCE OF SPEND ON PAY
The table below shows the total remuneration paid across the Group taogether with the total dividends paid in respect of 2020 and the
preceding financial year.

Em 2020 2018 Change
Remuneration paid to all employees! 97.7 107.8 -2.4%
[otal dividends paid in the year 0 37.6 -100%

1 See note Btothe Consolidated financial staternents, The amounts for 2020 and 2019 have bean converted from dollars into pounds sterling using the
average USD/GBP exchange rates for those years.

PERCENTAGE CHANGE IN THE REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS (UNAUDITED)
The table below shows the change from 2019 to 2020 of the Directors’ pay with regard to the three elements set out below and the
corresponding change of these elements across all employees within the Group.

Average percentage change 2019-20

Taxable Arnual

Salary benefits bonus

CEQ %3 2.0% 85% -
CFO 2 2.2% 28% -
Andrew Dutf 2.2% - -
Sandra Boss* 2.8% - -
Dorothee Deuring 2.2% - -
Steve Geod 2.2% - -
Anne Hyland 2.2% - -
Nick Salmon 2.2% - -
John O'Higgins n/a - -
Christine Soden nfa - -
Employees -9.4% - -

1 All percentages are based on converting relevant local currencies into pounds sterling using the average rates for the respective year.

2 The Executive Directors recommended and the Commitiee agreed that no bonuses should be payable in relation to 2020 performance.

3 Theyear onyear changein (i) the CEOQ's benefits are dniven by increased private medical insurance subscription as a resuit of a change in coverage and i)
changes in employee salary. benefits and bonus are driven by changes to the employee papulation and maovements in exchange rates.

4 Sandra8oss was appointed as Designated Non-Executive Director for workforce engagement in Cctober 2019 and retired from the Board in April 2020,

STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDER VOTING

The resolution to approve the 2017 Directors’ remuneration policy was passed on a poll at the Company's 2018 AGM held on 26 April 2018
and the 2019 Directors’ Remuneration report was passed on a poll at the Company's 2020 AGM held on 28 Aprit 2020, Set out in the table
below are the votes cast by proxy in respect of these resolutions,

Votes for % For Votes against % Against Voteswith-held
2019 Directors' remuneration report (2020 AGM) 346,742,847 90.65 35776984 9.35 46,441,369
2017 Directors' remuneration policy {2018 AGM) 378,249,866 98.35 2477105 065 892,722

Votes withheld are not included in the final figures as they are not recognised as a vote in law.

OTHER INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMMITTEE'S MEMBERSHIP AND OPERATION

Committee composition

The Chairman and members of the Committee are shown on pages 66 to 67, together with their biographical information, Five meetings
were held during 2020 and the attendance of Committee members are shown on page 87.

The Chairman, CEQ and other Non-Executive Directors who are not members of the Committee have a standing invite to attend and the
CFO and CHRO also attend meetings by invitation, as appropriate. The Executive Directors are not present when their own remuneration
arrangements are discussed or, if they are, they do not participate in the decision making process.

TERMS OF REFERENCE
Afull description of the Committee’s terms of reference is available on the Company’s website at www.elementis.com.
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ACTIVITIES DURING THE YEAR

The Commitiee ensure that the Policy promotes sustained perfarmance of the Company andis aligned with shareholder interests with
incentive pay based on growing profits and delivering above average total shareholder return. in line with the business operations as a
global specialty chemicals company, our Policy is designed with & bias towards long term performance. Inline with this strategy. the
performance metrics are sefected to focus on profitable growth and delivering above average total shareholder returns.

The Committee consider the Directors’ remuneration in the context of remuneration practices acress the group, considering pay ratios
{including the CEQ pay ratio and gender pay gap), internal relativities, and external benchmarking. The Committee is of the opinion that the
Policy is currently operating as intended, and provides a strong link betwean company performance and outturns.

In the forthcoming review of the Policy, the Committee will consider the clarity, simplicity, risk alignment, predictability of outcomes,
proportionality and alignment with culture. These are also considered when implementing the Policy. For example, salary increases are
cansidered inthe context of the increases provided 1o the wider employee population, the measures used in the incentive schemes are
directly linked to the KPIs used within business and both the annual bonus and LTIP have clearly defined performance targets.

Shareholders will be consulted during the Palicy review in 2021 in advance of it being presented for approval at the 2022 AGM.

Committee mesting dates Agenda items
» 2017 LTIP performance outcomes
= 2020 LTIP targets/performance conditions
+ ELT salary review and bonus payments
= Approval of final draft of Director's remuneration report
« Executive Directors’ pensicn arrangements

February 2020 N » Remuneration palicy review
April 2020 « 2020 LTIP grant

* Remuneration poticy review
Jung 2020 * Employee share schemes

» Remuneration policy update
+ Workforce pay review
+ 2021 salary reviews for Paul Waterman and Ralph Hewins
» Review of performance to gate for 2020 annual bonus
» Chairman’s fee review
October 2020 » Special share award allocations for employees
+ Corporate governance update
« Application of remuneration policy in 2021
December 2020 » Gender pay gap review (UK and global perspectives)

Outside of the above meating dates the Committee cansidered and confirmed operaticnal matters in appropriate forums {e.g.
the Executive Directors' 2020 annual bonus targets, granting of the 2020 LTIP awards).

Evaluation, training and development

On an annual basis the Committee's effectiveness is reviewed as part of the evaluation of the Board. Following the evatuation last year.
there were na majorissues to report. During 2020, Committee members were updated on the latest developments on executive
remuneration and all members received briefings from the Group Company Secretary and the Committee’s remuneration advisers
throughout the year, to keep them updated an topical matters and developments relating to executive remuneration.

Remuneration advisers

Korn Ferry were appointed external advisers to the Committee with effect from April 2017. The Committee is satisfied that there was no
over reliance on Korn Ferry and that advice received was independent and objective. Korn Ferry are a member of the Remuneration
Consultants Group and voluntarily operate under the Code of Conduct, Fees paid to Korn Ferry for remuneration advisory services in
2020 were £47,570 {excluding VAT and were charged on a time and materials basis. In addition to the remuneration advisory services
provided by Karn Ferry, another team provided assistance in respect of executive agsessments. There are no other connections with the
Company that may impact the independence of the remuneraticn advice received given the nature of the other services provided and the
internal protocols at Korn Ferry.

Auditable sections of the Directors’ Remuneration report

The sections of the Annual Report on Remuneration that are required to be audited by law are as follows: Remuneration payable to
Directors for 2020 and Retirement benefits; and tables headed Annual LTIP awards granted in the year, Directors’ scheme interests,
Directors’ share interests and Directors’ retirement benefits.

STEVE GOOD

CHAIRMAN, REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
23 March 2021
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DIRECTORS REPORI

Directors’ report

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors present the Annual Report and Accounts together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company, and the Group, for the year ended 31 December 2020.

The Directors’ Report comprises of pages 114 to 115 of this report,
together with the information required 1o be disclosed referred to
below which are incorporated by reference. in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006 and the Listing Rule 9.8.4R of the Financial
Conduct Authority. The Company, in accordance with Section 414(C)
(11} of the Companies Act 2006, has chosen to set cut certain
information required to be included in the Directors’ Reportinthe
Strateqic Report, the Governance Report, set out onpages 64to 117
and the Censolidated Financial Statements. The destinations for such
information are also shown in the table below:

Carbon emissions, energy consumstion and

energy efficiency Page 34
Corporate Governance Framework Page 70
Directors’ share interests and remuneration Pages 105, 109
Directors’ training and development Page 77
Employee diversity, equality and inclusion Page 40
Employee engagement Page 74
Innovation, Growth & Efficiency strategy Page 24
Financial instruments and financial risk

management Page 56
Going concern statement Page 63
Long term incentive plans Page 88
Membership of Board Page 66
Modern Slavery Statement Page 41
Non-financial information Page 44
Principalrigks Page 59
Resuits and Dividend Page 45
Section 172 Statement Page 20
Stakeholder engagement Page 16
Statement of Directors' Responsibilities Page 117
Viability Statement Page 63

DIRECTORS

Board of Directors

The current Directors and their biographical details are detailed on
pages 66 and 67. Sandra Boss stepped down from her role as
Non-Executive Director 29 April 2020,

Appointment and replacement of Directors

The Articles give the Directors power to appoint and replace
Directors. Under the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, appointments are recommended by the Nominaticn
Committee for approval by the Board. inline with the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Articles also require Directors to retire and
submit themseives for election at the first annual general meeting
("AGM"} following appointment and to retire at each subsequent
AGM and to submit themselves for re-election at the following
AGM. The service contracts of the Executive Directors and letters
of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors are available for
inspection at the Company's registered cffice.

Directors' powers

The Directers’ powers are conferred on them by UK legislation and
by the Company's Articles of Association ("Articles”). The Articles
may only be amended by special resolution of the Cempany at
general meeting of its shareholders.
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Directors’ conflicts of interest

Ralph Hewins is in receipt of a conflict authorisation fromthe
Company in respect of him acting as a trustee of the Elementis
Group Pension Scheme.

The conflict authorisation enables Ralph Hewins to continue to act

as atrustee notwithstanding that this role could give rise to a situaticn
inwhich there is a conflict of interest. The Board considers that it is
appropriate for the trustees of the UK pension scheme to benefit

from the financial expertise of the CFQ and that his contribution at
trustees’ meetings demonstrates the Boards commitment to
supporting the UK pension scheme, The Board's conflict authorisation
is subject to annual review and, under the terms of the conflict
authorisation, reciprocal provisions have been put in place with a view
of safeguarding information that is confidential to the Group, as well as
to the trustees. Were a conflict of interest to arise, Ralph Hewins is
required to excuse himself from reading the relevant papers and
absent himself from participating in relevant discussions.

Procedures are inplace to ensure compliance with the Companies
Act 2006. These procedures have been complied with during the year.
Details of any new conflicts or potential conflicts matters are
submitted to the Board for consideration and, where appropriate,

are approved.

Authorised conflicts and potential conflict matters are reviewed
on an annual basis.

Directors’' indemnities

In addition to the indemnity granted by the Company to Directors
inrespect of the liabilities incurred as a result of their office, a
Directors’ and Officers' liability insurance policy is maintained
throughout the year. Neither the indemnity nor the insurance
provides cover in the event that a Director has been preven to have
acted dishonestly or fraudulently. Similar arrangements also exist
for Directors appointed to Group subsidiary entities.

Directors’ share interests

The Directors' interests in the ordinary shares and opticns of the
Company can be found within the Directors’ Remuneration report
on pages 109 and 110.

SHARES

Share Capital

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s issued share capital was
580,801,241 ordinary shares of 5 pence in issue, which carries
voting rights of one vote per share. All of the Company's issued
shares are fully paid up and rank equally in ali respects. The rights
attached to the shares, in addition to those conferred on their
holders by law, are set out in the Company's Articles.

From time to time the ESOT holds shares in the Company for the
purpases of various share incentive plans and the rights attaching

to them are exercised by independent trustees, who may take into
account any recommmendation by the Company, As at 31 December
2020, the ESOT held 621,236 shares inthe Company (2019: 780,759).
A dividend waiver is in place in respect of all shares that may become
held by the Trust.

Further details of the authorised and issued share capital during the
financial year are provided in note 17 to the accounts on page 151

Rights and obligaticns attaching to shares

The rights and obligations attaching to the shares are set out in the
Articles. The Articles may only be changed by a special resolution
passed by the shareholders.



Votingrights

Sharehelders are entitled to attend and vote at any general
meeting of the Company and a poll will be held on every resclution.
Every member present in person or by proxy has, upon a poll, one
vote for every share held. In the case of joint holders of a share, the
vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by
proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other
Jjoint holders and, for this purpose, seniority shall be determined by
the erder in which the names stand in the Register of Members in
respect of the joint holding.

Dividends
The Directors are not recommending the payment of a final
dividend this year.

Authority to purchase own shares

The Board has the power confarred on it by shareholders to purchase
its own shares and is seeking renewal of that power at the forthcoming
AGM within the limits set out in the Notice of Meeting.

Employee share plans

The Company operates a number of employee share plans, details of
which are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements
and on page 108 of the Directors’ Remuneration report, All of the
Company's employee share plans contain provisions relating to
change ¢f control. On a change of control, options and awards
granted to employees may vest and becarme exercisable, subject to
the satisfaction of any applicable performance conditions at the time.

Substantial shareholders

In accordance with the Disclosure Guidance and Transparency
Rules {DTR), as at 31 December 2020 and 23 March 20271, the
following interests in voting rights over the issued share capital
of the Company had been notified. Information provided to the
Company under the DTR is publicly available via the regulatory
information service and on the Company's website.

Percentage

Ordinary ofissued

S _ . shares share capital
APG Asset Managerment NV 61,362,335 1056
Ameriprise Financial, Inc. and its group 57,916,440 998
SFM UK Management LLP 33,337,634 574
Aberdeen Asset Managers Limited 23,056,448 497
Schroders plc 22,517,387 491
AXA Investment Managers S.A. 23515878 4.05
Blackrock, Inc. Below 5%  Below 5%
FMRLLC Below 5%  Below 5%

EMPLOYEES

Employment policies and equal opportunities

Elementis policies seek to create a workplace that has an open
atmasphere of trust, hcnesty and respect. Harassment or
discrimination of any kind based onrace, colour, religion, gender,
age, national origin, citizenship, mental or physical disabilities, sexual
orientation, veteran status, or any other similarly protected status is
nol lolerated. This principle applies tc all aspects of employment,
including recruitment and selection, training and development,
promotion and retirement. Employees are free to join atrade union
and participate in collective bargaining arrangements.

It is also a Group policy for employees who have a disability to
reasonably accommodate them, where practicable, and to provide
training, career development and premaotion, as appropriate. Itis
Group policy not to discriminate on the basis of any unlawful
criteria and its practices include prohibition on the use of child or
forced labour.

Elementis supports the wider fundamental human rights of its
employees worldwide, as well as those of our customers and
suppliers, and further details set cut in the ESG section onpages
38and41.

Employee communications and involvement

The Company is committed to employee involvement throughout
the business. Employees are kept infermed of the performance
and strategy of the Group via email. Telephone canference calis are
held by the CEQ to employees worldwide and these serve as an
informal forum for employees to ask topical questions about the
Group. Further information can be found on page 74.

Research and development activities

Innovation is a core strategic priority. Our innovation expertise and
capability is focused on delivering products that address our
customers needs.

As at 31 December 2020, 90 employees were engaged in global
research and development activities. For further information on cur
approach to innovation, please referto page 24.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, costs relating to
research and development activities were $7.2m (2019: $7.8m).
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DIRECTORS' REPQRT CONTINUED

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Going concern and viability statement

The Directors consider that the Group and the Company have
adeqguate resources to remain in operation for the foreseeable
future and have therefore ¢continued to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the financial statements. The Code requires the
Directors to assess and report an the prospects of the Group over
alonger period. This longer term viability statement is set out on
page 63.

Audit Information

Each Director of the Company on 23 March 2021, the date this
Directors’ Report was approved, confirms that so far as they are
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the
Company's auditor, Deloitte LLP, is unaware and that they have
taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director to
make themselves aware of any relevant augit information and to
establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information.

Auditors

Following recommendation by the Audit Committee, resolutions
to re-appoint Deloitte LLP as auditors and to authorise the Audit
Committee to fix their remuneration wiil be proposed at the
forthcoming AGM. The remuneration of the augitors for the year
ended 31 December 2020 is fully disclosed in note 7 to the
Financial Statements on page 146.

Annual General Meeting

The 2021 AGM wilt be held on Thursday 13 May 2021, Details of the
resolutions to be proposed at the AGM are set outin the Notice of
AGM which has been sent to sharenolders and is available onthe
Company’s website: www.elementis.com

Amendments to the Company's articles of association

Any amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company
may bemade in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act 2006 by way of speciai resolution.

Significant agreements ~ change of control and takeover bids
There are few significant agreements which the Company is party

to that take effect, alter or terminate in the event of change of control
of the Company. The Company is a guarantor under the Group's
$200m and €172m long term loans, and $375m revalving credit
facllity and, inthe event of a change cf control, any lender among the
facility syndicate, of which there are 12 with commitments ranging
from $25m to $93m, may withdraw from the facility and that lender's
participation in any loans drawn down are required to be repaid.

118  ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2020 | ELEMENTIS PLC

The riles of the Company's various share incentive schemes set
out the consequences of a change of control of the Company on
the rights of the participants under those schemes. Under therules
of the respective schemes, participants would generally be able to
exercise their options on a change of control, provided that the
relevant performance conditions have been satisfied and, where
relevant, options are not exchanged for new opticns granted by an
acquiring company.

The Company is required to disclose any significant agreements
that take effect, alter or terminate on a change of control of the
Company following a takeover bid. In the event of a takeover or other
change of contro! (usually excluding an internal reorganisation),
outstanding awards under the Group's incentive plans vest and
become exercisable fincluding Deferred Bonus Share Plan (DBSP}
cash awards and Long Term ingentive Awards (LTIP) awards), to the
extent any performance conditions {if applicable) have been met,
and subject to time pro-rating (if applicable) unless determined
otherwise by the Boardin its discretion, in accordance with the rules
of the plans. In certain circumstances, the Board may decide (with
the agreement of the acquiring company) that awards willinstead be
cancelled in exchange for equivalent awards over shares inthe
acquiring company.

Political donations
The Group made na political donations during the year {2019:nil).

Branches

As a global Group, Elementis’ interests and activities are held or
operated through subsidiaries, branches, joint arrangements or
associates which are established in, and subject to the laws and
regulations of, many different jurisdictions.

Other information

information about the Group's financiat risk management and
exposure to financial market risks are set out in Note 23 to the
financial statements on pages 158 to 161.

Events after the balance sheet date
There were no significant events after the balance sheet date.

On behalf of the Board:

LAURA HIGGINS
COMPANY SECRETARY

23 March 2021



Directors’' responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and
the financial staterments in accordance with applicable United
Kingdom law and regulations. Detailed below are statements made
by the Directors in relation to their responsibilities and disciosure of
information to the auditor:

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES IN
RESPECT OF THE ANNUAL RFPORT AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Company law requires the Directors to prepare such financial
statements for each financial year, Under the law, the Directors are
required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance
with international Accounting Standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and International
Financial Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC)
No 1606/2002 as it applies in the Eurapean Union.

Under company law, the Directors must not approve the financial
staternents unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the prefit or loss
of the Company for that period.

In preparing the parent Company financial statements, the
directors are required to:

= select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently;

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

+ state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements; and

+ prepare the financial staterments on the going concern basis
unless it is appropriate 1o presume that the Company wil)
continue in business.

In preparing the Group financial staterments, International
Accounting Standard 1 requires that Directors:

« properly select and apply accounting policies;

+ present information, including accounting policies, inamanner
that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable information;

+ pravide additional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the entity's financial position and financial
performance; and

= make an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that
the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps forthe
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also
responsible for preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’ Report,
Directors' Remuneration report and Corporate Governance
Statement that complies with that law and regulations.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financial informatinn included on the
Company’'s website. Legislation in the UK governing and preparing
and dissernination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Each of the Directors, who are appointed at the date of approval
of this report, confirm that to the best of their knowledge:

» the financial statements, which have been prepared in
accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework, give
a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in
the consolidation taken as a whole;

» the strategic reportincludes a fair review of the development
and perfarmance of the business and the position of the
Company and the undertakings included in the censolidation
taken as a whale, together with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that they face; and

» the Annual Report and financial statements, taken as awhole are
fair, balanced and understandable and pravide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's position
and perfarmance, business model and strategy.

This responsibility statement was approved by the Board of
Directors on 23 March 2021 and is signed on its behalf by:

LS e (et

PAUL WATERMAN RALPH HEWINS
CEQ CFO
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent auditor’s report
to the members of Elementis plc

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. OPINION

In our opinion:

+ the financial statements of Elementis pic (the ‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the 'group’) give a true and fair view of the state
of the group's and of {he parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of the group’s (oss for the year then ended:

+ the group financial statements have been properiy prepared in accordance with internationat accounting standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2008 and International Financial Reporting Standards IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union;

* the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared In accordance with United Kingdom Generaily Accepted
Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework”; and

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

the consolidated income statement;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

* the consolidated and parent company balance sheets;

= the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity;
« the consolidated cash flow statement;

« the consolidated financial statement related notes 1 to 32; and

« the parent company Statutory accounts related notes 1 to 11.

The financial reporting frarmewaork that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is applicable law and
international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and IFRSs as adopted by the
Eurcpean Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework” {United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

2. BASIS FOR OPINION
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) (ISAs {UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to cur audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s [the 'FRC's’) Ethical Standard as applied to listed public interest
entities, and we have fulfiled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. The non-audit services provided to
the group and parent company for the year are disclosed in note 7 1o the financial statements. We confirm that the non-audit services
prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the group or the parent company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

3. SUMMARY OF OUR AUDIT APPROACH

Key audit matters The key audit matters that we identified in the current year were:

« Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets in relation to the Talc cash generating unit;
+ Revenue recognition; and
+ Environmental provision.

Materiality The materiglity that we used for the group financial statements was $3.0 million (2019: $3.7 million}
which was determined on the basis of 0.4% of revenue (2019. 5% of profit before tax adiusted for the
sale of operations, restructuring and business transformation costs, the refease of contingent
consideration and other adiusting items). Given the volatility in performance during FY20 and the
reporting of a statutory loss, revenue was considered the most appropriate performance measure on
which to base materiality.

Scoping We have performed full scope audits or the audit of specified account balances of seven components
which comprise 83% of the Group's revenue and 89% of the Group's loss before tax,

Significant changesin our We have amended the basis on which we have determined materiality in the current period, given the

approach volatility in the current year earnings of the Group. Historically cur materiality has been determined

solely with reference to an adjusted profit before tax benchmark. In the current year, revenue was used
as the reference benchmark,

We have reduced our performance materiality percentage in the current year. Further details are
provided in section 6.2 below.

118 ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2020 ) ELEMENTIS PLC



4, CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statements is appropriate.

Our evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group's and parent company's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting included:

» evaluating the financing facilities including nature of facilities, repayment terms and covenants, including the easing of the net debt
to EBITDA covenant ratio that the Group is required to achieve for the period up to and including 31 December 2021. Further informatian
is set out on page 63 of the annual report;

» inspecting written evidence of the easing of the covenant referred to above, which was agreed by the Group's lenders in the second
half of the vear,

« recalculation and assessment of the amount of forecast headroom on the loan covenants;

= performing a sensitivity analysis to consider specific scenarios, including a reduction in revenue and associated profits;

« assessment of the cash flow model used 1o prepare the going concern forecast, testing of clerical accuracy of the model and our
assessment of the historical accuracy of forecasts prepared by management; and

= evaluating the reverse stress test prepared by management.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at
least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised forissue.

Inrelation to the reporting on how the group has applied the UK Carporate Governance Code, we have nothing material to add or draw
attention to in relation to the directors’ statement in the financial statements about whether the directors considered it appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of
this report.

5. KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professicnal judgement, were of mast significance in cur audit of the financial statements
of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud} that we
identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resourcesin the
audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

5.1 Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets in relation to the Talc CGU

Key audit matter description Due to underperformance of the Talc CGU against forecasts in the first half of the
year, which included the adverse impact of COVID-19, management determined
that this gave rise to an indicator of impairment at 3¢ June 2020. In performing their
assessment of the future performance of the business, management determined
that it was necessary Lo recognise an impairment charge of $33.4m in relation to
the goodwill of the Talc CGU as at 30 June 2020, No further impairment was
recognised on completion of the annual impairment review as of 31 October 2020.

Management assumptions for short-term cash flows over the next five years show
a growth rate higher than the historic growth rate experienced by the Group.
Management has based such assumptions on a pipeline of new business
opportunities and planned product launches which they have assessed will lead to
future growth above histaric trends.

As described innote 1 to the financial statements, the annual impairment review
involves judgement in relation to forecasting future cash flows. At the planning
stage of our audit, we identified the Talc CGU as being sensitive to variations in
future forecast cash flows and we have identified the forecast revenue growth
assumptions in the short-term cash flows as a key assumption,

Management has highlighted impairment of goodwiil as a key source of estimation
uncertainty in note 1 and provided disclosure on the sensitivity of the Talc CGUto
reasonably possible changes in key assumptions in note 10. These significant
judgement areas are alsc referred to within the Audit Qgiﬂmittee reportonpage 85,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

independent auditor’s report
to the members of Elementis plc continued

How the scope of our auditresponded Qur procedures included:

to the key audit matter .
t Y + Gaining anunderstanding of the Group and Talc management's process for

developing the short term cash flow assumptions and the relevant controls
mitigating the risks identified in the impairment process:
+ Mesting with Talc managerment to understand and chailenge the revenue
growth forecasts;
Understanding and challenging the key assurnptions undearpinning
management’s forecast revenue growth, including by reference to past actual
performance and available third party evidence;
+ Considering available market data tc assess and chalienge the forecast sales
volume increases and longer term growth rates;
Considering the impact of different scenarios should the forecast levels of
revenue growth not be achieved, including assessment of what costs have been
madelled that are directly linked to the revenue growth;
= Consitering and assessing the impact of contradictory evidence in relation to
the expected performance of the CGU;
« Assessing the histarical accuracy of forecasts by comparing the current period
actual trading performance against the FY20 planned expectations;
» Performing further independent sensitivity analysis on the impairment mode;
» Involving internal valuations specialists to help provide an independent
calculation of the discount rates;
Testing the integrity of the madeid through testing mechanicat accuracy, formulag
and inputs; and
+ Considering the apprapriateness of the related disclosures.

Key observations We are satisfied that management's conclusicn that no further impairmentin
excess of the $33.4m recorded in the first half of the year is required is acceptable,
We concluded that there are reasonably possible scenarios which could result in
animpairment.

We consider the disclosure in the judgements and estirmates section of note 1
provided concerning the impairment of assets in the Taic CGU together with the
reasonable possible change sensitivity provided in note 1G ta comply with the
requirermnents of IAS 36.

We have separately reported to the Audit Committee cur control findings on the
preparation of the models used and the precision of the management
review controls.
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5.2. Revenue recognition

Key audit matter description

At the year end, manual adjustments are required for goods which have been
despatched but where, under the terms of sale, the control of the goods has yet to
pass to the customer because the Group's systems record revenue on despateh,
Management has determined the point at which control passes based on different
shipping terms and the key judgement in the calculation relates to the assumptions
made on the delivery times te the point at which control passes. The Group trades
giobally and a change in the number of days assumed for these shipments to
transfer to the customer can have a materialimpact on the cut-off adjustment.
Given the level of management judgerent involved, we alsc identified this key audit
matter as a potential fraud risk.

The accounting policy is described in note 1 where this is also included as a critical
accounting jJudgement. These significant judgement areas are alsoreferred to
within the Audit Committee report on page 85.

How the scope of our audit responded
to the key audit matter

Qur procedures included:

s Gaining an understanding of the reievant controls aver the revenue
recegnition adjustments;

» Reviewing and assessing commercial arrangements covering shipments, to
determine the correct point of revenue recognition for different shipment
arrangements and agreements with customers;

= Selecting a sample of international shipments made pre-year end for time
periods varying by destination port and therefore transit time for shipments and
agreed these to customer order, shipment and invoice details, cashreceipts and
goods receipt notes;

= Challenging management's assumptions used in their cut-off calculation for
reasonableness and consistency by substantive testing of international
shipments; and

= Substantively testing a sample of post year end credit notes raised to determine
if revenue was inappropriately recegnised inthe year.

Key observations

From the work performed, we have concluded that management have completed
appropriate cut-off adjustments at the year end to take into account those sales
where controlhas not transferred.

A number of misstatements, which were hoth individually and in the aggregate
immaterial, were identified and reported to the Audit Committee but were
not corrected.

5.3 Environmental provision

Key audit matter description

In line with other companies within the chemicals industry, Elementis holds
provisions for the rmonitoring and remediation of a number of operating and legacy
sites, including those sold off or no longer in use. In accordance with the Elementis’
environmental provision policy, a provision is recognised for the restaration of
contaminated land.

As at 31 December 2020, Elementis has recognised a provision $50.6 million
(31 December 2019: $44.1 million) for such liabilities, of which the majerity is for
two sites being the UK Chromium site at Eaglescliffe and the US Chromium site
at Corpus Christi.

There is uncertainty in this provisicnrelating to the estimated future cash
expenditure to remediate the two sites and the discount rate applied in the
calculation, given the long time horizon of 25 years over which costs for these

two sites are anticipated. Small changes in annual forecast cash cutflows can
have a significant cumulative impact onthe total provision estimate. The cash flow
is estimated and calculated by managemenit having regard 1o advice from external
environmental consultants. These cash flows are then discounted at the
management determined discount rate. Due to the judgemental and material
nature of estimation of such forecast spending needed to undertake
environmental remediation, we have considered the valuation of the provision on
these two sites to be a key audit matter.

The Group's accounting pelicy is included within note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements where this is also included as a critical accounting judgement.
There is additional disclosure included within note 15. The Audit Committee
discussion is included on page 85.
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FINANCGIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Independent auditor's report

to the members of Elementis ple¢ continued

How the scope of our audit responded Our procedures included:
to the key audit matter

+ Holding discussion with management and the Group's external environmental

consultants on the identified environmental contaminaticn to confirm our
understanding of the current assessment and the process by which
management and the external consultants prepared the cash flow forecasts;

+ Gaining an understanding of managsment’s process fos developing the cash
flow assumptions and the relevant controls mitigating the risks identified in the
environmental provision process,

Assessing the completeness of forecast cost categorles on each significant

site selected through distussions with site managers at relevant locations;

= Engaging our internal environmental censultants to assist in challenging the
completeness of the cost categories ncluded within the forecast cash flows
by assessing the key assumptions and inputs to the forecast cash flows;

Challenging the key assumptions and inputs to the forecast cash flows and

agreeing the inputs to supporting documentation;
« Engaging our internal valuation experts to challenge the appropriateness of
the discount rates applied by comparison to our own internal benchmark data;

Reviewing the previous estimates made of expected cash outflows for 2020t0

actual cash outflows in 2020 to assess forecasting accuracy:
« Performing a retrospective review of assumptions made in the cusrent year
versus ptior year and challenging the evidence for any changes in assumptions;

and

Performing searches of external databases to determine completeness of the

identified environmental issues and sites.

Key observations As a result of our work, we have concluded that the provigions held by Elementis in
relation to environmental remediation and monitoring are materially correct, when
assessed as part of the financial statements as a whole,

A number of immaterial misstatements, both individually and in aggregate, were
identified and reperted to the Audit Committee, and one was corrected.

6. OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY
6.1. MATERIALITY

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatementin the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic decisions of
areasonably knowledgeable person wouid be changed cr influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope of our audit work and

in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements

Parent Company financial statements

Materiality $ 3.0 million {2019: $3.7 million)
Basis for Materiality was set on the basis of 0.4% of revenue.
determining materiality (2079: 5% of profit before tax adjusted for the sale

of operations, restructuring and business
transformation costs, the release of contingent
consideration and other adjusting items),

Rationale for the Revenue is a key performance measures for

benchmark applied managerment, investors and the analyst
community. This metric isimportant ta the users of
the financial statements (investors and analysts
being the key users for a listed entity} because it is
a key indicator of the performance of the business
and its ability to generate returns for shareholders,

We have amended the hasis onwhich we have
determined materiality in the current period, given
the volatility in the current year earnings of the
Group. Historically our materiality has been
determined sofely with reference to an adjusted
profit before tax benchmark. In the current year,
revenue was used as the reference benchmark.

$1.2 millien (2019: $1.5 million)

A factor of 3% of net assets was used capped to an
appropriate compenent materiality 40% (2019: 40%)
of Group materiality.

We have used net assets in determining materiality
as we believe this is an appropriate basis for
materiality as it refiects the nature of the parent
cornpany as a holding company and its contripution
to the Group performance.
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6.2. PERFORMANCE MATERIALITY
We set performance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected and undetected
misstatements exceed the materiality for the financial statements as a whole.

Group financial statements Parent Company financial statements
Performance materiality 60% (2019: 70%) of group materiality 60% (2019: 70%)} of parent company materiality
Basis and rationale for We set performance materiality at a level lower than mateniality to reduce the probability that, in
determining aggregate, uncorrected and undetected misstatements exceed the materiality for the financial
performance materiality statements as a whole. Group performance materiality was set at 80% of group materiality for the 2020

audit (2018: 70%;.

In determining performance materiality, we considered our past experience of the group and our risk
assessment, including our assessment of the group's averall control environment. A number of control
deficiencies were identified for the year ended 31 December 2018, which were reported to the

Audit Committes.

In determining performance materiality for the current year, we therefore considered the value and
number of corrected and uncorrected misstatements in the previous year, as well as the likelihood of
these recurring in the current year, Further discussion regarding the control environment is included in
section 7.2.

6.3. ERROR REPORTING THRESHOLD

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of $150,000(2019: $185,000),
as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report 1o the Audit
Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.

7. AN OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF OUR AUDIT

71, IDENTIFICATION AND SCOPING CF COMPONENTS
Cur Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide controls, and
assessing the risks of material misstatement at the Group level.

There are seven compenents for the 2020 year end (2019 six), of which, four are significant to the Group:

= the Specialty products operations in the US;

+ the Specialty products operations in the UK;

+ the Specialty products operations in Taiwan;

= the Specialty products operations in China;

+ the Chromium operations in the US;

» the Chromium operations in the UK and

« the Talc operationin Netherlands and Finland.

These seven locations were subject to full scope audits or audits of specified accounts balances, which were performed by locat
component auditors under the direction and supervisicn of the Group audit team, except the Speciality UK and Chromium UK cperations
where the Group audit team performed the audit without the involvement of a component tearmn. The Speciatties products operations in
Taiwan and In China were performed by separate teams reporting directly to us, whereas in the prior year one team reported directly to us
on the combined results of these operations.

Our audit work on the seven components was executed at levels of performance materiality applicable to each individual entity which
were fower than Group materiality and ranged from $1.1 million to $0.8 million (2019: $1.6 million to $1.3 million).

The in-scope lccations represent the principal busingss units within the Group's operating divisions and account for 93% (2019: 89%) of
the Group's revenue and 89% (2019: 77%) of the Group's loss before tax.

At the parent entity level we also tested the consolidation process and carried cut analytical procedures to confirm our conclusion that
there were no significant risks of material misstatement of the aggregated financial information of the remaining components not subject
to audit or audit of specified account balances. The parent campany is located in the UK and is audited directly by the Group audit team.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Iindependent auditor's report
to the members of Elementis plc continued

7.2. OUR CONSIDERATION OF THE CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

Our audit for the period identified a number of control deficiencies. The nature of these deficiencies primarily related to the precision of
controls around inventory management within the Chromium division, and the recognition of deferred and current taxation and the
preparation of the goodwill impairment models used and the precision of the management review controls of those models.

We reported all of our significant findings and observations on internal controls to the Audit Committee, as well as some other findings
and cbservations which are not significant, together with recommendations for improvement,

We identified the main finance systems usedin each of the components, as well as the consolidation system, as key [T systems relevant
to our audit. A number of IT control deficiencies were identified in prior audit engagements which remain unresolved, as well as new
findings identified in the current year, primarily related to user access and segregation of duties. As a result of these findings, we dig not
plan to rely on testing controls in our audit approach, cansistent with prior peried audits.

As described in the Internal centrofs and risk management section of pages 85 and 86, the Audit Committee will oversee the actions
taken to remediate the control observations. As a result of the deficiencies in IT controls and the business process controls summarised
above, we extended the scope of our substantive audit procedures in response to the identified deficiencies.

7.3. WORKING WITH OTHER AUDITORS

The Group audit was conducted exclusively by a global network of Deloitte member firms under the direction and supervision of the UK
Group audit team. Component auditors were assigned to perform audit procedures in line with the scoping of the respective components
within their jurisdiction. For the Group audit, the compenent auditors focused on components classified for full scope and specified audit
procedures. Further work was performed at a Group level over the consolidation and compenents not in scope, Dedicated members of
the Group audit team were assigned to each component to facilitate an effective and consistent approach to component oversight.

The planned programme which we designed as part of our involvement in the component auditor's wark was defivered over the course of
the Group audit. The extent of our involvernent which commenced from the planning phase included:

« Setting the scope of the component auditor and assessment of the component auditar's independence,
» Designing the audit procedures for all significant risks to be addressed by the compenent auditors and issuing Group audit instructions
detailing the nature and form of the reporting required by the Group engagement team.

Inresponse to the COVID-19 pandemic, which limited our ability to make component visits, more frequent calls were heid between the
Group and compaonent teams and our procedures included, where appropriate, providing direction on enquiries made by the component
auditors through online and telephecne conversations, a review of each component auditor's engagement file by a senior member of the
Group audit team and Group team virtual attendance at local component audit close meetings. Given the pandemic, the majority of our
audit was performed under a remote working environment. Throughout this time. we increased the frequency of cur meetings with the
audit team and with management to ensure progress. We were able to perfarm our procedures without needing to make substantial
changes to our planned approach.

8. OTHER INFORMATION

The atherinformation comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other infarmation contained within the annual report. Cur opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise expilicitly stated in cur report, we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained inthe course of the audit, or otherwise appears te be materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencias or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a
material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that thereis a
material misstatement of this other infarmation, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
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9. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsivle for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal contrel as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have norealistic alternative but to do so.

10. AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our chiectives are to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes cur opinion. Reasonable assuranceis a high
level of assurance, but is nct a Quarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstaterments can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilities, This description forms part of our auditor's report.

11. EXTENT TO WHICH THE AUDIT WAS CONSIDERED CAPABLE OF DETECTING
IRREGULARITIES, INCLUDING FRAUD

Irreguiarities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with faws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our
responsibilities, cutlined above, 1o detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

11.1. IDENTIFYING AND ASSESSING POTENTIAL RISKS RELATED TO IRREGULARITIES
Inidentifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irreguiarities, including fraud and non-compliance with laws and
regulations, we considered the following:

» the nature of the industry and sector, control environment and business performance including the design of the group’s remuneration
policies, key drivers for directors’ remuneration, bonus levels and performance targets;

= results of our enquiries of management, internal audit and the audit committee about their own identification and assessment of the
risks of irregularities;

* any matters we identified having obtained and reviewed the group's documentation of their policies and procedures relating to:
- identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance;
- detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or aileged fraud;
- theinternal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations:

* the matters discussed among the audit engagement team including significant component audit teams and retevant internal
specialists, including tax, pensions, financlal instruments, vatuation, environmental and IT specialists regarding how and where fraud
might oceur in the financial statements and any petentialindicators of fraud.

As aresult of these procedures, we considered the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and
identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following areas: revenue recognition. In common with all audits under [SAs (UK), we are also
required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of management averride.

We also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the group operates in, focusing on provisions of those
laws and regulaticns that had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The key
laws and regulaticns we considered in this context included the UK Companies Act, pensions’ legislation, and tax legislatien.

In addition, we considered provisions of other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but
compliance with which may be fundamental to the group’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty which we consider includes
environmental regulations as having a fundamental effect on the operations of the Group.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Independent auditor's report
to the members of Elementis plc continued

11.2, AUDIT RESPONSE TO RISKS IDENTIFIED

As aresult of performing the above, we identified revenue recognition as a key audit matter related to the potential risk of fraud or
non-compiiance with laws and reguiations. The key audit matters section of cur report explains the matter in more detait and also
descripes the specific procedures we performed in response to that key audit matter.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to risks identified included the following:

* reviewing the financial staterent disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with provisions of

relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

enqguiring of management, the audit commitiee and in-house legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims;

« performing analytical procedures {o identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material misstatement
due to fraud:

= reading minutes of meetings of those ¢charged with governance, reviewing internai audit reports and reviewing correspondence with
HMRC and environmental regulators; and

» inaddressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness of journal entries and other
adjustments. assessing whether the judgements rnade inmaking accounting estimates are indicative of 2 potential bias; and evaluating
the business rationale of any significant trangactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business,

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement team members including
internal specialists and significant component audit teams, and remained alert 1o any indications of fraud of non-compliance with faws
and regulations throughout the audit.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

12. OPINIONS ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES
ACT 2006

In our opinian the part of the Directors’ Remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 20086.

In our opinion, based on the wark undertaken in the course of the audit:

* theinformation given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
+ the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Inthe fight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and their environment obtained inthe course of the
audit. we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

13. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Listing Rules require us 1o review the directors’ statement in relation to going concern, longer-term viability and that part of the
Carporate Governance Statement relating to the group's compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code specified
for our review.

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have concluded that each of the following elemenits of the Corporate Governance
Statement is materially cansistent with the financial statements and our knowledge abtained during the audit:

* the directors’ statermnent with regards to the appropriateness of adopiing the going concern basis of accounting and any materiat

uncertainties identified set out on page 63

the directors’ explanation as to its assessment of the group’s prospects. the period this agsessment covers and why the period is

appropriate set out on page 63;

« the directors’ statement on fair, balanced and understandabie set out on page 86;

+ the board's confirmation that it has carried out a robust assessment of the emerging and principal risks set out on pages 5810 62;

= the section of the annual report that describes the review of effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems set out on
pages 85 and 86; and

« the section describing the work of the audit committee set out on page 83.

-
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14. MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION

14.1. ADEQUACY OF EXPLANATIONS RECEIVED AND ACCOUNTING RECORDS
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are reguired to report to you if, in our opinicn:

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

+ adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

+ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have nothing to report inrespect of these matters,

14.2. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are alse required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration have not
been made or the part of the Directors’ Remuneration report to be audited is not in agreement with the accounting records and returns,

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

15. OTHER MATTERS WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED TO ADDRESS

15.1. AUBITOR TENURE

Following the recommendation of the audit committee, we were appointed by the Board on 27 April 2016 to audit the financial staternents
for the year ending 31 December 2016 and subsequent financial periods. The period of total uninterrupted engagement including
previous renewals and reappointments of the firm is five years, covering the years ending 31 December 2016 to 31 December 2020,

15.2. CONSISTENCY OF THE AUD|T REPORT WITH THE ADDITIONAL REPORT TO THE AUDI|T COMMITTEE
Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report te the audit committee we are required to provide in accordance with ISAs (UK}

16. USE OF OUR REPORT

Thisreport is made solely 1o the company's members, as a hody, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to themin
an auditor's report and for ne other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anycne
other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

CHRISTOPHER POWELL, FCA, (SENIOR STATUTORY AUDITOR)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

23 March 2021
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Consolidated income statement

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Note $m $m
Revenue 2 751.3 873.6
Cast of sates {494.0) {552.2)
Gross profit 257.3 3214
Distribution costs (112.6) (127.3)
Administrative expenses {172.9) 83.2)
Operating (loss)profit 2 {28.2) 100.9
Profit/{loss) on disposal 32 0.3 2.0}
Other expenses’ 25 {1.6) (1.5}
Finance income 3 0.3 04
Finance costs 4 [39.6) £29.8)
{Loss)/profit before income tax {68.8) 61.0
Tax 6 1.8 (14.6}
{Loss)/profit for the year (67.0) 46.4
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (67.0) 46.4
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic (loss)fearnings [cents) 9 {11.5) B8O
Diluted (fossiearnings (cents) 9 (11.3) 7.9
1 Qther expenses comprise administration expenses for the Group's pension schemes.
nsolidat f
Comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2020
2020 2019
$m $m
{LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR {67.0) 46.4
Other comprehensive income:
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss:
Remeasurements of retirement benefit obligations {0.3) 111
Deferred tax associated with retirement benefit obligations {0.3) 1.3
Items thet may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss:
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations 25.0 23.9)
Effective portion of change in fair value of net investment hedge {3.6) 275
Recycling of deferred foreign exchange {gains)/losses on disposal {0.2) 04
Effective portion of changes in fair vaiue of cash flow hedges (1.4) (2.8)
Fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to income statement 0.9 -
Exchange differences on translation of share options reserves .7 27
Dther comprehensive incomel{loss) 17.4 (5.9}
Total comprehensive (losskincome for the year (49.6) 405
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (49.6) 405
Total comprehensive {loss)/income for the year {49.6) 405
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Consolidated balance sheet

As at 31 December 2020

2020 2019
31 December 31 December
Note $m $m
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Goodwill and other intangible assets 10 892.6 858.1
Property, plant and equipmernt " 516.0 5136
ACT recoverable 16 0.6 48
Deferred tax assets 16 26.3 282
Net retirement benefit surplus 25 7.9 74
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,443.4 15121
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories 12 164.3 1687
Trade and other receivables 13 108.3 1179
Derivatives 21 14 0.1
Current tax assets 7.2 25
Cash and cash equivalents 20 111.0 1039
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 392.2 39831
TOTAL ASSETS 1,835.6 1,905.2
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank overdrafts and loans 19 (3.7 (2.2)
Trade and other payables 14 {132.6) {134.5)
Financial liabilities 21 (17.3) (2.1}
Current tax liabilities (232) (23.2)
Lease ligbilities 24 (7.2) (7.1)
Provisions 15 (9.6) 6.4)
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES {183.6} {175.5)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Loans and borrowings 21 (510.6) (550.8)
Retirement benefit obligations 25 (28.1) (24.5)
Ceferred tax liabilities 16 {143.1) {150.2)
Lease liabilities 24 37.2) (39.8)
Provisions 15 (49.2) 45.2)
Financial liabilities 21 (13.4) (13.0)
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (781.6} {823.5)
TOTAL LIABILITIES (975.2) {999.0)
NET ASSETS 860.4 906.2
Equity
Share capital 17 52.1 52.1
Share premium 237.7 2317
Other reserves 18 108.6 91.1
Retained earnings 462.0 5253
TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 860.4 906.2
TOTALEQUITY 860.4 906.2

The financial statements on pages 128 to 174 were approved by the Board on 23 March 2021 and signed on its behalf by:

e . e

PAUL WATERMAN RALPH HEWINS
CEQ CFO
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUVED

Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Share Share Translation Hedging Other Retained Total
capita! premium reserve reserve reserves earnings equity
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m
BALANCE AT 1 JANUARY 2019 521 237.6 {73.0) (5.6) 1641 540.4 915.6
Impact following adoption of IFRS 16 - - - - - (4.0} (4.0}
REVISED AT 1 JANUARY 2019 52.1 2376 (73.0 (5.6) 164.1 5364 9116
Comprehensive inceme
Profit for the year - - - - - 46.4 46.4
Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences - - 36 - 27 - 6.3
Recycling of deferred foreign exchange losses on
disposal - - 04 - - - 0.4
Fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to the
income statement - - - - - - -
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow
hedges - - - (2.8} - - (2.8
Remeasurements of retirement benefit obligations - - - ~ - (1.1 n1.m
Deferred tax adjustment on pension scheme deficit - - - ~ - 1.3 1.3
Transfer - - - ~ (1.3 1.3 -
Tatal other camprehensive income - - 4.0 (2.8} 1.4 8.5) (5.9}
Total comprehensive income - - 4.0 (2.8} 14 379 405
Transactions with owners:
Issue of shares by the Company - 0.1 - - - - 0.1
Share based payments - - - - 3.0 - 30
Deferred tax on share based payments recognised
within equity - - - - - 03 03
Dividends paid - - - - - (48.3) {48.3}
Total transactions with owners - 0.1 - - 3.0 49.0) 45.9)
BALANCE AT 31 DECEMBER 2018 521 237.7 (62.0) 8.4) 168.5 525.3 806.2
BALANCE AT 1 JANUARY 2020 52.1 2377 (69.0} (8.4) 1685 525.3 906.2
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year - - - - - 67.0) 67.0)
Other comprehensive income:
Exchange differences - - 214 - 27 - 187
Recycling of deferred foreign exchange gains on
disposal - - 0.2) - - - 0.2y
Fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to the
incomne staterment - - - 0.9 - - 09
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow
hedges - - - {1.4) - - (1.4
Remeasurements of retirement benefit obligations - - 0.1 - - 08 0.3)
Deferred tax adjustment on pension scheme deficit - - - - - (0.3} ©.3)
Transfer - - ~ - {2.9} 29 -
Total other comprehensive income/{loss) - - 20.1 0.5) {5.6) 34 174
Total comprehensive income/{loss) - - 20 10.5) 5.6) 63.6) (49.8)
Transactions with awners:
tssue of shares by the Company - - ~ - 0.2 0.2
Share based payments - - - - 35 - 35
Deferred tax on share based payments recognised
within equity - - - - - 0.1 [oR
Total transactions with owners - - - - 3.5 0.3 38
BALANCE AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 52.1 237.7 {48.9) {8.9) 166.4 462.0 860.4
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Consolidated cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019

Note $m $m
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
{Loss)/profit for the year (67.0) 46.4
Adjustments for:
Other expenses 1.6 15
Finance income 3 {0.3) 0.4
Finance costs 4 39.6 298
Taxcharge 6 (1.8 146
Depreciation and amortisation 7 66.7 701
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 11 11.7 -
Increasef(decrease} in provisions and financial liabilities 3.7 (27.8}
Pension payments net of current service cost 25 1.1 (1.2)
Share based payments 26 3.5 30
Impairment of goodwill 60.3 -
{Profit)/loss on disposal of business 32 {0.3) 9.0
Operating cash flow before movement in working capital 118.8 145.0
Decrease ininventories 7.8 188
Decreasein trade and other receivables 133 155
Decrease in trade and other payables {0.6) (8.5
Cash generated by operations 139.3 1708
Income taxes paid {8.5) (2.2)
Interest paid 4 (23.7) (25.0)
NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 107.1 1434
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received 3 0.3 0.4
Disposa! of property, plant and equipment 1.8 0.8
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (41.5) {(47.7)
Disposal of business 32 0.5 {2.1)
Acquisition of intangible assets {0.3) {04)
NET CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (39.2) {49.0)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
lasue of shares by the Company and the ESCT net of issue costs 0.1 .1
Dividends paid 29 - {49.3)
Outflow of cancelled dividend hedge 1.8) -
Net movement on existing debt (56.3) (3C.4}
Payment of lease liabilities {6.7) {6.0}
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (64.7) (85.6}
NET INCREASE [N CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3.2 88
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 103.9 96.1
Foreign exchange on cash and cash equivalents 3.9 {1.0}
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER 20 111.0 103.9
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Elementis plc is a public company limited by shares incorporated
and domiciled in England and is the parent company of the Group.
The address of its registered office is Caroline House, 55-57 High
Hoiborn, London WC TV 80X, The Group financial statements have
been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU
(adopted IFRS’), The Company has elected to prepare its parent
company financial staterments in accordance with FRS 101,
These are presented on pages 175to 182,

BAS1S OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
internaticnal accounting standards in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and International
Financial Reporting Standards adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC}
No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
hasis except that derivative financial instruments are stated at their
fair value. Non-current assets held for sale are stated at the lower
of carrying amaunt and fair value less costs to sell. The preparation
of financial statements requires the application of estimates and
judgements that affect the reported ameunts of assets and
liabitities, revenues and costs and related disclosures at the
balance sheet date. The Group's accounting policies have been
updated following the adoption of a number of new stangards and
amendments to standards that have beenissued and are now
effective for the Group.

The financial statements have been prepared cn a going concern
basis. The rationale for adopting this basis is discussed inthe
Directors’ report on page 116.

REPORTING CURRENCY

As a consequence of the majority of the Group's sales and
earnings originating in US dollars or US dollar linked currencies,
the Group has chosen the US dollar as its presentational currency.
This aligns the Group's external reporting with the profile of the
Group. as well as with internal management reporting.

The functional currency of the parent is pounds sterling.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

When applying the Group’s accounting policies, management must
make anumber of key judgements on the application of applicable
accounting standards and estimates and agsumptions concerning
the carrying amounts of assets and fiabilities that are not readily
apparent from cther sources. These estimates and judgements are
based on factors considered to be relevant, incluging historical
experience, which may differ significantly from the actual outcome.
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the amounts recognised in the financial
statements within the next year are discussed below.

The development of the estimates and disclosures reiated to each
of these matters has been discugsed by the Audit Committee,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

The following is the sole critical judgement, (as opposed to those
involving estimations which are dealt with separately below), that
the Directors have made in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies that has significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements. Where relevant and
practicable, sensitivity analyses are disclosed inthe relevant notes
to demonstrate the impact of changes in estimates or
assumptions used.
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Revenue recognition

Judgement is exercised over how to determine the timing of
revenue recognition for orders where the agreed terms are delivery
to the destination point. The Group has compiled shipping
estimates based on the destination country which are used to
inform the timing of revenue recognition. In compiling these
estimates management have used past experience angd carrier
standard shipping estimates to inform their decision making.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the reporting period that may have a
significant risk of causing a material misstaterment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.

a. Environmental provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration are recognised where;
the Group has a present legal or constructive cbligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount can be
estimatedreliably.

Environmentai pravisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time vaiue of money and the risks specific to the obligation,
Due to the long time horizens over which costs are anticipated,
small changes in recurring annual cash outflows can have a
significant cumulative impact on the total provision required.
Further details of these provisions and a sensitivity assessment
are given in Note 15,

b. Valuation of a defined benefit pension obligation

The key estimates made in relation to defined benefit pensions
relate to the discount rate used to determine the present value
of future benefits and the rate of inflation applied to plan assets.
Further details cn pensions and a sensitivity analysis are given
in Note 25.

¢. Impairment testing of goodwill

Each year the Group carries out impairment tests of goodwill
which require estimates to be made of the value in use of its cash
generating units. These value in use celculations are dependenit
on estimates of future cash flows, long-term growth rates and
appropriate discount rates {0 be applied to future cash flows.
Further details on these estimates and sensitivities of the carrying
value of goodwill to these estimates are provided in Note 10.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect thase
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which controlis transferred to the
Group. They are deconsclidated from the date on which that
control ceases.



The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree, and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, Identifiable assets
acqguired and liabilities and contingenit liabilities assumedina
business combination are measured initially at their fair value at
the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquirce on an acquisilivn-by-acquisition basts,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate
share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable

net assets.

Acquisition costs are accounted for as an expense inthe
period incurred.

Intragroup balances and any unrealised gains and losses orincome
and expenses arising fromintragroup transactions, are eliminated in
preparing the consclidated financial statements, Unrealised losses
are efiminated in the sarme way as unrealised gains, but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

A fulllist of the Group's subsidiaries is shown in Note & of the parent
company financial statements.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the
previous financial year.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

a. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet
date are translated at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date.
Fareign exchange differences arising on transiation are recognised
inthe income statement. Non -monetary assets and liabllities
dencminated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated at exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value

was determined.

b. Financial statements of foreign operations

The assets and liabllities of fereign operations, including goodwill
and fair value adjustments arising on consolidation, are translated at
exchange rates ruling &t the balance sheet date. The revenues and
expenses of foreign operations are translated at the average rates of
exchange ruling for the relevant period. Exchange differences arising
since 1 .January 2004 on translation are taken to the translation
reserve. They are recognised in the income statement upon disposal
of the foreign operation. The Graup may hedge a portion of the
translation of its overseas net assets through US dollarand eurc
borrowings. From 1 January 2005, the Group has elected to apply
n&t investrment hedge accounting for these transactions where
possible. Where hedging is applied, the effective portion of the gain
or loss on aninstrument used to hedge a net investment is
recognised in equity. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is
recognisedin the incoeme statement.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment fosses. Freehold land is
not depreciated. Leasehold property is depreciated over the period
of the lease. Freehold buildings, plant and machinery, fixtures,
fittings and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful
lives on a straight line basis. Depreciation methods, useful lives and
residual values are assessed at the reporting date. No depreciation
is charged on assets under construction until the assetis brought
into use.

Depreciation is charged on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful economic lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 10-50vyears

Plant and machinery 2-20vyears

Fixtures, fittings and equipment  2-20vyears

Right of use assets Shorter of the useful economic
life of the asset and the
lease term

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the itemif it is
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within it will
flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs
of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognised in the income statement as incurred.

Management regularly considers whether there are any indicaticns
of impairment to carrying values of property, plant and equipment.
Impairment reviews are based onrisk adjusted discounted cash flow
projections. Significant judgement is applied tc the assumptions
underlying these projections which include estimated discount
rates, growth rates, future selling prices and direct costs. Changes to
these assumptions could have a material impact on the financial
position of the Group and on the result for the year.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

a. Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, and it represents
the excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interestin the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured at fair value is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, in the case of a
bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly inthe
income statement,

b. Research and development

Expenditure on pure research is recognised in the income statement
as anexpense as incurred. Under IAS 38, expenditure on development
where research findings are applied to a ptan or design far the
production of new or substantially improved products and processes
is capitalised if the product or process will give rise to fuiure economic
benefits and where the cost of the capitalised asset can be measured
reliably. Expenditure capitalised is stated as the cost of materialg,
girect labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads less
accumulated amortisation. The length of development lifecycles,
broad nature of much of the research undertaken and uncertainty until
alate stage as to ultimate commercial viabifity of a potential praduct
canmean that the measurement criteria of IAS 38 regarding the
probability of future economic benefits and the reliability of allocating
costs may notbe met, in which case expenditure is expensed
asincurred.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

For the year ended 3) December 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

c. Customer relationships and other intangible assets
Customer relationships and cther intangibie assets are stated
at cost or when arising in a business combination, estimated fair
value, less accumulated amortisation.

d. Amortisation

Amaortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight

ine basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets
through the administrative expenses line item, unless such lives
are indefinite. Goodwill is systematically tested forimpairment each
year, Other intangible assets, comprising customer lists, customer
relationships, manufacturing processes and procedures,
trademarks, non-compete clauses and patents are amortised over
their estimated useful lives which range from 5 to 24 years.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-CURRENT

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

The carrying amount of non-current assets other than deferred
taxis compared to the asset’s recoverable amount at each balance
sheet date where there is an indication of impairment. For goodwill,
assets that have an indefinite useful life and intangible assets that
are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated
at each balance sheet date.

Each year the Group carries out impairment tests of its goodwill
and other indefinite life intangible assets which requires an
estimate to be made of the value in use of its cash generating
units {CGUs). These value inuse calculations are dependent on
estimates of future cash fiows and long term growth rates of the
CGUs, Further details of these estimates are given in Note 10.

Animpairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amaount
of an asset or its CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
CGUs and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets
in the unit on a pro-rata basis. A CGU is the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cashinflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups

of assets.

The recaverable amount is the greater of their fair value less costs
to selland value inuse. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset(s). For an
asset that does not generate largsly independent cash inflows, the
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the
assetbelongs.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS - EXPECTED
CREDIT LOSSES

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expectedloss
allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected creditlosses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due. The expected loss rates are based on payment profiles
and the corresponding historical credit insses experienced.

The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward
looking information in relation to macroeconamic factors that could
affect the ability of customers to settle receivables.
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The Group usually considers a financial asset in default when
contractusl payments are 120 days past due, In certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the cutstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

INVENTCQRIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. Cost, which is based on
aweighted average, includes expenditure incurred in acquiring
stock and bringing it to its existing location and condition. In the
case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost
includes anappropriate share of overheads attributable to
manufacture, based on normal operating capacity.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables are due for payment within one year and are thus
classified as current. They are non -interest bearing and are stated
at their nominal amount which is the original invoiced amount, less
allowance for expected future credit losses. Estimates of future
expected credit iosses are informed by historical experience and
management’s expectations of future ecenomic factors, further
information on expected credit loss impairment is given in the
impairment of financial assets accounting policy. Individual trade
receivables are written off when management deem themto be no
longer collectable.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

A non-current asset or a group of assets containing a non-current
asset la disposal group), is classified as held for sale if its carrying
amount will De recovered principally through sale rather than
through continuing use, it is available for immediate sale and sale
within one year is highly probable. On initial classification as held
for sale, non-current assets and disposal groups are measured at
the lower of previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell with any adjustments taken to profit or loss. The same applies
to gains and losses on subsequent remeasurement.

Adiscontinued operation is a component of the Group's business
that represents a separate major line of business or geographic
area of operations or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a
view to resale, that has been disposed of, has been abandoned or
that meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and ¢all
deposits with an criginai maturity of three months or fess.

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s ¢ash management are included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
statement of cash flows,

LEASES

Accounting policy applied from 1 January 2019

Alease Jiability is recognised when the Group obtains controi of the
right-of-use agset that is the subject of the lease. The lease liability
is subseguently measured using the effective interest methed,
with interest charged to finance costs. Right-of-use assets are
generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the group is reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset i
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.



At inception, the Group evaluates whether it is reasonably certain
that any option to extend a lease term will be exercised or likewise
whether any option to terminate the lease will be exercised.

The Group continues to evaluate the likelihood of exercising such
options throughout the initial lease term, When the Group is
committed to extending or terminating the lease, having
considered the alternative options available and, where
appropriate, lessor consent to the extension or termination has
been obtained, the Group wili consider the option to be reasonably
certainto be exercised. When an option is reasonably certain to be
exercised, the nght-ot-use asset and lease liabilities recognised
are adjusted to reflect the extended or curtailed lease term.

Leases, which at inception have a term of less than 12 months or
relate to low-value assets, are not recognised on balance sheet.
Payments made under such leases are recognised as an expense
inthe income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease.

Accounting policy applied up until 31 December 2018

Leases which result in the Group receiving substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are treated as finance
leases. An asset held under a finance lease is recorded inthe
balance sheet and depreciated over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term. Future instalments net of finance
charges are included within borrowings. Minimum lease payments
are apportioned between the finance charge, which is allocated to
each period to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining liability and charged to the income statement and
reduction of the outstanding liability. Rental costs arising from
operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the
period of the lease.

BORROWINGS

Borrowings are inftially measured at cost (which is equal to the fair
value at inception), and are subseqguently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference
between the proceeds, net of transaction costs and the settlement
or redemption of borrowings is recognised over the terms of the
borrowings using the effective interest rate method.

TRADE PAYABLES
Trade payables are non-interest bearing borrowings and are initially
measured at fair value and subsequently carried at amortised cost.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised in the balance sheetwhen the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. if the effect is material, provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to

the liability.

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group has
approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan, and the
restructuring has either commenced or has been announced
publicly. In accordance with the Group's environmental policy and
applicable legal requirements, a provision for site restoration in
respect of contaminated land is recognised when the land is
contaminated. Provisions for environmental issues are
judgemental by their nature, particularly when considering the size
and timing of remediation spending, and more difficult to estimate
when theyrelate to sites no longer directly controlled by the Group.

PENSION AND OTHER POST RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Inrespect of the Group's defined benefit schemes, the Group's net
obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated
by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods,
that benefit is discounted to determine its present valug, and the
fair value of any plan assets is deducted. Theliability discount rate
is the yield at the balance sheet date on AA credit rated bonds that
have maturity dates approximating to the terms of the Group's
obligations. Pension and postretirement liahilities are calculated
by gualified actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
Following the introduction of the revised IAS 19 Employee Benefits
standard, the netinterest on the defined benefitfiability consists
of the interest cost on the defined benefit cbligation and the
interest income on plan assets, both calculated by reference to the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit abligation at
the start of the period.

The Group recognises actuarial gains and losses in the period

in which they occur through the statement of comprehensive
income. The Group also operates a small number of defined
contribution schermes and the contributions payable during the
year are recognised as incurred, Due to the size of the Group's
pension scheme assets and liabilities, relatively small changes

in the assumptions can have a significant impact on the expense
recorded in the income statement and on the pension liability
recorded in the batance sheet.

SHARE CAPITAL

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary
shares and share options are recognised as a deduction from
equity. When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased,
the amount of the consideration paid, including directly attributable
costs, is recognised as a deduction from equity.

Shares repurchased by the Company are classified as treasury
shares and are presented as a deduction from total equity.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward
currency contracts, interest rate swaps and commodity swap
contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks
and commodity price risks, respectively. The Group does not hold
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
However, derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
accounted for as trading instruments. Due to the requirement to
assess the effectiveness of hedging instruments, changes in
market conditions can result in the recognition of unrealised gains
or losses on hedging instruments inthe income statement.

Cerivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value
and are shown within derivatives if they are in an asset position or
within financial liabilities if they are in a liability position. The gain or
loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately in
the income statement, However, where derivatives qualify for
hedge accounting, recognition of any resultant gain or loss
depends on the nature of the item being hedged.

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2020 | ELEMENTIS PLC 135

1HGH3Y 2107 LWHLS

SLNIWILYLS TVIINYNIL JONYNYIADD 31VHO0H0OD

NOILYWHOANI 43AT10H3HYHS



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

For the year ended 31 December 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

a. Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge
of the variability in cash flows of a recognised asset or liability, ora
highly probabte forecast transaction. the effective part of any gain
or loss on the derivative financial instrument is recognised directly
in the hedging reserve. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit and loss in the
periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss, in the
same fine of the income statement as the recognised hedged item.,
However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results

in the recognition of a non-financial asset the gains of losses
previcusly accumulated in equity are transferred from equity

and included in the initial measurerment of the cost of the non-
financial asset.

The Group has adopted ‘Amendments to IFRS 8, 1AS 39 and IFRS 7
Interest rate benchmark reform = Phase 1', applying the amendments
retrospectively ta hedging relationships that existed at the start of
the current year. The interest rates on which the cash flows of the
Group's USD interest rate swap derivative financial instruments are
based are currently linked to LIBOR, which is expected to cease as a
benchmark atthe end of 2021. By adopting these amendments, the
impact for the Group is that it does not need to assume any impacts
from LIBOR refarm in assessing whether its existing instruments
continué to meet the hedging criteria.

The Group will continue to appiy these amendments until the
uncertainty arising from interest rate benchmark reformis no
longer present with respect to the timing and amount of the
interest rate benghmark cash flows. This temporary reliefis
expected to cease, on a hedge-by-hedge basis. when the
designated hedge refationship is amended and application
of Phase 2 reliefs begins.

b. Fair value hetges

Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge
of the variability in a fair value of a recognised asset or liability or an
unrecognised firm commitment, all changes Tn the fair value of the
derivative are recognised immediately in the income statement.

The carrying value of the hedged item is adjusted by the change
in fair value that s attributable to the risk being hedged (evenif it
is normally carried at amortised cost) and any gains orlosses on
remeasurement are recognised immediately in the income
statement (even if those gains would normally be recognised
directly in reserves),

c. Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

The Group designates the foreign exchange gainorloss ona
prapoertion of the Group’s Euro and US dollar denominated
borrowings as ahedge of the Group's net investment in foreign
operations. As Such the foreign exchange gain or l0ss on those
borrowings is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity until such time as the operations are
disposed of at which point the corresponding amounts are
recycled to profit or loss.
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TERMINATION BENEFITS

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the
Group is demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility
of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to terminate employment
nefore the normal retirement date. Termination benefits for
veluntary redundancies are recognised if the Group has made an
offer encouraging voluntary redundancy, it is prebable that the
offer wili be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be
estimated reliably.

REVENUE

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of promised goods to
customers (the performance obligation) in anamount that reflects
the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange
for those goods. This may occur, depending on the individual
customer relationship, when the product has been transferred to
a freight carrier, when the customer has received the product or,
for consignment stock held at customers' premises, when usage
reports for the relevant period have been compiled.

All revenue is from contracts with customers and pertains to the
sale of specialty chemicals products, selling prices are agreed in
advance and hence are directly cbservable,

The Group's payment terms coffered to custemers are withina
certain number of days of receipt of invoice and standard contracts
do not include a significant financing component, The Group does
not expect to have any contracts where the period between the
transfer of the promised goods 1o the customer and payment by
the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the Group
does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value

of money.

Provisions for returns, trade discounts and rebates are recognised
as a reduction in revenue at the later of when revenue is recognised
for the transfer of the related goods and the entity pays or
promises to pay the consideration. The promise to pay rebates is
contractually agreed in advance and thus the point of transferring
the goods to the customer is deemed te be the later of the two
circumstances. Rebates and discounts are estimated using
historical data and experiences with the customers. Returns from
customers are negligible.

OPERATING PROFIT

Operating profitincludes net profits realised on the sale of tangible
fixed assets, current and long term assets and fiabilities but
excludes gains and losses on the disposal of businesses.

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses are administration costs incurred and paid by the
Group’s pension schemes, which relate primarily te former
employees of legacy businesses.

FINANCE INCOME AND FINANCE COSTS

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested and
changes in the fair value of financial instruments at fair value taken
to the income statement. Interest income is recognised as it
accrues, using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, lease
liabilities, unwinding of the discount on provisions, dividends on
preference shares classified as debt, foreign currency gains/losses
and changes in the value of financial instruments at fair value taken
to the income statement. All borrowing costs are recognised in the
income statement using the effective interest method.



TAXATION

Income tax on the profit orloss for the year comprises current and
deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income statement
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income, Current tax is the
expected tax payable an the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

A deferred tax assetis recognised only to the extent thatitis
probable that future taxable prefits will be available against which
the asset can be utilised. Defarred tax is provided ontempaorary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes, The following temporary differences are not provided
for: the initial recognition of goodwill: the initial recognition of
assets orliabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
other than in a business cornbination; and differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably
not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax
provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the batance sheet date,
Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

The Group is required to estimate the income tax in each of the
jurisdictions inwhich it operates. This requires an estimation of
current tax liability together with an assessment of the temporary
differences which arise as a consequence of different accounting
andtax treatments. The Group operates in a number of countries

in the world and is subject to many tax jurisdictions andrules. As a
conseguence the Group is subject to tax audits, which by their
nature are often complex and can require several years to conclude,
Management's judgement is required to determine the total
provision forincome tax. Amounts are accrued based on
management’s interpretation of country specific tax law and
likelihood of settlement. However, the actual tax liabilities could
differ from the position and in such events an adjustment would
berequired in the subsequent period which could have a material
impact. Tax benefits are not recognised unless itis probable that
the tax positions are sustainable, Once considered Lo be probable,
management reviews each material tax benefit to assess whether a
provision should be taken against full recognition of the benefit on
the basis of potential settlerment through negotiation. This evaluation
requires judgements to be made including the forecast of future
taxable income.

SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

The fair value of equity settled share options. cash settled shadow
options and LTIP awards granted to employees is recognised as an
expense with a corresponding increase in aquity. The fair value s
measured at grant date and spread over the pericd during which the
employees become unconditionally entitled tc the opticns/awards.
The fair value of the opticns/ awards granted is measured using a
binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options/ awards were granted. The amount recognised as
an employee expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of
share options/awards that vest except where forfeiture is only due
to share prices not achieving the threshold for vesting.

OWN SHARES HELD BY EMPLOYEE SHARE
OWNERSHIP TRUST (ESOT)

Transactions of the Group sponsored ESOT are included in the
consolidated financial statements. In particular, the ESOT's
purchases of shares in the Company are charged directly to equity.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at fair value when there is
reasonable assurance that the conditions associated with the
grants have been complied with and the grants will be received.
Grants compensating for expenses incurred arerecognised as a
deduction of the retated expenses in the consolidated income
statement on a systematic basis in the same periods inwhich the
expenses are incurred.

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

In the analysis of the Group's eperating results, earnings per
share and cash flows, information is presented to provide readers
with additional performance indicaters that are prepared on a
non-statutory basis, This presentation is regularly reviewed by
management to identify items that are unusual and other items
relevant to an understanding of the Group’s performance and
long term trends with reference to their materiality and nature.
This additienal information is not uniformly defined by all
companies and may not be comparable with similarly titted
measures and disclosures by other organisations, The non-
statutory disclosures should not be viewed in isolation cras an
alternative to the equivalent statutory measure. Information for
separate presentationis considered as follows:

* Material costs orreversals arising from a significant restructuring
of the Group's operations are presented separately

» Disposal of entities orinvestments in associates or joint ventures
orimpairment of related assets are presented separately

« Other matters arising due to the Group's acquisition, such as
adjustments ta contingent consideration, payment of retention
bonuses, acquisition costs and fair value adjustments for acquired
assets made in accordance with IFRS 13 are separately disclosed
inaggregate

+ |If achange in an accounting estimate for provisions, including
environmental provisions, results in a material gain or loss, that
is presented separately

+ Otheritems the Directors may deem to be unusual as a result
of their size and/or nature.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied a number of amendments
to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
{IASB) that are mandatorily effective for accounting periods that
begin on or after 1 January 2020. Their adoption has not had any
materialimpact on the disclosures or on the amounts reported in
these financial statements:

International Accounting Standards UK/EY
{IAS/IFRGs) and interpretations Endorsement
IFRICsl: Effective date statls
Amendmentsto IFRS 9, |AS 39 1 January Endorsed
and IFRS 7: Interest Rate 2020

Benchmark Reform —Phase 1

Amendments to IFRS 3: 1 January Endorsed
Definition of a business 2020

Amendments to IAS 1 and |AS 8: 1 Jaruary Endorsed
Definition of Material 2020

Conceptual Framework for 1 January Endorsed
Financial Reporting (Reviseq) 2020
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

For the year ended 31 December 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

NEW AND REVISED IFRSS IN ISSUE BUT

NOT YET EFFECTIVE

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the
Group has not applied the following new and revised international
accounting standards (JAS/IFRSs) and interpretations (IFRICs} that
have been’ssued but are not effective for periods starting on

1 January 2020 but will be effective for later pericds:

Effective for
annual
International Accounting Standards reporting
{(IAS/IFRSs) and Interpretations UK/EU periods
{IFRICs) not yet endorsed for usein Endorsement beginning on or
the EU or UK: status after
Covig-19-Related Rent Endorsed  1.June 2020
Concessions - Amendment to
IFRS 18
Amendmentsto [FRS 9, |AS 38, Endorsed 1 January
IFRS 7. IFRS 4 and IFRS 16: 2021
interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2
Amendments to IFRS 3: Not yet 1 January
Reference tothe Conceptual endorsed 2022
Framework
Amendments to IAS 16: Not yet 1 January
Property, Plant and Equipment— endorsed 2022
Proceeds before Intended Use
Amendments to IAS 37: Onerous Not yet 1 January
Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a endorsed 2022
Contract
Annual Improvements to IFRS Not yet 1 Jaruary
Standards 2018-2020 Cycle: endorsed 2022
Amendments to IFRS 1 First-
time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards,
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments,
IFRS 16 Leases, and IAS 41
Agriculture
IFRS 17 insurance Contracts Notyet 1 January
endorsed 2023
Amendments to IAS 1: Not yet 1 January
Classification of Liabilities as endorsed 2023
Current or Non-current
IFRS 10 and |1AS 28 Not yet thbc
(amendments): Sale or endorsed

Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture
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2, OPERATING SEGMENTS

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

The Group has determined its operating segments on the basis of
those used for management, internal reporting purposes and the
allocation of strategic resources. The key measure used for review
of the performance of the operating segments is adjusted
cperating profit. In accordance with the provisions of IFRS 8, the
Group's chief operating decision maker is the Board of Directors.

The fivereportable segments, Personal Care, Coatings, Talc,
Chromium and Energy each have distinct product groupings and
separate management structures. Segment results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment and those
that may be reasonably allocated from corporate activities.
Presentation of the segmental results is ¢n a basis congistent with
those used for reporting Group results, The principal activities of the
reportable segments are as follows:

Personal Care

Production of rheological maodifiers and compounded products,
including active ingredients for AP deodorants, for supply to
personal care manufacturers.

Coatings
Production of rheological modifiers and additives for decorative
and industrial coatings.

Talc
Producticn and supply of talc for use in plastics, coatings, technical
ceramics and the paper sectors.

Chromium
Production of chromium chemicals.

Energy
Production of rheclogical modifiers and additives for oil and gas
driling and stimulation activities,

Inter-segment pricing is set at a level that equates to the
manufacturing cost of the product plus a commercially appropriate
mark up.

Unallocated items and those relating to corporate functions such
as tax and treasury are presented in the tables overleaf as
central costs.




SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

2020
Personal Segment Central

Care Coatings Talc Chromium Energy totals costs Total

$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m

Revenue 160.8 295.5 132.5 146.9 23.6 759.3 - 759.3
Internal revenue - - - (8.0) - (8.0) - (8.0

Revenue from external customers " 160.8 295.5 132.5 138.9 23.6 751.3 - 751.3

Adjusted operating profit 33.6 471 16.6 5.6 {5.7) 97.2 {15.6) 81.6
Adjusting items {13.6) (3.8) {39.0) {9.2) (a2.5) (108.1) (1.7} {109.8)
Profit/(loss} before interest 20.0 43.3 {22.4) (3.6) (48.2) (10.9) (17.3) {28.2)

Loss on disposal 0.3 - - - - 03 - 0.3
Other expenses - - - - - - {1.6) {1.8)

Finance income - - - - - - 0.3 0.3
Finance expense - - - - - - (39.6) (39.6)
Taxation - after adjusting items - - - - - - {14.2) 14.2)

Taxation—on adjusting items - - - - - - 160 16.0
PROFIT/{LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 20.3 43.3 (22.4) (3.6) {48.2) {10.6) {56.4) (67.0)

2020 e
Personal
Care,
Coatings Segment Central

and Energy’ Talc Chromium totals costs Total

$m $m $m $m $m $m

Fixed assets 659.7 3476 79.8 1,087.1 3215 1,408.6

Inventories 89.5 20.2 54.6 164.3 - 164.3

Trade and other receivables 62.5 21.6 18.7 100.8 7.5 108.3

ACTrecoverable - - - - 0.6 0.6

Derivatives - - - - 1.4 1.4

Tax assets - - - - 335 33.5

Net retirement benefit surplus - - - - 7.9 7.9
Cash and cash equivalents ) - - - - 1110 111.0

SEGMENT ASSETS 811.7 389.4 161.1 1,352.2 483.4 1,835.6
Trade and other payables (67.7) {20.7) (28.0) {116.4) (16.2) (132.6)
Operating provisions 2.7) {4.2) (21.1) {28.0) (30.8) {68.8)
Lease liabilities (28.9) (13.8) (0.7) (43.4) (1.0} {44.4)
Bank overdrafts and foans - - - - (514.3) {514.3)
Current tax liabilities - - - - (23.2) {23.2)
Retirement benefit obligations - - - - 28.1) (28.1)
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - (143.1) {143.1)
Financial liabilities - - - - (30.7) (30.7)
SEGMENT LIABILITIES (99.3) (38.7) {49.8) {187.8) {787.4) {9752)
NET ASSETS 712.4 350.7 101.3 1.164.4 {304.0) 860.4

Capital additions 184 13.8 7.2 39.4 3.8 43.2
Depreciation and amortisation (29.4) (25.4) {10.2) (65.0) 1.7) (66.7)

1 Duetothe shared nature of the productionfacilities for the Perscnal Care, Coatings and Energy segments a split of assets and liabilities by segmentis not
available and the cost to determine such a split would be prohibitive therefore assets and liakilities are shown in aggregate for these segments.

ANALYSIS BY GEOGRAPHY

North United Restaf Restofthe
America Kingdem Europe World Total
2020 $m $m $m $m $m
Revenue from external customers 2408 24.4 235.4 250.7 751.3
Fixed assets 756.8 210.4 373.7 67.7 1,408.6
Capital additions 19.2 1.2 13.7 9.1 43.2
Depreciation and amcrtisation {33.7) {1.4) {28.6) (3.0) (66.7)

Revenue is based on the location of the customer. The Group's largest customer accounts for 7.9% of revenue ($60.0m).
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2. OPERATING SEGMENTS CONTINUED
SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

2018
Personal Segment Central

Care Coatings Talc  Chromium Energy totals cosis Total

$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m

Revenue 195.0 3204 150.7 1710 46.6 883.4 - 8834
Internal revenue - - - {9.8) — (9.8) - (2.8)
Revenue from external customers 195.0 3201 1507 181.2 46.6 873.6 - 8736
Adjusted operating profit 427 48.3 257 18.2 38 138.7 (15.7} 1230
Adjusting items (13.6) 4.6} (5.8 (5.6} - (29.6) 7.5 {22.1)
Profit/{loss) before interest 281 437 199 12.6 38 109.1 8.2) 100.9
Loss on disposal (9.0) - - - - 9.0) - 9.0
Other expenses - - - - - - (1.5} 1.5)
Finance incame - - - - - - 04 04
Finance expense - - - - - - (29.8} (29.8)
Taxation — after adjusting items - - - - - - 20.7) {20.7

Taxation — on adjusting items - - - - - - 6.1 6.1
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 20.1 43,7 18.9 12.6 38 100.7 (53.7) 46,4

2018
Personal
Care,
Coatings Segment Central

and Energy’ Talc  Chromium totals costs Total

$m $m $m $m $m $m

Fixed assets 7088 3303 826 11217 3500 14717
Inventories 889 190 60.8 168.7 - 1687
Trade and other receivables 701 215 19.3 1109 10 1179
ACT recoverable - - - - 48 4.8
Derivatives - - - - 0.1 01
Tax assets - - - - 30.7 307
Net retirement benefit surpius - - - - 74 7.4
Cash and cash equivalents - - - - 1039 1039
SEGMENT ASSETS 8678 370.8 162.7 1,401.3 50349 1.905.2
Trade and other payables {72.3) (20.0) {27.0) (118.3} (15.2) (1345)
Operating provisions [2.3) {4.4) {20.9} {27.6) (24.0) (51.6)
Lease liabilities (31.1) {13.4) 1.1 45.6) (1.3) (46.9)
Bank overdrafts and lpans - - - - (553.0) {553.0}
Current tax liabilities - - - - (23.2) (23.2)
Retirement benefit chligations - - - - (24.5) {24.5)
Deferred tax liabilities - - - - (150.2) {150.2)
Financial liabilities - - - - {15.1} (15,1}
SEGMENT LIABILITIES {105.7) {37.8) {49.0) (192 5) (806.5) {999.0)
NET ASSETS 762.1 333.0 113.7 1,208.8 (302.6} 806.2
Capital additions 211 144 11.86 471 4.1 51.2
Depreciation and amortisation (33.6) (24.6) {9.8) 68.0) 2.1 (70.1)

1 Due tothe shared nature of the production facilities for the Personal Care, Coatings and Energy segments a split of assets and liabilities by segment is not

available and the cost to determing such a split would be prohibitive therefore assets and liabilities are shown in aggregate for these segrments.

ANALYSIS BY GEOGRAFHY

Nerth United Restof Restofthe
America Kingdom Eurcpe World Total
2019 $m $m $m Sm $m
Revenue from external customers 285.2 29.4 2507 3083 8736
Fixed assets 8101 2404 357.8 63.4 14717
Capital additions 255 1.3 16.7 77 51.2
Depreciation and amortisation {(33.4) {1.8) {31.6) {3.5) {70.1}

Revenue is based on the location of the customer. The Group's largest customer accounts for 3.1% of revenue ($27.2m).
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3. FINANCE INCOME

2020 2018
$m $m
Interest on bank deposits 0.3 0.4
4. FINANCE COSTS
T 2020 2019
$m $m
Interest on bank loans 22.6 237
Pension and other postretirement habilities 0.6 a5
Unwind of discount on provisions 27 24
Fair value movement on derivatives 10.2 1.4
Dividend currency hedge canceilation 1.8 -
Interest on lease liabilities 17 1.8
39.6 298
5. ADJUSTING ITEMS
- 2020 2019
$m $m
Restructuring 0.9 5.1
Business transformation 227 25
Environmental provisions
Increase in provisions due to additional remediation work identified 5.6 -
Increase in provisions due to change in discount rate 11 4.9
M&A and disposal costs 3.7 -
Impairment of goodwill 60.3 -
Amortisation of intangibles arising on acquisition 15.5 18.6
Release of contingent consideration - 9.0
109.8 221
Sale of Elementis Specialties {Changxing) Ltd (0.3) -
Sale of SRL Dental GmbH - 90
Mark ta market of derivative financial instruments 10.2 1.4
Currency hedge due to dividend cancellation 1.8 -
Tax gredit in relation to adjusting items (16.0) 16.1)
105.5 26.4
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

For the year ended 31 December 2020

5. ADJUSTING ITEMS CONTINUED

A number of items have been recorded under ‘adjusting items’ in
2020 by virtue of their size andfor one time nature, in line with our
accounting policy in Note 1, in order to pravide additicnal useful
analysis of the Group's results. The netimpact of these items on
the Group profit before tax for the year is a debit of $121.5m (2019:
$32.5m). The itemns fallinto a number of categories, as
summarised below:

Restructuring - In 2020, restructuring costs relate predominantly
to the organisational efficiency programme commenced in late
2019, which eliminated duplicate roles, reduced management
layers and increased spans of controlin order to realise cost
savings and efficiencles across the Group.

Business transformation - In Navember 2020, inline with
Elementis’ ongoing strategy 10 optimise its footprint, the closure of
the Charleston plant was announced resulting ina one-off charge
of $15.6m. Further charges of $7.1m relates to the centinuation of
the programme to review ang optimise the supply chain and
manufacturing footprint across our Coatings, Personal Care,
Energy and Chromium businesses.

Environmental provisions - The Group's environmental provision is
calculated on a discounted cash flow basis, reflecting the time period
over which spending is estimated tc take place. The movement in
provision relates to a change in discount rates that has increased the
liability by $1.1min the year, extra remediation work identified in the
year which has resulted in a $6.1m increase to the liability offset by
unused amounts reversed in the year of $0.5m. As these costs relate
to non-operational fagilities they are classed as adjusting items.

M&A and disposal costs - Charges of $3.7m represent cosis
relating to the disposal of small, non-core businesses in the
Personal Care business segment and advisory fees incurred in
response to an unsolicited takeover approach received in the year.

Impairment of goodwill — As aresult of the low average oil price in
2020 and the expected cngoing challenging outlook for the Energy
sector, in particular the North American shale market, a $26.9m
impairment has been recognised in Energy. In Talc, while the
business fundamentals are unchanged and the medium term
growth outlook attractive, the significant impact of COVID-19 on
wider industrial activity and the near term profitability of the
business combined with an increase in the pre-tax discount rate
has resuited in a $33.4m geodwill impairment charge.
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Amortisation of intangibles arising on acquisition —
Amortisation of $15.5m (2019: $18.6mj} represents the charge in
respect of the Group's acquired intangible assets. As in previous
years, these are included in adjusting items in arder to presenta
more reflective view of the Group’s overall performance and the
key business drivers that underpin it.

Sale of Elementis Specialties (Changxing) Ltd - The profit on the
exit of a non-core plant {previously part of the Coatings business)
has been treated as an adjusting item in 2020.

Mark to market of derivatives — The movements in the mark to
market valuation of financial instruments which are not inhedging
relationships do not form part of the underlying performance of the
business and thus are treated as adjusting items.

Currency hedge due to dividend cancellation —The charge of
$1.8m relates to the cancellation of currency hedges fellowing the
suspension of the 2019 final ordinary dividend that provided
additional financial headroom in response to COVID-19.

Tax on adjusting items - this is the net impact of tax relating to the
adjusting items listed above.



To support comparability with the financial statements as presented in 2020, the reconciliation to the adjusted consolidated income

statement is shown below.

2020
Profitand
2020 2020 lossafter
Profitand  Adjusting adjusting
loss items items
$m $m $m
Revenue 751.3 - 751.3
Cost of sales {494.0) - {494.0)
Gross profit 257.3 - 257.3
Distribution costs {112.8) - {112.6)
Administrative expenses (172.9) 109.8 (63.1)
Operating (loss)/profit (28.2) 109.8 81.6
Profitf{loss) on disposal 03 (0.3} -
Other expenses (1.6} - (1.8
Finance income 0.3 - 0.3
Finance costs (39.6) 12.0 (27.6)
{Loss)/profit before income tax (68.8) 1215 52,7
Tax 1.8 (16.0) {14.2)
{Loss)/profit for the year (67.0} 105.5 38.5
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (67.0} 105.5 38.5
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic {loss)/earnings (cents) {11.5) 18.1 6.6
Diluted {loss)earnings (cents) (11.3) 17.8 6.5
2019
Profitand
2019 20e loss after
Profitand Adjusting adjusting
loss items items
$m $m $m
Revenue 8736 - 8736
Costof sales _1552.2) - 552.2)
Gross profit 3274 - 3214
Distribution costs (127.3) - {127.3)
Administrative expenses (83.2) 221 71.1
Operating profit 1009 221 123.0
Loss ondisposal (9.0} 9.0 -
Other expenses {1.5} - {1.5)
Finance income 04 - 0.4
Finance costsg (208 14 (28.4)
Profit before income tax 61.0 325 9358
Tax (14.6) 6.1) (20.7)
Profit for the year 46.4 264 728
Attributable to;
Equity holders of the parent 46.4 26.4 728
EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic (cents) 80 46 126
Diluted [cents) 7.9 45 12.4
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

For the year ended 31 December 2020

5. ADJUSTING ITEMS CONTINUED

To support comparability with the financial statements as presented in 2020, a reconciliation from reported profit/(loss) before interest to
adjusted profit before income tax by segment is shown below for each year,

2020
Segment
ParsonalCare Coatings Tale Chromium Energy totals Centralcosts Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m

REPORTED OPERATING
PROFITHLOSS) 20.0 43.3 (22.4} (3.6) (48.2) {10.9) {17.3) (28.2)
Adjusting ltems
Restructuring - 0.9 - - - 0.9 - 0.9
Business transformation 3.0 18 - 23 15.6 227 - 22.7

Increase in environmental

provisions due to agditional

remediation work identified - - - 5.6 - 5.6 - 5.6
Increase in envircnmental

provisions due to change in

discount rate - - - 1.1 - 1.1 - 1.1
M&A and disposal costs 20 - - - - 20 1.7 37
Impairment of geodwill - - 334 - 269 60.3 - 603
Amartisation of intangibles
arising on acquisition 8.6 1.1 56 0.2 - 15.5 - 15.5
ADJUSTED OPERATING
PROFITALOSS) 336 47.1 16.6 5.6 5.7) 97.2 {15.6) 81.6
COther expenses - - - - - - (1.8) (1.8)
Finance income - - - - - - 0.3 0.3
Finance costs - - - - - - {27.6) {27.6)
ADJUSTED PROFIT/(LOSS}
BEFORE INCOME TAX 33.6 471 16.6 5.6 (5.7) 97.2 (44.5) 52.7
2019
Segment
Personal Care Coatings Talc Chromium Energy totals Central costs Total
gm im Im $m $m $m &m $m

REPORTED OPERATING
PROFIT/{LOSS) 29,1 437 19.9 126 38 109.1 (8.2} 100.9
Adjusting Items
Restructuring 07 26 0.2 0.1 - 36 1.5 5.1
Business transformation 16 0.5 - 04 - 25 - 25

Increase in environmental
provisions due to change in

discount rate - - - 4.9 - 48 - 49

Amortisation of intangibles

arising on acquisition 11.3 15 56 0.2 - 186 - 18.6

Release of contingent

consideration - - - - - - (9.0) 9.0)

ADJUSTED OPERATING

PROFIT/{LOSS) 42.7 483 257 18.2 38 138.7 (15.7} 123.0

Qther expenses - - - - - - {1.5} (1.5)
Finance income - - - - - - 04 0.4

Finance costs - - - - - - (28.4) (28.4)
ADJUSTED PROFIT/LOSS)

BEFORE INCOME TAX 42,7 483 257 18.2 38 138.7 (45.2) 93.5
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6. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2020 2018
$m $m
CURRENT TAX ON CONTINUING OPERATIONS:
UK ccrporation tax 6.5 57
Overseas corporation tax an continuing operations 8.6 66
Adjustments in respect of pricr years:
United Kingdom 0.1 -
Ovarseas o (8.3) 1.1
Total current tax 6.9 134
DEFERRED TAX:
United Kingdom (1.0) 0.1
Qverseas {(11.1) 1.4
Adjustmentinrespect of prior years:
United Kingdom - -
Overseas 3.4 0.1)
Total deferred tax 8.7 1.2
Income tax (credit)/expense for the year (1.8} 14,8
COMPRISING: )
Income tax (credit)/expense for the year L (1.8} 14.6
Adjusting items*
Qverseas taxation on adjusting items {12.4) 5.1
UK taxation on adjusting items (3.6} 1.0
Taxation on adjusting items {16.0} 6.1
Income tax expense for the year after agjusting items 14.2 207

* See Note 5 for details of adjustingitems.

The tax charge on profits represents an effective rate of 2.6% (2012: 23,9%) and an effective tax rate after adjusting items of 26.8%

{2019: 22.1%). The Group is international, has cperations in several jurisdictions and benefits from ¢ross border financing arrangements.

Accordingly, tax charges of the Group in future pericds will be affected by the profitability of operations in different jurisdictions, changes
to tax rates and regulations in the jurisdictions within which the Group has operations, as well as the ongoing Impact of the Group's funding
arrangements. The Group's effective tax rate in 2020 is slightly above its usualrange due to withholding tax incurred on the repatriation of
profits from Asia and the derecognition of a deferred tax asset in the US. The medium term expectation for the Group's adjusted effective

taxrate is around 22-23% until 2023, after which it is anticipated to rise to 25-26% due to the recently announced increase in UK
corporation tax rates from April 2023,

tn the UK Budget on 3 March 2021, the Chancellor of the Exchequer announced an increase in the UK corporation tax rate from 19%to
25%, which is due ta be effective from 1 April 2023. This change was not substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and hence has
not been reflected in the measurement of deferred tax balances at the period end. This change is not expected to have a material impact

onthe Group's deferred tax balances.

The total charge for the year can be reconciled ta the accounting profit as follows:

2020 2020 2018 2019
$m % $m %
{Loss)/profit befare tax (68.8) 61.0
Taxat 19.00% (2019: 19.00%; {13.1) 19.0 116 190
Difference in overseas effective taxrates 4.0 (5.8) 1.7 28
Income not taxable and impact of tax efficient financing 4.7 6.8 (15.2) (24.9)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 11.5 (16.7) 13.6 223
Adjustments in respect of pricr years (4.8) 7.0 10 16
Taxrate changes 1.3 (1.9) 09 15
Movement inunrecognised deferred tax 4.0 58 1.0 16
Tax [credity/charge and effective tax rate for the year {1.8) 2.6 146 239
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

For the year ended 31 December 2020

7. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/icrediting}:

2020 2019
$m $m
Employee costs (see Note 8} 1253 1376
Net foreign exchange gains 0.6 0.2)
Research and development costs 7.2 7.8
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 50.6 50.9
Amartisation of intangible assets 16.1 19.2
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 66.7 70.1
{Profity/loss on disposal 0.3) 9.0
Release of contingent consideration - {2.0)
Profit on disposal of property, piant and equipment 0.7) 04
Write off of inventory 28 20
Cost of inventories recognised as expense 325.9 3794
Fees payable to the Company’s auditor and its associates:
Audit of company* 11 04
Audit of subsidiaries 1.1 1.0
Audit related services ~ interim review 0.1 0.1
Other advisory fees 0.1 -

* The $1.1m of audit of company Includes $0.3m of extra fees relating to the 2019 group audit.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND OTHER COVID-19 ASSISTANCE
The Group has accessed various government support schemes aimed st mitigating the potential impact on individuals' jobr losses
resulting from the impact ef COVID-19. The most significant amounts received by the Group include the following:

+ $0.9m inredation to government support under temporary wage support schemes available in the Netherlands and China. The Group
does not have any unfulfilled obligations relating to these suppart programmes. This amount has been offset against employee
remuneration costs.

« Agreement of payment plans with tax authorities in the US and China to defer payments of corporation taxes and payroll taxes resulting
in $3.0m payment deferrals across the Group.

8. EMPLOYEES

2020 2018
$m tm
Employee costs:

Wages and salaries 111.8 1219
Social security costs 8.8 97
Pension costs 4.9 6.0
125.3 137.6
Number Number

Average number of FTE employees™
Specialty Products a17 1,040
Talc 253 234
Chromium 195 258
Central 17 18
Tetal 1,382 1,550

* Fulltime equivalent including contractors.
The aggregate amount of Directors’ remuneration [salary, bonus and benefits) is shown in the Remuneration Report on page 105;

* Theaggregate amount of gains made by Directors on exercise of share options was $0.1m (2019: $0.1m).

+ The remuneration of the highest paid Director was $1.2m (2019: $1.4m),

+ Payments have been made to a defined contribution pension scheme on behalf of 1 Director (2019: 1 Director). For the highest paid
Director, pension contributions of $0.2m (2019: $0.2m) were made.
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9. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic ang diluted earnings per share attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the parent is based on the following:

2020 2019
$m $m
EARNINGS:
(Loss)earnings for the purpose of basic earnings per share (67.0) 46.4
Adjusting items net of tax 105.5 26.4
Adjusted earnings 38.5 728
2020 2018
m m
NUMBER OF SHARES:
Weighted average number of shares for the purposes of basic garnings per share 580.1 5796
Effect of dilutive share opticns 13.6 89
Weighted average number of shares for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 593.7 588.5
) 2020 2018
cents cents
EARNINGS PER SHARE:
Basic (loss)earnings (11.5) 80
Diluted (lcss)/earnings {11.3) 79
Basic after adjustingitems 6.6 126
Diluted after adjusting items 6.5 124
10. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
’ Other T
Customer intangible
Goodwill Brand lists assets Total
$m $m $m $m $m
COST:
At 1 January 2019 7173 264 179.4 103.3 10264
Exchange differences 84 03 (1.21 (1.0} 6.5
Additions - - - 28 28
Intangible assets arising on the acquisition of Monda - 08 {(12.4) (1.9} {15.1}
AL 31 December 20719 725.7 259 165.8 103.2 1,020.6
Exchange differences 2.6 0.8 4.7 25 10.6
Additions - - - 0.4 0.4
Disposals - - - - -
impairment (60.3) - - - (60.3)
AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 668.0 26.7 170.5 106.1 8971.3
AMORTISATION:
At 1 January 2019 - 18 14.7 332 488
Charge for the year - 1.1 0.7 7.4 12.2
Disposals o - 07} {4.86) (1.2} (6.5)
At 31 December 2019 - 23 20.8 39.4 62.5
Charge for the year - 0.9 9.3 5.9 16.1
Disposals - - - - -
AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 - 32 30.1 45.3 78.6
CARRYING AMOUNT:
AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 668.0 23.5 140.4 60.8 892.7
At 31 December 2019 7257 236 1450 638 9581
At 1 January 2019 7173 245 164.7 70 976.6
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

For the year ended 31 December 2020

10. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS CONTINUED

Thenet book value of customer lists includes $102.5m (2019 $108.0m} in relatian to the acquisition of SummitReheis which have
remaining lives of between 3 and 20 years (2019: between 4 and 21 years) and $38.0m (2019: $37.0m) in relation to the acquisition of
Mondo which have remaining lives of 13 years (2019: 14 years).

Thebrand intangibles represent the value ascribed 1o the trading name and reputation of the Deuchem, Fancor, Watercryl, Hi-Mar and
SummitReheis acquisitions. The Group, with the exception of SummitReheis, considers these to have significant and ongoing value to
the business that will be maintained and it is therefore considered appropriate to assign these assets anindefinite useful life. The brand
relating to SummitReheis is being amortised over a period of three years. Tha carrying amount of brand intangibles with an indefinite
useful life as at 31 December 202Cis $24.2m (2019: $23.4m). Brand intangibles are tested annually for impairment using similar
assumptions to the geodwill testing. The remaining intangible assets comprise the value ascribed to customer lists, patents and non-
compete clauses, which are being amortised over periods of five to twenty-four years.

GOODWILL IMPAIRMENT TESTING
Goodwillis allocated to the Group's cash-generating units ("CGUs") as follows:

2020 2019

$m $m

Personal Care 289.4 293.2
Coatings 193.5 202.6
Tale 185.1 2015
Chromium - -
Energy - 284
At 31 December 668.0 7257

The Group tests annually for impairment at 31 October, or more frequently, if there are events or circumstances that indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverabie.

The recoverable amounts of the Group's CGUs are determined from value in use calculations which use cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the directars cavering a three to five year period. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are
expected changes to sales volumes, selling prices and direct costs during the forecast period, growth rates used to extrapolate beyond
the forecast period and the discount rates applied to the resulting cash flows, Changes in sales velumes, selling prices and direct costs
are based on past practices and expectations of future changes in the market. Cash flows for periods beyond the forecast period are
extrapolated based on estimated growthn rates. The rates do not exceed the average long term growth rate for the relevant products or
markets. Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGUs.

Personal Care

The recoverable amount of the CGU was calculated using forecast cash flows based on budgets and plans for 2021 to 2023, a pre-tax
discount rate of 10.5% (2013: 10.5%) and a long-term growth rate of 5.0% based on the long term historical growth rate seen in this CGU.
The recoverable amount exceeded the carrying value of the CGU by $81.0m. A reasonably possible reduction in the long term growth rate
of 2.3%. a reduction in revenues of 8.3% in each year of the three year forecast pericd (applied to average forecast revenues of $178.8m
per annum in the three year period] or an increase in the pre-tax discount rate of 1.8%, applied in isolaticn, would result in the headroom
reducing to nil.

Coatings
The recaverable amount of the CGU was calculated using forecast cash flows based on budgets and plans for 2021 to 2023, a pre-tax
discount rate of 10.5% (2019: 10.5%) and a long-term growth rate of 3.0%.

Talc
For the Talc CGU a large part of the value in use is attributabie to new business opportunities (NBOs) expected to materialise over the course
of the next few years. As such a five year forecasting modei has been used to value the Talg CGU to capture the impact of these NBOs.

At 30 June 2020, it was determined that the adverse impact of COVID-19 on global economic activity and the challenging trading results
gave rise to an indicator of impairment. (n assessing potential downside risks to our base case (for example a further macroeconomic
downturn} we determined it appropriate to recognise an impairment charge of $33.8m to the goodwill of the Talc CGU as at 30 June 2020
based on arecoverable amount of $477.3m. Due to the currency of the entity where this is held, this impairment is reflected as a P&L charge
of $33.4m and $0.4m movement in exchange differences an translation of foreign operations in other comprehensive income. Inreaching
the impairment charge the forecast period included revenue growth and therefore operating profit growth of between 1% and 14%. A pre-tax
discountrate of 10.6% was applied. The cutcome of the iImpairment review was most sensitive to changes to forecast operating profit and
discountrate. A 0.5% increase in the pre-tax discount rate would have increased the impairment charge by $29.0m and a 5% decrease in
forecast operating profit or revenue in each year of the five year forecast period would have increased the impairment charge by $21.7m.
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At the annual impairment review the recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded carrying amount by $97.7m and thus no further impairment
was required. A pre-tax discount rate of 10.0% and a long term growth rate of 3.0% were applied. Areasonably possible reduction in the
long term growth rate of 2.0%, an average reduction in revenues of 7.3% in each year of the five year forecast period (applied to average
forecast revenues of $171.3m over the five year period) or anincrease in the pre-tax discount rate of 1.3% applied in isolation would result
in the headroom reducing to nil.

Chromium

The recoverable amount of the CGU was calculated using forecast cash flows based onbudgets and plans for 2021 to 2023, a pre-tax
discount rate of 10.5% (2019: 10.5%) and a long-term growth rate of 3.0%.

Energy

The effect of COVID-19 &n Lhe Energy market has seen a significant decline in oil prices, rig counts and thus demand for drilling products.
As aresult, our Energy business segment recorded an operating 1oss for the 6 months to 30 June and an impairment review was conducted
at that date. At 30 June 2020, given the challenging market outlock, in particular for North American shale, we assumed continued subdued
dermand in the near to mid-term and therefore impaired the full value of the goodwill agsocisted with the Energy CGU of $26.9m. A pre-tax
discount rate of 10.6% and a long term growth rate of 0.0% were applied.

At the annual impairment review the recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded carrying amount and thus no furtherimpairmeant was
required. A pre-tax discount rate of 10.5% and along term growth rate of 3.0% were applied.

11. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Right-cf-use assets

Fixtures

Land and Plant and ﬁttiig;ue:gé Under Land and Plantand fittings and
buildings  machinery equipmeént construction buildings  machinery  equipment Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m $m

COST:
At 1 January 2019 1255 580.8 44.4 251 522 57 21 8358
Additions — 14.3 01 334 0.1 0.1 0.4 48.4
Exchange differences 0.1 4.2) {c.1) 0.1 {0.2) 0.1} - {4.8)
Disposals {2.9) {11.1) 1.2) (oA} 10.7) 0.1) - (16.1)
Reclassifications 28 34.7 25 {40.0) - - - -
At 31 December 2019 126.3 614.5 45.7 18.3 514 5.6 25 863.3
Additions 0.2 13.0 - 28.3 0.9 - 0.5 42.9
Exchange differences 4.0 28.8 1.0 0.4 1.1 0.4 0.1 358
Disposals {1.0) 3.1) (0.6) (0.3) {0.1) {0.2) - (56.3)
Reclassifications 0.1 17.0 1.1 {18.2) - - _ - -
AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 128.6 670.2 47.2 28.5 53.3 5.8 341 936.7
ACCUMULATED DEFPRECIATION
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES:
At 1 January 2019 555 211.1 31.0 - 11.8 - - 3064
Charge for the year 28 390 24 - 4.5 1.1 1.1 508
Exchange differences - 0.2) 0.1 - - - - {0.3)
Disposals {0.4) 9.0} 07 - 0.2) - - (10.3)
Reclassifications - 0.5) 0.5 - - - - -
At 31 December 2019 57.9 240.4 331 - 16.1 1.1 1.1 349.7
Charge for the year 27 40.4 2.3 - 34 1.1 0.7 50.6
Exchange differences 1.9 8.4 1.0 - 0.3 041 0.1 11.8
Disposals (0.1) (2.1) {0.5) - - {0.3) {0.1) {3.1)
Impairment losses 28 8.9 - - - - - 11.7
Reclassifications - (0.3) 03 - - - - -
AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 652 295.7 36.2 - 19.8 2.0 1.8 420.7
NET BOOK VALUE:
AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 63.4 3745 110 285 33.5 8 13 516.0
At 31 December 2019 67.4 3741 12.6 183 353 4.5 14 5136
At 1 January 20719 "~ 700 369.7 13.4 251 - - - 478.2

Group capitzal expenditure contracted but not proviged for in these financial statements amounted to $nil (2019: $nil).
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

For the year ended 31 December 2020

12. INVENTORIES

2020 2019
$m $m
Raw materials and consumables 525 56.7
Work in progress 15.2 157
Fimished goods and goods purchased for resale 96.6 96.3
164.3 168.7

Inventories are disclased net of provisions for obsolescence of $6.8m (2019: $6.5m).

13. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2020 2018
$m $m
Trade receivables 86.4 896.6
Other receivables 125 138
Prepayments 9.4 75
108.3 117.9

During the year the group entered into an accounts receivable purchase programme, at 31st December the net balance outstanding in

relation to this programme was $13.7m (2019: $nil).

14. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2020 2019

$m $m

Trade payables 7.4 79.8
Other payables 13.7 15.2
Accruals 4715 395
132.6 1345

The group has entered into supplier financing arrangements, the net balance outstanding on these arrangements totalied $4.9m (2079:

$nil) at the end of the period.

15. PROVISIONS

Environmental insuraf::': Restructuring Other Total
$m $m $m $m $m
At 1 January 2020 44.1 2.2 3.6 1.7 51.6
Charged/icredited) to the income statement:
Increase in provisions 7.2 02 3.2 - 10.6
Unused amounts reversed (0.5} Q.3) - - (08)
Unwinding of discount 20 - - 04 24
Utilised during the year {3.7} (0.6) (1.7} {0.5) {6.5)
Currency translation differences 1.5 - 02 0.2) 15
AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 50.6 1.5 5.3 1.4 58.8
Due within 1 year 39 0.4 4.8 0.5 9.6
Due after 1 year 46.7 1.1 0.5 0.9 49.2

Environmental provisions relate to manufacturing and distribution sites including certain sites no longer owned by the Group.

These provisions have been derived using a discounted cash flow methodology and reflect the extent to which itis probable that

expenditure wiltbe incurred over the next 25 years. Included within environmental provisions are amounts inrespect of all anticipated

costsrelated 1o the closure and remediation of the Chromium UK site at Eaglescliffe.

Environmental provisions have increased by $1.1m due to decreases in the discount rates used to discount the provisions and by $6.1m
due to extra remediation wark identified during the year. This expense in addition to the unused amounts reversed in the year of $0.5m s

included within adjusting items (see Note 5).

If the cost estimates on which the provisions at 31 December 2020 are based were to change by 10%, the provision recognised would
need to increase by approximately $4.6m. Whilst a range of outcomes is possible. the Directors believe that the reasonably possible range

for the ervirenmental pravision is from $43.5mto $57.9m.

Seif-insurance provisions represent the aggregate of outstanding claims plus a projection of losses incurred but not reported. The

self-insurance provisions are expected to be utilised within five years.

Restructuring provisions relate to costs of adjusting head count, training, relocation and other costs of restructuring where a need todo
50 has been identified by management. Other provisions represent payments made for right of first refusal on a quarry, payments for
which are linked to the discharge of residue into another quarry owned by the same counterparty. These provisions are expected to be

utilised within three years.

180 ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2020 | ELEMENTIS PLC



16. DEFERRED TAX AND ACT RECOVERABLE

Accelerated Amortisation Other
Retirement tax of US intangible  Temperary  Unrelieved
benefit plans depreciation goodwill assets differences  taxlosses Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m $m
At 1 January 2019 08 (31.6) (58.6} 61.5) 17.2 6.4 (127.3)
Arising on disposal - - - 28 - - 28
Credit/icharge) to the income statement 02 {0.4) 0.1 0.8) 07 (1.0} (1.2
Credit/(charge) to other comprehensive income 15 - - - 0.2} - 1.3
Credit to retained sarnings - - - - 03 - 0.3
Currency translation differences .2) - - 0.2) 25 - 21
At 1 January 2020 23 (32.0} (58.5) {59.7) 205 5.4 (122.0}
Realocation - (15.0} {10.7) 25.7 - - -
Credit/{charge) to the income statement 0.9 6.2 5.6 (1.8) {7.2) 5.0 8.7
(Chargel/credit to other cemprehensive income (0.7) - - - 04 - {0.3)
Credit to retained earnings - - - - 0.1 - 01
Currency translation differences {0.1) (3.3} - 0.4 {0.5) 0.2 (3.3)
AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 2.4 (44.1} (63.6) {35.4) 13.3 10.6 (116.8}
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 24 - - - 13.3 10.6 26.3
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - (44.1} (63.8) {35.4) - - {143.1)

Deferred tax assets have been recognised to the extent that it is considered more likely than not that there will be taxable profits from
which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences can be deducted. Where this is not the case, deferred tax assets have not

beenrecognised.

Deferred tax liabilities are reduced for any deferred tax assets which exist within a jurisdiction where consolidated tax returns are filed and

where tax assets and liabilities may be netted.

An asset of $42.0m was recognised in 2014 relating to UK advance corporation tax (ACT) credits which had previously heenunrecagnised
because of uncertainty over future UK taxable profits. Movements in the ACT recoverable balance are shown below:

2020 2019

$m $m

At 1 January 48 48
Utilisation (4.0) (5.2}
Currency translation differences o {0.2) 02
At 31 December 0.6 48

There are no material losses where deferred tax assets have not been recognised.

Af the balance sheet date the aggregate amount of the temporary differences in relation to the investment in subsidiaries for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised was $19.9 m (2019: $26.0m). No liability has been recognised in respect of these

differences because the Group is in a position to control the timing of the reversal of the tempeorary differences and the Group considers

that it is probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future. As at the balance sheet date the Group had an

unrecognised deferred tax asset of $4.1m inrelation to restricted US interest deductions and an unrecognised deferred tax asset of

$10.9min respect of German net operating losses.

17. SHARE CAPITAL

2020 2019

$m $m

At 1 January 521 521
Issue of shares — -
At 31 December 52.1 521
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

For the year ended 31 December 2020

18. OTHER RESERVES

Capital Share
redemption  Translation Hedging options
reserve reserve reserve reserve Tatal
$m $m $m $m $m
Balance at 1 January 2019 158.8 (73.0} (5.6 53 85.5
Share based payments - - - 3.0 30
Exchange differences - 4.0 - 27 6.7
Change m fair vaiue of derivatives - - {2.8) - {2.8)
Transfer - - - {1.3) {1.3)
AL 1 January 2020 1588 {69.0) {8.4) 9.7 a1
Share based payments - - - 35 3.5
Exchange differences - 20.1 - 2n 174
Change in fair value of derivatives - - {0.5) - (0.5}
Transfer ~ - - (2.9) (2.9)
BALANCE AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 158.8 {48.9) {8.9) 7.6 108.6

Tne Company can redeem shares by repaying the market value to the shareholder, whereupon the shares are cancelled.
Redemption must be from distributable profits, The capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the shares redeemed.

The translation reserve comptises all foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations as well as from the transiation of liabilities that hedge the Company’s net investment in a foreign subsidiary.

The hedging reserve camprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments
related to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred.

The share aptians reserve comprises amounts accumulated in equity in respect of share options and awards granted to employeas.

19. BORROWINGS

2020 2019
$m $m
Bankioans 519.1 558.1
Unamortised syndicate fees {4.8) 51]
Carrying value of borrowings at 31 Decemiber 514.3 553.0
The borrowings are repayabie as follows:
Within one year 3.7 22
Within two to four years 515.4 393.1
In the fifth year - 1628
519.1 558.1
The weighted average interest rates paid were as follows:
2020 2019
% %
Bank loans 3.2 34
Group borrowings were denominated as follows:
US Dollar Taiwan Dollar Eurc Total
Bark loans
31 DECEMBER 2020 306.6 2.1 210.4 519.1
31 December 2019 245.2 2.0 3109 558.1

Qf the US dollar horrowings, $nif was unsecured (2019: $nil), bearing intarest at the relevant interbank rates plus a margin. The Taiwan
dollar and remaining US dollar borrowings consisted of thase secured by time deposits and those secured by charges over various land
and buildings in Taiwan.

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash fiow statement comprise the following:

2020 2019
$m $m
Cash at bank and on hand 111.0 103.9
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21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AL 31 December 2020:

Held at fair value

Held atamortised cost

Through  Derivatives

profit and usedfor  Loansand Total book Total fair
loss hedging receivables Liabilities value value
$m $m $m $m $m $m
CURRENT:
Trade and other receivables {see note 13} - - 98.9 - 98.9 98.9
Derivative financial instruments (see note 22) - 14 - - 14 1.4
Cash and vastigyuivalents {see note 20) - - 111.0 - 111.0 1110
Financial assets - 14 209.9 - 211.3 211.3
CURRENT:
Bank cverdrafts and loans (see ncte 19) - - - 3.7) (3.7) 3.7
Trade and other payabies (see note 14) - - - {132.6) (132.6} (132.6)
Derivative financialinstruments (see note 22)* (14.7) {2.6) - - (17.3) 17.3)
Lease liabilities {see note 24) - - - (7.2) (7.2) (7.2)
NON-CURRENT:
Loans and borrowings™” (see note 18) - - - (510.6) {510.6) (515.4)
Lease liabilities (see note 24) - - - {37.2) (37.2) (37.2}
Contingent consideration™™* - - - - {13.4) (13.4) (13.4)
Financial liabilities (14.7) (2.6) - (704.7) (722.0) (726.8)
TOTAL {(14.7) {1.2) 209.9 (704.7) {510.7) {515.5)
AL 31 December 2019: Held at fair value Held at amortised cost
Through  Derivatives
profit and used for Loans and Taotal book Total fair
loss hedging receivables Liabilities value value
$m m $m $m $m $m
CURRENT:
Trade and other receivables {(see ncte 13) - - 1104 - 1104 1104
Derivative financialinstruments (see note 22) - Q.1 - - .1 0.1
Cash and cash equivalents (see note 20) - - 103.8 - 103.8 1039
Financial assets - 0.1 243 - 2144 214.4
CURRENT:
Bank gverdrafts and loans (see note 19) - - - (2.2) 2.2) (2.2)
Trade and cther payables (see note 14} - - - (134.5) {134.5) (134.5)
Derivative financial instruments (see note 22)* (1.4} 0.7) - - (2.1} 2.1
Lease liabilities (see note 24) - - - (7.1} {7.1} (7.1}
NON-CURRENT:
Loans and baorrowings™ (see note 19) - - - {550.8) (550.8) {555.9}
Lease liabilities (see note 24) - - - (39.8) (39.8) (39.8)
Contingent consideration™* (see note 5) - - - (13.0) {13.0) (13.0)
Financial liabilities R 04 0.7 - (747.4) {749.5) (754.6)
TOTAL ’ (1.4) (0.6) 2143 {747.4) {535.1) (540.2)

* Derivativesin a liability position at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019 are shown within current financial liabilities in the Consolidated

balance sheet.

** Loans and borrowings are shown net of facility fees of $4.8m {2019: $5.1m).

*** Contingent consideration payable of $13.4m (2019: $13.0m} is shown in the non-current financial liabilities line in the Consolidated balance sheet.
This balance is payable to the previous owners of Mondo should Elementis be successful inan historic, pre-acguisition interest deductability case
relating to Mondo. Should Elementis be unsuccessful the balance payable to the previous owners of Mondo will be nil.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

For the year ended 31 December 2020

21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

FAIR VALUES MEASUREMENT AND HIERARCHY

Basis for determining fair values

The Group measures fair values in respect of financial instruments in accordance with IFRS 13, using the following fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted)in an active market for an identical instrument.
Leve! 2: Valuation technigues based on observable inputs, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3: Valuation technigues using significant unabservable inputs. This category includes contingent consideration.

The following summarises the significant methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial instruments:

The Group assesses that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables, and the

current portion of floating rate bank and other borrowings, approximate to book values due to the short maturity periods of these financial
instruments. For trade and other receivables, allowances are made within their book value for credit risk. The fair values of lease liabilities
approximate to their book values due to the measurement of lease liabilities at the Group's incremental borrowing rate, which has not

changed significantly since the inception of the iease liabilities presented. Leases are also negotiated at market rates with independent,

unrelated third parties and are subject to periodic rental reviews. .

DERIVATIVES {LEVEL 2}
Fair value is estimated by discounting the difference between the contractual forward price and the current forward price for the residual
maturity of the contract using a risk free interest rate (based on government bonds).

NON-DERIVATIVE NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (LEVEL 2}
Fair value is calculated based on the present value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at
the reporting date,

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION PAYABLE (LEVEL 3)

Fair value has been estimated by calculating the present value of the future expected cash flows. Expected cash inflows are estimated
based onthe terms of the sale and purchase contract, the entity’s knowledge of the business and how the current economic environment
is likely to impact it.

Changes in fair value of financial liabilities classified as leve! 3 in the hierarchy are as follows:

2020 2019
$m $m

Contingent consideration at fair value through profit or loss:
AL January 13.0 2.4
Foreign exchange losses/(gains) 0.4 08
Additions - -
Profit and loss movement - {9.0)
At 31 December 13.4 13.0
INTEREST RATES USED FOR DETERMINING FAIR VALUE .

Theinterest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, where applicable, are based on yield curves observable at the balance sheet
date and contractual interest rates, The rates used were as follows:

2020 il
% %
Borrowings 2.9-3.3 2.3-4.4

The following table shows amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to financial assets and liabilities within the scope of [FRS 9:

2020 2008
$m $m
RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR LOSS
Interestincome on bank deposits held at amortised cost 0.3 0.4
Fair value of cash flow hedges transferred from equity to the income statement - -
Financial income 0.3 0.4
Interest on bank ipans (22.6) (23.7)
Fair value of cash flow hedges transferred from equity to the income statement (0.9) -
Fair vaiue movement on derivatives not in hedging relationships (10.2) (1.4)
Interest on lease liabilities (1.7) {1.8}
Financial costs (35.4) {26.9)
Net financial costs (35.1) {26.5)
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The following table shows amounts recognised directly in equity in relation to financial assets and liabilities within the scope of IFRS 9:

2020 2019
$m $m
RECOGNISED DIRECTLY IN EQUITY
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedge (gain / (loss) (1.4) (2.8
Fair value of cash flow hedges transferred to income statement 0.9 -
Effective partion of change in fair value of net investment hedge (3.6) 275
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations 25.0 (23.9}
Recognised in:
Hedging reserve (0.5) (2.8)
Translation reserve 21.4 3.6

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Contract or underlying

principal amount Fair Value
Assets  Liabilities

At 31 December 2020 Assets Liabilities $m $m
CURRENT:

€120m/
Interest rate swaps ~cash flow hedges - $100m - {2.6)
Commodity swaps —cash flow hedges 2,040 MT - 14 -

$110m/
Cross currency swaps _ - €100m = {14.7}
TOTAL 1.4 (17.3}

Contract or underlying
principal amount Fair Value
Assets Liabilities
At 31 Decemnber 2019 Assets Liahilities Im $m
CURRENT:
€30m/

Interest rate swaps —cash flow hedges - $100m - 0.6}
Commodity swaps - cash flow hedges 02mMBTU 2,040 MT 0.1 0.

$110m/
Cross currency swaps ~ - €100m - {1.4)
TOTAL 0.1 {2.1)

HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Group is exposed to certainrisks relating to its ongoing business operations. The primary risks managed using derivative instruments

are foreign currency risk, commaodity price risk and interest rate risk.
The Group's risk management strategy is explained in Note 23.

DERIVATIVES DESIGNATED AS HEDGING INSTRUMENTS
Cashflow hedges
Commodity price risk

The Group enters inte commodity swap contracts to reduce the volatility attributable to price fluctuations of aluminium and gas. To the
extent they continue to meet the criteria for hedge accounting, the commaodity forward contracts are accounted for as cash flow hedges.

There is an economic relationship between the hedged items and the hedging instruments as the terms of the commaodity swap contracts
match the terms of the expected highly probable forecast transactions (i.e. notional amount and expected payment date). As all critical terms

matched during the year, hedge ineffectiveness was immaterial. The hedgeratio is 1:1.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

For the yeer ended 31 December 2020

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES CONTINUED

Interest rate risk

The Group enters into interest rate swaps to swap a portion of the interest arising from the Group's syndicated rolling credit facility from
floating to fixed. Interest payments are highly probabie, ihe hedged riskis the change in the market interest rate. The hedged items are the
interest rate cash flows on $100.0m of USD denominated debt and €120.0m of EUR denominated debt, the Group's total debt is shown in
Note 19 to the financial statements.

The principal terms (notional, reset date, tenor) of the hedged items and the hedged instruments have been matched along with the
contractual interest cash flows, therefore creating an exact offset for these transaction resulting in a net fixed interest payable. As the
interest rate swaps and the hedged items are matched {equal and opposite terms of interest rate, gate and maturity) this resultsin a
designated hedge ratio of 1:1 or 100%.

Hedge ineffectiveness can arise from:

* Changes intiming of the hedged item

+ Areduction in the armount of the hedged item considered to be highly probabie

+ Achange inthe credit risk of Elementis or the counterparty to the derivative contract
* Foreign currency basis spreads

The effect of cash flow hedges in the consofidated income statement and the consclidated statement of other comprehensive income is,
as follows:

Total
hedging Amount
{loss)gain reclassified Line iteminthe
recognised  from OClto statement of
inQCI profit orloss profitorloss
$m $m $m
YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges (2.5) 0.5 Finance costs
Commodity forward contracts — cash flow hedges 1.1 0.4 Cost of sales
YEARENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
Interest rate swaps — cash flow hedges (24) (0.3} Finance costs
Commodity forward contracts — cash flow hedges (0.4) 0.3 Cost of sales

Amounts reclassified from other comprehensive income to profit or loss are due to the hedged item affecting profit or loss in the period.
There were no instances of non-occurrence of hedged cashfiows in either the current or comparative pericd.

{BOR reform

The Group has adopted the 'Interest rate benchmark reform — Phase 1 amendmenits in the current financial year, These allow the Group to
cantinue hedge accounting for its benchmark interest rate exposures during the period of uncertainty arising from interest rate benchmark
reforms. The Group will continue to apply these amendments untl! the uncertainty arising frem interest rate benchmark reform is no longer
present with respect to the timing and amount of the interest rate benchmark cash flows. Phase 1 tempoerary relief is expected to cease, on
a hedge-by-hedge basis, when the designated hedge relationship is amended and application of Phase 2 reliefs begins.

None of the Group's current USD LIBOR linked contracts include adequate and robust fallback provisions for a cessation of the referenced
benchmark interest rate. The Group is monitoring the market and the output from various industry working groups managing the transition
to new benchmark interest rates, and will look to implement fallback language for different instruments when appropriate. For the Group's
derivatives, the International Swaps and Derivatives Association's {ISDA) fallback clauses were made available at the end of 2020 and the
Group will begin discussion with its banks with the aim to implement this language into its ISDA agreements in 2021.

Details of the hedging relationships far which the Group has applied the ‘Interest rate benchmark reform —Phase 1" amendments are
given below.

Asset Liability Interest rate
Hedging instrument Notionai $m $m benchmark
USD interest rate swaps — cash flow hedges $100m - {2.5) USD-LIBOR

Hedge of netinvestments in foreign operations
The Group seeks to denominate the currency of its borrowings in Euros and US dollars in order to match the currency of its cash flows,
earnings and assets which are principally denominated in those currencies.

The Eura and US dollar borrowings in Elementis Holdings Limited. are designated as net investment hedges, as the company’s functional
currency is GBP. The Group does not undertake derivative transactions to hedge the foreign currency translation exposures.
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The Group analyses the Euro and US dollar net assets by subsidiary and the foreign currency borrowings in the name of Elementis
Holdings Limited are allocated against certain tranches of net assets for a specific subsidiary. Therefore, the critical terms of the Euro

and US dollar borrowings and their corresponding hedged items are the same.

The Group performs a qualitative assessment of effectiveness and it is expected that the value of the Euro and US dollar borrowings
in GBP and the value of the corresponding hedged items in GBP will systematically move in the opposite direction inresponse to

movements inthe underlying exchange rates.

The main source of ineffectiveness in these hedging relationships is the impact of a decline in the carrying value of the hedged item

compared to the Euro and US dollar borrowings with the result that the value of the hedged item is less than the value of
hedging instrument.

Foreign currency revaluation on the Euro and US dollar barrowings in the name of Elementis Holdings Limited are recorded in other
comprehensive income and deferred in the foreign currency translation reserve on the balance sheet as long as the hedge is effective.

Any ineffactiveness is recognised in the Income Statement for that year.

The impact of the hedged items on the statement of comprehensive income is as follows:

2020 2019
Foreign Fareign
currency currency
translation  translation
reserve reserve
$m $m
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER
Net investment in foreign subsidiaries 25.0 {23.8)
IMPACT OF HEDGING ON EQUITY
Set out below is the reconciliation of each component of equity and the analysis of other comprehensive incoms:
T Foreign
Cash flow currency
hedge translation
reserve reserve
$m $m
AS AT 1 JANUARY 2019 (5.6) (73.0
Effective portion of changes in fair value arising from:
Derivative cash flow hedging instruments (2.8) -
Amount reclassified to profit or loss - 04
Foreign currency revaluation of the net foreign operations - (23.9)
Foreign currency revaluation of borrowings - 275
Tax effect o - -
AS AT 1 JANUARY 2020 8.4) (69.0)
Effective portion of changes in fair value arising from:
Derivative cash flow hedging instruments 1.4) -
Amount reclassified to profit crloss 0.9 (0.2}
Foreign currency revaluation of the net foreign operations - 250
Foreign currency revaluation of borrowings - (3.6}
Foreign currency revaluation of pension scheme actuarial movements - (1.1)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 (8.9) 48.9
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

For the year ended 31 December 2020

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments.

« Creditrisk
+ Liquidity risk
* Marketrisk

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework.

The Group's rick management policies are established to identify snd analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits
and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to imits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed reguiarty to refiect
changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities.

The Group's Audit Committee aversees haw management monitors compliance with the Group's risk management policies and
procedures and reviews the adeguacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Group's Audit
Committee is assisted in its oversight rote by Internal Audit. internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management
controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

CREDIT RISK
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a finangial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group's exposure to credit sk is infiugnced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the
Group's customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate, has less influence on credit risk.
No single customer accounts for a significant proportion of the Group's revenue.

Each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness befora the Group's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions
are offered. The Group's review includes external ratings, where available, and in some cases bank references. Purchase iirnits are
established for each customer, which represents the maximum open amount without requiring approval from the Board of Directors.
Custamars that fail to meet the Group's benchmark creditworthiness may transact with the Group only on a prepayment basis.

The Group applies the IFRS 9 simplified approachin establishing an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs). Therefore, the Group
does not frack changes in credit risk but instead recognises & loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. A provision
matrix is used to calculate lifetime ECLs which takes into account the Group's historical credit loss experience adjusted for historical
conditions that are not relevant to future cashflows and forward looking factors specific to the debtor and economic environment.

INVESTMENTS

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk through a treasury policy that imposes graduated Hmits on the amount of funds that can be
deposited with counterparties by reference to the counterparties’ credit ratings, as defined by Standard & Poor's or Moody's.
Management does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

EXPOSURE TO CREDIT RISK
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date was:

Carrying amount

2020 2018

£m $m

Trade receivables 86.4 96.6
Cash and cash equivalents 1110 1038
197.4 200.5

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the reporting date by geographic region was:

Carrying amount

2020 2019

$m $m

Naorth America 27.7 326
Europe 29.9 cleas]
Rest of the World 28.8 335
86.4 96.6
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EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

Expected Expected

Gross  Expected creditloss Gross Expected  creditloss

2020 credit)oss 2020 2018 creditloss 2019

$m rate $m $m rate $m
Not past due 78.1 0.8% (0.6) 87.0 1.3% {1.1}
Past due 0-30 days 82 0.0% - 85 35% {0.3)
Past due 31-120 days 0.9 66.7% {0.6) 2.1 4 R% 0.1)
Pastdue > 121 days 10 60.0% (0.6) 1.4 64.3% 0.9
Total 88.2 {1.8) 98.0 (2.4)

The movement in the allowance for expected creditlosses during the year was as follows:

- 2020 2019

$m $m

Balance at 1 January 2.4 20
Charge to Income statement — administrative expenses (0.6) 0.4
Increase in provision on acquisition of Mondo - -
Balance at 31 December 1.8 24

LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity riskis the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group's approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under bath normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation. The Group's funding policy is to
have committed borrowings in place to cover at least 125% of the maximum forecast net borrowings for the next 12 month period. At the
year end the Group had $314.1m (2019; $267.0m} of undrawn committed facilities, of which $280.0m {2019: $245.3m) expires after more
than 1 year.

EXPOSURE TO LIQUIDITY RISK
The maturity snalyses far financial liabilities showing the anticipated remaining contractual undiscounted cash flows, including future
interest payments. at current year exchange rates and assuming floating interest rates remain at the latest fixing rates are:

31 December 2020

Within 1 1t02 2t05 After 5
year years years years Total
$m $m $m $m $m
Bank overdrafts 3.7 - - - 3.7
Secured bankoan - - 515.4 - 515.4
Trade and other payables 132.6 - - - 132.6
Lease liabilities 7.2 58 12.7 30.2 55.9
TOTAL NON-DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 143.5 5.8 §28.1 30.2 707.6
Interest rate swaps* 26 - - - 26
Commodity swap contracts - - - - -
Cross currency swaps 14.7 - - - 14.7
TOTAL DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 17.3 - - - 17.3

* Assumes no change ininterest rates from those prevailing at the balance sheet date.

7 31 December 2019

Within 1 year 110 2vyears 2toSyears After Syears Total

$m $m $m $m . $m

Bank overdrafts 22 - - - 22
Secured bank loan - - 3831 162.8 5559
Trade and other payables 134.5 - - - 1345
Lease liabilities 7.4 6.0 14.8 314 59.6
TOTAL NON-DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 1441 60 4079 194.2 752.2
Interest rate swaps* 0.6 - - - 0.6
Commodity swap contracts 0.1 - - - 0.1
Cross currency swaps 1.4 - - - 1.4
TOTAL DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 2.1 - - - 2.1

T ASSUMES N0 change in Interest rates from those prevailing at the balance sheet date.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

For the year ended 31 December 2020

23. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will affect the Group's income
or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, whilst optimising the return onrisk.

The Group uses derivatives in the ordinary course of business, and also incurs financial liabilities, in order to manage market risks.
All such transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the Board.

MARKET RISK - CURRENCY RISK

The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and borrowings that are dencminated in a foreign currency other than the
respective functional currencies of Group entities, primarily the LS dollar and the euro. The Group hedges up to 100% of current and
forecast trade receivables and trade payables denominated in a foreign currency, The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge
its currency risk, with a maturity of less than one year from the reporting date.

Interest on borrowings is denominated in currencias that match the cash flows generated by the underlying operations of the Group,

primarily US doliar, but also euro and pounds sterling. This provides an economic hedge in instances where hedging derivatives are not

entered intc. In respect of other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in fareign currencies, the Group ensures that its net exposure .
is kept to anacceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates when necessary to address short term imbalances.

The Group's net investment in overseas subsidiaries creates exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations. The tisk is hedged by US doliar
and gure denominated drawdowns under the syndicated facility designated as the hedged item in net investment hedge relationships.
This mitigates the currency risk arising from the retranslation of a subsidiary's nhet assets into pounds sterling, the functional currency of
the ultimate parent Elementis plc.

CURRENCY RISK SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

The following table llustrates the effect on the income statement and items that are recognised directly in equity thet would result from a
10% strengthening of US dollar against the following currencies, before the effect of tax. The analysis covers only financial assets and
liabilities held at the balance sheet date and assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

2020 2019
Income Income
statement Equity  staternent Equity
$m $m $m $m
Gain/(loss) from US Dollar strengthening 10% against Euro 05 0.6 03 03
Gainf{loss) from US Dollar strengthening 10% against Sterling {0.9) {28.9) 0.3 {22.0)

MARKET RISK - INTEREST RATE

The Group's policy is te borrow at both fixed and floating interest rates and to use interest rate swaps to generate the required interest
profile. These interest swaps are designated within cashflow hedging relationships with the interest payments on the borrowings they are
hedging. Therisk being hedged is the exposure of the Group to market rate valatility on a portion of the core Group debt. The Group policy
does not require that a specific proportion of the Group's borrowings are at fixed rates of interest.

INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS .
A change of 100 basis points (1%) in interest rates would have impacted profit or ioss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes
that al! other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain censtant.

2020 2019

100bps 100bps 100bps 100bps

increase decrease increase decrease

$m $m $m $m

Variable rate instruments — {lossl/gain (2.4) 1.2 (3.8} 1.8
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MARKET RISK - COMMODITY PRICE RISK

The group is exposed to movements in the prices of commaodities it purchases such as aluminium. The volatitity in the price of aluminium
has led to the decision to enter into commodity swap contracts. The swap contracts do not result in physical delivery of aluminium, but are
designated as cash flow hedges to offset the effect of price changes in aluminium,

Commodity price sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 10% increase in aluminium prices, which is management's assessment of the reasonably
possible change, on average, over any given year. In 2020 and 2013 the Group's aluminium purchases were fully hedged and all aluminium swap
derivatives achieved hedge accounting, there was no impact on profitor loss.

The table does not show the sensitivity to the Group's total commadity exposure or the impact of changes in volumes that may arise from
increass or decrease in the respective comimodity prices. The sensitivity analysis determines the potential effect on profit or loss and
equity arising from the Group's aluminium swap contract positions as a result of the reasonably possible increases or decreases of the
respective aluminium price.

Effect 2020 Effect 2019
onprofit Impacton on profit Impact en
beforetax totalequity beforetax  total equity
$m $m $m $m

10% increase in aluminium prices - - - —

OTHER MARKET PRICE RISK

Equity price risk arises from equity securities held within the Group's defined benefit pension obligations. Inrespect of the US schemes,
management monitors the mix of debt and equity securities in its investment portfolio based on market expectations. The primary goal
of the Group's investment strategy is to maximise investment returns, without excessive risk taking, in order to meet partially the Group’s
unfunded benefit obligations; management is assisted by external advisers in this regard. In respect of the UK scheme, the investment
strategy is set by the trustees and the Board is kept informed.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditcr and market confidence, sustain future development
of the business and maximise shareholder value. The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity holders of the parent comprising capital, reserves and retained earnings. Financing for the recent acquisition of Mondo
was part funded through a Rights Issue and part through drawdowns cn the Group's syndicated borrowing facility.

The Group utilises a mix of debt funding sources including term loans and revolving credit facilities (RCF) from the Group's syndicated
borrowing facility with differing maturities to ensure continuity and provide flexibility. The group is subject to two financial covenants
which apply to the Group’s syndicated borrowing facility. Following the covenant relaxations granted during 2020 the group is required

{0 maintain aratio of net debt to EBITDA (cre IFRS 16) of less than 3.75x for all measurement points up to andincluding 31 December 2021
and less than 3.25x for ali periods thereafter and a minimum net interest cover of 3.0x (inrelation to earnings before net interest expense
and tax). The Net debt to EBITDA ratio stood at 3.2x times at 31 December 2020 (2018 2.7x} and the Directors anticipate the strong cash
generation of the Enlarged Group to drive a material deleveraging profile going forwards, with leverage reducing to a net debt to EBITDA
ratio of around 1.5x in the medium term. Net interast cover at 31 December 2020 was 3.7x{2019: 5.5x).

The Board monitors the return on operating capital employed {(ROCE) both including and excluding goodwill, as defined onpage 184.
The Group's target is to achieve a ROCE (including goodwili) in excess of our weighted average cost of capital.

The dividend policy is set out in the Chairman's statement on page 7.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

Far the year ended 31 December 2020

24. LEASES

GROUP AS LESSEE

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property, plant, machinery, vehicles and other equipment used inits operations.
Disclosures in relation to Right of Use Assets are included within Note 11 —Property, plant and equipment.

The Group also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets to which the Group applies the

‘short-term lease’ and lease of low-value assets’ recognition exemptions,
The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 4% (2019: 4%).

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or logs:

2020 2019
m $m
Depreciation expense on right-of-use assets 52 87
Interest expense on lease liabilities 1.7 1.8
Expense related to short-term leases and iow-value assets 1.0 0.3
Expense reiating to variable lease payments natincluded in lease liabilities 0.9 1.2
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the period:
2020 2019
$m $m
As at T January 2020 46,9 53.3
Additions 1.4 0.6
Disposals - Q5)
interest expense 1.7 1.8
Payments 6.7) 7.8
Foreign exchange movements 1.1 (0.5)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 44.4 46.9
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is as follows:
2020 2018
$m $m
Within one year 72 7.1
In the second to fifth years inclusive 16.5 184
After five years 20.7 214
44.4 4689
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25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

The Group has a number of contributory and non-contriputory post retirement benefit plans providing retirement benefits for the
majority of employees and Executive Directors. At 31 December 2020 the main schemes in the UK and US were of the defined benefit
type, the benefit being based on number of years of service and either the employee’s fimal remunaration or the employee’s average
remuneration during a period of vears bafore retirement. The assets of these schemes are held in separate trustee administered funds

or are unfunded but provided for on the Group balance sheet.

The UK defined benefit scheme had a surplus under 1AS 19 of $7.9m (2019: $7.4m). In accordance with the requirements of IFRIC

14 management have concluded that the right to reduce the minimum funding contributions when the deficit fails below $10.4min
conjunction with the unconditional right to a refund of any surplus under any winding up of the plan provides sufficient evidence that
an asset ceiling does het exist and as such the full surplus has been recognised.

In addition the Group operates an unfunded post retirement medical benefit (PRMB) scheme inthe US. The entitlement to these benefits
is usually based on the employee remaining in service until retirement age and completion of a minimum service period.

Qther employee benefit schemes included in the table overleaf relate to two unfunded pension schemes, g long term service award
scheme in Germany and a special benefits programmae for a small number of former employees of the Eaglescliffe plant. The Group also
acquired two further unfunded pension schemes and two iong term service award schemes allin Germany as part of the SummitReheis

acquisition in 2017. These are included within this category.

The Group also operates a small number of defined contribution schermes and the contributions payable during the year are recognised
as incurred. The pension charge for the defined contribution pension schemes for the year is $3.1m (2018: $4.1m).

NET DEFINED BENEFIT LIABILITY
The netliability was as follows:

UK pension US pension USPRMB

scheme schemes scheme Other Total
$m $m $m $m $m
2020
Total market value of assets 788.9 130.7 - - 919.6
Present value of scheme liabilities (781.0) (142.5) (6.5) {9.8) (939.8)
Net asset/{liability) recognised inthe balance sheet 7.9 {11.8) {6.5) {9.8) (20.2)

UK pension  US pension US PRMB

scheme schemes scheme Other Total
$m $m $m $m $m

2019
Total market value of assets 724.2 12258 - - 848.7
Prasent value of scheme liabilities (716.8) (132.4) 6.0) (8.6} (8638}
Net asset/lliability) recognised in the balance sheet 7.4 9.9) 6.0} {8.6) (17.1)

Employer contributions in 2020 were $nil {2019: $nil} to the UK scheme and $0.8m (2019: $2.1m) to US schemes. Top up contributions to
the UK scheme in 2020 will be nil based on the 2017 triennial valuation. Under this agreement top up contributions are no longer required
until at least 2021. Expected contributions to the US schemes in the next year are $0.4m.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

For the year ended 31 December 2020

25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED

MOVEMENT IN NET DEFINED BENEFIT LIABILITY
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit liability and
its companents.

UKpension US pension US PRMB

scheme schemes scheme Other Total
$m $m $m $m $m
2020
Balance at 1 Jahuary 7.4 {9.9) (6.0) {8.6) arn
INCLUDED IN PROFIT ORLOSS
Current service cost {0.6) {0.8) (0.1) 0.3 1.4}
Past service cost - 1.1 - - 1.1)
Running casts 1.2} (0.4} - - {1.6)
Net interest income/(expense) 0.1 0.3) 0.1) (0.1} (0.4)
(1.7} (2.6} (0.2} - (4.5)
INCLUDED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Re-measurements:
Return on plan assets excluding interest income 61,6 12,3 - - 739
Actuarial gains arising from demographic assumptions - 0.3 - - 0.3
Actuarial losses arising from financial assumptions {65.4) {11.9) {0.4) {0.6) {78.3)
Actuarial (losses)/gains arising from experience adjustment 5.9 0.4} 0.3) {0.3) 4.9
Exchange differences 0.1 - ~ {0.8) {0.7)
22 0.3 0.7) 1.7 0.1
Contributions:
Employers - 0.4 0.4 0.5 1.3
SURPLUS /(DEFICIT) IN SCHEMES AT 31 DECEMBER 7.9 (11.8) (6.5) (9.8) (20.2)
UK pension  US pension USPRMB
scheme schemes scheme Other Total
$m $m $m $m $m
2019
Balance at 1 January 221 (15.7) {5.6) {10.7) {9.9)
INCLUDED INPROFIT ORLOSS
Current service cost (C.6) {0.6) 0.1 0.3) (1.6)
Running costs {1.1) [0.4) - - (1.5}
Net interest expense 06 (0.6) 0.2) (0.3} {0.5)
Business disposal - - - 4.0 40
(1.1} (1.6) 0.3) 3.4 04
[NCLUPED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Re-measurements:
Return on plan assets excluding interest income 43.8 169 - - 60.7
Actuarial gains arising from demographic assumptions - 10 - - 1.0
Actuarial gains arising from financial assumptions (56.2) (12.2) ©.4) (2.2) (71.0)
Actuarial losses arising from experience adjustment (1.5) 0.2 0.4) - (1.7}
Exchange differences 0.3 - - 03 0.6
(13.6) 5.9 {0.8) {1.9) {1G.4)
Centributions:
Employers - 15 07 06 28
SURPLUS / (DEFICYT} IN SCHEMES AT 31 DECEMBER 7.4 9.9 6.0) {8.6} (17.1)
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PLAN ASSETS
Plan assets comprise:

UK pension US pension US PRMB
scheme schemes scheme Total
$m $m $m $m
2020
Equities 289.1 56.1 - 345.2
Bands* 436.9 13.8 - 450.7
Cash/liquidity funds 62.9 60.8 - 123.7
788.9 130.7 - 919.6
UK pension  US pension US PRMB
scheme schemes scheme Total
$m $m $m $m
2018
Equities 248 528 - 3009
Bonds* 397.8 57.3 - 4551
Cash/liguidity funds 783 12.4 — a0.7
724.2 1225 - 846.7

To reduce volatility risk a liability driven investment (LDI) strategy forms part of the Trustees’ management of the UK defined benefit

Including LDI repurchase agreement liabilities.

schemne’s assets, including government bonds, corporate bonds and derivatives. The bond assets category in the table above includes
gross assets of $845.3m (2019: $774.9m} and associated repurchase agreement liabilities of $408.4m (2019: $377.1m).
Repurchase agreements are entered into with counterparties to better offset the scheme’s exposure to interest and inflation rates, whilst

remaining invested in assets of a similar risk profile. Interest rate and inflation rate derivatives are also empioyed to complement the use of
fixed and indexed linked bonds in matching the profile of the scheme's liabilities.

All equities, bonds and liquidity funds have quoted prices in active markets. Other assets include insured annuities, an insurance fund and

various swap products.
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FINANGIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

Forthe year ended 31 December 2020

25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED

Within the UK pension scheme. the current asset aliocation is approximately 28% in a liabllity matching fund censisting of gilts (fixed
interest and index linked), bonds, cash and swaps, 19% in a buy and maintain fund and 53% in an investment fund that includes various
equity and equity like funds. The aim of the trustees is ta rmanage the risk relative to the liabilities associated with the scheme's
investments through a combination of diversification, inflation protection and hedging of risk (currency, interest rate and inflation risk},
The US schame currently has approximately 43% of its asset value invested in a range of equity funds designed to target higher returns
and thus reduce the pension deficit, with the balance invested in fixed income bonds and cash. The strategy is that as the deficit reduces,
& greater proportion of investrments will be made into liability matching funds. Changes in the fair value of plar assets for the major
schemes are as follows:

UK pension US pension US PRMB

Total
$m $m $m $m
2020
Opening fair value of plan assets 724.2 122.5 - 846.7
Expected return 13.6 3.5 - 171
Running costs {1.2) {0.4) - {1.6)
Actuarial gains 61.6 123 - 739
Contributions by employer - 0.5 - 0.5
Centributions by employees 0.1 - - 0.1
Benefits paid (35.2) 7.7) - {42.9)
Exchange differences 25,8 - - 25.8
Closing fair value of plan assets 788.9 130.7 - 919.6
UK pension  USpension US PRMB
scheme schemes scheme Total
S $m $m $m
2018
Opening fair value of plan assets 671.3 108.3 - 779.6
Expectedreturn 8.3 4.2 - 225
Running costs {13 0.4} - {1.5}
Actuarial gains 438 16.9 -~ 60.7
Contributions by employer - 1.5 - 1.5
Contributions by employees o1 - - 0.1
Benefits paid (36.0) {8.0) - (44.0
Exchange differences 278 - - 278
Closing fair value of plan assets 724.2 1225 — 848.7
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DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation for the major schemes are as follows:

UKpension USpension  USPRMB
scheme schemes scheme Total
$m $m $m $m
2020
Opening defined benefit obligation (716.8) (132.4) (6.0 (855.2)
Service cost (0.6} (0.8) (0.1} (1.5}
Past service ¢ost - {1.1) - (1.1}
Interest cost {135) {(3.9) 0.1 (17.5)
Contributions by employees 0.1) - - (0.1}
Actuarial gainsf{losses)
—demographic assumptions - 0.3 - 0.3
- financial assumptions (65.4) {11.9) (0.5) {77.8)
—experience adjustments 5.9 (0.4) {0.3) 52
Benefits paid 35.2 7.7 0.5 43.4
Exchange differences (25.7) - - (25.7)
Ciosing defined benefit obligation (781.0) (142.5) (6.5) (930.0)
T UKpension USpension  USPRMB N
scheme schemes scheme Total
$m $m sm $m
2019
Opening defihed benefit obligation 649.2) (124.0) 5.8) [778.8)
Service cost 0.6) 10.6) 0.1 (1.3)
Past service cost - _ - -
Interest cost (17.7) 14.8) 0.2} (22.7)
Contributions by employees @) - - ©n
Actuarial gains/{losses} arising from:
—demecgraphic assumptions - 1.0 - 1.0
-financial assumptions {56.2) (12.2) 0.4) {68.8}
—experience adjustments (1.5} 02 0.4) 7
Benefits paid 36.0 80 a7 44.7
Exchange differences {(27.5) - - {27.5)
Closing defined benefit obligation (716.8} (132.4) 8.0} {855.2}

ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2020 | ELEMENTIS PLC 167

1HCd34 D1931¥HLS

SLNIWILVYLS TYIINYNIA ADNYNEIAQD J1¥HOdH0D

NOILYWHOIN| HIATOHIYYHS



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

Far the year ended 31 Dacember 2020

25. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED
ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS
A full actuarial valuation was carried out on 30 September 2017 for the UK scheme and at 31 December 2015 fot the US schemes,

The principal assumptions used by the actuaries far the major schemaes have baenupdatad by the actuaries at the balance sheet date and
were as follows;

UK % Us %
2020
Rate of increase in salaries 38 30
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 29 N/A
Discountrate 1.3 2.2
Inflation 29 23
2019
Rate of increase in salaries 40 3.0
Rate of increase in pensions In payment 29 N/A
Discountrate 20 3.1
Inflation 30 23
The assumed life expectancies on retirement are:
UK us

2020 2019 2020 2019

years years years years
Retiring at 31 December
Males 22 22 20 20
Females 24 24 22 22
Retiring in 20 years
Males 24 24 21 21
Famales 26 25 23 23

The main assumptions for the PRMB scheme are a discountrate of 2.20% (2019: 3.05%) per annum and a health care cost trend of 6.4%
{2012: 6.5%) per annum for claims pre age 65 reducing to 4.4% per annum by 2022 (2019 4.5%). Actuarial valuations of retirement benefit
plans in other jurisdictions have either not been updated for JAS 19 purpeses or disclosed separately because of ihe costs invoived and
the considerably smaller scheme sizes and numbers of ernployees involved.

At 31 December 2020, the weighted average duration of the defined benefit abligations for the major schemes was as follows:
UK: 14 years
US: 11 years.

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
The sensitivities regarding the principa! assumptions used to measure the scheme labilities are set out below:

Assumption Change in assumption

Impact on UK scheme

Impact on US scheme

Discount rate

Rate of inflation

Rate of salary growth
Rate of mortality

Increased/decreased by 0.5%
Increased/decreased by 0.5%
Increased/decreased by 0.5%
Increased by 1 year

Decreased/increased by 7%
Increased/decreased by 5%
Increased/decreased by 0%
Increased by 6%

Decreased/increased by 5%
Increased/decreased by 0%
increased/decreased by 0%
Increased by 4%

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit obligation
as aresult of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period. These sensitivities have been
caleulated to show the movement of the defined obligation following a change in a particular assumption in isclation, assuming no other

changes in market conditions.
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26. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

The Group maintains a number of active share option and award plans and schemes for its employees. These are as follows:

SAVINGS-RELATED OPTIONS

Options are granted under the tax-advantaged Save As You Earn (SAYE) share option scheme in the UK. The SAYE allows UK-based
eligible employees to acquire options over the Company's shares at a discount of up to 20% of their market value at the date of grant.
Options are normally exercisable during the six month period following either the third or fifth anniversary of the start of the relevant
savings contract. Savings contracts are subject to the statutory savings limit of £500 per month.

US-based employees can enter into a similar share save scheme (Share Save). Employees can enter into two year savings contracts
saving up to a maximum of $2,000 per month, allowing eligible employees to acquire options over the Company’s shares at a discount
of up to 15% of their market value at the date of grant.

LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN (LTIP) AWARDS

The LTIP is a discretionary employee share scheme for Exegutive Directors and senior managers. The vesting of the awards are subject

to performance conditions cver athree year period at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee. The performance conditions of the
LTIP are detailed in the Remuneration Report on pages 92 and 93. As approved at the 2018 AGM, restricted shares (i.e. shares that vest based
ontime only) are awarded to participants below Board level. Shadow LTIPs are in place for senicr managers based in China and Malaysia,

DEFERRED SHARE BONUS PLAN {DSBP) AWARDS
The DSBP operates exclusively for the Executive Directors. Under this scheme, 50% of any cash benus payable is awarded in shares and
deferred for two years. There are no other performance conditions other than continued employment.

LEGACY SCHEMES

Prior to the introduction of the LTIP for senior managers, certain employees participated in the Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS').
The ESOS which (except for outstanding awards which will run their course} has been discontinued, The Company operated shadow ESOS
for anumber of senior managers, who were employed or based in China or Malaysia.

Opticns were valued {as shown in the table below) using the binomial option pricing madel. The fair value per option granted and the
assumptions used in the calculations are as follows:

2020 2018
Fair value per option (pence) 38.0 115.6
Expected volatility (%o) 59 K
Risk free rate (%) 0.0 G5
Expected dividend yieid (%) 4.3 4.3

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the Company's share price over the previous five years. The expected
life used inthe mode! has been adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural consigerations. The Group recognised total expenses of $3.5m (2019: $3.0m}related 1o share based payment transactions during
the year.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

continued

For the year ended 31 December 2020

26. SHARE BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED

At 31 December 2020 the following options/awards to subscribe fer ordinary shares were outstanding:

Exercisable
At
At 1 January 31 December
Exercise price 2020 Granted Exercised Expired 2020
Year of grant (o) From To 000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

UK SAVINGS RELATED SHARE OPTION SCHEME
2016 160.89 011018 01/04/20 110 - (4) (106) -
2017 20740 01/10/20 01/04/21 12 - - {1 11
2018 163.91 01/01/22 Q10722 66 - - 37 29
2019 121.33 01/11/22 01/05/23 342 - - (321} 21
219 121.33 01/11/24 Q4105/25 25 - - {25) -
2019 58.00 01/11/23 01/05/24 - 972 - (31) 941
2019 58.00 01/11/25 01/05/28 - 52 - - 52
5585 1,024 (4} (521) 1.054

US SAVINGS RELATED SHARE OPTION SCHEME
2017 21718 07/09/19 07112119 7 - - il -
2018 16014 05/12/20 05/03/21 377 - - (182) 195
2019 133.96 11/09/21 11/12/27 578 - - (318} 260
2020 6311 16/09/22 16/12/22 - 1.372 - - 1,372
962 1,372 - (507) 1,827

EXECUTIVE SHARE OPTION SCHEMES/AWARDS GRANTED UNDER THE LTIP*

2010 52.16 06/04/13 06/G4/20 94 - - {94) -
2011 13718 04/04/14 04704721 96 - - 13 83
201 177.87 27106115 27106122 196 - - (43) 153
2007 Nil 07/03/117 07/03/27 92 - - - 92
2017# Nt 07/03/19 Q7/03/27 7 -~ - - 7
2017 Nii 07/Q3/20 07/03/27 17 - - - 37
2007 264.66 03/04/20 (304727 788 - - (788) ~
2017 Nil 03704120 03/04/27 1,403 - - {1.403) -
2018* NIt 05/03/20 05/03/28 233 - (160) - 73
20g" Nit 30/04421 30/04/21 629 - - (79} 550
2017 Nil 30/04/21 30/04/28 1273 ~ - {79) 1.194
2018 Wit 27166121 2706121 7 ~ - - 7
2018 Nil 2810/ 201021 36 - - - 36
2018 Nil 2112121 2112121 209 - {209) - -
2018’ Nil 21912120 212124 361 - - - 361
2019 Nil 03/0v/21 30/01/29 124 - - {124) -
2019 Nil 03/01/22 30/01/129 124 - - - 124
2019 Nil 03/01/22 Q3101122 33 - - - 33
20187 Nil 06/03/21 06/03/27 110 - - - 110
20197 Nil 08/03/21 06/03/28 49 - - - 49
20187 Nil 01/04/22 Q1g4/28 2467 - - {184} 2273
20181 Nil 01/04s22 01/04/22 1334 - 71} {194) 1,069
2019 il 01/04/22 01/04722 5 - - - 5
2018 Nil 19/10/22 19/10/22 - 16 - - 18
2020 Nil 04/07/23 04/01/23 - 20 - - 20
202Q° Nil 05/03/23 05/03/23 - 188 - - 188
2020¢ Nit 05/03/23 05/03/30 - 76 - - 78
20201 Nil 07/04/23 07/04/30 - 5,203 - 118) 5,085
2020 Nif 07104122 07/04/22 - 106 - - 106
20207 Nil 07/04/23 07/04/23 - 2880 - (170) 2720
2020 Mt 03/08/23 03/08/23 - 178 -~ - 178
2020 Nii 11709123 11/09/23 - 27 - (17} 16
2020™ Nil 30112723 30M2/23 - 137 - - 137
9,687 8841 {440) (3,.310) 14,778
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FOOTNOTES TO TABLE ON PAGE 170
1 Where necessary option prices were adjusted for by a factor of 1.092715 toreflect the dilutive effects of the 2018 Rights Issue.

+ These optionsinclude cash settled shadow executive options granted to a number of executives onthe same basis as the executive options (with the same
performance conditions and exercise provisions). These shadow options are inciuded in the calculation of the total expenses recognised by the Group related to
share based payments. The closing balance of the 2011 and 2017 options shown above include no shadow options.

4 Awards made as one-off agreements that borrow from the terms of the LTIP.

1 These options include cash settled shadow LTIPS granted to a number of executives onthe same basis as the LTIP (with the same performance
conditions and exercise provisions). These shadow LTIPs are included in the calculation of the total expenses recognised by the Group related to share
based payments.

# Conditional share award under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan.

~ Awards made as one-off agreements under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan inil cost options).

* Theclosing balance of 2018, 2013 and 2020 LTiPs shown above include approximately 26,876, 52,772 and 165,856 shadow LTIPs respoctively.
0 Conditional share award under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan (nil cost award, structured as restricted share units).

The weighted average remaining centractual life of the above shares outstanding at 31 December 2020 was 5.3 years (2019: 7.9 years).

The weighted average exercise prices of options disclosed in the previous table were as follows:

2020 2019

Average Average

exercise exercise

price price

p) p)

At 1 January 44.4 798
Granted 13.0 230
Exercised 1.3 57.4
Expired 83.8 1005
At 31 December 14.6 a44.4
Exercisable at 31 December 1141 116.8

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of share options exercised during the year was 32 pence (2019: 126 pence).
The number of exercisable options outstanding as at 31 December 2020 was 631,868 (31 December 2019: 540,821).

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Cempany is a guarantor to the UK pension scheme under which it guarantees all current and future obligations of UK subsidiaries
currently participating in the pension scheme to make paymenits to the scheme, up to a specified maximum amount. The maximum
amount of the guarantee is that which is needed (at the time the guarantee is called ¢n) to bring the scheme’s funding level up to 105% of
its liabilities, calculated in accordance with section 179 of the Pensions Act 2004, This is also sometimes known as a Pension Protection
Fund (PPF) guarantae, as having such a guarantee in place reduces the annual PPF levy on the scheme.

The Group consists of the Parent Company, Elementis plc, incorporated inthe United Kingdom and its subsidiaries and associates.
Inaccordance with Section 409 of the Companies Act 2006 a full Ilst of related undertakings, the country of incorporation and the
effective percentage of equity owned as at 31 December 2020 is disclosed in Nate 11 to the parent company financial statements.

The remuneration of key management personnel of the Group, whichs defined as the Board of Directors, is shown below:

2020 2019

$m $m

Salaries and short term employee benrefits 21 24
Other long term benefits 0.3 0.3
Share based payments 0.7 06
B 3.1 33

Full details of all elements of the remuneration of Directors is set out in the Directors’ Remuneration report on pages 87 to 113,

28. MOVEMENT IN NET CASH/(BORROWINGS)

2020 2019
$m $m
Change in net cash resutting from cash flows:

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 3.2 88
{increasel/decreass in borrowings repayable within one year (1.4) 06
Decrease in borrowings repayable after one year _ &§7.7 297
o 59.5 39.1

Currency translation differences (13.4) 48
Decrease in net borrowings 48.1 439
Net borrowings at beginning of year o ) : (454.2) (498.1)
NET BORROWINGS AT END OF YEAR (408.1) {454.2)
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

For the year ended 31 December 2020

28. MOVEMENT IN NET CASH/(BORROWINGS) CONTINUED

Bankand Total Cash and Net debt

other Lease financing cash and lease

borrowings liabilities liabilities  equivalents liabilities

$m $m $m $m $m
AT 1 JANUARY 2019 (594.2) - (594.2) 96.1 (498.1)
ADOPTION OF IFRS 16 - (53.3) (53.3) - (53.3)
REVISED 1 JANUARY 2019 (594.2) (53.3) (647.5) 96.1 {551.4)
Exchange rate adjustments 58 0.5 6.3 (1.0} 53
Business disposed {see note 32) - 0.5 05 (2.1} 1.6}
Cash fiows from financing activities 30.4 6.0 36.4 (30.4) 6.0
Other movements 0.1) {0.6) 0.7} 41.3 406
AT 31 DECEMBER 2019 (558.1} (46.9) (605.0) 103.9 (601.7)
Exchange rate adjustments {17.3} (1.1) (18.4) 3.9 (14.5)
Business disposed (see note 32) - - - 0.5 05
Cash flows from financing activities 56.3 5.0 61.3 (56.3} 5.0
Other movements - (1.4} {1.4) 59.0 576
AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 {619.1) {44.4) (5€3.5) 111.0 (452.5)

29. DIVIDENDS

Aninterim dividend was not paid in 2020 (2019: 2.80 cents per share paid on 27 September 2019) and the Group is not proposing a final
dividend (2019: nil} for the year ended 31 December 2020, The total dividend for the year is nil cents per share {2019: 2.80 cents).

The amount payable for the final dividend is $nil.

2020 2019
Interim Final Full-year Interim Final Full-year
Dividend per share (cents) - - - 280 - 280

30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As is the case with other chemical companies, the Group occasionally receives notice of litigation relating to regulatory and legal matters.
A provision is recognised when the Group believes it has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is
probable that an outfiow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Where it is deemed that an obligation is merely
possible and that the probability of a material outflow is not remote, the Group would disclose a contingent liability.

In 2013 the UK Government {through HMRC) introduced the UK Finance Company Exemption (FCE'} regime. Elementis entered into the
FCE regime during 2014. In October 2017 the Eurapean Commission opened a State Aid investigation into the regime. In April 2019 the
European Commission cancluded that the FCE regime constituted State Aid in circumstances where Groups had accessed the regime
using a financing company with UK significant people functions; the European Commission therefore instructed the UK Government to
collect any relevant State Aid amounts. The UK government and other UK-based internaticnal companies, including Elementis, appealed
to the General Court of the European Union against the decisionin 2019,

In Spring 2020 HMRC requested that affected Groups submit their UK significant pecple function analysis. The deadline for submission of
these analyses was delayed due to the impact of COVID-18 and Elementis submitted its analysis to HMRC in July 2020. In December 2020
the UK government introduced legislation to commence collection preceedings.

Elementis received a charging notice from HMRC on 5 February 2021 which assessed for the maximum exposure of $19m (excluding
interest). This was paid to HMRC on 5 March 2021. Whilst Elementis has lodged an appeal against the charging notice this does nat defer
the payment of the tax assessed. As Elementis considers that the appeal will ultimately be successful, an asset will be recorded in the
2021 accounts an the expectation that the charge will be repaid in due course.

31. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

The cngoing EU state aid case is discussed in note 30. There were no other significant events after the balance sheet date.
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32. BUSINESS EXITS

On 30 November the Group disposed of Elementjs Specialties (Changxing) Ltd for consideration of RMB 12.6m ($1.9m).

The results of Elementis Specialties {Changxing) Ltd , which have been included in the consolidated income statement were as follows:

Year ended

31 December

2020

$m

Revenue -
Expenses -
Profit before tax -
Attributable tax expense - } —_ -
Net profit -

Revenue includes $nil related to inter-segment sales in 2020 (2019: $nit).

During the year, Elementis Specialties (Changxing) Ltd contributed $nil (2019: $nil) to the Group's net operating cash flows and paid $nil
(2019; $nil) inrespect of investing activities.

The Group recognised a total loss on current year disposal of:

Year ended

31 December

2020

$m

Consideration recejived 1.9
Net assets disposed of (see table below) 1.7}
Disposal costs (0.1}
Recycling of deferred forsign exchange gains 0.2
Profit on disposal 0.3

Details of assets and liabilities at the date of disposal are provided in the following table:

2020

$m

Property. plant and equipment 0.4
Cash and bank balances ) 1.3
Total assets ) 17
Net assets 1.7
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
continued

For the year ended 31 December 2020

32. BUSINESS EXITS CONTINUED

2019 BUSINESS EXITS - DISCONTINUED CPERATIONS
0On 10 December 2019 the Group disposed of SRL Dental GmbH which comprised the Dental plant at Ludwigshafen, Germany fer
consiceration of $0.2m.

The resuits of SRL Dental GmbH, which have been included in the consolidated income statement were as follows:

Year ended

31 December

2019

$m

Revenue 179
Expenses (17.9)
Profit before tax -
Attributable tax expense .1
Net profit attributable to discontinued operations {attriputable to owners of the Company} ©.1)

Revenue includes $nil related to inter-segment sales in 2018,
During 2019, SRL Dental GmbH contributed $1.8m to the Group's net operating cash flows and paid $nil in respect of investing activities.

The Group recognised a total loss on disposal of:

Year ended

31December

2018

$m

Consideration received 02
Net assets disposed of (see table below) (7.8
Disposal costs (1.0)
Recycling of deferred foreign exchange gains (0.4)
Loss on disposal {9.0)

Net aszets disposed of are analysed as follows:

2019

$m

Goodwill -
Intangible assets 87
Property, plant and equipment 12
Inventories 16
Trade and other receivables 2.3
Cash and bank balances 13
Total assets 15.8
Trade and other payables (1.1}
Pensians (4.0}
Tax liabilities 29
Total liabilities {8.0)
Net assets 78
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Company balance sheet

at 31 December 2020

2020 2018

Note £m £m
FIXED ASSETS
Investments 3] 776.6 7739
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors 7 12.7 12.7
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Creditors 8 (0.6) 0.6)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 121 121
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 788.7 7860
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR
Amounts due to subsidiary undertakings {188.5) {188.2)
NET ASSETS 600.2 5978
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital g 289 289
Share premiurn account 176.5 176.5
Capitalredemgtion reserve g 83.3 833
Otherresarves 250.5 2505
Share option reserve 9 20.4 17.7
Profit and loss account 40.6 409
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 600.2 597.8

The Company recognised a loss for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 of £6.3m (2018: £3.1m}.

Thefinancial statements of Elementis plg, registered number 3298608, on pages 175 to 182 were approved by the Board on 23 March

2021 and signed on its behalf by:

AN (T

PAUL WATERMAN RALPH HEWINS
CEO CFO
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 December 2020

Capital Share
Share redemption Other options Retained
Share capital premium reserve reserves reserve earnings Total
£m £m £m Em £m £fm £m

Balance at 1 January 2019 289 176.4 833 250.5 156 828 637.5
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year - - - - - 3.1 3.1}
Total other comprehensive income - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - - - - 3.1) {31
Transactions with owners
issue of shares by the Company - a1 - - - - 0.1
Share based payrments - - - ~ 21 - 21
Dividends received - - - - - - -
Dividends paid - - - - - (38.8} (38.8)
Total transactions with owners - Q. - - 2.1 (38.8) (36.6)
Balance at 31 December 2019 289 176.5 83.3 250.5 17.7 40.9 597.8
BALANCE AT 1 JANUARY 2020 289 1765 833 250.5 17.7 4049 597.8
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year - - - - - {0.3) 0.3)
Total other comprehensive income - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income - - - ~ - (0.3) 0.3)
Transactions with owners
Issue of shares by the Company - - - - - - -
Share based payments - - - -~ 2.7 - 27
Dividends received - - - - - - -
Dividends paid - - - ~ - - -
Total transactions with owners - - - ~ 27 - 2.7
BALANCE AT 31 DECEMBER 2020 28.9 176.5 83.3 250.5 20.4 40.6 600.2

The Company's distributable reserves amount to £40.6m {2019; £40.9m) at the end of the period. The Company regularly reviews its

distributable reserves and makes dividend recapitalisations as and when necessary to ensure it can make all expected dividend

payments. The Company has sufficient subsidiary reserves to enable such recapitalisationsin 2021 and geing forward.,

For more information on the dividend issued and the dividend per share please see Note 28 of the Group financial statements.
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Notes to the company financial statements

of Elementis plc

for the year ended 31 December 2020

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Elementis plc is a public company limited by shares and is
incorporated and domiciled in England. The address of its
registered office is Caroline House, 55-57 High Holborn, London,
WC1V 6DX. The principal activity of the Company is to act as the
ultimate holding company of the Elementis Group of companies.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company's financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, in compliance with applicable United
Kingdom accounting standards, including Financial Reporting
Standard 101 —'Reduced disclosurg framework - Disclosure
exemptions from EU -adopted IFRS for qualifying entities’ {FRS
10717, and with the Companies Act 2006. The Company has
presented its resuits under FRS 107,

As aqualifying entity whose results are consolidated in the Elementis
plc Consalidated financial statements cnpages 128 to 174, the
Company has taken advantage of the exemption under FRS 107 from
preparing a statement of cashflows and associated notes, the effects
of new but not yet effective IFRSs, disclosures in respect of transactions
and the capital managament of wholly owned subsidiaries and key
management personnel compensatian disclosures.

As the consolidated financial statements include equivalent
disclosures, the Company has also taken the disclosura exemptions
under FRS 101 in respect of group settled share-based payments
under IFRS 2 Share based payment, IFRS 16 leases, disclosures
required by IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures and by IFRS 13
Fair Value Measurement.

By virtue of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the company
is exampt from presenting an income statement and disclosing
employee numbers and staff costs.

As a consequence of the majority of the Cormpany's assets, liabilities
and expensas originating in UK pound sterling, the Company has
chosen the UK pound sterling as its reporting currency.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated. The Company has adopted FRS 101 in these
financial statements.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

Transactions in fareign currencies arerecorded at the rates of
exchange ruling at the date of the transaction. Monatary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreignh currencies are translated
using the contracted rate or the rate of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date and the gains and losses on translation are
included in the profit and loss account.

INVESTMENTS
Investments in subsidiaries are inClyded in the balance sheet at
costless accumulated impairment losses.

Potential indicators of impairment including the market capitalisation
of the group dropping below the net assets of Elementis plc have
been considered. The recoverable amounts of cash generating units
as determined for the impairment testing of goodwill also support
the recaoverable amounts cf the parent company's investments.

DIVIDENDS ON SHARES PRESENTED WITHIN
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Dividends unpaid at the balance sheet date are only recognised as
aliability at that date to the extent that they are appropriately
authorised and are no longer at the discreticn of the Company.

PENSIONS AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS
The Company participates inthe Elementis Group defined benefit
pension scheme. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Company. Details of the latest actuarial valuation
carricd out in September 2017 can be found in the 2010 Clementis
ple Annual report and accounts. Following the introduction of the
revised reporting standard, any surplus or deficit in the Elementis
Group gefined benefit pension scheme is to be reportedin the
financial statements of Elementis UK Ltd, which employs the
majority of active members of the scheme and is responsible for
making deficit contributions under the current funding plan.

TAXATION

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purpcses and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Advance corporation tax recoverable by deduction from future
corporation tax is carried forward within deferred taxation ar as
ACT recoverabie within debtors as appropriate.

There were no significant judgements or estimates necessary
in 2020,

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the
previous financial year, except for the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases.
There has been no impact from this standard on the Company's
financial statements.

SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an expense with a corresponding increase in equity. Where the
Company grants options over its own shares te the employees of its
subsidiaries it recognises inits Individual financial statements an
increase in the cost of investmentinits subsidiaries equivalent to the
equity settled share based payment charge recognised inits
subsidiaries’ financial statements, with the corresponding credit
being recognised directly in equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date and spread over the period during whichthe employees
become unconditionally entitled tc the options. The fair value of the
options granted is measured using a binomial model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that vest except where forfeiture
is only due to share prices not achieving the threshold for vesting.

CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
ISSUED BY THE COMPANY

Financialinstruments issued by the Company are treated as equity
only to the extent that they meet the following two conditions:

a. They include no contractual obligations upon the Company to
deliver cash or other financial assets or to exchange financial
assets or financial liabilities with another party under conditions
that are potentially unfavourable to the Company.

b. Where the instrument will or may be settled in the Company's
own equity Instruments, it is either a non-derivative thatincludes
no obligation to deliver a variable number of the Company’s own
equity instruments or is a derivative that will be settled by the
Company's exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other financial
assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the company financial statements

of Elementis plc continued

For the year ended 31 December 2020

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

To the extent that the definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the instrument so classified
takes the legal form of the Company's own shares, the amounts presented in these financial statements for called up share capital and

share premium account exclude amounts in refation to those shares.

Finance payments associated with financial liabilities are deait with as part of interest payable and similar charges. Finance payments
associated with financial instruments that are classified as part of shareholders’ funds, are dealt with as appropriations in the

reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds.

4. PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Company has not presented its own profit and 10ss account. Aloss of £0.3m

(2019: £3.1m loss) is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

5. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Details of Directors' remuneration for the Company are included in the Directors’ Remuneration report within the Elementis plc Annual

Report and Accounts on pages 87 to 113,

6. INVESTMENTS

Unlisted

shares Unlisted Capital
atcost loans contributions Total
£m £m £m £m
Cost at 1 January 2020 0.1 752.0 14.8 7739
Additions - - 27 27
NET BOOK VALUE 31 DECEMBER 2020 0.1 759.0 17.5 776.6
Net book value 31 December 2019 01 759.0 14.8 773.8

The investment in unlisted lcans is with Elementis Holdings Ltd, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary. The investments in unlisted shares
are in Elementis Group BV and Elementis Overseas investments Ltd, both wholly owned subsidiaries. Capital contributions relate to share

based payment awards made to employees of subsidiary companies.
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The trading subsidiaries and associates of Elernentis plc, all of which are wholly cwned, exciuding Alembic Manufacturing Limited, where

the Group holds a 25% interest, are as follows:

Subsidiary undertakings

Country of incorporation and operation

Adentatec GmbH Competence in Dental
Alembic Manufacturing Ltd

Deuchem Co., Ltd

Deuchem (HK} Trading Co Ltd

Deuchem (Shanghai) Chemical Co. Ltd
Eisenbacher Dentalwaren ED GmbH
Elementis Chromium Inc

Elementis Chromium LLP

Elementis Deuchem (Shanghai}
Chemical Ltd

Elementis LTP Inc

Elementis Minerals BV

Elementis Specialties {Anji) Ltd
Elementis Specialties do

Brasil Quimica Ltda

Elementis Specialties Inc

Elementis SRL Inc

Elementis UK Limited trading as:
Elementis Specialties

Elementis Pharma GmbH

Mondo Minerals Deutschland GmbH
Elementis Minerals Nickel Qy

Mando Trading (Beijing) Company Ltd

Parsonal Care products
Fersonal Care products
Additives and resins
Additives and resins

Additives and resins
Personal Care products
Chromium chemicals
Chromium chemicals

Additives and resins
Chromium chemicals
Talc products
Organoclays

Coatings additives

Rheolcgical additives, colourants, waxes.,

cther specialty additives
Personal Care products
Rheological additives, colourants,
waxes, other specialty additives
Personal Care products

Talc products

Talc products

Talg products

Garmany’

United Kingdom?

Taiwan®

People's Republic of China —-Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region®
People's Republic or China®

Germany®

United States of America’

United Kingdom®

People's Republic of China®
United States of America’
Netherlands?

Paople's Republic of China'™®

Brazil"'

United States of America’
United States of America’

United Kingdom®
Germany'?

Garmany'?

Finland'™

People's Republic of China'®

Registered office Konrad-Adenauer-Strae 13, 50996 Koln, Germany.

Registered office Unit 6 Wimbourne Buildings, Atlantic Way, Barry Docks, Barry, South Glamargan CF63 3RA, UK.
Registered office 92, Kuang-Fu North Road. Hsinchu Industrial Park, Hukou, Hsinchu Taiwan, ROC.

Registered office Flat P, 14/F, Hanbest industrial Building, 45-47 Au Pui Wan Street, Fotan, Shatin N.T Hong Kong.
Registered office 99 Lianyang Road, Songjiang industrial Zone, Shanghai, China.

Registered office Dr-Konrad-Wiegand-Str. 9, 63938 Warth a.Main, Germany.

Registered office 1208 Orange Street, Wiimington, Delaware, 19801, US.

Registered office Caroline House, 55-57 High Holborn, London WC 1V 6DX, UK.

Registerad office: Kajuitweg 8, 1041 AR, Amsterdam, Netherlands.

= 0 O ~ & o b W KN =

U Registered office Huibutai, Majiadu Village, Dipu Town, Anji County. Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province, China.
11 Registered office Rodovia Nelson Leopolding, SP 375, Km 13.8. s/n, Bairre Rural, Palmital, 530 Pauio, Brazil.
12 Registered office Giulinistr.2, 67065 Ludwigshafen, Germany.

13 Registered office Friedrichsallee 14, 42117, Wuppertal, Germany.

14 Registered office Talkkitie 7. 83500, Outokumpu. Finland.

15 Registered office Nan Zhugan Hutong no 6, floor 9, 01-007, Dengcheng District, 100010, Bejjing. China.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the company financial statements

continued

Far the year ended 37 December 2020

6. INVESTMENTS CONTINUED

Non-trading and dormant subsidiaries of Elementis plc, ali of which are wholly owned within the Group, are as follows:

Subisidiary undertakings

LCountry of incorparation and operation

Agrichrome Ltd

American Chrome & Chemicals Inc
Deuchem Holding Inc
Deucheminternational Inc
Elementis America Shared Services Inc
Elementis Australia Ltd

Elementis Benelux NV

Elementis Catalysts Inc

Elementis Chemicals Inc
Elementis Chromium America Inc
Elementis Export Sales Inc
Elementis Finance (Australia) Ltd
Elementis Finance (Europe) Ltd
Elementis Finance (Germany) Ltd
Elementis Finance (Incia) Ltd
Elementis Finance (Ireland) Ltd
Elementis Finance (Jersey} Ltd
Elementis Finance {US) Ltd
Elementis Germany GmbH
Elementis Garmany Ltd

Elementis Global LLC

Elementis GmbH

Elementis Group (Finance) Ltd
Elementis Group BV

Elermentis Group Ltd

Elementis Holdings Ltd

Eiementis London Ltd

Elementis Minerals Holding BY
Elementis Nederland BV

Elementis New Zealand Ltd
Elernentis NZ Ltd

Elementis Overseas Investments Ltd
Elementis Pigments Inc

Elementis S.E.A. (Malaysia) S¢n Bhd
Elementis Securities Ltd

Elementis Services GmbH
Elementis Specialties (india) Private Ltd
Elementis US Hofdings Inc
Elementis US Ltd

H & C Acquisitions Ltd

H& CLumberInc

Harcros Chemicals CanadaInc
Iron Oxides $.A.de CV

Mondo Minerals International BY

Non-trading
Dormant
Cormant
Dormant
Darmant
Dormant
Nen-trading (in liguidation)
Dormant
Dermant
Dormant
Non-trading
Daormant
Non-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading
Nen-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading
Dormant
Non-trading
Non-trading
MNon-trading
Non-trading
Dormant
Non-trading
Dormant
Non-trading
Non-trading
Dormant
Non-trading
Non-trading
Dormant
Non-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading
Non-trading
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
Dormant
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United Kingdom'

United States of America®
Samoa®

Samoa®

United States of America?
United Kingdom’
Belgium*

United States of America?®
United States of America?
United States of America®
United States of America?®
United Kingdom"

United Kingdem'

United Kingdom'

United Kingdom'

Ireland®

Jersey®

United Kingdom'
Germany’

United Kingdam’

United States of America®
Germany’

United Kingdom'
Netherlands®

United Kingdom'

United Kingdom’

United Kingdom’
Netherlands®
Netherlands®

United Kingdom'

New Zealang'®

United Kingdom'

United States of America®
Malaysia"

tnited Kingdom’
Germany’

India"

United States of America®
United Kingdom'

United Kingdom®

United States of America?®
Canada"

Mexico'™

Netherlands®



Subsidiary undertakings Country of incorporation and operation
NB Chrome Ltd Dormant United Kingdom'

Reheis, Inc. Non-trading United States of America?

SRL Cogperatief U.A. Non-trading Netherlands®

SRLH Holdings Inc Non-trading United States of America®

SRL International Holdings, LLG Non-trading United States of America®

Talc Holding Finance Oy Non-trading Finland'®

Talc Holding Oy Non-trading Fintand'®

WBS Carbans Acquisitions Corp Nan-trading United States of Amarica?

1 Regigtered office: Caroline House. 55-57 High Holborn, London WC1V 6DX, UK.

Registered office; 1208 Orange Street, Wilmington, Delaware, 19801, US.

Registered office; Maystar Chambers, PO, Box 3289, Apia. Samoa.

Regiztered office: Regus Brussels Airport, Pegasuslaan 51831 Diegem, Belgium.

Registered office: 8th Floor, Block E, iveagh Court, Harcourt Road, Dublin 2, Ireland.

Registered office: 3rd Floor. 44 Esplanade, St Helier, Jersey. JE4 9wG.

Registered office: Stolberger Str.370, 50833, Koin, Germany.

Registered office: Strawinskylaan 411, 107 7XX Amsterdam, Netherlands,

Registered office:; Kajuitweg 8. 1041 AR, Amsterdam, Netherlands.

Registered office: KPMG, P O Box 1584, 18 Viaduct Harbour Avenue, Maritime Square, Auckland, New Zealand.
11 Registered office: 10th Floor, Menara Hap Seng, No. 1 & 3 Jalan P. Ramlee, 50250 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.

12 Registered office:; Unit-B. Ground Flgor, Jaswanti Landmark, Mehra industrial Estate, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (W), Mumbai 400079, India.
13 Registered office: C/o Stewart McKelvey Stirling Scales.44 Chipman Hill, Suite 1000 ON E2L 456, Canada.

14 Registered office: Calle San ignacio N 105, 22106 Tijuana,Baja California Mexico.

W oo N bW N

-
[w]

15 Registered office; Kajaanintie 54, 88620, Korholanmaki, Finland.
Notes:

* Other than Elementis Export Sales Inc. Elementis Group BY and Elementis Overseas Investments Ltd, none of the undertakings is held directly by the
Company. Equity capital is in ardinary shares and voting rights equate to equity gwnership.

* Allundertakings listed above have accounting periods ending 31 December, with the exceptions of () Elementis Specialties {India) Private Ltd for which
the relevant date is 31 March; and i) Elementis Finance {Germanyl Limited for which the relevant date is 30 September.

+ Undertakings operating inthe United Kingdom are incorporated in England and Wales. In the case of corporate undertakings other than in the United
Kingdom their country of operationis also their country ofincorporation,

* Allundertakings listed above have been included in the Consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year.

7. DEBTORS
2020 2019
£m £m
Group relief receivable 12.7 12.7
8. CREDITORS: AMOUNT FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
2020 2019
£m £m
Accruals and deferred income 0.6 0.6
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Notes to the company financial statements
continued

For the year ended 31 December 2020

9. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

2020 2019
Number 2020 Number 2019

‘000 £m ‘000 £m
CALLED-UP ALLOTTED AND FULLY PAID:
Ordinary shares of 5 pence each
At 1 January 580,518 28.9 580,394 289
Issue of shares 283 - 124 -
At 31 December 580,801 28.9 580,518 28.9

During the year a total of 282,914 ordinary shares with an aggregate nominal value of £14,146 were allotted and issued for cash to various
employees at subscription prices between 0 pence and 161 pence on the exercise of options under the Group's share optien schemes.
The total subscription monies received by the Company for these shares was £0.0m.

The Company can redeem shares by repaying the market value to the shareholder, whereupon the shares are cancelled.
Redemption must be from distributable profits. The Capital redemptionreserve represents the nominal value of the shares redeemed.

The share options reserve comprises amounts accumulated in equity in respect of share options and awards granted tc employees.

Details of the shared based payments in the year are set out in Note 26 to the Elementis plc consolidated financial statements.

10. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company is a guarantor to the Elementis Group defined benefit pension scheme under which it guarantees all current and future
obligations of UK subsidiaries currently participating in the pension scheme 1o make payments to the scheme, up to a specified maximum
amount. The maximum amount of the guarantee is that which is needed {at the time the guarante¢ is called on) to bring the scheme’s
funding level up to 105% of its liabilities, calculated in accordance with section 179 of the Pensions Act 2004. This is also sometimes
known as a Pension Protection Fund {'PPF} guarantee, as having such aguarantee in place reduces the annual PPF levy on the scheme.

11. UK REGISTERED SUBSIDIARIES EXEMPT FROM AUDIT

The following UK subsidiaries will take advantage of the audit exemption set cut within section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 for the year
ended 31 December 2020. Unless otherwise stated, the undertakings listed below are all 100% owned, either directly orindirectly, by Elementis
plc. The Company will guarantee the debts and liabilities of the UK subsidiaries listed below at the balance sheet date in accordance with section
479C of the Companies Act 2006. The Company has assessed the probability of loss under the guarantee as remote.

Proporticn of Preportion of
sharesheldby  shares held by

the Company subsidiary Company
Name (%) (%) Number
Agrichrome Limited 100 - 2228826
Elementis Finance (Germany) Limited 100 - 5531634
Elementis Finance (India} Limited 100 - 12521304
Elementis Finance (US) Limited 100 - 9303101
Elementis Germany Limited 100 - ABB64
Elementis Group (Finance} Limited 100 - 9303017
Elementis Group Limited 100 - 4048541
Elementis Overseas Investments Limited 100 - 8008981
Elementis Securities Limited 100 - 597303
Elementis US Limited 100 - 8005226
Elementis Finance (Europe) Limited 100 - 11717371
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Alternative performance measures and unaudited
information

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Areconciliation from reported profit for the year to earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amertisation (EBITDA} is provided to
support understanding of the summarised cash flow included within the Finance Report on pages 45 to 50.

2020 2019

Profit and Profitand

loss loss

$m $m

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (67.0) 46.4

Adjustments for '

Finance income {0.3) {0.4)
Finance costs and other expenses after adjusting items 41.2 313
Tax (credit)/charge {1.8) 14.6

DCepreciation and amortisation 66.7 701
Excluding intangftiles arising o acquisition {15.5} (18.6)

Adjusting items before interast 109.5 31.1
EBITDA 132.8 174.5

There are also 2a number of key performance indicators (KP!s) on pages 30 and 31, the reconciliations to these are given below.

OPERATING CASH FLOW
Operating cash flow is defined as the net cash flow from operating activities less net capital expenditure but excluding income taxes paid
or received, interest paid or recelived, pension contributions net of current service cost and adjusting items.

2020 2019

m 3m

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 107.1 143.4
Less: Capital expenditure (40.0) [47.3)

Add:

Income tax paid or received 8.5 2.2
Interest paid or received 237 250
Pension contributicns net of current service cost 0.1 1.2
Adjusting items - non cash (1.8) -
Adjusting items - cash ~ 12.2 3C.3
OPERATING CASH FLOW 109.8 154.8

OPERATING CASH CONVERSION
Operating cash conversion is definad as cperating cash flow (as defined above} excluding payments for pravisions and share based pay,
divided by operating profit from total operations after adjusting items.

2020 2019

$m $m

OPERATING PROFIT FROM TOTAL OPERATIONS AFTER ADJUSTING ITEMS B1.6 123.0

Operating cash flow 100.8 154.8
Add:

_ Provisicn and share based pay ) 1.7 5.4

) - 1115 160.2

OPERATING CASH FLOW CONVERSION ) 137% 130%

CONTRIBUTION MARGIN
The Group's contribution margin, which is defined as sales less all variable costs, divided by sales and expressed as a percentage.

2020 2018

$m $m

REVENUE 7513 8738
Variable costs (410.8) 473.1)
Non variable costs (832 (79.7)
COST OF SALES (494.0) (552.2)

ADJUSTED GROUP PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Adjusted Group profit befare tax is defined as the Group profit before tax from total operations {(both continuing and discontinued) after
adjusting items, excluding adjusting iterns relating to tax.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION CONTINUED

Alternative performance measures and unaudited
information continued

RETURN ON OPERATING CAPITAL EMPLOYED

The return on operating capital employed (ROCE) is defined as operating profit from total operations after adjusting items divided by
operating capital employed, expressed as a percentage. Operating capital employed comprises fixed assets (excluding goodwill), working
capital and operating provisions. Operating provisions include self insurance and envircnmental provisions but exclude retirement
benefit obligations.

2020 2019
$m $m
OPERATING PROFIT AFTER ADJUSTING ITEMS 81.6 123.0
Fixed assets excluding goodwil 740.7 7460
Working capital 1414 1521
Operating provisions (58.8) {51.6)
Operating capital empioyed 823.3 B465
RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED % 10% 15%

AVERAGE TRADE WORKING CAPITAL TO SALES RATIO

The trade working capital to sales ratio is defined as the 12 month average trade working capital divided by sales, expressedasa
percentage. Trade warking capital comprises inventaries, trade receivables (net of provisions) and trade payables. It specifically excludes
repayments, capital or interest related receivables or payables, changes due to currency movements and items classified as other
receivables and other payables.

ADJUSTED OPERATING PROFIT/OPERATING MARGIN
Adjusted operating profit is the profit derived from the normal operations of the business. Adjusted operating margin is the ratio of
operating profit, after adjusting items, to sales.

UNAUDITED INFORMATION
To support a full understanding of the performance of the Group, the information below provides the calculation of Net Debt/EBITDA as
per our banking covenants.

2020 2019

$m $m

Revenue 751.3 8736
Adjusted cperating profit B1.6 123.0
Adjusted operating margin 10.9% 14.1%
Adjusted EBITDA 1328 1745
IFRS 16 adjustment (6.4) (7.9)
Adjusted EBITDA pre IFRS 16 126.4 166.6
Net Debt’ 408.1 454.2
Net Debt / EBITDA* 3.23 273

* Net Debt/EBITDA, where EBITDA Is the Adjusted EBITDA on continuing operations of the Group on a pre IFRS 16 basis, is the definition of Net Debt/
EBITDA for Elementis’ core banking covenants.

1 See Note 28— Nebt Debt excludes lease liabilities.
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Five yearrecord

2016
2020 2019 2018 2017 restated?
$m $m $m $m $m
TURNOVER
Continuing operations 7593 8834 8332 7977 6292
Discontinued operations - - 18 47.8 43.1
Group turnover ‘ 759.3 883.4 8380 8455 6723
OPERATING PROFIT AFTER ADJUSTING ITEMS
Continuing operations 81.6 1230 1326 122.7 97.3
Discontinued operations ) - - (0.6} 5.4 (0.3)
81.6 1230 1320 128.1 97.0
Adjusting items before interast N {109.5) (311 (57.5) {30.9) (12.5)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INTEREST (27.9) 81.8 745 97.2 84.5
QOther expenses {1.8) (1.5) {1.6) {1.2) {1.4)
Net interest payable ) {39.3) {29.4) (179} N7 7.6)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (68.8) 61.0 55.0 84.3 755
Tax 18 (14.6) (136 333 (7.4)
(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT {67.0) 456.4 41.4 117.6 68.1
2016
2020 2019 2018 2017 restated?
$m $rm $m $m $m
BASIC
(Lossiearnings per ordinary share (cents) {11.5) 80 79 233 14,7
Earnings per crdinary share after agjusting items (cents) 6.6 126 7.0 18.1 176
DILUTED
(Loss)earnings per ordinary share (cents) {11.3) 7.9 79 23.0 135
Earnings per ordinary share after adjusting items {cents) 6.5 12.4 16.9 17.9 16.7
DIVIDEND PER ORDINARY SHARE (CENTS) - 8.55 8.65 880 16.80
DIVIDEND PER ORDINARY SHARE REBASED? (CENTS) - 8.55 840 805 15.38
INTEREST COVER (TIMES)! 3.7 55 8.0 135 138.6
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 860.4 906.2 915.6 7023 6271
NET{DEBT)/CASH {408.1) {454.2) {488.1) {291.1) 77.5

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF ORDINARY SHARES IN ISSUE
DURING THE YEAR (MILLION) 583.7 588.5 526.3 513.0 510.0

1 Ratio of operating profit after adjusting items to interest on net borrewings.

2 Restated following the adjustment for amortisation of intangibles, 2016 restated but not prior years. This is not expected tc be material.

3 Following the rights issue in Gctober 2018, dividend per share for periods prior to this have been rebased to reflect the bonus element resulting from this
rights issue.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Shareholder Services

SHAREHOLDERS BY TYPE

SHAREHOLDERS BY NUMBER OF SHARES

Nominee — 4.66% Trust—0.01% 1t0 499 -50.63%
Lirnited Company —2.78% Bank -0.02% 50010999 - 12.65%
Other Organisation - 0.64% Private individuals — 91.89% 1.00010 4,999 - 24.84%

5,000t 9,.99% - 5,05%
10,000t0 49,999 - 3,.27%

SHAREHOLDER PROFILE (BY CATEGORY) AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

50,0000 99,999 - 0.68%
10000010 499,999 - 1.48%
500.000 to 999.999 - 0.44%
1,000,000 to Highest — 0.96%

Percentage of
Numberof  Percentageof Qrdinaryshares issued share
Category shareholders total {millicn} capital
Private individuals 7934 91.89% 14,102,509 2.43%
Nominee Companies 402 466% 435,532,654 74.99%
Limited and public limited compenies 240 278% 100,320,958 17.27%
Other corporate bodies 55 0.64% 30,662,806 5.28%
Pengion funds, insurance companies and banks 3 0.03% 182,314 0.03%
SHAREHOLDER PROFILE (BY SIZE) AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020
o Percentage of
Numberof  Percentage of Ordinary shares issued share
Range of holdings shareholders total {million) capital
1-489 4,371 50.63% 770,215 0.13%
500-999 1,092 12.65% 778,662 0.13%
1,000-4,999 2,145 24.84% 4,625.837 0.80%
5.000-9.993 436 5.05% 2,950,571 G.51%
10,000-49,899 282 3.27% 5475699 0.94%
50,000-99,999 59 0.68% 4,059,942 0.70%
100,000-495,999 128 1.48% 29,804,554 5.15%
500,000-998,999 38 0.44% 26,445,301 4.55%
1,000,000 Plus 83 0.96% 505,790,453 87.08%
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REGISTRARS

Enquiries concerning shares or shareholdings, such astheloss ofa
share certificate, consolidation of share certificates, amalgamation
of holdings or dividend payments, should be addressed to the
Company's registrars:

Equiniti Group plc
Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex, BN9S 60A
Tel 0371 284 2379 or +44 {0) 121 4157043

For shareholders with hearing difficulties:
Tel: 0371 384 2255 or +44 (0) 121 415 7028

Line are open between 8.30am and 5.30pm Monday to Friday
{excluding public holidays in England and Wales).

Inany correspondence with the reqistrars, please refer to
Elementis pic and state clearly the registered name and address
of the shareholder, Please notify the registrars promptly of any
change of address.

WEBSITE
Ourwebsite (www.elementis.com} provides the
following information:

+ company news and infarmation;
= details of our strategy;
+ the Company's approach to sustainability and innovation
+ adedicated Investors’ section on the website which contains
up to date informaticn for shareholders including:
— share price and index chartinformation;
financial results
history of dividend payment dates and amounts
access to current end historical shareholder documents such
as the Annual Report and Accounts,

SHARE DEALING SERVICES

Equiniti provides a share dealing service that enables shares to be
brought or sold by UK shareholders by telephone or over the
internet. For telephone share dealing, please call 0345 603 7037
between 8.3Cam and 4.30pm (lines are open until 6.00pm for
enguiries) and forinternet share dealing, please visit:
www.shareview.co.uk/dealing

f

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS

Shareholders can elect to receive shareholder documents
electronically by registering with Shareview at
www.shareview.ca.uk. This will save on printing and distribution
costs, creating environmental benefits. When you register, you will
be sent an email notification 1o say when shareholder documents
are available on our webeite and you will be provided with alink to
that information. When registering, you will need your shareholder
reference number which can be found on your share certificate or
proxy form. Please contact Equinitiif you require any assistance or
further information.

SHARE FRAUD

Share or investment scams are often run from ‘boiler rooms’ where
fraudsters cold call investors offering themworthless, overpriced
or even non-existent shares, or offer to buy their sharesina
company at a higher price than the market value. Shareholders are
advised to be very wary of any unsolicited advice, offers to buy
shares at & discount, or offers of free reports about the company.
Even seasoned investors have been caught out by such fraudsters.
The FCA have some helpful information.

REPORT A SCAM

If you are contacted by a coid caller, you should inform the
Company Secretary by email and also the FCA by using their share
fraud reporting form at www.fca.org.uk/scams or calling their
Consumer Helpline on 0800 111 6768.

If you have already paid money to a share fraudster, please contact
Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040 or www.actionfraud.police.uk.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Corporate Information

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

13 May 2021
May 2021
July 2021
October 2021

Annual General Meeting

{1 Trading Update

Interim results announcement for the half year ending 30 June 2021
{3 Trading Update

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Annual General Meeting of Elernentis plc will be held on 13 May 2021 at 2.00pm at the Company's registered office: Caroline House,
55-57 High Holborn, London, WC1V 6DX. The notice of meeting is included in a separate document.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Laura Higgins

REGISTERED NUMBER
03209608

REGISTERED OFFICE
Caroline House

55-57 High Holborn
London

WC1VBDX

UK

PRINCIPAL OFFICES
Elementis plc

Caroline House

55-57 High Holborn
London

WC1V 6DX

UK

Tel. +44 (0)20 7067 2999

Elementis Global
469 Old Trenton Road
East Windsor

NJ 08512

us

Tel: +1 609 443 2000
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
Deloitte LLP
1 Little New Street, London, EC4A 3TR

JOINT CORPORATE BROKER
JP Morgan Cazenove
60 Victoria Embankment, London, EC4Y 0JP

JOINT CORPORATE BROKER
Numis
Cheapside House, 138 Cheapside, London, EC2V 6LH

PUBLIC RELATIONS
Tulchan Communications
2nd Floor, 85 Fleet Street, London, EC4Y 1AE

SOLICITORS
Herbert Smith Freehills LLP
Exchange House, Primrose Street, London, EC2A 2EG

EMAIL
company.secretariat@elementis.com

WEBSITE
www.elementis.com



Glossary

ACT Advance Corporation Tax IEA International Energy Agency
AGM Annual General Meeting IFRIC International Financial Reporting
AP Anti-perspirant Interpretations Committee
ART Annual Report team IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards
AWC Average working capital IRS Internal Revenue Service
AWS Alliance of Water Stewardship ISDA International Swaps and Derivatives
Board Board of Directors of Elementis plc Assogiation
Brexit The withdrawal of the UK from the EU KP! Key perfoermance indicator
CapEx Capital expenditure kWh Kilowatt per hour
CCPA California Consumer Privacy Act LPG Liquefied Petroleum Gas
CEO Chief Executive Officer LTA Losttime acciderjt
CFO Chief Financial Officer LTIP Long term incentive plan
cGu Cash generating unit LTP Leather tanning plant
CHRO Chief Human Resources Officer M? Cubic metres
CO: Carbon dioxide M&A Merger and acquisitions
C0.e Carbon dioxide equivalent MBTU Thousand British Thermal Units
Code UK Corporate Governance Code Mondo Mon(_:io_ M_inerals Holdings BV. and its
Company Elementis plc subsudwarwes» :
COSMOS Cosmetic Organic and Natural Standard NED NO“‘E_"EC‘““VB Director : :
COvVID-19 Coranavirus pandemic OECD ggae?cn)sr.;qtlgztfor Economic Co-operationand
DEI Dwe.rsny' Equality and In?IUSI?n OSHA Qccupational Safety and Heaith Administration
DNED Designated Non-Executive Director PBT Brofit beore tax
EBITDA Earnings b_efore interest, tax, depreciation PPE Personal protective squipment
and amortisation - = -
ECL Expected credit losses PRMB Post retirernent medical benefit
ELT Executive Leadership Team R&D Research & Development
EPS Earnings per share RCF Revglvmg cred\tfacﬂ.:ty -
ESC Elemertis Sustainability Council REACH f(eesgtlr?é;?;]o; E\:je;hrjr:gg‘r;, Authorisation and
ESG Enwror.\mental, SOCI.al and Governance Rights Issue A one to four Rights Issue that was undertaken
ESOS Executive share option scheme by the Company in October 2018
ESOT Employee share ownersnip trust ROCE Return on capital emplayed
EU E.urope.an Union SAYE Save as you eamn
FCA Financial Conduct Authority SID Senlor Independent Director
FRC F!nanc!al Reporting Council SummitReheis SRLH Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries
FRS F!nanc!al R.eporting Standards SVP Senior Vice President
FTSE Financial Times Stock Exchange TCFD The Task Force on Climate-related Financial
GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles Disclosures
GDP Gross domestic product te Tonnes
GDPR General Data Protection Regulation TRIR Total recordable incident rate
GHG Greenhouse gases TSR Total shareholder return
GJ Gigajoule UK United Kingdom
Group Elementis plc and its subsidiaries UN United Nations
HMRC HM Revenug and Customs UN SDGs United Nations Sustainable Development
HSE Health, safety and environment Goals
IAS Investment Association Standards us United States
IASB International Accounting Standards Board voC Volatile organic compound

The paper used in this report is elemental chlorine
free and is FSC" certified. It is printed to ISO 14001
environmental procedures, using vegetable based inks.

F5C* C022813

The Forest Stewardship Council (FSC*}

is an international network which promotes
responsible management of the world's forests.
Forest certification is combined with a system
of product iabelling that allows consumers

to readily identify timber based products

from certified sources.

Designed by Luminous
+44 (0)20 71011677
www, luminous.co.uk
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Elementis pic
Caroline House
5§5-57 High Holborn
London

wC1V 6DX

UK

Tel: +44 (0120 7067 2999
www.elementis.com



